TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
January 31, 2019 - 2:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 7 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
Open Session — Assembly Rooms 1,2 & 3
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time
Agenda ltem Aliotted | Requestor

Call to Order 3 min, Standard

Approval of agenda

Public Comments — Announcement 3 min. | Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Closed Session portion of the Agenda. Per Board Policy 14-018,
members of the public may have three minutes, individually, to address the
Board of Directors.

Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.7)

Motion to go into Closed Session

Closed Session 1 Hour

a. Conference with Legal Counsel - Potential Litigation
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54956.9(d) 2 (1 Matter)

b. Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Commitiees
{Authority: Health & Safety Code, Section 32155)

¢. Approval of prior Closed Session Minutes

Motion to go into Open Session

Open Session

Open Session - Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion (Lower
Level) and Facilities Conference Room — 3:30 p.m.

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
{(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1)

10

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance 3 min. Standard

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this
Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior fo the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.



Time
Agenda ltem Allotted | Requestor
11 | Public Comments — Announcement 2 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.
NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.
12 | Special Recognition
a) In recognition of Sharon Schultz, MSN, RN, MPH for her 13 years of 5 min. Chair
service and dedication to Tri-City Medical Center both as the Director of
Emergency Services and Chief Nurse Executive.
13 | Report from TCHD Auxiliary President - Mary Gleisberg 10 min. Auxiliary
President
14 | December 2018 Financial Statement Results 10 min. CFO
15 | New Business
a) Consideration to nominate Director Chavez to be considered on the CHA 5 min. Director Reno
Governance Forum
b) Discussion and recommendations regarding Board's Self-Evaluation/ 10 min. Director
Retreat/Facilitators to be held in the fall of 2019 Schallock
c¢) Consideration to accept recommendations from CHAC Ad Hoc 10 min. Ad Hoc
Committee related to its committee structure and function including Committee
amendments to the CHAC Charter
16 | Old Business
a) Consideration to award Board Scholarship to the Tri-City Hospital 10 min. Director
Auxiliary in the amount of $10,000. Schallock/
Connie Jones
17 | Chief of Staff 10 min. Chief of Staff
) Consideration of January 2019 Credentialing Actions and
Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health
Professionals as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on
January 28, 2019.
¢) Consideration of amended Medical Staff Bylaws
c) Consideration of revision to Cardiology Privilege Card
18 | Consideration of Consent Calendar 5 min, Standard
Administrative & Board Committees
(1) All Committee Chairs will make an oral report to the Board
regarding items being recommended if listed as New
Business or pulled from Consent Calendar.
(2) All items listed were recommended by the Committee.
TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2- January 31, 2019




Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

(1) Administrative Committee

(3) Requested items to be pulled require a second.

a) Patient Care Policies & Procedures

1) Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin
Ophthalmic Qintment to Newborns Standardized Procedure

2) Cardiac Cath Lab Standardized Procedure

3) Care of the Newborn Standardized Procedure

4) Droperidol Administration, Monitoring and-or Discontinuing Drug
Standardized Procedure (DELETE)

5) Identification of Newborns Procedure

6) Massive Transfusion Protocol Policy

7) Pneumococcal and Influenza Vaccine Screening and
Administration Standardized Procedure

8) Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic
Procedure

9) Stroke Code, Emergency Department Procedure

10) Surgical Hand Asepsis Procedure

b) Administrative Policies & Procedures
1) Qutsourcing Sterile Compounding Policy 206 (DELETE)

¢) Food and Nutrition
1) Emergency Preparedness Food and Nutrition Disaster Plan Policy

) Mammography Women

1) Communication of Results Women Center

2) Completion of Diagnostic Report

3) Distribution of Mammography Reports Policy

4) Film Retention, Check Out and Copying Policy

5) Mammaography Medical Outcomes Audit Policy

6) Mammography QA Plan DIT Palicy

7} Scheduling of Self Referring Mammography Patients Policy
8) Screening Mammography Policy

9) Self-Referring & Self-Requesting Patients Policy (DELETE)
10) Staff & Personnel Listing Women's Center Policy

e) Patient Care Management
1} Utilization Review Process

f) Pharmacy
1) Antidote Stocking
2) Restricted Antimicrobials

) Progressive Care Unit
1) High Profile Patients in Progressive Care Unit (PCU) (NEW)

h} Radiology
1) Imaging Services General Safety Management #128
(DELETE)

2) MRI After Hours Coverage #122
3) MRI Emergency Procedures #1141
4) MRI Safety Zones #113

5) Oral Contrast Administration #106
6) Patient Interaction #126

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

January 31, 2019



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

7) Patient Procedure Refusal #127
8) Radiologists Coverage Non iR #125
9) Scope of Service #121

i) Rehabilitation
1) Physical Therapy Assistant Supervision 613

J) Women & Newborn Services

1) Adoption

2) Partners in Care for WNS

3) Release of Minor to Other than Birth Mother
4) Surrogacy

{2) Board Committees

A. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee
Director Chavez, Committee Chair
(No meeting held in January, 2019)

. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 1
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes

) Approval of an agreement to add Dr. Anitha Rajamanickdm
to the currently existing Cardiology Physician EKG and
Echocardiology Panel Agreement for a term of 36 months,
beginning July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021.

N

) Approval of an agreement with Rady Children’s Specialistp of
San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing for a term of
12 months, beginning January 1, 2019 through December 31,
2019, at a cost of $3,200 per month, for a total cost for the
term of $38,400.

3) Approval of a Lease Agreement for Suite 101 in the Carlsbad
Wellness Center MOB located at 6260 EI Camino Real,
Carlsbad, CA 92009, with Ohana Medical Services
Organization, Inc. for a ten-year, five month term {125
months), at a rate of $7,971 per month, increasing base rent
3% yearly and with a total credit from the landlord not to

| _exceed $239,609

4) Approval of an agreement to add Dr. Cyrus Shabrang to the
currently existing ED On Call Coverage Panel for
Interventional Radiology for a term of 19 months, beginning
December 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020.

5) Approval of an agreement with Cerner for Community Works
for a term of 120 months (10 years), beginning February 2019
through January 2029, for an average annual cost of
$6,149,113 and a total cost for the term of $61,401,130.

. Tetal

LUy

West Vista Way, Vista, CA 92083 with Dr. Kenneth Carr for a
month-to-month term to commence February 1, 2019 at the

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4-

CHAC Comm.

FO&P Comm.

January 31, 2019



Agenda Item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

rate of $2,169.76 per month.

7} Approval of an agreement with Dr. Nicholas Jauregui, to
provide medical oversight for the TCHD Supportive/Palliative
Care Program for a term of 12 months beginning February 1,
2019 through January 31, 2020, not to exceed an average of
16 hours per month, and maximum of 200 hours annually, at
an hourly rate of $200 for a term cost not to exceed $40,000.

C. Professional Affairs Committee
Director Reno, Committee Chair
{No meeting held in January, 2019

D. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
Director Schallock, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats ~ 1
(No meeting held in January, 2019)

{3) Minutes — Approval of:

a) Regular Board of Directors Meeting — December 13, 2018

{4) Meetings and Conferences — None

(5) Dues and Memberships

4) Modern Healthcare Board Subscription - $532.00

PAC

Audit, Comp.
& Ethics
Comm.

Standard

19

Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda

10 min.

Standard

20

V3|
W

(a) Dashboard - Included

(b) Construction Report — None
(c) Lease Report — (December, 2018)

(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — December, 2018)
{e) Seminar/Conference Reports — None

0-5 min.

Standard

21

Comments by Members of the Public

NOTE: Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three (3)
minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on
any item not on the agenda.

5-10
minutes

Standard

22

Comments by Chief Executive Officer

5 min.

Standard

23

Board Communications (three minutes per Board member)

18 min.

Standard

24

Report from Chairperson

3 min.

Standard

25

Total Time Budgeted for Open Session

2 hours

26

Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session

27

Motion to Return to Closed Session (if needed)

28

Open Session

29

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
{Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1) — (If Needed)

30

Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -5-

January 31, 2019



Q

Tri-City Medical Center

MEMO

January 23, 2019

To:  Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors
Fr: AD HOC CHAC Committee
Re: Community Healthcare Alliance Committee (CHAC)

Dear Members of the Board of Directors,

Please find attached documents for your review and consideration. These documents are being proposed to
comply with new laws governing California healthcare district grants (AB 2019) and to ensure the grant funds
ve distributed to the best interest of the citizens served by the Tri-City Hospital District.

The attachments include:

e CHAC Committee Proposed Program Overview

e Community Healthcare Alliance Committee (CHAC) Committee Charter
e Assembly Bill No. 2019

e Assembly Bill No. 1728

The Board of Directors will need to create a new policy reflecting the new law, AB 1728, Section 32139, C 1-2,
which will include a process for the district to ensure allocated grant funding is spent consistently with the grant
application and the mission and purpose of the district.



PROPOSED GRANT CONSIDERATIONS

Fund Allotment

Current;

Proposed:

Evaluation

Current:

Averaging $350,000 annually. This allotment has been adjusted in previous years based on
availability of funds.

Decreasing grant allotment to $100,000 annually, reissued annually upon availability of funding
and approved by the TCHD Board of Directors.

All grant applications are reviewed for eligibility and recommendation by the Grant Selection
Committee comprised of members who sit on the CHAC Committee. The recommendations are
then presented to the CHAC Committee for approval of recommendation prior to submission to
the Board of Directors for final approval.

Proposed: CHAC committee members will determine the grant program’s priority focus areas
based on CHNA findings. All applications will be reviewed for eligibility, scope, and impact by
assigned staff member(s). Assigned staff member(s) will score (rank) applicants in several
categories that are aligned with application criteria. The CHAC Committee will also have input
as committee members will be able to rank applicants with those rankings forming a portion of
the applicant’s overall score. Prescreened and recommended applicants will be submitted by the
CHAC Committee to the Board of Directors for final approval.

Committee Membership

Current:

Members are chosen by the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors and must meet all
requirements prescribed in Board Policy No. 15-031. Only those who live or work in the District
are eligible to be members of the Committee. There are currently 32 voting and non-voting
positions on the CHAC Committee represented by the following groups:

Voting Members representing the districts of Oceanside, Vista and Carlsbad
e Board Members
s District Residents
e Mayoral Nominees
e Chamber Of Commerce CEO’S
e School District Nominees
e Senior Commission Nominees
e Police And Fire Nominees
e Community Healthcare Organizations — VCC, NCHS & County of San Diego
Health & Human Services Agency.
e Multicultural Nominees
o Chief of Staff



Non-Voting Advisory Members

s CEO
» COO
e CEAO
Other
* Administrative Support Staff
Proposed: It has been proposed that the committee membership be reviewed and possibly adjusted and/or

decreased to promote commitment and relevance to current areas of focus.

Meeting Schedule

Current: CHAC currently meets monthly on the third Thursday of the month at 12:30pm.

Proposed: It is proposed that the CHAC Committee meet quarterly on the third Thursday of the month, at
12:30pm. Designated meeting months would be January, April, July and October.



Q@

Tri-Gity Medical Center

To: Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors
Re: Community Healthcare Alliance Committee (CHAC)
Purpose: 1. Actions to enhance the Tri-City Healthcare District’s Grant Program with strategic initiatives

to strengthen the public image of the district and meet underserved health needs in specified
priority areas.
2. Meet 2019 requirements of AB 2019.

Attachments: Community Health Alliance Committee (CHAC) Charter

Assembly Bill No. 2019
Assembly Bill No. 1728

PROPOSED COMMITTEE OVERVIEW

Mission: To advance the health and wellness of those we serve.

Priority areas as identified in the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) determined by the Triennial
Hospital Association of San Diego and Imperial Counties (HASDIC). The current iteration covers 2019-2021.

(

"“RIORITIES SUGGESTED FOCUS AREAS
chavioral Health Alzheimer’s Disease
Mood Disorders
Anxiety
Alcohol & Drug Issues
Cardiovascular Health Hypertension

Social Determinants of Health Food Insecurity & Access to Healthy Foods

Homeless | Housing Issues
Education | Knowledge
Poverty

Eligibility

The requesting organization must be a not-for-profit organization

The requesting project and use of funds must directly benefit the health and well-being of citizens living
within the Tri-City Healthcare District boundaries only.

Other hospitals, hospital districts, Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) and government entities
are excluded from consideration. School districts are not excluded from participating.

Successful CHAC grant applications will address identified community health needs as determined by
the Triennial Hospital Association of San Diego and Imperial Counties (HASDIC).

Successful CHAC grant applicants will be funded for implementation of their program or project over
the course of one year with the potential of two additional years of funding should significant progress
be demonstrated. Projects are expected to be complete or self-sustainable after a maximum of three
years of funding.




terim and Final Reports
e [f awarded a grant, an annual update report will be due on the anniversary of the grant funded program
or project. A Final Report on the results of the grant must be submitted in order to be considered for a
future grant as described in the eligibility section.
¢ All deadlines for submission will be provided in advance.

Consecutive Funding
e All grant recipients are limited to a one (1) year cycle of funding for the same project and scope.
» Organizations receiving funding for the same project for any three consecutive years must submit an
entirely different grant proposal to be considered for future funding.

Application Process
o All applications must be submitted electronically via the form provided by the Grant Committee
Guidelines. No paper applications will be accepted. Applicants will receive confirmation of application
submission.
o The electronic application includes the following pages and attachments. Each category will have
instructions:
o Cover Page
Proposal Narrative
Budget Narrative
Project Budget attached as a PDF
Organization’s Annual Operating Budget attached as a PDF
Verification of Tax Exempt or Non-Profit Status attached as a PDF

O O O 0O 0O

Collaborative Projects
o There is no longer a collaborative grant category.

Deadline for Submission
* All completed applications are to be forwarded electronically to a designated Tri-City Healthcare
District’s staff member by a published deadline date.

Disqualifiers
» Incomplete application or missing information
* Exceeding the word count and electronic submission instructions
¢ Discrepancy in the budget figures
» The requesting agency does not qualify under IRS regulations
o The requesting agency has exceeded the three years of consecutive funding rule
e The application was submitted after the deadline day and/or time
* A Final Report was not submitted by the deadline date

10



Bill Text - AB-1728 Health care districts: board of directors. Page 1 of 2

—,

7
A N <1 P
m 5{(/ OIpLer
(AT L

e

EGISLATIVE INFORMATION

Home Bill Information Califarnia Law Publicatlons Other Resources My Subscriptions Iy Favariles

AB-1728 Health care districts: board of directors. (2017-2018)

SHARE THIS: n !ﬁi Date Published: 09/25/2017 09:00 PH

Assembly Bill No. 1728

CHAPTER 265

An act to add Section 32139 to the Health and Safety Code, relating to health care districts.

[ Approved by Governor September 23, 2017. Filed with Secretary of State
September 23, 2017.)

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 1728, Committee on Local Government. Heaith care districts: board of directors

The Local Health Care District Law provides for local health care districts that govern certa:n health care facliitles,
Each health care district has a board of directors with specific dut'es and powers respacting the creaton,
administration, ang maintenance of the district, including purchasing, recelving, having, taking, holding, leasing,
using, and enjoying property.

This bill would require the board of directors to adopt an annual budget in a public meeting, on or before
September 1 of each year, that conforms to generally accepted accounting and budgeting procedures for special
distrlcts, establish and maintain an Internet Web site that lists contact information for the district, and adopt
annual policles for providing assistance or grant funding, If the district provides assistance or grants. By
Increasing the duties of the board of directors, relating to disclosure of public records and other duties, this bill
would impose & state-mandated locat program.

The California Constitution requires local agencies, fur the purpose ef ensuring public access to the meetings of
public bodies and the writings of public officlals and agencles, to camply with a statutory enactment that amends
or enacts laws relating to public records or open meetings and cantains findings demonstrating that the
enactment furthers the constitutional requirements relating to this purpose.

This bill wouid make legislative findings to that effect.

The Californla Constitution requires the state to relmburse local agencies and school districts for certain costs
mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish proceduras for making that refmbursement

This hill would provide that with regard to certaln mandates no reimbursement Is required by thils act for a
specifled reason

With regard to any other mandates, this bill would provide that, If the Commission on State Mandates determines
that the bill contains costs so mandated by the state, relmbursemant for those costs shall be made pursuant to
the statutory provisions noted abave,

Vote: majority Appropriation: no  Fiscal Committee: yes Locai Program: yes

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS;

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/bilINavClient.xhtmi?bill_id=201720180AB1728 1/23/2019



Bill Text - AB-1728 Health care districts: board of directors.

SECTION 1. Section 32139 is added to the Health and Safety Code, In Articte 2 of Chapter 2 of Division 3, to
read:

32139. The board of directors shall do all of the following:

(a) Adopt an annual budget in a public meeting, on or before September 1 of each year, that conforms to
generally accepted accounting and budgeting proceduras for special districts.

(b) Establish and malntain an Internet Web site that lists contact Information for the district. The Internet Weab
slte may also list any of the following:

{1) The adopted budget.
(2) A list of current board members,

(3) Information regarding public meetings required pursuant to Section 32106 or the Ralph M. Brown Act
{Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 54950) of Part 1 of Divislon 2 of Title 5 of the Govarnment Code).

{4) A municipal service review or speclal study conducted by a local agency formation commission pursuant to the
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (Division 3 {(commencing with Section
56000) of Title 5 of the Government Code), If any.

{5) Reciplents of grant funding or assistance provided by the district, If any.

(€) Audits of the district's accounts and records pursuant to Sectlon 26909 of the Government Code or Section
32133 of this code,

{7) Annual Rnanclal reports to the Controller, submitted pursuant to Section 53890 of the Government Code.
{8) Any other information the board deems relevant.

(c) Adopt annual polictes for providing assistance or grant funding, if the district provides assistance or grants
pursuant to Sectlon 32126.5 or any other law. This policy shall Include all of the following:

(1) A nexus between the allocation of assistance and grant funding with health care and the mission of the
district.

{2) A process for the district to ensure allocated grant funding is spent consistently with the grant application and
the mission and purpose of the district.

SEC. 2. The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, which adds Section 32139 of the Health and
Safety Code, furthers, within the meaning of paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article | of the
Callfornla Constitutlon, the purposes of that constitutional section as it relates ta the right of public access to the
meetings of local public bodies or the writlngs of local public officlals and local agencies. Pursuant to paragraph
{7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article T of the California Constitution, the Leglslature makes the following
findings:

By requiring health care districts to post specified Informatlon on their Intarnet Web site, this act Increases publc
access to public records, and thereby furthers the purposes of paragraph (7) of subdivislan {b) of Section 3 of
Article [ of the California Constitution,

SEC. 3. No relmbursement is required by this act pursuant to Sectlon & of Articie XIII B of the California
Constitution because the only costs that may be Incurred by a local agency or schodl district under this act would
result from a legislative mandate that Is within the scope of paragraph {7) of subdivislen (b} of Section 3 of
Article I of the Californla Constltutian.

However, if the Commisslon on State Mandates determines that this act contalns ather costs mandated by the
state, relmbursement to local agencies and school districts for those costs shall be made pursuant to Part 7
{commencing with Section 17500) of Divislon 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

Page 2 of 2

hitps://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/biliNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1728

1/23/2019

12



Bill Text - AB-2019 Health care districts, Page 1 of 4
8) / il
L P TLCL
LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION
Home Bill information Cafifornia Law Fublications Other Resources My Subscriplions My Favorites
AD-2019 Health care districts, (2017-2018)
SHARE THIS: n {ﬁ Date Published: 09/05/2016 09:00 PH

Assembly Bill No. 2019
CHAPTER 257

An act to add Section 6270.7 to the Government Cade, and to amend Saction 32139 of, and to add
Sections 32132.96 and 32140 to, the Health and Salety Code, relating to health care districts.

{ Approved by Gavernor September 05, 2018. Filed with Secretary of State
September 05, 2018. ]

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

AB 2019, Aguiar-Curry. Health care districts.,

The tocal Health Care District Law provides for local health care districts that gavern certain health care facilitles,
Each health care district has a board of directors with specific dutles and powers respecting the creation,
administration, and maintenance of the district. Existing law requires the board of directors to establish and
maintaln an Internet Web site that may include specified Information, such as a list of current board members
and reciplents of grant funding or assistance provided by the district, IF any, and to adopt annual policies for
providing assistance or grant funding, a5 specified. Existing law autharizes certain health care districts to use the
deslgn-build process when contracting for the construction of a haspital or other builldings In those districts, as
spacified.

This bill would require the board of directors to Include specified Informatlon, such as the district’s palcy for
providing assistance or grant funding, on the district's Internet Web site. The bill would require that policy to
contain, among other things, the district's plan for distributing grant funds for each fiscal year and a process for
providing, accepting, and reviewing grant applications, The bill would also require the board to, upon fling a
petition under federal bankruptcy 'aw, provide written notice within 10 business days to the local agency
fermation commission of the princlpal county in which the district Is located. The bill would require a district that
is authorized and elects to use the design-build process, as specified, for the construction of housing to require
that at least 20% of the resldential units constructed be subject to a recorded affordability restriction for at least
55 years and be affordable to lower Incoma households, very low Income households, extremely low income
households, and persons and families of fow or moderate income, as defined, unless the city, county, or city and
county In which the district is predominantly located has adopted a local ordinance that requires a greater
percentage of the units be affordable to those groups or unless the construction is for purposes of bullding
workforce housing, heaith facilitles, or retirement facilltles, as specified. By Increasing the dutles of the board of
directors, including duties related to disclosure of public records, tha bill would impose a2 state-mandated local
program.

Existing law, the Californla Public Records Act, requires state and local agencies to make their records ava lable
for public inspection, unless an exemption from disclosure applies.

This blll would require each health care district, In Implementing the Californla Public Records Act, to maintaln an
[nternet Web site in accordance with the provisions described abaove, Because the bill would require health care
districts to perform additional duties, it would Impase a state-mandated local program,

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/bill TextClient.xhtmi?bill_id=201720180AB2019

1/123/2019

13



Bill Text - AB-2019 Health care districts.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/bill TextClient.xhtrnl?bill_id=201720180AB2019

The Californla Constitution requires local agencles, for the purpose of ensuring public access to the meetings of
public bodles and the writings of public afficials and agencies, to comply with a statutory enactment that amends
or enacts laws relating to public records or open meetings and contalns findings demonstrating that the
enactment furthers the constitutional requirements relating to this purpose.

This blll would make legisiative findings to that effect.

The California Constitution requires the state to relmburse local agencies and schaol districts for certain costs
mandated by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that relmbursement.

This bill would provide that with regard to certaln mandates no relmbursement Is required by this act for a
specified reason.

With regard to any other mandates, this bill would provide that, if the Commission on State Mandates determines
that the bill contalns costs so mandated by the state, reimbursement for those costs shall be made pursuant to
the statutory provislons noted above.

Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee; yes Local Program: yes

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1. Sectlon 6270.7 is added to the Government Code, to read:

6270.7. In Implementing this chapter, each health care district shall maintaln an Internet Web site In accordance
with subdivision (b) of Section 32139 of tha Health and Safety Code.

SEC. 2. Section 32132.965 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:

32132.86. (3) Except as provided in subdivision (b}, (¢}, or {d), a district that is authorized and elects to use the
design-build process described in Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 22160} of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public
Contract Code for the construction of housing shall require that at least 20 percent of the reslidential units
constructed be subject to a recorded affordability restriction for at least 55 years and be affordable to all of the
following:

(1) Lower income households, as defined In Section S0079.5.

{2} Very low income househalds, as defined In Section 50105.

{3) Extremely low Income households, as defined In Section 50106.

{4} Persons and families of low or moderate income, as defined In Section 50093.

{b) Subdivision (a) shall not apply if the city, county, or clty and county In which the district is predominantly
located has adopted a local ordinance that requires a greater percentage of the units be affardable to lower
Income househalds, very low Income househalds, extremely low income households, and persons and familles of
low or moderate income.

(c} Subdivision (a) shall not apply to any district that is authorized and elects to use the design-build process
dascribed in Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 22160) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code for
the construction of any health facilitlies or retiremant facllities exclusively provlding care or supportive services to
the elderly, disabled adults, or Individuals with dementia, Including, but not limited to, resldentlal care facllitles
for the elderly.

(d) Subdivision (2) shall not apply to any district that Is authorized and elects to use the deslgn-build process
described In Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 22160) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code for
the construction of workforce housing that is otharwlse required by local ordinance.

SEC. 3. Section 32139 of the Health and Safaty Code Is amended to read:

32138, The board of directors shall do afl of the following:

(a) Adopt an annual budget in a public meeting, on or before September 1 of each year, that conforms to
generally accepted accounting and budgeting procedures for spec al districts.

(b) Establish and maintain an Internet Web site that lists contact infarmation for the district. The Internet Weh
site shall also list all of the following:

Page 2 of 4

1/23/2019

14



Bill Text - AB-2019 Health care districts.

{1) The adopted budget.
{2) A list of current board members,

(3) Information regarding public meetings required pursuant to Section 32106 or the Ralph M. Brown Act
(Chapter 9 {commencing with Section 54550} of Part 1 of Division 2 of Titla 5 of the Government Code’.

{4} A municipal service review or special study conducted by a local agency formation commission pursuant te the
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (Division 3 (commenctng with Secton
56000) of Title 5 of the Government Code), if any. The board may comply with this paragraph by posting a link
on its Internet Web site to another government Internet Web site that contalns the specified information.

(5) Reciplents of grant funding or assistance provided by the district, If any.

(6) Audits of the district’s accounts and records pursuant to Section 26909 of the Gavernment Code or Section
32133 of this code, The board may comply with this paragraph by posting a link on Its Internet Web site to
another government internet Web site that contains the specified information.

(7) Annual financial reparts to the Controfler, submitted pursuant to Section 53890 of the Government Code. The
board may comply with this paragraph by posting a llnk on its Internet Web site to ancther government Internet
Web site that contalns the specified Information.

(8) The district’s policy for providing assistance or grant funding describad In subdivision {c).
{9) Any other information the board deems relevant.

(€} Adopt annual policies for providing assistance or grant funding, If the district provides assistance or grants
pursuant to Section 32126.5 or any other law. This policy shall include all of the following:

{1) A nexus between the allocation of assistance and grant funding with health care and the mission of the
district.

{2) A process for the district to ensure allocated grant funding is spent consistently with the grant application and
the mission and purpose of the district, including, but not limited to, requirements that a grant reclpient must
meet, such as grant contract terms and condltions, fiscal and programmatic manitoring by the district, and
reporting to the district.

{3) The district’s plan for distributing grant funds for each fiscal year.
(4} A process for providing, accepting, and reviewing grant applications.

(5} A prohibition against Indlvidual meetings regarding grant applications between a grant applicant and a district
board member, officer, or staff outside of the district's established grant awards process. A district’s established
grant awards process may include the provision of technical assistance to grant applicants, upon request, by
district grant program staff,

(6} Beginnaing Janvary 1, 2020, guldelines for ail of the following:

(A) Awarding grants to underserved Individuals and communities, and to organizations that meet the needs of
underserved individuals and communitles,

(8) Considering the clrcumstances under which grants may be awarded to multiple or single reciplents, and
exceptions to these circumstances.

(C) Evaluating the financial need of grant applicants.

{0) Considering the types of programs eligible for grant funding, inciuding direct patient care, praventive care,
and wellness pragrams.

(E) Consldering the circumstances under which grants may be provided to prior grant reciplents, and exceptions
to these clrcumstancas.

{F) Consldering sponsorships of charitable events,
{G} Funding other government agencies

{H) Awarding grants ta, and limiting funds for, foundations that are sponsored or controlled by, or assoclated
with, a separate grant recipient

Page 3 of 4

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/bill TextClient.xhtmlI?bill_id=201720180AB2019

1/23/2019

15



Bill Text - AB-2019 Health care districts.

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/bill TextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB2019

SEC. 4, Section 32140 Is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:

J2140. Upon filing a petition under federal bankruptcy law, the board of directors shail provids written notice
within 10 business days to the local agency formation commission of the principal county in which it Is located.

SEC. §. The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, which adds Section 5270.7 to the
Government Code, and Saction 2 of this act, which amends Section 32139 of the Health and Safety Code, further,
within the meaning of paragraph {7) of subdlvision (b} of Sectlon 3 of Article 1 of the California Constitution, the
purposes of that constitutional section as it relates to the right of public access to the meetings of local public
bodies or the writings of local public officlals and local agencies Pursuant to paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of
Section 3 of Article I of the Callfornia Constitution, the Legislature makes the following findings:

8y requiring health care districts to post specified information on thelr Internet Web site, this act increases public
access to public records, and thereby furthers the purposes of paragraph (7) of subdivision {b) of Section 3 of
Article T of the Califarnia Constitutlion.

SEC. 6. No reimbursement Is required by this act pursuant to Section & of Article XilIB of the Californla
Constltution because the only costs that may be Incurred by a local agency or school district under this act would
result from a3 legisiative mandate that is within the scope of paragraph (7} of subdivision {b) of Sectlon 3 of
Article 1 of the California Canstitution.

However, If the Commisslon on State Mandates determines that this act contains other costs mandated by the
state, relmbursement to local agencies and school districts for thase costs shall be made pursuant to Part 7
(commencing with Section 17500} of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

Page 4 of 4

1/23/2019

16



“ Tri-City
@‘? Medlcal Center

MEDICAL STAFF

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
January 9, 2019

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 2/01/2019 - 1/31/2021)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 2/01/2019 through 1/31/2021:

e IBRAHIM, Aalamgeer MD/P i itui

« SANATHARA. Visant MD/Psvchiatry (Vituity)

« SEIGLER, David MD /Psychia itui

» WALKER, Kolby DO /Psvchiatry (Vituity)

o WERNEID. Kristian MD/Anesthesiology (ASMG)

17



I‘ @’3, Tri-City
Medlcal Center

MEERDY EICGEFASSNSRIFANESE

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 3
_ _ _ January 9, 2019

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 02/01/2019 -01/31/2021)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 02/01/2019 through 01/31/2021, based upon
practitioner specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and
evaluation, activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical
knowledge based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources,
participation in activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific
monitoring activities, health status and relevant resuits of clinical performance:

+ BERDI]I rhouch, MD /Pediatri iol Active Affiliat
« BORGSCHULTE. Gitte, MD/Int | Medicine /Activ

» KRAK, Michael, MD /Pediatri ivi
. V. t i isi
. I, Rah i tiv

o MILLER, Nathan, MD /Pain Medicine /Active Affiliate

¢ THOMAS, David, MD/Dermatol fer and Follow

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 01/31/2019 unless otherwise noted)

Automatic:

Page 1l of 2



r @»mécdrltgal Cer:ter

r—

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -~ 1 of 3
January 9, 2019

Voluntary:

» ESFANDIARI, Raheleh MD/OB/GYN
« FOX, Robert, MD/Anesthesiology
e HELMY, Marwah, MD/Teleradiology

LOZA r.. [esus, MD /Anesthesiol

. TEL, Vi n

« ROSENBUR ffi rdiothoracic Sur;
» SCHEINBERG, Robert, MD/Dermatology

¢ THOMAS, Steven MD/OB/GYN

Page 2 of 2

19



@1 Tri-City

Medlcal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part3 of 3
January 9, 2019

PROCTORIN MMENDATIONS (Effective 2/1/2019, unl
* BALL Lindsay MD Emergency Medicine
. IND D Urology
. hael nesthesiol
» LIAGHAT Arash MD Anesthesiology
. s ran Cardiology
 RAJAMANICKAM, Anitha MD Cardiology
. iniqu Oncology
. I il Internal Medicine

ecifi

20



| 2N Tri-Ci
(C" Med:?al Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
January 9, 2019

The following practitioners were given 6 months from the last reappointment date to complete their
outstanding proctoring. These practitioners failed to meet the proposed deadline and therefore the listed
privileges will automatically expire as of January 31, 2019.

e BOONJINDASUP. Aaron MD Urology

* COHEN, David MD Cardiology

¢ GUTIERREZ, Miguel MD Emergency Medicine
* HIGGINS, Steven MD Cardiology

s MARQUART, Elizabeth MD mergency Medicine
* PHILLIPS, jason MD Urology

e PREGERSON, David MD Emergency Medicine

* RASH, Dominique MD Oncology



Tri-City - —_—_I

)
( Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER |
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE REPORT

January 21, 2019

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 2/1/2019 - 1/31/2021)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient
care experience, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to
medical knowledge, has been verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to
the medical staff. Based upon this information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of
staff and are therefore recommended for appointment effective 2/1/2019 through 1/31/2021:

* Bl esli llied Health Professional (The Neurol nter

. - i Ii i

. i - i i Health

o VO, Bianca CNM/Allied Health Professional {No. County Health Svcs.
. li - i assi lastic Surge

22



(’))TI’I -City
Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE REAPPOINTMENT CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 4

January 21, 2019 )
- Attachment B
BIENNIAL REAPPRAISALS: (Effective Dates 2/1/2019 - 1/31/2021)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this repert. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 2/1/2019 through 1/31/2021, based upon practitioner
specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and evaluation,
activities reflecting level of professionalism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical knowledge
based upon outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources, participation in
activities to improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific monitoring
activities, health status and relevant resuits of clinical performance:

. TON, Vickie, CNM /Allied Health Professional
o ind i

. i ea i

. lied H

¢ HARTI rgaret, NP /Allied Health Professional
. i lied Health
s KARVER-CHRISTENSON, Elyse, CNM /Allied Health Professional
s KIN hn, AuD /Allied Health Professional
» MATEQ, Marie, CNM/Allied Health Professional
. llied r
e MYERS, S} AuD/Allied Health Professional
e PERLMAN, Tamar llied Health Professional
. Vv Alicia, OT /Allied Health Professional
o« VI i Allied Health Professional
Note: Provider remains on proctoring for all privileges. Proctored cases must be completed by

July 31, 2019 otherwise privileges will automatically expire.
Page 1 of 2

23



[l

2N Tri-Ci
(C“» Med;cgal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE REAPPOINTMENT CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 4

January 21, 2019

Amments
RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 01/31/2019 unless otherwise noted)

«  BALLANTINE. Katherine, CNM/Allied Health Professional

o CHOQUETTE, Alicia, PA/Allied Health Professional

+ FOLKERTH n, RNFA/Allied Health Professional

. P i a I

. lied ion

. rett P n
Page 2 of 2

24



q:’b

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 3 of 3

B ANTINE, Katherine CNM

COCO, Kathleen CNM
FROST, Robert PA-C

Tri-City ] l|
Medlcal Center

January 21, 2019
Attachment C

PROCTORINGR MMENDATIONS (Effective 2/1/2019, unless otherwi ifi

Allied Health Professignal

Allied Health Professional
i t

25



Tri-City

&
‘ Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 2 of 3
January 21, 2019

AUTOMATIC EXPIRATION QF PRIVILEGES

The following practitioners were given 6 months from the last reappointment date to complete their

outstanding proctoring. These practitioners failed to meet the proposed deadline and therefore the listed
privileges will automatically expire as of January 31, 2019.

« KAUR, Manpreet PA-C Allied Health Professional

26



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS

February2017November 2018
PREAMBLE

These Bylaws are adopted in order to provide for the organization of the Medical Staff of Tri-City Hospital
District and to provide a framework for self-government in order to permit the Medical Staff to discharge
its responsibilities in matters involving the quality of medical care, and to govern the orderly resolution of
those purposes. These Bylaws provide the professional and legal structure for Medical Staff operations,
organized Medical Staff relations with the Governing Body, and relations with applicants to and members
of the Medical Staff. The organized Medical Staff both enforces and complies with these Medical Staff
bylaws.

These bylaws recognize that the organized Medical Staff has the authority to establish and maintain
patient care standards, including full participation in the development of hospital-wide policy, involving
the oversight of care, treatment, and services provided by members and others in the hospital. The
Medical Staff is also responsible for and involved with all aspects of delivery of health care within the
hospital including, but not limited to, the treatment and services delivered by practitioners credentialed
and privileged through the mechanisms described in these bylaws and the functions of credentialing and
peer review.

These bylaws acknowledge that the provision of quality medical care in the hospital depends on the
mutual accountability, interdependence, and responsibility of the Medical Staff and the hospital
governing board for the proper performance of their respective obligations.

DEFINITIONS

1. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER means the person appointed by the Governing Body to serve in
an administrative capacity.

2. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE or the HOSPITAL'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
means the individual designated by the Hospital and approved by the Medical Executive
Committee to provide information to and request information from the National Practitioner Data
Bank according to the terms of these Bylaws.

3. GOVERNING BODY means the Board of Directors of the Hospital.

4, CHIEF OF STAFF means the chief officer of the Medical Staff elected by members of the Medical
Staff.

5, CLINICAL PRIVILEGES or PRIVILEGES means the permission granted fo Medical Staff
members to provide patient care and includes unrestricted access to those Hospital resources
(including equipment, facilities, and Hospital personnel) that are necessary to effectively exercise
those privileges.

6. HOSPITAL means Tri-City Hospital District (TCHD).

7. INVESTIGATION means a process specifically instigated by the Medical Executive Committee to
determine the validity, if any, of a concern or a complaint raised against a member of the Medical
Staff, and does not include activity of the Physician Well Being Committee.

Eebruary 204FNovember 2018
Page 1 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

27



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

8.

10.
1.

12,
13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA means the agency responsible for the licensing of physician
members of the Medical Staff holding a M.D. degree.

OSTEOPATHIC MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA means the agency responsible for the
licensing of physician members of the Medical Staff holding a D.O. degree.

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE means the executive committee of the Medical Staff.

MEDICAL STAFF or STAFF means those physicians, dentists, and podiatrists who have been
granted recognition as members of the Medical Staff pursuant to the terms of these Bylaws.

MEDICAL STAFF YEAR means the period from July 1 to June 30.

MEMBER means, unless otherwise expressly limited, any physician, dentist, or podiatrist hoiding
a current license to practice within the scope of his or her license that is a member of the Medical
Staff.

PHYSICIAN means an individual with a M.D. or D.O. degree or their equivalent. “Their
equivalent” shall mean any degree (i.e., foreign) recognized by the licensing boards in the State
of California to practice medicine.

PRACTITIONER means an individual licensed to practice one of the professions eligible for
membership in the Medical Staff,

IN GOOD STANDING means a member is currently not involved in an FPPE or under
suspension or serving with any limitation of voting or other prerogatives imposed by operation of
the bylaws, rules, and regulations or policy of the Medical Staff.

SELF GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTS means documents that supplement the bylaws (i.e., rules
and regulations and policies).

August 2078
Page 2 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

28



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bytaws
ARTICLE I: NAME

The name of this organization is the Tri-City Hospital District Medical Staff.

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

Febriar2032August 2018
Page 3 of 96

29



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE ll: MEMBERSHIP

2.1

2.2

NATURE OF MEMBERSHIP

Membership on the Medical Staff of TCHDMG is a privilege which shall be extended oniy to

professionally competent physicians, podiatrists and dentists who continuously meet the

gualifications, standards and reguirements set forth in these Bylaws and associated policies of
the Medical staff and those policies approved by the Medical Staff. No physician, dentist, or

podiatrist, including those in a medical administrative position by virtue of a contract with the
Hospital, shall admit or provide medical or health-related services to patients in the Hospital or via
telemedicine unless he or she is a member of the Medical Staff or has been granted temporary
privileges in accordance with the procedures set forth in these Bylaws. Medical Staff
membership shall confer only such clinical privileges and prerogatives as have been granted in
accordance with these Bylaws.

Allied Health Professionals (AHPs) are not eligible for membership on the Medical Staff but may

be granted privileges or practice prerogatives commensurate with their license and credentials as
reflected in the Allied Health Rules & Requlations.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP
2.2-1 GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS
Only physicians, dentists, or podiatrists who:

(a) Document their (1) current licensure_and DEA (as clinically required, i.e.
Pathology), (2} adequate experience, education and ftraining, (3) current
professional competence, (4) good judgment, and (5) can provide the appropriate
documentation if requested in support of their current adeguate physical and
mental health status_to exercise their privileges reguested with or without
reasonable accommodations without posing a direct threat, and (6) not currently

excluded from any governmental healthcare program, so as to demonstrate to the
satisfaction of the Medical Staff that they are professionally and ethically
competent and that patients treated by them can reasonable expect to receive
quality medical care.

StaffMembership is contingent upon the ability to respond to patient care needs
within 30 minutes, or as delineated by respective Department/Division.

{c) Proof of adequate coverage for patient care in the absence of the practitioner is
required.

Are determined (1) to adhere fo the ethics of their respective professions, (2) to be
able to work co-operatively with others so as not to adversely affect patient care,
and (3) to be willing to participate in and properly discharge those responsibilities
determined by the Medical Staff,

Maintain current professional liability insurance coverage in accordance with Board
Policy 14-038. Minimum coverage will be established by the Medical Executive
Committee with the concurrence of the Governing Body. Coverage must extend to
all clinical privileges sought to be exercised. For physicians with “claims made

Febraar—2017Auqust 2018
Page 4 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

30



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

2.3

2.4

malpractice insurance,” prior acts coverage must be secured by the physician, i.e.
tail andfor nose coverage must be documented. With respect to initial applicants,
the prior acts coverage requirement may be waived or modified on a case-by-case
basis by the Medical Executive Committee acting through the Chief of Staff or his
er/her designee.

<h{f) _Shall be deemed to possess basic qualifications for membership in the Medical
Staff, except for the honorary staff category in which case these criteria shall only
apply as deemed individually applicable by the Medical Staff.

2.2-2 PARTICULAR QUALIFICATIONS

(a) Physicians. An applicant for membership on the Medical Staff, except for the
honorary staff, must hold a M.D. or D.O. degree issued by a medical or
osteopathic school approved at the time of the issuance of such degree by the
Medical Board of California or the Osteopathic Medical Board of California. The
applicant must present evidence of completion of a residency approved by the
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. If the applicant has not
completed a residency as outlined above, he or she must prove that his or her
training is equivalent. The applicant must also hold a valid and unsuspended
certificate to practice medicine issued by the Medical Board of California or
Osteopathic Medical Board of California.

{b) Limited License Practitioners

(1) Dentists: An applicant for dental membership on the Medical Staff, except
for the honorary staff, must hold a D.D.S., D.M.D. or equivalent degree
issued by a dental school approved at the time of the issuance of such
degree by the Board of Dental Examiners of California and must also hold
a valid and unsuspended certificate to practice dentistry issued by the
Board of Dental Examiners of the State of California.

(2) Podiatrists: An applicant for podiatric membership on the Medical Staff,
except for the honorary staff, must hold a D.P.M. degree conferred by a
school approved at the time of issuance of such degree by the Medical
Board of California and must hold a valid and unsuspended certificate to
practice podiatry issued by the California Board of Podiatric Medicine.

EFFECT OF OTHER AFFILIATIONS

No person shall be entitled to membership in the Medical Staff merely because he or she holds a
certain degree, is licensed to practice in this or in any other state, is a member of any
professional organization, is certified by any clinical board, or because such person had, or
presently has staff membership or privileges at another health care facility. Medical Staff
membership or clinical privileges shall not be conditioned or determined on the basis of an
individual's participation or non-participation in a particular medical group, surgery center or other
outpatient service facility, IPA, PPO, PHO, hospital-sponsored foundation or other organization or
in contracts with a third party which contracts with this Hospital. Medical Staff membership or
clinical privileges shall not be revoked, denied, or otherwise infringed based on the members
professional or business interests.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

Febraar-2047Auqust 2018
Page 5 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

3



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

No aspect of Medical Staff membership or particular clinical privileges shall be denied on the
basis of sex, race, age, religion {(creed), color, national origin,_sexual identity (including gender
expression), political beliefs, marital status, military status, -physical or mental impairment or

sexual orientation that does not pose a threat to the quality of patient care.

2.5  BASIC RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERSHIP

Except for the honorary staff, the ongoing responsibilities for each member of the Medical Staff

include:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

()

{f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

@)

(k)

0

(m)

Providing patients with the quality of care meeting the professional standards of
the Medical Staff of this Hospital and Hospital policies and procedures.

Abiding by the Medical Staff Bylaws, Medical Staff Rules and Regulations and
Medical Staff Policies and Procedures, and Hospital Policies and Procedures.

Discharging in a responsible and cooperative manner, such reasonable
responsibilities and assignments imposed upon the member by virtue of Medical
Staff membership, including committee assignments.

Preparing and completing in a timely fashion medical records for all the patients to
whom the member provides care in the Hospital.

Abiding by the lawful ethical principles of the American Medical, Dental, and
Podiatry Associations.,

Aiding in any Medical Staff approved educational programs for medical students,
interns, resident physicians, resident dentists, staff physicians and dentists, nurses
and other personnel.

Abide by the Medical Staff's Professional Behavior Policy, and Tri-City Healthcare
Districts Code of Conduct working cooperatively with fellow medical staff
members, Allied Health Professionals, nurses, Hospital Administration, and others
and refraining from any abusive or disruptive behavior, which could adversely
affect the delivery of patient care.

Making appropriate arrangements for the continuous and uninterrupted coverage
for his or her patients as determined by the Medical Staff, as reflected in Medical
Staff Rule and Regulation number 3.

Refusing to engage in improper inducements or fee splitting for patient referral.
Participating in continuing education programs as determined by the Medical Staff.
Participating in such emergency service coverage or consultation panels as may
be determined by the Medical Staff. Abide by EMTALA requirements. Additional
on-call coverage may be mandated only upon majority vote of the Medical Staff.

Discharging such other staff obligations as may be lawfully established from time
to time by the Medical Staff or Medical Executive Committee.

Providing information to and/or testifying on behalf of the Medical Staff or an
accused practitioner regarding any matter under an investigation pursuant to

Februar-2017Auqust 2018
Page & of 96

DOCS 116569-0600013/2322271.2

32



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

paragraph 6.1-3, and those, which are the subject of a hearing pursuant to Article
VL.

(n) Notify the Medical Staff Office upon notification of:

1) Any past pending or current sanctions by the applicable licensing/certifying
entity, the DEA or exclusions from a federal health care program;

(2) Any convictions or guilty pleadings to a criminal offense(s} (i.e., a felony or
misdemeanor other than traffic violations) andfor any deferred adjudication
or probation for a criminal offense(s) (including accusation(s) of sexual
misconduct) within thirty (30) days of final written resolution; (3) any current
or pending enrollment in a drug or alcoho! treatment program (voluntary or
involuntary) within thirty (30} days of enrollment.

{o) Participating in an Organized Health Care Arrangement (OHCA) as established
between the hospital and the Medical Staff to expedite the sharing of data for
improvement of patient care and operations.

26  STANDARD OF CONDUCT

2.6-1 As a condition of membership and privileges, a Medical Staff member shall
continuously meet the requirements for professional conduct established in these
Bylaws and as further described in the Medical Staff's Professional Behavior policy
and Tri-City Healthcare District's Code of Conduct.

2.6-2 Prohibited conduct affects or could affect the quality of patient care at the hospital
and includes:

(a) Discrimination, which is defined as conduct by a Medical Staff member against any
individual (e.g., against another Medical Staff member, house staff, hospital
employee or patient) on the basis of race, religion_(creed), color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical disability, marital status,

sex, gender, gender expression (identity} or sexual orientation.

(b) “Sexual harassment” is an unwelcome verbal or physical conduct of a sexual or
gender-based nature, which may include verbal harassment (such as epithets,
derogatory comments or slurs), physical harassment (such as unwelcome
touching, assault, or interference with movement or work), and visual harassment
(such as the display of derogatory cartoons, drawings or posters). Sexual
harassment also includes unwelcome advances, requests for sexual favors, and
any other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when (1)
submission to or rejection of this conduct by an individual is used as a factor in
decisions affecting hiring, evaluation, retention, promotion, or other aspects of
employment; or (2) this conduct substantially interferes with the individual's
employment or creates and/or perpetuates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
work environment.

(c) Behavior that undermines a culture of safety (also sometimes referred to
as disruptive behavior), as described in the Medical Staff's Professional
Behavior policy.

Eebruar-2042Auqust 2018
Page 7 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
2.6-2 All allegations of such prohibited conduct shall be immediately investigated by the Medical
Staff and, if confirmed, will result in appropriate corrective action, from reprimands up to
and including termination of Medical Staff privileges or membership, if warranted by the
facts.

Eobroany 2047 Auqust 2018
Page B of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

34



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE lll: CATEGORIES OF MEMBERSHIP

3.1

3.2

CATEGORIES

The categories of the Medical Staff shall include the following: Active, Active Affiliate, Refer and
Follow, provisional, and honorary. Each time membership is granted or renewed, the member's
staff category shall be automatically determined.

ACTIVE STAFF
Are practitioners who are involved in at least 12 patient care or Medical Staff activities per
yoarreappointment cycle; these may consist of admissions, assisting at surgeries, consultations,

other patient care procedures and/or active service on Medical Staff committees.

3.2-1

3.2-2

3.2-3

QUALIFICATIONS
The active staff shall consist of members who:
(a) Meet the general qualifications for membership set forth in Section 2.2,

(b) Have offices or residences, which, in the opinion of the Medical Executive
Committee, are located closely enough to the Hospital to provide continuity of
quality care.

(c) Have satisfactorily completed their designated term in the provisional staff
category.

PRIVILEGES
Except as otherwise provided, the PRIVILEGES of an active staff member shall be to:
(a) Exercise such clinical privileges as are granted pursuant to Article V.

(b) Attend and vote on Medical Staff bylaws and amendments and all other matters
presented at general and special meetings of the Medical Staff and of departments
and committees of which he or she is a member.

(c) Hold staff, division, or department office and serve as a voting member of
committees to which he or she is duly appointed or elected by the Medical Staff or
duly authorized representative thereof so long as the activities required by the
position fall within the member's scope of practice as authorized by law.

Active staff members must provide emergency service coverage on a rotating panel
unless specifically exempted by the Medical Executive Committee.

TRANSFER OF ACTIVE STAFF MEMBERS

After one staff year in which a member of the active staff fails to regularly care for patients
in accordance with Section 3.2-1(c), or be regularly involved in Medical Staff functions as
determined by the Medical Executive Committee, that member shall be automatically
transferred to the appropriate category if any, for which the member is qualified.

Febriarm-20HAuqust 2018
Page 9 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

35



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Madical Staff Bylaws

3.3  ACTIVE AFFILIATE STAFF
Are practitioners who are considered to be in good standing and who may admit or otherwise be
involved in the care of patients at FGMESTCHD, documenting a minimum of twelve—{12}-patient
eared-11 patient care activities within a two (2) year time period, or are telemedicine-only

providers_or providers currently taking ED Cail panel.

3.3-1 QUALIFICATIONS

Shall consist of such practitioners who:

(a)

(b)
{c)

(d)

(e)

Are not otherwise members of the Medical Staff and meet the general
qualifications set forth in Section 2.2.

Possess adequate clinical and professional expertise.

Are wiling and able to come to the Hospital on schedule or promptly respond
when called to render clinical services within their area of competence.

Are members in good standing of the active Medical Staff of another health care
facility.

Have satisfactorily completed their designated term in the provisional category.

3.3-2 PRIVILEGES

The Active Affiliate staff shall be entitled to:

(a)

(b)

Admit patients without limitation, except as otherwise provided in the Medical Staff
Rules & Regulations, or by specific privilege restriction.

Attend meetings of the Medical Staff and the department of which that person is a
member, including open committee meetings and educational programs, but shall
have no right to vote at such meetings, except within committees when the right to
vote is specified at the time of appointment.

Active Affiliate staff members shall not be eligible to hold office in the Medical Staff
organization, but may serve committees.

3.4 REFER AND FOLLOW STAFF
Are practitioners who maintain membership limited to contracted administrative processes without
other obligations, or have an active community office practice and routinely utilize FSMG's
TCHD's outpatient and inpatient referral services and wish to maintain medical staff membership

status;

3.4-1 QUALIFICATIONS

The Refer and Follow staff shall consist of members who:

(a)

Meet the general qualifications set forth in Section 2.2.

3.4-2 PRIVILEGES

(a) Refer and Follow staff members do not have privileges to admit or
otherwise provide patient care but are still required to maintain
malpractice insurance;

Febrsary-2047August 2018
Page 10 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

36



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

3.5

(b) Will be responsible to pay any annual or reappointment fees.

(c) Has “view only” access to their patient's Health information record,
and will not be allowed to enter orders in the patient's health record.

(d) Shall not nominate or vote on any matters presented at general or
special meeting of the Medical Staff or any Committee or the
Department of which they are members.

(e) May attend a General meeting of the Medical Staff and Department
of which they are appointed and any Educational program offerings.

PROVISIONAL STAFF
Is a temporary category which all newly appointed practitioners with clinical privileges must be
assigned for observation to demonstrate proficiency and competency.

3.5-1

3.5-2

3.5-3

QUALIFICATIONS
The provisional staff shall consist of all members who:
(a) Meet the general Medical Staff membership qualifications set forth in Section 2.2.

(b) Immediately prior to their application and appointment, were not members of the
Medical Staff.

PRIVILEGES

The provisional staff member shall;

(a) Exercise such clinical privileges as are granted pursuant to Article V.

(b) Attend meetings of the Medical Staff and the department of which he or she is a
member, including committee meetings and educational programs, but shall have
no right to vote at such meetings, except within committees when the right to vote

is specified at the time of appointment.

(c) Be enfitled to serve on the Emergency Call panel at the discretion of the
Department Chair or Division Chief.

{d) Provisional staff members shall not be eligible to hold office in the Medical Staff
organization.

OBSERVATION OF PROVISIONAL STAFF MEMBER

Each provisional staff member shall undergo a period of observation by designated
monitors as described in Section 5.3. The observation shall be to evaluate the member’s:

(a) Proficiency in the exercise of clinical privileges initially granted; and

(b} Over-all eligibility for continued staff membership and advancement within staff
categories.

Observation of provisional staff members shall follow whatever frequency and format each
department deems appropriate in order to adequately evaluate the provisional staff
member including, but not limited to, concurrent or retrospective chart review, mandatory
consultation, and/or direct observation. Appropriate records shall be maintained. The

Rebruar2047August 2018
Page 11 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

37



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

3.6

3.5-4

3.5-56

results of the observation shall be communicated by the department ehairmaachairperson
to the Medical Executive Committee.

TERM OF PROVISIONAL STAFF STATUS

A member shall be eligible to request advancement from provisional staff after a minimum
period of six (6) months if the member's proctoring is fully completed_and the provider
requests to be advanced. Otherwise, a member remains in the provisional staff for a
period of 24 months unless that status is extended by the Medical Executive Committee
upon determination of good cause, which determination shall not be subject to review
pursuant to Articles VI or VII.

ACTION AT CONCLUSION OF PROVISIONAL STAFF STATUS

(a) If the provisional staff member has satisfactorily demonstrated his or her ability to
exercise the clinical privileges initially granted and otherwise appears qualified for
continued Medical Staff membership, the member shall be eligible for placement in
the Active or Active Affiliate, staff, as appropriate, upon recommendation of the
Medical Executive Committee.

(b) In all other cases, the appropriate department shall advise the Medical
Executive Committee which, in turn, shall make its recommendation to the
Governing Body regarding a modification or termination of clinical privileges

HONORARY STAFF

The honorary staff shall consist of physicians, dentists and podiatrists who do not actively
practice at the Hospital but whom the Medical Executive Committee deems deserving of
membership by virtue of their outstanding reputation, noteworthy contributions to the health and
medical sciences, active participation in Committees or their previous long-standing service to the
Hospital and who continue to exemplify high standards of professional and ethical conduct.

3.6-1

PRIVILEGES

Honorary staff members are not eligible to admit patients to the Hospital or to exercise
clinical privileges in the Hospital, or to vote or hold office in this Medical Staff organization,
but they may serve upon committees with or without vote at the discretion of the Medical
Executive Committee. They may attend staff meetings and educational programs.

2L EMERLL ErCERTOMNE TO-RRIMILELGES

rrtod i ;

MW—MHW%#@MWMNM
chairman—oi—the—meoeling—subjecttofinal -decision—bythe—Medical Exscutive
Committea:

@ Shall : b il  thair i I

MODIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIP CATEGORY

Febriars-2047August 2018
Page 12 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

38



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

On its own, or upon recommendation of a specific department, or pursuant to a request by a
member under Section 4.6-1 (b), or upon direction of the Governing Body and the Medical
Executive Committee may recommend a change in the Medical Staff category of a member
consistent with the requirements of the Bylaws.

| 3.93.8 ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONALS

Refer to Rules and Regulations for Allied Health Professionals.

| Febriary:-2047August 2018
Page 13 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

39



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE IV: MEMBERSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

GENERAL

Except as otherwise specified herein, no person (including persons engaged by the Hospital in
administratively responsible positions) shall exercise clinical privileges in the Hospital or via
telemedicine unless and until he or she applies for and obtains membership on the Medical Staff
or is granted temporary privileges as set forth in these Bylaws. By applying to the Medical Staff
for membership or membership renewal, the applicant acknowledges responsibility to first review
these Bylaws and agrees that throughout any period of membership he or she will comply with
the responsibilities of Medical Staff membership and with the Bylaws and Rules and Reguilations
of the Medical Staff as they exist and as they may be modified from time to time. Membership to
the Medical Staff shall confer on the appointee only such clinical privileges as have been granted
in accordance with these Bylaws.

BURDEN OF PRODUCING INFORMATION

In connection with all applications for membership, membership renewal, advancement, or
transfer, the applicant shall have the burden of producing information for an adequate evaluation
of the applicant's qualifications and suitability for the clinical privileges and staff category
requested, of resolving any reasonable doubts about these matters, and of satisfying requests for
information. The applicant's failure to sustain this burden shall be grounds for denial of the
application. To the extent of the law, this burden may include submission to a medical or
psychological examination, at the applicant's expense, if deemed appropriate by the Medical
Executive Committee, which may select the examining physician. The applicant may select the
examining physician from an outside panel of three physicians chosen by the Medical Executive
Commiittee.

MEMBERSHIP AUTHORITY

Memberships, denials and revocations of memberships to the Medical Staff shall be made as set
forth in these Bylaws, but only after there has been a recommendation from the Medical Staff as
set forth in Section 4.5-6 and 4.5-7.

DURATION OF MEMBERSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, initial membership to the Medical Staff shall be for
a period of up to twenty-four months. Membership renewal shall be for a period of up to two
years.

APPLICATION FOR INITIAL MEMBERSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL
4.5-1 APPLICATION FORM

An application form shall be developed by the Medical Executive Committee. The form
shall require detailed information which shall include, but not be limited to, information
concerning:

(a) The applicant’s qualifications, including, but not limited to, professional training and
experience, current licensure, current DEA (Drug Enforcement Administration)
registration, continuing medical education information related to the clinical
privileges to be exercised by the applicant, and documentation of the results of a
current tuberculosis skin test. The requirement for DEA registration may be

Febriar2042Auqust 2018
Page 14 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

40



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws
waived on the recommendation of the Credentials Committee to practitioners who
do not need such prescriptive authority.

(b) At least (3) peer references familiar with the applicant’s professional competence
and ethical character.

(c) Requests for membership category, departments, and clinical privileges.

(d) Past or pending professional disciplinary action, voluntary or involuntary
relinquishment of Medical Staff membership or privileges or any license or
registration, licensure limitations, and related matters. For the purposes of this
section, voluntary actions shall only include those taken while under investigation
for possible incompetence or improper professional conduct, or breach of contract,
or in return for such an investigation not being conducted.

(e) Final judgments or settlements made against the applicant in professional liability
cases, and any filed and served cases pending.

() Physical and mental health status.
{g) Professional liability insurance coverage as required.

Each application for initial membership to the Medical Staff shall be in writing, submitted
on the prescribed form with all provisions completed {or accompanied by an explanation
of why answers are unavailable), and signed by the applicant. When an applicant
requests an application form, he or she shall be given a copy of these Bylaws, the Medical
Staff Rules and Regulations, and summaries of other applicable policies relating to clinical
practice in the Hospital, if any.

4.5-2 EFFECT OF APPLICATION

In addition to the matters set forth in Section 4.1, by applying for membership to the
Medical Staff each applicant:

(a) Signifies his or her willingness to appear for interviews in regard to the application.

(b) Authorizes consuitation with others who have been associated with him or her and
who may have information bearing on his or her competence, qualifications and
ability to carry out clinical privileges requested, and authorizes such individuals
and organizations to candidly provide all such information.

(c) Consents to inspection of records and documents that may be material to an
evaluation of his or her qualifications and ability to carry out clinical privileges
requested, and authorizes all individuals and organizations in custody of such
records and documents to permit such inspection and copying, releases from any
liability, to the fullest extent permitted by law, all individuals and organizations who
provide information regarding the applicant, including otherwise confidential
information.

(d) Releases from any liability, to the fullest extent provided by law, all persons for
their acts performed in connection with investigating and evaluating the applicant.

(e) Consents to the disclosure to other hospitals, medical associations, and licensing
boards, and to other similar organizations as required by law, any information

Eebruary2042Auqust 2018
Page 15 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

41



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

4.5-3

4.5-4

regarding his or her professional or ethical standing that the Hospital or Medical
Staff may have, and releases the Medical Staff and Hospital from liability for so
doing to the fullest extent permitted by law.

{f Acknowledges responsibility for timely payment of any Medical Staff dues payable,
if any.

(1)) Agrees to provide for continuous and quaiity care for his or her patients.

(h) Pledges to maintain an ethical practice, including refraining from illegal
inducements for patient referral, seeking consultation whenever necessary,
refraining from failing to disclose to patients when another surgeon will be
performing the surgery, and refraining from delegating patient care responsibility to
non-qualified or inadequately supervised practitioners.

(i) Pledges to be bound by the Medical Staff bylaws, rules and regulations, and
policies.
) Recognizes that applicant has no procedural rights in connection with an

application deemed voluntarily withdrawn for incompleteness.

(k) Agrees that if membership and privileges are granted, and for the duration of
Medical Staff membership, the member has an ongoing and continuous duty to
report to the Medical Staff office within ten (10) days any and all information that
would otherwise correct, change, modify or add to any information provided in the
application or most recent reapplication when such correction, change,
modification or addition may reflect adversely on current qualifications for
membership or privileges.

VERIFICATION OF INFORMATION

The applicant shall deliver a completed application to the Medical Staff Credentials
Coordinator with payment of application fee, if any is required. If all references and other
information required to process the application are not received within ninety (90) days
from the date application was first submitted, the application is automatically deemed to
be incomplete and deemed to be voluntarily withdrawn for that reason. When collection
and verification is accomplished, all such information shall be transmitted to the
Credentials Committee and the appropriate department(s). The completed application and
all supporting materials then available shall be made available for review to the
ehairmanchairperson of each department in which the applicant seeks privileges and to
the Credentials Committee. The medical staff Credentials Coordinator shall expeditiously
seek to collect or verify the references, licensure status, and other evidence submitted in
support of the application. The applicant shall be notified of any problems in obtaining the
information required, and it shall be the applicant's obligation to obtain the required
information.

DEPARTMENT ACTION

After receipt of the application, the ehairmanchairperson or appropriate committee of each
department to which the application is submitted, shall review the application and
supporting documentation, and may conduct a personal interview with the applicant at his
or her discretion. The ehairmanchairperson or appropriate committee shall evaluate all
matters deemed relevant to a recommendation, including information concemning the
applicant’s provision of services within the scope of privileges granted, and shall transmit

Fobriare2047Auqust 2018
Page 16 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

42



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

4.5-5

4.5-6

4.5-7

4.5-8

to the Credentials Committee a written report and recommendation as to membership
and, if membership is recommended, as to membership category, department affiliation,
clinical privileges to be granted, and any special conditions to be attached. The
chairmanchairperson may also request that the Medical Executive Committee defer action
on the application.

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE ACTION

The Credentials Committee shall review the application, evaluate, and verify the
supporting documentation, the department chaismanchairperson’'s repot and
recommendations, and other relevant information. The Credentials Committee may elect
to interview the applicant and seek additional information. As soon as practicable, the
Credentials Committee shall transmit to the Medical Executive Committee a written report
and its recommendations as to membership and, if membership is recommended, as to
membership category, department affiliation, clinical privileges to be granted, and any
special conditions to be attached to the membership. The committee may also
recommend that the Medical Executive Committee defer action on the application.

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION

At its regular meeting after receipt of the Credentials Committee report and
recommendation, or as soon thereafter as is practicable, the Medical Executive
Committee shall consider the report and any other relevant information. The Medical
Executive Committee may request additional information, return the matter to the
Credentials Committee for further investigation, and/or elect to interview the applicant.
The Medical Executive Committee shall forward to the Chief Executive Officer, for prompt
transmittal to the Governing Body, a written report and recommendations as to Medical
Staff membership and, if membership is recommended, as to membership category,
department affiliation, clinical privileges to be granted and any special conditions to be
attached to the membership. The committee may also defer action on the application.
The reasons for each recommendation shall be stated.

EFFECT OF MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION

(a) Favorable Recommendation: When the recommendation of the Medical Executive
Committee is favorable to the applicant, it shall be promptly forwarded, together
with supporting documentation, to the Governing Body.

(b) Adverse Recommendation: When a final recommendation of the Medical
Executive Committee is adverse to the applicant, the Governing Body and the
applicant shall be promptly informed by written notice from the Chief Executive
Officer. The applicant shall then be entitied to the procedural rights as provided in
Article VII, except as provided in Section 4.5-3.

ACTION ON THE APPLICATION

The Governing Body may accept the recommendation of the Medical Executive
Committee or may refer the matter back to the Medical Executive Committee for further
consideration, stating the purpose for such referral and setting a reasonable time limit for
making a subsequent recommendation. The following procedures shall apply with respect
to action on applications;

(a) If the Medical Executive Committee issues a favorable recommendation, and

Rebruary2047Auqust 2018
Page 17 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

43



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

4.5-9

(1 If the Governing Body concurs in that recommendation, the decision of the
Governing Body shall be deemed final action.

(2} If the tentative recommendation of the Governing Body is unfavorable, the
Chief Executive Officer shall give the applicant written notice of the
tentative adverse recommendation and the applicant shall be entitled to the
procedural rights set forth in Article VII. If the applicant waives his or her
procedural rights, the decision of the Governing Body shall be deemed final
action.

(b) In the event the recommendation of the Medical Executive Committee, or any
significant part of it, is unfavorable to the applicant, the procedural rights set forth
in Article VIl shall apply.

1) If the applicant waives his or her procedural rights, the recommendations of
the Medical Executive Committee shall be forwarded to the Governing
Body for final action.

(2) If the applicant requests a hearing following the adverse Medical Executive
Committee recommendation pursuant to Section 4.5-8(b) or an adverse
Govermning Body tentative final action pursuant to 4.5-8(a)(2), the
Governing Body shall take final action only after the applicant has
exhausted his or her procedural rights as established by Article VII. After
exhaustion of the procedures set forth in Article VI, the Governing Body
shall make a final decision. The Governing Body's decision shall be in
writing and shall specify the reasons for the action taken.

NOTICE OF FINAL DECISION

{a) Notice of the final decision shall be given to the Chief of Staff, the Medical
Executive Committee, the chairmanchairperson of each department concerned,
the applicant, and the Chief Executive Officer.

(b) A decision and notice of initial membership or membership renewal shall include, if
applicable: (1) the staff category to which the applicant is assigned membership;
(2) the department to which he or she is assigned; (3) the clinical privileges
granted; and (4) any special conditions attached to the membership.

4.5-10 REAPPLICATION AFTER ADVERSE MEMBERSHIP DECISION

4.5-11

An applicant who has received a final adverse decision regarding membership shall not
be eligible to reapply to the Medical Staff for a period of two (2) years. Any such
reapplication shall be processed as an initial application, and the applicant shall submit
such additional information as may be required to demonstrate that the basis for the
earlier adverse action no longer exists.

TIMELY PROCESSING OF APPLICATIONS

Applications for staff membership shall be considered in a timely manner by all persons
and commitiees required by these Bylaws to act thereon. While special or unusual
circumstances may constitute a good cause and warrant exceptions, the following time
periods provide a guideline for routine processing of applications:

Fobrsary-2047August 2018
Page 18 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

44



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Evaluation, review, and verification of application and all supporting documents by
the Medical Staff office: thity (30) days from receipt of all necessary
documentation.

Review and recommendation by department(s): sixty (60) days after receipt of all
necessary documentation from the Medical Staff office.

Review and recommendation by Credentials Committee: thirty (30) days after
receipt of ali necessary documentation from the depariment(s).

Review and recommendation by Medical Executive Committee: thirty (30) days
after review of all necessary documentation by the Credentials Committee and
appropriate department(s).

Final action: thirty (30) days after conclusion of action in 4.5-11 (a through d)
above or conclusion of hearings.

46  MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL AND REQUESTS FOR MODIFICATIONS OF STAFF STATUS OR

PRIVILEGES

4.6-1 APPLICATION

4.6-2

4.6-3

(a)

(b)

At least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of the current staff
membership, a reapplication form developed by the Medical Executive Committee
shall be mailed or delivered to the member. At least forty-five (45) days prior to
the expiration date, each Medical Staff member shall submit to the Credentials
Committee the completed application form for renewal of membership to the staff,
and for renewal or modification of clinical privileges. The reapplication form shall
include all information necessary to update and evaluate the gualifications of the
applicant including, but not limited to, the matters set forth in Section 4.5-1, as well
as other relevant matters. Upon receipt of the application, the information shall be
processed as set forth commencing at Section 4.5-3. If an application has not
been received forty-five (45) days prior to a staff member's expiration date, a
written notice should be promptly sent to the applicant by certified mail, advising
that the application has not been received.

A Medical Staff member who seeks a change in Medical Staff status or
modification of clinical privileges may submit such a request at any time to the
Credentials Committee in the form prescribed for applications for renewal of
membership, except that such application may not be filed within six (6) months of
the time a similar request has been denied.

EFFECT OF APPLICATION

The effect of an application for membership renewal or modification of staff status and
privileges is the same as set forth in Section 4.5-2.

STANDARDS AND PROCEDURE FOR REVIEW

When a staff member submits an application for reappointment, or when the member
submits an application for modification of staff status or clinical privileges, the member
shall be subject to an in depth review_to include satisfactory completion of OPPE
evaluation(s) and specific requirements/process overview (refer to_Credentialing Policy,

February2047Auqust 2018
Page 19 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

45



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

4.6-4

Processing Medical Staff Reappointments 8710-548), generaily following the procedures
set forth in Section 4.5-3 through Section 4.5-11.

FAILURE TO FILE MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL APPLICATION

Failure without good cause to timely file a completed application for renewal of
membership shall result in the member being deemed to have resigned membership and
privileges as of the end of the current staff appointment. In the event membership and
privileges terminate for the reasons set forth herein, the procedures set forth in Article Vi
shall not apply.

4.7 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

4.7-1

4.7-2

4.7-3

47-4

LEAVE STATUS

At the discretion of the Medical Executive Committee, a Medical Staff member may obtain
a voluntary leave of absence from the staff upon submitting a written request to the
Medical Executive Committee stating the approximate period of leave desired, which may
not exceed two (2) years or duration of current appointment, whichever is first. During the
period of the leave, the member shall not exercise clinical privileges at the Hospital, and
membership rights and responsibilities shall be inactive, but the obligation to pay dues, if
any, and membership renewal as specified in section 4.4, shall continue unless waived by
the Medical Executive Committee.

TERMINATION OF LEAVE

At least thirty (30) days prior to the termination of the leave of absence, or at any earlier
time, the Medical Staff member may request reinstatement of privileges by submitting a
written notice to that effect to the Medical Executive Committee. The staff member shall
submit a summary of relevant activities during the leave, if the Medical Executive
Commiittee so requests. The Medical Executive Committee shall make a recommendation
concerning the reinstatement of the member's privileges and prerogatives, and the
procedures provided in Sections 4.1 through 4.5-11 shall be followed.

FAILURE TO REQUEST REINSTATEMENT

Failure, without good cause, to request reinstatement in a timely fashion shall be deemed
a voluntary resignation from the Medical Staff and shall result in automatic termination of
membership and privileges.

A member whose membership is automatically terminated shall be entitled to the
procedural rights provided in Article VII for the sole purpose of determining whether the
failure to request reinstatement was unintentional or excusable, or otherwise. A request
for Medical Staff membership subsequently received from a member so terminated shall
be submitted and processed in the manner specified for applications for initial
membership.

MEDICAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE

The Medical Executive Committee shall determine the circumstances under which a
particular Medical Staff member shall be granted a leave of absence for the purpose of
obtaining treatment for a medical condition or disability. In the discretion of the Medical
Executive Committee, unless accompanied by a reportable restriction of privileges, the

Febrsar-2047August 2018
Page 20 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

46



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
leave shall be deemed a “medical leave” which is not granted for a medical disciplinary
cause or reason.

4.7-5 MILITARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Requests for leave of absence to fulfill military service obligations shall be granted upon
notice and review by the Medical Executive Committee. Reactivation of membership and
clinical privileges previously held shall be granted, notwithstanding the provisions of 4.7-2
and 4.7-3, but may be granted subject to monitoring and/or proctoring as determined by
the Medical Executive Committee.

Rebruary-2047August 2018
Page 21 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

47



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE V: CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

5.1

5.2

53

EXERCISE OF PRIVILEGES

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, a member providing clinical services at this
Hospital or via telemedicine shall be entitled to exercise only those clinical privileges specifically
granted. Said privileges and services must be Hospital specific, within the scope of any license
authorizing practice in this state and consistent with any restrictions thereon_;-and-shal-be-subjest
to—the—Rulos-and Regulations-of-the—clinical-depadmenis—and—the—authority—of the-depardment
shairman-and-the-Medical Staft. Medical Staff privileges may be granted, continued, medified, or
terminated by the Govemning Body only in a manner consistent with these Medical Staff Bylaws,
and only following the procedures outlined in these Bylaws.

DELINEATION OF PRIVILEGES IN GENERAL

5.2-1

5.2-2

5.2-3

REQUESTS

Each application for initial membership or renewal of membership to the Medical Staff
must contain a request for the specific clinical privileges desired by the applicant. A
request by a member for a modification of clinical privileges may be made at any time, but
such requests must be supported by documentation of training and/or experience
supportive of the request.

BASIS FOR PRIVILEGES DETERMINATION

(a) Initial and subseguent Rrequests for clinical privileges shall be evaluated on the
basis of the member’s education, training, experience, demonstrated professional
competence and judgment, clinical performance, current health status, and-the
documented results of patient care and other quality review and proctoring/OPPE
Evaluations (Refer to Peer Review Process: OPPE and FPPE 8710-509) which
the Medical Staff deems appropriate. Privilege determinations may also be based
on pertinent information concerning clinical performance obtained from other
sources, especially other institutions and health care settings where a member
exercises clinical privileges.

(b) No specific privilege may be granted to a member if the task, procedure, or activity
constituting the privilege is not available within the hospital despite the member’s
qualifications or ability to perform the requested privilege. Refer to Medical Staff
Policy, Requests for Privileges New to Tri-City Medical Center, 8710-526.

CRITERIA FOR “CROSS-SPECIALTY” PRIVILEGES WITHIN THE HOSPITAL

Any request for clinical privileges that are either new to the hospital or that overiap with
more than one department shali initially be reviewed by the appropriate departments, in
order to establish the need for, and appropriateness of, the new procedure or services.
The Medical Executive Committee shall facilitate the establishment of hospital-wide
credentialing criteria for new or trans-specialty procedures, with the input of all appropriate
departments, with a mechanism designed to ensure that quality patient care is provided
for by all individuals with such clinical privileges. In establishing the criteria for such
clinical privileges, the Medical Executive Committee may establish an ad-hoc committee
with representation from all appropriate departments.

PROCTORING

Fobraar-2047August 2018
Page 22 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

48



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

54

5.5

5.3-1

5.3-2

GENERAL PROVISIONS

All initial appointees to the Medical Staff who are granted privileges and all members
granted new clinical privileges shall be subject to a period of focused evaluation that may
include proctoring in accordance with the applicable departmental proctoring policy.
Members who have had their privileges restricted and who are applying for the
reinstitution of those privileges shall be subject to a period of proctoring. Each appointee
or recipient of new clinical privileges shall be assigned to a department where
performance of an appropriate number of cases, as established by the Medical Executive
Committee, or the department as designee of the Medical Executive Committee, shall be
observed by the chairmanchairperson of the department, or the chairmanchairperson’s
designee, during the period of proctoring specified in the department’s Rules and
Regulations, to determine suitability to continue to exercise the clinical privileges granted
in that department. The exercise of clinical privileges in any other department shall also be
subject to direct observation by that department's ehairmanchairperson or kis-the
chairperson's designee. Refer to Medical Staff Policy Focused Professional Practice
Evaluation/Proctoring, 8710-542.

FAILURE TO OBTAIN PROCTORING CERTIFICATION

Refer to Medical Staff Policy, Focused Professional Practice Evaluation/Proctoring, 8710-
542.

CONDITIONS FOR PRIVILEGES OF LIMITED LICENSE PRACTITIONERS

5.4-1

5.4-2

5.4-3

ADMISSION

When dentists, oral surgeons, or podiatrists who do not hold history and physical
privileges who are members of the Medical Staff admit patients, a physician member of
the Medical Staff with history and physical privileges must conduct or directly supervise
the admitting history and physical examination {except the portion related to dentistry, oral
surgery, or podiatry) and assume responsibility for the care of the patient's medical
problems present at the time of admission, or which may arise during hospitalization,
which are outside of the limited license practitioner’s lawful scope of practice.

SURGERY

Surgical procedures performed by dentists and podiatrists shall be under the overall
supervision of the ehairmanchairperson of the Department of Surgery or the
shairmanchairperson’s designee.

MEDICAL APPRAISAL

All patients admitted for care in the Hospital by a dentist or podiatrist shall receive the
same basic medical appraisal as patients admitted to other services, and a physician
member shall determine the risk and effect of any proposed treatment or surgical
procedure on the generai health status of the patient. Where a dispute exists regarding
proposed treatment between a physician member and a limited license practitioner based
upon medical or surgical factors outside of the scope of licensure of the limited license
practitioner, the treatment will be suspended insofar as possible while the dispute is
resolved by the shairmanchairperson of the appropriate department(s).

TEMPORARY CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

ugust 25]18
Page 23 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

43



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
Temporary privileges are allowed under two circumstances only; (1) to address a patient care
need and (2} to finalize a pending application.

5.5-1 PATIENT CARE NEEDS
{(a) Care of a Specific Patient

Temporary clinical privileges may be granted for a specified period not to exceed
sixty (60) days where good cause exists, to a physician, dentist or podiatrist for the
care of a specific patient, provided that the procedure described in Section
5.5(a)(1) has been foliowed and Medical Staff Policy, Temporary Privileges, 8710-
515, has been followed. No individual shall be granted such privileges for more
than 120 days per calendar year.

(b) Locum Tenens

Following the procedures in Section 5.5(a)(1), temporary privileges may be
granted to a person serving as a locum tenens for a current member of the
Medical Staff. Such person may attend only patients of the member(s) for whom
he or she is providing coverage. Such privileges shall be granted for a period not
to exceed sixty (60) days, unless the Medical Executive Committee recommends a
longer period not to exceed beyond 120 days for good cause. The locum tenens
physician must apply for the appropriate category of staff membership if a longer
period of coverage is requested

{c) Disaster Privileges

Disaster privileges may be granted when FCMG-TCHD Emergency Management
Plan has been activated. The CEO, Chief of Staff, or designee may grant such
privileges in accordance with Medical Staff Policy, Disaster Privileges, 8710-553.

5.9-2 PENDING APPLICATION FOR MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERSHIP

Temporary clinical privileges may be granted while that person’s application for Medical
Staff membership and privileges are pending Medical Executive Committee and
Governing Body' approval provided that the procedure described in Section 5.5-4 (a) (2)
has been completed, and that the applicant has no current or previously successful
chalienge to professional licensure or registration, no involuntary termination of Medical
Staff membership at any other organization, and no involuntary limitation, reduction,
denial or loss of clinical privileges. Such persons may only attend patients for a period not
o exceed 120 days.

9.5-3 APPLICATION AND REVIEW

(a) Upon receipt of a completed application and all required fees and supporting
documentation, including responses to all requests for information, from a
physician, dentist or podiatrist who is authorized to practice in California, the CEO,
or designee, upon recommendation of the Department Chair and the Chief of Staff,
may grant temporary privileges to an individual who appears to have qualifications,
ability and judgment consistent with Section 2.2 (Particular Qualifications), but only
after a National Practitioner Data Bank report regarding the applicant for temporary
privileges has been received and evaluated and current California licensure has
been verified, and:

February2047August 2018
Page 24 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

50



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(b)

(1) With respect to applications by locum tenens, or to fulfill an important
patient care need, after verification of current licensure and current
competence; or

(2) With respect to both types of applicant, the appropriate department
chairperson(s) or designee has reviewed the application and has verified
the practitioner's current competency by reviewing the peer reference of at
least one person who:

a. Has recently worked with the applicant;

b. Has directly observed the applicant’s professional performance over
a reasonable time; and

c. Provides reliable information regarding the applicant's current
professional competence to perform the privileges requested,
ethical character, and ability to work well with others so as not to
adversely affect patient care.

d. If the Medical Staff has followed Medical Staff Policy, Temporary
Privileges, 8710-515.

(3) The applicant's file, including the recommendation of the applicable
department chairperson and Chief of Staff, is reviewed;

(4) The Chief of Staff recommends and the Governing Body, through the Chief
Executive Officer, concurs in the granting of temporary privileges

(5} In the event of a disagreement between the Governing Body and the
Medical Executive Committee regarding the granting of temporary clinical
privileges, the matter shall be referred to the Joint Conference Committee.

The omission of any information, response, or recommendation specified in this
Section shall preclude the granting of temporary privileges.

5.5-4 GENERAL CONDITIONS

(a)

(b)

()

If granted temporary privileges, the applicant shall act under the supervision of the
department ehairmanchairperson to which the applicant has been assigned, and
shall ensure that the ehairmanchairperson, or the schairmanchairperson's
designee, is kept closely informed as to his or her activities within the Hospital.

Temporary privileges shall automatically expire at the end of the designated
period, unless earlier terminated by the Medical Executive Committee upon
recommendation of the department or Credentials Committee or unless
affirmatively renewed following the procedure as set forth in Section 5.5-4.

Requirements for proctoring, including but not limited to those in Section 5.3, shall
be imposed on such terms as may be appropriate under the circumstances upon
any member granted temporary privileges by the Chief of Staff after consultation
with the department shairmanchairperson or his/her designee.

Febraary2047August 2018
Page 25 of 86

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

51



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

5.6

5.7

(d) A person shall not be entitled to the procedural rights afforded by Article Vil
because of the automatic expiration of temporary privileges pursuant to 5.5-3(b).

(e) All persons requesting or receiving temporary privileges shall be bound by the
Bylaws, Rules & Regulations of the Medical Staff.

EMERGENCY PRIVILEGES

(a) in the case of an emergency involving a particular patient, any member of the
Medical Staff, to the degree permitted by his or her scope of license and
regardiess of department, staff status, or clinical privileges, shall be permitted to
do everything reasonably possible to save the life of the patient or to save the
patient from serious harm. The member shall make every reasonable effort to
communicate promptly with the appropriate department ehairmanchairperson
concerning the need for emergency care and assistance by members of the
Medical Staff with appropriate clinical privileges, and once the emergency has
passed or assistance has been made available, shall defer to the department
ehairmanchairperson with respect to further care of the patient at the Hospital.

(b) In the event of an emergency under subsection (a), any person shall be permitted
to do whatever is reasonably possible to save the life of a patient or to save a
patient from serious harm. Such persons shall promptly yield such care to
qualified members of the Medical Staff when it becomes available,

(c) Emergency privileges under subsection (a) shall not be used to force members to
serve on emergency department call panels providing services for which they do
not hold delineated clinical privileges

HISTORY AND PHYSICAL PRIVILEGES

Histories and physicals can be conducted or updated only pursuant to specific privileges granted
upon request to qualified physicians and other practitioners who are members of the Medical
Staff or seeking temporary privileges, acting within their scope of practice.

Oral and maxillofacial surgeons who have successfully completed a postgraduate program in oral
and maxillofacial surgery accredited by a nationally recognized accrediting body approved by the
U.S. Office of Education, and have been determined by the Medical Staff to be competent to do
so, may be granted the privileges to perform a history and physical examination refated to oral
and maxillofacial surgery. For patients with existing medical conditions or abnormal findings
beyond the surgical indications, a physician member of the Medical Staff with history and physical
privileges must conduct or directly supervise the admitting history and physical examination,
except the portion related to oral and maxiliofacial surgery, and assume responsibility for the care
of the patient's medical problems present at the time of admission or which may arise during
hospitalization which are outside of the oral and maxillofacial surgeon's lawful scope of practice.

Every patient receives a history and physical within Twenty-four (24) hours after admission,
unless a previous history and physical performed within thirty (30) days before admission is on
record, in which case that history and physical will be updated within twenty-four (24) hours after
admission. Every patient admitted for surgery must have a history and physical within twenty-four
(24) hours prior to surgery, unless a previous history and physical performed within thirty (30)
days prior to the surgery is on record, in which case that history and physical will be updated
within twenty-four (24} hours prior to the surgery. Refer to Medical Staff Policy, Medical Record
Documentation Requirements, 8710-518.

Febraars2047Auqust 2018
Page 26 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

52



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Madical Staff Bylaws

58  MODIFICATION OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES OR DEPARTMENT ASSIGNMENT

On its own, upon recommendation of the Credentials Committee, or pursuant to a request under
Section 4.6-1(b), the Medical Executive Committee may recommend a change in the clinical
privileges or department assignment(s), of a member. The Medical Executive Committee may
also recommend that the granting of additional privileges to a current Medical Staff member be
made subject to proctoring in accordance with procedures similar to those outlined in Section 5.3-
1 (General Provisions).

5.9  VOLUNTARY WITHDRAWAL OF APPLICATION

If a Medical Staff member requesting a modification of clinical privileges or department
assignments fails to timely furnish the information necessary to evaluate the request, the
application shall be deemed voluntarily withdrawn, and the applicant shall not be entitled to a
hearing as set forth in Article VI,

Febrian-2007Auqust 2018
Page 27 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

53



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE VI: EVALUATION AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

Peer review, fairly conducted, is essential to preserving the highest standards of medical practice.

6.1 EVALUATION OF MEMBERS

All members are subject to evaluation based on Medical Staff peer review criteria, consistent with
these bylaws. Evaluation results are used in privileging, system improvement, and when
warranted, corrective action.

6.1-1

6.1-2

6.1-3

6.1-4

6.1-5

PEER REVIEW CRITERIA

Departments shall develop and routinely update peer review criteria based on current
practices and standards of care, which shall be the sole criteria used in evaluating the
performance of members and privileges hoiders. Included in the departmental peer
review criteria are the types of data to be collected for evaluation. Department criteria are
subject to the approval of the Medical Executive Committee. Approved criteria as updated
are made known and accessible to all members. Refer to Medical Staff Policy, Ongoing
Professional Practice Evaluation/Peer Review Process, 8710-509.

REVIEW OF INITIAL MEMBERS

All initial granting of privileges shall be subject to proctoring under these bylaws and
otherwise reviewed for compliance with the relevant departmental peer review criteria.
Refer to Medical Staff Policy, Focused Professional Evaluation/Proctoring, 8710-542.

REVIEW OF MEMBERS

All members and privilege holders are reviewed for compliance with the relevant
department peer review criteria on an on-going basis. In addition to information gathered
under routine screening, complaints and concerns are analyzed in light of the department
peer review criteria using mechanisms determined by the department. Members are kept
apprised of reviews of their performance. Performance monitoring, corrective action or
other measures are implemented or recommended.

FOCUSED REVIEW

The Medical Executive Committee shall define, on a continuing basis, the circumstances
warranting further intensive review of a member or other practitioner's services provided
under privileges held, and establish the parameters for participation of the subject under
review in the focused review process. Focused review may result in recommendations for
changes to improve the member’s performance, or a request for investigation or corrective
action, or other action as indicated. Refer to Medical Staff Policy, Ongoing Professional
Practice Evaluation/Peer Review Process, 8710-509.

EXTERNAL REVIEW

External peer review may be used to perform Medical Staff peer review as delineated
under these bylaws.

The Credentials Committee or Medical Executive Committee, upon request from a
Department or upon its own motion, in evaluating or investigating an applicant, privileges
holder, or member, may obtain external peer review in the following circumstances:

February-2047August 2018
Page 28 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

54



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

6.2

(a) Committee or department review(s) that could affect an individual's membership or
privileges do not provide a sufficiently clear basis for action or are not reasonably
supported by the facts or evidence of the matters or cases being reviewed;

(b) No current Medical Staff member can provide necessary expertise in the clinical
procedure or area under review,

(c) To promote impartial peer review;

{d) Upon reasonable request of the practitioner.

CORRECTIVE ACTION

6.2-1

6.2-2

6.2-3

CRITERIA FOR INITIATION

Any person may provide information to the Medical Staff about the conduct, performance,
or competence of its members. When reliable information indicates a member may have
exhibited acts, demeanor, or conduct reasonably likely to be (1) detrimental to patient
safety or to the delivery of quality patient care within the Hospital; (2) unethical; (3)
disruptive; (4) contrary to the Medical Staff Bylaws or Rules and Regulations; (5) below
applicable professional standards, corrective action against such member may be
requested by any officer of the Medical Staff, by the ehairmanchairperson of any
department, by the member's division chief, by the ehairmanchairperson of any standing
committee of the Medical Staff, or by the Medical Executive Committee.

INITIATION

A request for an investigation must be in writing, submitted to the Medical Executive
Commiittee, and supported by reference to the specific activities or conduct alleged. If the
Medical Executive Commitiee initiates the request, it shall make an appropriate record of
the reasons.

INVESTIGATION

If the Medical Executive Committee concludes an investigation is warranted, it shall direct
an investigation to be undertaken. The Medical Executive Committee may conduct the
investigation itself, or may assign the task to an appropriate Medical Staff officer, Medical
Staff department, standing or ad hoc committee of the Medical Staff, or appropriate
expert(s) outside the Medical Staff. Failure to cooperate with an investigation or accept
an external reviewer(s) shall be automatic grounds for termination of staff membership.
The investigation, whether delegated to an officer, committee, Medical Executive
Committee or outside expert(s) shall be accomplished in a prompt manner and a written
report shall be forwarded to the Medical Executive Committee as soon as practicable.
The report may include recommendations for appropriate corrective action. The member
shall be notified that an investigation is being conducted and the general nature and
subject matter of the investigation. The member shall be given a reascnable opportunity
to provide information. The individual or body investigating the matter may, but is not
obligated to, conduct interviews with persons involved. However, such investigation shall
not constitute a “ hearing” as that term is used in Article VII, nor shall the procedural rules
with respect to hearings or appeals apply. Despite the status of any investigation, at all
times the Medical Executive Committee shall retain authority and discretion to take
whatever action may be warranted by the circumstances, including summary suspension,
termination of the investigative process, or other action.

Februiary-204FAugust 2018
Page 29 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

55



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

6.2-4

6.2-5

6.2-6

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION

As soon as practicable after the conclusion of the investigation, the Medical Executive

Commitiee shall meet. The member under investigation shall be given notice of the

meeting, as well as the grounds for the corrective action, and shall have time to prepare a

response before the meeting is held. The Medical Executive Committee shall take action,

which may include, without limitation:

(a) Determining no corrective action is taken and, if the Medical Executive Committee
determines there was no credible evidence for the complaint in the first instance,
removing any adverse information in the member’s file.

(b) Deferring action for a reasonable time where circumstances warrant.

(c) Issuing letters of admonition, censure, reprimand or warning, although nothing
herein shail be deemed to preclude a department chair from issuing informal
written or oral warnings outside of the mechanism for corrective action. In the
event such letters are issued, the affected member may make a written response,
which shall be placed in the member's file.

(d) Recommending the imposition of terms of probation or special limitation upon
continued Medical Staff membership or exercise of clinical privileges, including,
without limitation, requirements for co-admission, mandatory consultation, or
proctoring.

(e) Recommending reduction, modification, suspension, or revocation of clinical
privileges.

) Recommending reduction of membership status or limitation of any privileges
directly related to the member’s delivery of patient care.

(9) Recommending suspension, revocation, or probation of Medical Staff membership.
{h) Taking other actions deemed appropriate under the circumstances.
SUBSEQUENT ACTION

If corrective action as set forth in Section 7.2(a)-(k) is recommended by the Medical
Executive Commitiee, that recommendation shall be transmitted to the Governing Body
for final action unless the member requests a hearing, in which case no final action will be
taken until the member exhaust his remedies.

INITIATION BY GOVERNING BODY

If the Medical Executive Committee fails to investigate or take disciplinary action, contrary
to the weight of evidence, the Governing Body may direct the Medical Executive
Committee to initiate investigation or disciplinary action, but only after consultation with
the Medical Executive Committee. if the Medical Executive Committee fails to take action
in response to the Governing Body direction, the Governing Body may initiate corrective
action, but this corrective action must comply with Articles VI and VIl of these Medical
Staff Bylaws.

6.3 SUMMARY RESTRICTION OR SUSPENSION

Eebriars2047August 2018
Page 30 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

96



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

6.3-1

6.3-2

6.3-3

6.3-4

CRITERIA FOR INITIATION

Whenever a member's conduct or physical condition, is such that failure to take action
may result in an imminent danger to the health of any individual, the Chief of Staff, the
Chief of Staff-elect, or the immediate Past Chief of Staff, or Chair of the applicable
Department , together with either a member of the Governing Body or the Chief Executive
Officer acting in his capacity as an agent of the Governing Body, shall conjointly have the
authority to summarily restrict or suspend the Medical Staff privileges of a member and
such summary suspension shall become effective immediately upon imposition. The
person or body responsible shall promptly give written notice to the member, the
Governing Body, the Medical Executive Commiitee, and the Chief Executive Officer. The
summary restriction or suspension may be limited in duration and may be based upon the
member's refusal to submit to a blood or urine test to detect the presence of alcohol or
chemicals. The summary suspension shall remain in effect for the period stated or, if
none, until resolved as set forth herein. Unless otherwise indicated by the terms of the
summary restriction or suspension, the member’s patients shall be promptly assigned to
another member by the department chaismanchairperson or by the Chief of Staff,
considering where feasible the wishes of the patient in the choice of a substitute member.

WRITTEN NOTICE OF SUMMARY SUSPENSION

Within one (1) working day of imposition of a summary suspension, the affected Medical
Staff member shall be provided with written notice of such suspension. This initial written
notice shall include a statement of facts demonstrating that the suspension was necessary
because failure to suspend or restrict the practitioner's privileges summarily could
reasonably result in an imminent danger to the health of an individual. The statement of
facts provided in this initial notice shall also include a summary of one or more particular
incidents giving rise to the assessment of imminent danger. This initial notice shall not
substitute for but is in addition to, the notice required under Section 7.3-1 (which applies in
all cases where the Medical Executive Committee may supplement the initial notice
provided under this Section, by including any additional relevant facts supporting the need
for summary suspension or other corrective action).

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTION

As soon as practicable after such summary restriction or suspension has been imposed, a
meeting of the Medical Executive Committee shall be convened to review and consider
the action. The member shall be given notice of the meeting, as well as of the grounds for
the summary restriction or suspension, and shall have time to prepare a response before
the meeting is held. Upon request, the member may attend and make a statement
concerning the issues under investigation, on such terms and conditions as the Medical
Executive Committee may impose, although in no event shall any meeting of the Medical
Executive Committee, with or without the member, constitute a “hearing” within the
meaning of Article VII, nor shall any procedural rules apply. The Medical Executive
Committee may modify, continue, or terminate the summary restriction or suspension, but
in any event it shall furnish the member with notice of its decision within two working days
of the meeting.

PROCEDURAL RIGHTS

Unless the Medical Executive Commitiee terminates the summary restriction or
suspension before it becomes reportable to the Medical Board of California or the National

Febryars-2047August 2018
Page 31 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

o7



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

6.3-5

Practitioners Data Bank, the member shall be entitled to the procedural rights afforded by
Article VII.

INITIATION BY GOVERNING BODY

If the Chief of Staff, members of the Medical Executive Committee and the Chair of
Department (or designee) in which the member holds privileges are not available to
summarily restrict or suspend the member's membership or clinical privileges, the
Governing Body (or designee) may immediately suspend a member's privileges if a failure
to summarily suspend these privileges is likely to result in an imminent danger to the
health of any patient, prospective patient, or other person, provided that the Governing
Body (or designee) made reasonable attempts to contact the Chief of Staff, members of
the Medical Executive Committee and the depariment chair (or designee) before the
suspension. Such a suspension is subject to ratification of the Medical Executive
Committee. If the Medical Executive Committee does not ratify such a summary
suspension within two working days, excluding weekends and holidays, the summary
suspension shall terminate automatically. If the Medical Executive Committee does ratify
the summary suspension, all other provisions under Section 6.2 of these Bylaws will

apply.

6.4  AUTOMATIC SUSPENSION OR LIMITATION

6.4-1

6.4-2

In the following instances, the member's privileges or membership shall be suspended or
limited as described, which action shall be final without a right to hearing or further review,
except where a bona fide dispute exists as to whether the circumstances have occurred:

LICENSURE

(a) Revocation, Suspension, and Expiration: Whenever a member's license or other
legal credential authorizing practice in this State is revoked, suspended, or
expired, Medical Staff membership and clinical privileges shall be automatically
revoked as of the date such action become effective.

(b) Restriction: Whenever a member’s license or other legal credential authorizing
practice in this State is limited or restricted by the applicable licensing or certifying
authority, any clinical privileges which the member has been granted at the
Hospital which are within the scope of said limitation or restriction shall be
automatically limited or restricted in a similar manner, as of the date such action
becomes effective and throughout its term.

(e) Probation: Whenever a member is placed on probation by the applicable licensing
or certifying authority, his or her membership status and clinical privileges shall
automatically become subject to the same terms and conditions of the probation
as of the date such action becomes effective and throughout its term.

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

(a) Whenever a member's DEA certificate is revoked, limited or suspended, the
member shall automatically and correspondingly be suspended of the right to
prescribe medications covered by the certificate, as of the date such action
becomes effective and throughout its term.

(b) Probation: Whenever a member's DEA certificate is subject to probation, the
member’s right to prescribe such medication shall automatically become subject to

February2047Auqust 2018
Pags 32 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

58



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

6.4-3

6.4-4

6.4-5

6.4-6

6.4-7

the same terms of the probation, as of the date such action becomes effective and
throughout its term.

(¢) Expiration: Whenever a member's DEA certificate is expired or evidence of
renewal has not been received, the member's right to prescribe such medication
shall automatically be suspended until such time as evidence of current DEA
certificate is received.

FAILURE TO SATISFY SPECIAL APPEARANCE REQUIREMENT

Failure of a member, without good cause, to appear and satisfy the requirements of
Section 11.2-4 shall be a basis for corrective action.

MEDICAL RECORDS

Medical Staff members are required to complete medical records within the time frame
prescribed by the Medical Executive Committee. Failure to timely complete medical
records shall result in a limited suspension after notice is given by the Chief of Staff
pursuant to Medical Staff Policy, Delinquency Status, 8710-519. Such limited suspension
shall apply to the Medical Staff member's right to admit, treat or provide services to new
patients in the hospital, but shall not affect the right to continue to care for a patient the
Medical Staff member has already admitted or has scheduled to treat or to perform any
invasive procedure. Bona fide vacation or illness may constitute an excuse subject to the
approval by the Medical Executive Committee. Members whose privileges have been
suspended for delinquent records may admit patients only in life threatening situations,
when no other physician of the appropriate specialty is available. The suspension shall
continue until the medical records are completed or suspension lifted by the Chief of Staff
or histher designee.

TUBERCULIN TESTING DOCUMENTATION

The admitting and clinical privileges of any member who fails to provide documentation of
Tuberculin Testing in accordance with Medical Staff Policy, Tuberculosis Screening of
Licensed Independent Practitioners and Allied Health, 8710-538, shall be automatically
suspended. Such limited suspension shall apply to the Medical Staff member’s right to
admit, treat or provide services to new patients in the hospital, but shall not affect the right
to continue to care for a patient the Medical Staff member has already admitted or has
scheduled to treat or to perform any invasive procedure. Members whose privileges have
been suspended for failing to provide documentation of a Tuberculin Test may admit
patients only in life threatening situations, when no other physician of the appropriate
specialty is available. The suspension shall continue until the Tuberculin Test is provided,
or suspension lifted by the Chief of Staff or his/her designee.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Failure to maintain professional liability insurance, if any is required, shall be grounds for
automatic suspension of a member's clinical privileges, and if within ninety (90) days after
written warnings of the delinquency the member does not provide evidence of required
professional liability insurance, the membership shall automatically expire.

EXCLUSION FROM GOVERNMENTAL HEALTHCARE PROGRAM

In the event a member is excluded from participation in a government healthcare program,
the member shall be automatically suspended. Such suspension shall remain in place
until the member submits a plan, acceptable to the Medical Executive Committee and the

Rebruar-2017August 2018
Page 33 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

59



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medicat Staff Bylaws

Governing Body, which permits the member to exercise privileges without subjecting the
hospital fo sanctions or denial of payment. Failure to submit an acceptable plan within
ninety (90) days after written notice of suspension shall result in automatic termination.

6.5 MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DELIBERATION

As soon as practicable after action is taken or warranted as described in Section 6.4, the Medical
Executive Committee shall convene to review and consider the facts, and may recommend such
further corrective action as it may deem appropriate following the procedure generally set forth

commencing at Section 6.2,

| Febrsar-2017August 2018
Page 34 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

60



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
ARTICLE VII: HEARINGS AND APPELLATE REVIEWS
7.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS
7.1-1 EXHAUSTION OF REMEDIES
If adverse action described in Section 6.2 is taken or recommended, the applicant or
member must exhaust the remedies afforded by these Bylaws before resorting to legal
action.
7.1-2 APPLICATION OF ARTICLE

For purposes of this Article, the term “member” may include “applicant” as it may be
applicable under the circumstances, uniess otherwise stated.

7.1-3 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE

Technical, insignificant, or non-prejudicial deviations from the procedures set forth in
these bylaws shall not be grounds for invalidating any action taken.

7.2  GROUNDS FOR HEARING
Any one or more of the following actions, if taken or recommended based upon conduct that is
reasonably likely to be detrimental to patient safety or the delivery of patient care, shall constitute
grounds for hearing if such action(s) or recommendation(s), if sustained, are required by law to be
reported to the Medical Board of California and/or the National Practitioners Data Bank.
(a) Denial of Medical Staff membership.

(b) Denial of Medical Staff reappointment.

(c) Suspension of Medical Staff membership.

(d) Revocation of Medical Staff membership.

(e) Denial of requested clinical privileges.

{f) Involuntary reduction of current clinical privileges.
(9) Suspension of clinical privileges.

(h) Termination of all clinical privileges.

(i) Involuntary imposition of significant consultation or proctoring requirements
(excluding practoring incidental to provisiona! status and Section 5.3).

7.3  REQUEST FOR HEARING
7.3-1 NOTICE OF ACTION OR PROPOSED ACTION

In all cases in which action has been taken or a recommendation made as set forth in
Section 7.2, said person or body shall give the member prompt written notice of the
recommendation or final proposed action and that such action, if adopted, shall be taken

February-2047August 201
Page 35 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/232227).2



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

7.3-2

7.3-3

7.3-4

7.3-5

and reported fo the Medical Board of California pursuant to Section 805 of the California
Business and Professions Code; notice of the right to request a hearing pursuant to
Section 7.3-2; that such hearing must be requested within thirty (30) days; and a summary
of the rights granted in the hearing pursuant to the Medical Staff Bylaws. If the
recommendation or final proposed action adversely affects the clinical privileges of a
physician or dentist for a period longer than 30 days and is based on competence or
professional conduct, said written notice shall state that the action if adopted will be
reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank, and shall state the text of the proposed
report.

REQUEST FOR HEARING

The Member shall have thirty (30) days following receipt of notice of such action to
request a hearing. The request shall be in writing, addressed to the Medical Executive
Committee, with a copy to the Governing Body. [n the event the member does not
request a hearing within the time and in the manner described, the member shall be
deemed to have waived any right to a hearing and to have accepted the recommendation
or action involved.

TIME AND PLACE FOR HEARING

Upon receipt of a request for hearing, the Medical Executive Committee shall schedule a
hearing, and within fifteen (15) days give nofice to the member of the time, place and date
of the hearing. Unless extended by the Judicial Review Committee, the date of the
commencement of the hearing shall not be less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty
(60) days from the date of receipt of the request by the Medical Executive Committee for a
hearing; provided, however, that when the request is received from a member who is
under summary suspension, the hearing shall be held as soon as the arrangements may
reasonably be made, but not to exceed forty-five (45) days from the date of receipt of the
request.

NOTICE OF CHARGES

Together with the notice stating the place, time and date of the hearing, the Medical
Executive Committee shall state clearly and concisely in writing the reasons for the
adverse final proposed action taken or recommended, including the acts or omissions with
which the member is charged and a list of the charts in question, where applicabie, as well
as a list of all witnesses the Medical Executive Committee expects to call at the hearing.

JUDICIAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

When a hearing is requested, the Medical Executive Committee shall appoint a Judicial
Review Committee which shall be composed of not less than five (5) members of the
Medical Staff who shall gain no direct financial benefit from the outcome, and who have
not acted as accuser, investigator, fact finder, initial decision maker or otherwise have not
actively participated in the consideration of the matter leading up to the recommendation
or action. Knowledge of the matter involved shalil not preclude a member of the Medical
Staff from serving as a member of the Judicial Review Committee. The Medical Executive
Committee may appoint members from either staff categories or practitioners who are not
members of the Medical Staff. Such appointment shall include designation of the
chairmanchairperson. Membership on a judicial review committee shall consist of one
member who shall have the same healing arts licensure as the accused and, where
feasible, include an individual practicing in the same specialty as the member. All other
members shall have M.D. or D.O. degrees. At the discretion of the Medical Executive

Febriar-2047August 201§
Page 36 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

62



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Byfaws

7.4

Committee, an arbitrator or arbitrators, selected by a process mutually agreeable to the
individual and the Medical Staff, may be utilized rather than a judicial review committee.

7.3-6 FAILURE TO APPEAR OR PROCEED
Failure without good cause of a member to personally attend and proceed at such a
hearing in an efficient and orderly manner shall be deemed to constitute voluntary
acceptance of the recommendations or actions involved.

7.3-7 POSTPONEMENTS AND EXTENSIONS
Once a request for hearing is initiated, postponements and extensions of time beyond the
times permitted in these Bylaws may be granted upon agreement of the parties, or by the
Hearing Officer in consultation with the chairperson of the Judicial Review Committee
upon a showing of good cause. The Medical Executive Committee shall exercise ongoing
oversight over the hearing to ensure the timely resolution of issues.

HEARING PROCEDURE

7.4-1 PRE-HEARING PROCEDURE

(a) If either side to the hearing requests in writing a list of witnesses, within fifteen (15)
days of such request, each party shall furnish to the other a written list of the
names and addresses of the individuals, so far as is then reasonably known or
anticipated, who are anticipated to give testimony or evidence in support of that
party at the hearing. The member shall have the right to inspect and copy
documents or other evidence upon which the charges are based, as well as all
other evidence relevant to the charges. The member shall also have the right to
receive at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing a copy of the evidence forming
the basis of the charges which is reasonably necessary to enable the member to
prepare a defense, including all evidence which was considered by the Medical
Executive Committee in determining whether to proceed with the adverse action,
any exculpatory evidence in the possession of the Hospital or Medical Staff, and
all evidence which will be made available to the Judicial Review Committee.

(b) The Medical Executive Committee shall have the right to inspect and copy at its
expense any documents or other evidence relevant to the charges which the
member has in his or her possession or control as soon as practicable after
receiving the request.

(c) The failure by either party to provide access to this information at least thirty {30)
days before the hearing shall constitute good cause for a continuance. The right
to inspect and copy by either party does not extend to confidential information
referring solely to individually identifiable members, other than the member under
review.

(d) The Hearing Officer shall consider and rule upon any request for access to
infformation and may impose any safeguards the protection of the Focused
Practitioner Performance Review process and justice requires. In so doing, the
Hearing Officer shall consider:

{1) Whether the information sought may be introduced to support or defend the
charges;

201
Page 37 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

63



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

7.4-2

7.4-3

(2) The exculpatory or inculpatory nature of the information sought, if any;

(3) The burden imposed on the party in possession of the information sought,
if access if granted; and

(4) Any previous requests for access to information submitied or resisted by
the parties to the same proceeding

(e) The member shall be entitted to a reasonable opportunity to question and
challenge the impartiality of Judicial Review Committee members and the Hearing
Officer. Challenges to the impartiality of any Judicial Review Commititee member
or the Hearing Officer shall be ruled on by the Hearing Officer prior to the
commencement of the hearing.

H It shall be the duty of the member and the Medical Executive Committee or its
designee to exercise reasonable diligence in notifying the ehairmanchairperson of
the Judicial Review Committee of any pending or anticipated procedural disputes
as far in advance of the scheduled hearing as possible, in order that decisions
concerning such matters may be made in advance of the hearing. Objections to
any pre-hearing decisions may be succinctly made at the hearing.

(9) The Medical Executive Committee shall not be represented by an attorney at law if
the member is not so represented.

REPRESENTATION

The hearings provided for in these Bylaws are for the purpose of intra-professional
resolution of matters bearing on professional conduct, professional competency, or
character. The member shall be entitied to representation by legal counsel in any phase
of the hearing at the member's expense, if the member so chooses, and shall receive
notice of the right to obtain representation by an attorney at law. The Medical Executive
Committee shall not be represented at the hearing by an attorney at law if the member is
not so represented. In the absence of legal counsel, the member shall be entitled to be
accompanied by and represented at the hearing by an individual of the members
choosing who is not also an attorney at law, and the Medical Executive Committee shall
appoint a representative who is not an attorney to present its action or recommendation,
the materials in support thereof, examine witnesses, and respond to appropriate
questions. The Medical Executive Committee representative may be accompanied and
assisted by an employee of the Medical Staff Office. The foregoing rules should not be
deemed to deprive the member or the Medical Executive Committee of the right to legal
counsel in connection with preparation for any and all aspects of the hearing or appellate
review, or to be represented by legal counsel at any appellate review.

THE HEARING OFFICER

Concurrent with his/her notice of appeal, the member shall submit a list of at least three
(3) qualified persons the member would accept as a Hearing Officer. If none of the
persons suggested by the member is acceptable to the Chief of Staff, the Chief of Staff
shall within seven (7) days provide the member with the names of at least three (3)
qualified persons to serve as a Hearing Officer. The member shall have seven (7) days to
select a Hearing Officer from one of the names provided by the Chief of Staff. If the
member fails to make a selection within the said seven (7) days, the Chief of Staff may
select the Hearing Officer from his/her list. The Hearing Officer shall be an attorney at law

qualified to preside over a quasi-judicial hearing, with prior experience as a Hearing
uqust 201
Page 38 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

64



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

7.4-4

7.4-5

7.4-6

Officer in a hospital peer review matter, where feasible. Absent stipulation by the Chief of
Staff and the member, attorneys from a firm regularly utilized by the Hospital, the Medical
Staff or the involved Medical Staff member or applicant for membership, for legal advice
regarding their affairs and activities shall not be eligible to serve as Hearing Officer, nor
shall a person who has served as a Hearing Officer at the Hospital in the prior two-year
period. The Hearing Officer shall gain no direct financial benefit from the outcome and
must not act as a prosecuting officer or as an advocate. !If a Hearing Officer selected by
this process is disqualified for any reason, a repiacement will be chosen by repeating the
process described in this section.

The Hearing Officer shall preside over the voir dire process and may question panel
members directly, and shall make all rulings regarding service by the proposed hearing
panel members of the Hearing Officer.

The Hearing Officer shall endeavor to assure that all participants in the hearing have a
reasonable opportunity to be heard and to present relevant oral and documentary
evidence in an efficient and expeditious manner, and that proper decorum is maintained.
The Hearing Officer shall be entitled to determine the order of or procedure for presenting
evidence and argument during the hearing and shall have the authority and discretion to
make all rulings on questions, which pertain to matters of law, procedure or the
admissibility of evidence; provided that any rulings by the Hearing Officer are subject to
review and reconsideration by the Judicial Review Committee upon request by the
member or the Medical Executive Committee’s representative. If requested by the
Judicial Review Committee, the Hearing Officer may participate in the deliberations of
such committee and be a legal advisor to it, but the Hearing Officer shall not be entitied to
vote,

RECORD OF THE HEARING

A shorthand reporter shall be present to make a record of the hearing proceedings, and
those pre-hearing proceedings deemed appropriate by the Hearing Officer. The cost of
attendance of the shorthand reporter shall be borne by the Hospital, but the cost of the
transcript, if any, shall be borne by the party requesting it. The Judicial Review
Committee may, but shall not be required to, order that oral evidence shall be taken only
on oath administered by any person lawfully authorized to administer such an oath.

RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES

Both sides at the hearing may call and examine witnesses for relevant testimony,
introduce relevant exhibits or other documents, cross-examine or impeach witnesses who
shall have testified orally on any matter relevant to the issues, and otherwise rebut
evidence, as long as these rights are exercised in an efficient and expeditious manner.
The Hearing Officer, in consultation with the Judicial Review Committee, may place
reasonable limits on the time and scope of the examination of any witness by either side
and/or the introduction of documentary evidence. The member may be called by the
Medical Executive Committee and examined as if under cross-examination.

MISCELLANEQCUS RULES

Judicial rules of evidence and procedure relating to the conduct of the hearing,
examination of witnesses, and presentation of evidence shall not apply to a hearing
conducted under this Article. Any relevant evidence, including hearsay, shall be admitted
if it is the sort of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the
conduct of serious affairs, regardiess of the admissibility of such evidence in a court of

Febriary-2047Auqust 2018
Page 38 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

65



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

7.4-7

7.4-8

7.4-9

law. The Judicial Review Committee may interrogate the witnesses or call additional
witnesses if it deems such action appropriate. At its discretion, the Judicial Review
Committee may request or permit both sides to file written arguments.

BURDENS OF PRESENTING EVIDENCE AND PROOF

(a) At the hearing, the Medical Executive Committee shall have the initial duty to
present evidence for each case or issue in support of its action or
recommendation. The member shall be obligated to present evidence in
response.

(b) An applicant shall bear the burden of persuading the Judicial Review Committee,
by a preponderance of the evidence, of his/her qualifications by producing
information, which allows for adequate evaluation and resolution of reasonable
doubts concerning his/her current qualifications for membership and privileges. An
applicant shall not be permitted to introduce information requested by the Medical
Staff but not produced during the application process unless the applicant
establishes that the information could not have been produced previously in the
exercise of reasonable diligence.

(c) Except as provided above for applicants, throughout the hearing, the Medical
Executive Committee shall bear the burden of persuading the Judicial Review
Committee, by a preponderance of evidence, that its action or recommendation
was reasonable and warranted.

ADJOURNMENT AND CONCLUSION

After consuitation with the ehairmanchairperson of the Judicial Review Committee, the
Hearing Officer may adjourn the hearing and reconvene the same without special notice
at such times and intervals as may be reasonable and warranted, with due consideration
for reaching an expeditious conclusion to the hearing. Both the Medica!l Executive
Committee and the member may submit a written statement at the close of the hearing.
Upon conclusion of the presentation of oral and written evidence, or the receipt of closing
written arguments, if submitted, the hearing shall be closed.

BASIS FOR DECISION

The decision of the Judicial Review Committee shall be based on the evidence introduced
at the hearing, including all logical and reasonable inferences from the evidence and the
testimony. The decision of the Judicial Review Committee shall be subject to such rights
of appeal as described in these Bylaws.

7.4-10 DECISION OF THE JUDICIAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

Within thirty (30) days after final adjournment of the hearing, the Judicial Review
Committee shall render a decision, which shall be accompanied by a report in writing and
shall be delivered to the Medical Executive Committee. If the member is currently under
suspension, however, the time for the decision and report shall be fifteen (15) days. A
copy of said decision also shall be forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer, the Governing
Body, and to the member. The report shall contain a concise statement of the reasons in
support of the decision including findings of fact and a conclusion articulating the
connection between the evidence produced at the hearing and the conclusion reached. If
the final proposed action adversely affects the clinical privileges of a physician or dentist
for a period longer than 30 days and is based on competence or professional conduct, the

Febriars-2047August 2018
Page 40 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

66



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

decision shall state that the action if adopted wili be reported to the National Practitioner
Data Bank, and shall state the text of the report as agreed upon by the committee. The
decision shall also state whether the action, if adopted, shall be reported to the Medical
Board of California and shall state the text of the report as agreed upon by the committee.
Both the member and the Medical Executive Commitiee shall be provided a written
explanation of the procedure for appealing the decision. The decision of the Judicial
Review Committee shall be subject to such rights of appeal or review as described in
these Bylaws.

7.5  APPEAL

7.5-1

7.5-2

7.5-3

7.5-4

TIME FOR APPEAL

Within ten (10) days after receipt of the decision of the Judicial Review Committee, either
the member or the Medical Executive Committee may request an appellate review. A
written request for such review shall be delivered to the Chief of Staff, the Chief Executive
Officer, and the other party in the hearing. If a request for appellate review is not
requested within such period, that action or recommendation shall be affirmed by the
Governing Body as the final action if, in the Governing Body's independent judgment, the
decision is supported by the evidence, following a fair procedure.

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL

A written request for an appeal shall include an identification of the grounds for appeal
and a clear and concise statement of the facts in support of the appeal. The grounds for
appeal from the hearing shall be: (a) substantial non-compliance with the procedures
required by these Bylaws or applicable law which has created demonstrable prejudice; (b)
the decision was not supported by evidence based upon the hearing record or such
additional information as may be permitted pursuant to Section 7.5-5; (c) the text of the
report to be filed to the National Practitioner Data Bank is not accurate.

TIME, PLACE AND NOTICE

If an appellate review is to be conducted, the appeal board shall, within fifteen (15) days
after receipt of notice of appeal, schedule a review date and cause each side to be given
notice of the time, place and date of the appellate review. The date of appellate review
shall not be less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days from the date of such
notice; provided, however, that when a request for appellate review concerns a member
who is under suspension which is then in effect, the appellate review shall be held as
soon as the arrangements may reasonably be made, not to exceed fifteen (15) days from
the date of the notice. The time for appellate review may be extended by the appeal
board for good cause.

APPEAL BOARD

The Governing Body may sit as the appeal board, or it may appoint an appeal board,
which shall be composed of not less than three {3) members of the Governing Body.
Knowledge of the matter involved shall not preclude any person from serving as a
member of the appeal board, so long as that person did not take part in a prior hearing on
the same matter. The appeal board shall select a Hearing Officer to assist in the
proceeding, if requested by the appeal board. The Hearing Officer for the appeal shall
generally have the qualifications and exercise the same duties and powers as set forth in
the in Section 7.4-3 of these Bylaws. Any decision of the appeal Hearing Officer that

Febriary-2047Auqust 2018
Page 41 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

67



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

affects the substantive rights of the parties to the appeal is subject to review and
reconsideration by the appeal board.

7.5-5 APPEAL PROCEDURE

7.5-6

7.5-7

The proceeding by the appeal board shall be in the nature of an appellate hearing based
upon the record of the hearing before the Judicial Review Committee, provided that the
appeal board may accept additional oral or written evidence, subject to a foundational
showing that such evidence could not have been made available to the Judicial Review
Committee in the exercise of reasonable diligence and subject to the same rights of cross-
examination or confrontation provided at the Judicial Review hearing; or the appeal board
may remand the matter to the Judicial Review Committee for the taking of further
evidence and for decision. Each party shall have the right to be represented by legal
counsel or any other representative designated by that party in connection with the
appeal, to present a written statement in support of his/her position on appeal and to
personally appear and make oral argument. The appeal board may thereupon conduct, at
a time convenient to itself, deliberations outside the presence of the appellant and
respondent and their representatives. The appeal board shall present to the Governing
Body its written recommendations as to whether the Governing Body should affirm,
modify, or reverse the Judicial Review Committee decision, or remand the matter to the
Judicial Review Committee for further review and decision.

DECISION

(a) Except as provided in Section 7.5-6(b), within thirty (30) days after the conclusion
of the appellate review proceedings, the Governing Body shall render a final
decision and shall affirm the decision of the Judicial Review Committee if, in the
Goveming Body’s independent judgment, it is supported by the evidence, following
a fair procedure.

(b) Should the Governing Body determine that the Judicial Review Commitiee
decision is not supported by the evidence, the Governing Body may modify or
reverse the decision of the Judicial Review Committee and may instead, or shall,
where a fair procedure has not been afforded, remand the matter to the Judicial
Review Committee for reconsideration, stating the purpose for the referral. If the
matter is remanded to the Judicial Review Committee for further review and
recommendation, the committee shall promptly conduct its review and make its
recommendation to the Governing Body. This further review and the time required
to report back shall not exceed thirty (30) days in duration except as the parties
may otherwise agree for good cause as jointfly determined by the
GhairmanChairperson of the Governing Body and the Judicial Review Committee.

(c) The decision shall be in writing, shall specify the reasons for the action taken, shall
include the text of the report which shall be made to the National Practitioner Data
Bank, if any, and shall be forwarded to the Chief of Staff, the Medical Executive
Committee, the subject of the hearing, and the Chief Executive Officer, at least ten
(10) days prior to submission to the Medical Board of California.

RIGHT TO ONE HEARING

No member shall be entitled to more than one evidentiary hearing and one appellate
review on any matter, which shall have been the subject of adverse action or
recommendation.

Febreary-264+7Auqus! 2018
Page 42 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

68



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

EXCEPTIONS TO HEARING RIGHTS

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.6-1

7.6-2

MEDICAL-ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS AND CONTRACT PHYSICIANS

Members who are directly under contract with the Hospital have the same appellate and
hearing rights as outlined in Article VII, except as pertains to contract negotiations
between the contract physicians and the Governing Body.

AUTOMATIC SUSPENSION OR LIMITATION OF PRACTICE PRIVILEGES

No hearing is required when a member's license or DEA certificate has been revoked or
suspended as set forth in Section 6.3-1 (a). In other cases, described in Section 6.3-1
and 6.3-3, the issues which may be considered at a hearing, if requested, shall not include
evidence designed to show that the determination by the licensing or credentialing
authority of the DEA was unwarranted, but only whether the member may continue
practice in the Hospital with those limitations imposed.

NATIONAL PRACTITIONER DATA BANK REPORTING

7.7-1

ADVERSE ACTIONS

The authorized representative shall report an adverse action to the National Practitioner
Data Bank only upon its adoption as final action and only using the description set forth in
the final action as adopted by the Governing Body. The authorized representative shall
report any and all revisions of an adverse action, including, but not limited to, any
expiration of the final action consistent with the terms of that final action.

If no hearing was requested, a member who was the subject of an adverse action report
may request an informal meeting to dispute the report filed. The report dispute meeting
shall not constitute a hearing and shall be limited to the issue of whether the report filed is
consistent with the final action issued. The meeting shall be attended by the subject of
the report, the Chief of Staff, the chair of the subject's department, and the Hospital's
authorized representative, or their respective designee. If a hearing was held, the dispute
process shall be deemed to have been completed.

DISPUTING REPORT LANGUAGE

If no hearing was requested, a member who is the subject of a proposed adverse action report to

the Medical Board of California or the National Practitioner Data Bank may request an informal

meeting to dispute the text of the report filed. The report-dispute-meeting shall not constitute a
hearing, and shall be limited to the issue of whether the report filed is consistent with the final
action issued. The meeting shall be attended by the subject of the report, the Chief of Staff, the
chair of the subject’s department, and the hospital's authorized representative, or their respective
designees.

If a hearing was held, the dispute process shall be deemed to have been completed.

Febroary2017Auqust 2018
Page 43 of 86

DOCS 116569-000013:2322271.2

69



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRIGT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE VIlIl: OFFICERS

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

OFFICERS OF THE MEDICAL STAFF
8.1-1 IDENTIFICATION

The officers of the Medical Staff shall be the (1) Chief of Staff-elect (Vice President), (2)
Chief of Staff (President), (3) Immediate Past Chief of Staff (Treasurer and Credentials
Committee GhairmanChairperson), and (4) Past Chief of Staff (Secretary).

QUALIFICATIONS OF OFFICERS

Officers must be Active members of the Medical Staff for five (5) years preceding their nomination
and election and must remain Active members in good standing during their term of office.
Failure to maintain such status shall result in a forfeiture of office and a successor shall be
nominated by the Nominating Commititee and elected by majority of the Medical Executive
Committee. Officers must have two (2) years' experience as a Chair of a Medical Staff
Committee, Depariment, or Chief of a Division prior to their nomination and election. All officers
of the Medical Staff must be licensed by the California Medical Board or California Osteopathic
Medical Board as licensed physicians and surgeons. The Chief of Staff must be a Medical Doctor
or a Doctor of Osteopathy.

ELECTION OF OFFICER

(a) Officers shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Medical Staff. Only
members of the Active Medical Staff shall be eligible to vote. The vote shall be by
secret ballot, and there shall be successive balloting as necessary until one
candidate receives an absolute majority of those present and voting. Successive
balloting shall occur, with the name of the candidate receiving the fewest votes
being omitied from each successive slate until a majority vote is obtained by one
candidate. All officers must be licensed as physicians and surgeons, given the
nature of their duties in office.

(b) The Nominating Committee shall consist of the Medical Executive Committee and
the four (4) immediate past Chiefs of Staff.

(c) Nominations may also be made by petition, provided that the name of the
candidate is submitted in writing to the shairmanchairperson of the Nominating
Committee and bears the candidate’s written consent. These nominations shall be
delivered to the ehairmanchairperson of the Nominating Committee as soon as
reasonably practicable, but at least twenty (20) days prior to the date of election. If
any nominations are made in this manner, the voting members of the Medical Staff
shall be advised by notice, delivered or mailed at least ten (10) days prior to the
meeting.

(d) Nominations from the floor will be recognized if the nominee is present and
consents, and is seconded by ten percent (10%) of the Active Medical Siaff
present.

TERM OF OFFICE

(a) Each officer shall serve a (2) two-year term from his/her election date or until a
successor is elected. Officers shall take office on the first day of July following
their election. At the end of hisfher term of office, the Chief of Staff shall

February-264FAugust 2018
Page 44 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

70



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

8.5

8.6

automatically assume the office of Immediate Past Chief of Staff (Treasurer), and
the Chief of Staff-elect shall automatically assume the office of Chief of Staff. At
the end of his/her term of office, the Immediate Past Chief of Staff shall
automatically assume the office of the Past Chief of Staff (Secretary).

VACANCIES IN OFFICE

Vacancies in office during the Medical Staff year, except for the Chief of Staff, shall be filled by
the Medical Executive Commiittee. If there is a vacancy in the office of the Chief of Staff, the
Chief of Staff-elect shall immediately assume the office of Chief of Staff and serve out the
unexpired term of the Chief of Staff, plus the full term as Chief of Staff he/she would have
otherwise served in the prescribed succession. He/she shall immediately request the Nominating
Committee to decide promptly upon a nominee for the office of Chief of Staff-elect. Such
nominee shall be reporied to the Medical Executive Committee and to the Medical Staff. A
special election to fill the position shall occur at the next regular staff meeting.

If there is a vacancy in the office of Chief of Staff-elect, the Nominating Committee shall promptly
report a nominee for the office of Chief of Staff-elect to the Medical Executive Committee and the
Medical Staff. A special election to fill the position shall occur at the next regular staff meeting.
At that time nominations from the floor shall be recognized as outiined in Section 8.3(d).

DUTIES OF OFFICERS
8.6-1 CHIEF OF STAFF (PRESIDENT)

The Chief of Staff shail serve as chief officer of the Medical Staff. The duties of the Chief
of Staff shail include but not be limited to:

(a) Enforcing the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, implementing
sanctions where indicated, and promoting compliance with procedural safeguards
where corrective action has been requested or initiated.

(b} Calling, presiding at, and being responsible for the agenda of all meetings of the
Medical Staff.

(c) Serving as ehairmanchairperson of the Medical Executive Committee.

(d) Serving as ex-officio member of all staff committees without vote unless his or her
membership in a particular committee is required by these Bylaws.

{e) Interacting with the Chief Executive Officer and the Governing Body in all matters
of mutual concern within the Hospital.

{f) Appointing committee members for all standing and special Medical Staff, liaison,
or multi-disciplinary committees, except where otherwise provided by these Bylaws
and, except where otherwise indicated, designated the chairmanchairperson of
these committees.

(9) Representing the view and policies of the Medical Staff to the Governing Body and
to the Chief Executive Officer.

(h) Being a spokesman for the Medical Staff in external professional and public
relations.

February-2047August 2018
Page 45 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

"



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

8.7

8.8

(i) Performing such other functions as may be assigned fo him or her by these
Bylaws, the Medical Staff, or by the Medical Executive Committee

) Serving on liaison committees with the Governing Body and Administration, as well
as outside licensing or accreditation agencies.

(k) Attending all meetings of the Governing Body.

( Relieving any staff member, which he has appointed to a committee position for
any reason.

8.6-2 CHIEF OF STAFF-ELECT (VICE PRESIDENT)

The Chief of Staff-Elect shall assume all duties and authority of the Chief of Staff in the
absence of the Chief of Staff. The Chief of Staff-Elect shall be a member of the Medical
Executive Committee and the Credentials Committee and shall perform such other duties
as the Chief of Staff may assign or as may be delegated by these Bylaws, or by the
Medical Executive Committee.

8.6-3 IMMEDIATE PAST CHIEF OF STAFF (TREASURER)

The immediate past Chief of Staff shall automatically become the Treasurer of the Medical
Staff. He shall be a member of the Medical Executive Committee and chair of the
Credentials Committee. He shall collect all dues and assessments from members and will
send notices to members in arrears. He shall make all payments and in general manage
the fiscal affairs of the Medical Staff.

8.6-4 PAST CHIEF OF STAFF (SECRETARY)

The Secretary shali attend all meetings of the Medical Staff and shall keep the minutes.
He shall be custodian of all records and papers belonging to the Medica! Staff. He shall
keep a correct list of all members and record their aitendance at meetings. At the end of
each year he shall make certain that all amendments to the Bylaws and Rules and
Regulations that have been made during the year were added to the Bylaws and Rules
and Regulations. The Secretary shall be a member of the Medical Executive Committee
of the Medical Staff and shall act as its recorder. He/She shall be a member of the
Credentials Committee.

COMPENSATION OF MEDICAL STAFF

Medical Staff officers shall be compensated for their work spent representing and leading the
Medical Staff. Such compensation shall come from the Medical Staff treasury, for which the
Medical Staff has sole responsibility. The payment to individual physicians shall be in the amount
determined by the Medical Executive Committee. Payment to each physician under this provision
shall be contingent upon each physician's proper performance of those duties, and the evaluation
and determination of the quality of that performance is in the sole determination of the Medical
Executive Commitiee.

RECALL OF OFFICERS
8.8-1 INITIATION OF RECALL ACTION

Febriary-2047August 2018
Page 46 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

72



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

8.8-2

Action for recall of an officer may be instituted by the Medical Executive Committee or
may be initiated by petition signed by at least one third (1/3) of the practitioners of the
Active Medical Staff, for valid cause, including but not limited to gross neglect or
misfeasance in office, or serious acts of moral turpitude. Recall shall be considered in a
special meeting called for that purpose, held within thirty (30) days subsequent to the
receipt of such a petition. Recall may be effected by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the Active
Medical Staff who actually cast votes at the special meeting in person or by mail bailot
received prior o the meeting. Such votes shall be by secret written ballot. The meeting
shall have a quorum,

REPLACEMENT OF OFFICER

If a petition for recall is submitted to the Chief of Staff, he shall request the Nominating
Committee to have ready a name to be nominated as replacement in the event of a
successful recall action. Election of the replacement officer shall take place at the recall
meeting and will be held in conformance with Article(s) 8.2 and 8.3.

February2047Auqust 2018
Page 47 of 36

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

73



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE IX: CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS AND DIVISIONS
9.1 ORGANIZATION OF CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS AND DIVISIONS

The Medical Staff shall be organized into clinical departments. Each department shall be
organized as a separate component of the Medical Staff and shall have a ehairmanchairperson
selected and entrusted with the authority, duties and responsibilities specified in Section 9.6. A
department may be further divided, as appropriate, into divisions which shall be directly
responsible to the department within which it functions, and which shall have a division chief
selected and entrusted with the authority, duties and responsibilities specified in Section 9.7.
When appropriate, the Medical Executive Committee may recommend to the Medical Staff the
creation, elimination, modification, or combination of departments or divisions. Departments and
Divisions shall meet at least annually and as requested by the Department ChairmanChairperson
or the Division Chief.

9.2 CURRENT DEPARTMENTS AND DIVISIONS
The current departments and divisions are:
(a) Department of Anesthesiology
(b) Department of Family Medicine
(c) Department of Emergency Medicine
(d) Department of Medicine

(1) Cardiology Division

{4 Asashoentorolegy-Rivisiar
interpal-Medicine Division
a. Allergy & Immunology
b. Dermatology
C. Endocrinology
Gastroenterology
e. Infectious Disease
Internal Medicine
Q. Nephrology
h. Neurology
Oncology
i. Physiatry (Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation)
k. Pulmonary
Psychiatry
= Rheumatology
5+ Peychiatne Divicion
H——Rulmonsan Division

Febroary-204FAyqust 2018
Page 48 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

74



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

- p g
(e) Department of Obstetrics-Gynecology

{f) Department of Pathology
(9) Department of Pediatrics
4)] Neonatology Division
(h) Department of Radiology
(i) Department of Surgery
(1) General and Vascular Surgery Division

a. General Surgery
b. Cardiothoracic Surgery-Division

c. Vascular Surgery

(2) Subspecialty Surgery Division

a. Neurosurgery
b. Plastic-and-Reconstrustive-SurgersyOphthalmology
Orthopedic Surgery
Otolaryngology, Head and Neck Surgery
e. Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery and Dentistry
f. Podiatric Surgery
Urology
3 N Divisi
4 Ool loav-Diviei
5 . oS Divisi
7 | Sivici

9.3  ASSIGNMENT OF DEPARTMENTS AND DIVISIONS

Each member shall be assigned membership in one department, and to a division, if any and if
applicable, within such department, but also may be granted membership and/or clinical
privileges in other departments or divisions consistent with practice and privileges granted.

9.4  FUNCTIONS OF DEPARTMENTS
The general functions of each department shall include:

(a) Conducting timely patient care reviews for the purpose of analyzing and evaluating
the quality and appropriateness of care and treatment provided to patients within

Febriane2047August 201
Page 49 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

75



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

(k)

(1)

the department. The department shall routinely collect information about important
aspects of patient care provided in the department, periodically and timely access
this information, and develop objective criteria for use in evaluating patient care.
Patient care reviews shall include all clinical work performed under the jurisdiction
of the department, regardless of whether the member whose work is subject to
such review is a member of that department.

Recommending to the Medical Executive Committee guidelines for the granting of
clinical privileges and the performance of specified services within the department.

Conducting ongoing professional practice evaluations, and making appropriate
recommendations regarding the gualifications of applicants seeking appointment
or reappointment and clinical privileges within that department.

Conducting, participating in and making recommendations regarding continuing
education programs pertinent to departmental clinical practice.

Reviewing and evaluating departmental adherence to: (1) Medical Staff policies
and procedures; (2) sound principles of clinical practice.

Coordinating patient care provided by the department's members with nursing and
ancillary patient care services.

Submitting timely minutes to the Quality—Assurance/RPerdormance
lmprovement/Rationt-SafetyMedical Quality Peer Review Committee and Medical
Executive Committees concerning: (1) the department's review and evaluation
activities, action taken thereon, and the results of such action; and (2)
recommendations for maintaining and improving the quality of care provided in the
department and Hospital.

Meeting for the purpose of considering patient care review findings and the results
of the department's other review and evaluation activities, as well as reports on
other department and staff functions. For departments with more than one
division, the division chiefs shall meet as often as necessary, with the department
chairmanchairperson.

Establishing such committees or other mechanisms as may be necessary or
appropriate to perform departmental functions, including proctoring.

Taking appropriate action when important problems in patient care and clinical
performance or opportunities to improve care are identified.

Accounting to the Medical Executive Committee for all professional and Medical
Staff administrative activities within the depariment.

Formulating recommendations for departmental Rules and Regulations reasonably
necessary for the proper discharge of its responsibilities. No such
recommendations shall become effective until approved by the Medical Executive
Committee and the Governing Body. No such recommendations may be
submitted to the Medical Executive Committee unless they have received the
favorable votes of a majority of the voters eligible to vote on the matter.

February2047Auqust 2018
Page 50 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

76



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

9.5

0.6

(m)  Assessing and recommending to the relevant hospital authority off-site sources for
needed patient care, treatment, and services not provided by the department or
the organization.

(n) Evaluation of the accuracy, timeliness and completion of medical records.
FUNCTIONS OF DIVISIONS

Subject to approval of the Medical Executive Committee, each division shall perform the functions
assigned to it by the department ehairmanchairperson. Such functions may include, without
limitation, retrospective patient care reviews, evaluation of patient care practices, evaluation of
the accuracy, timeliness and completion of medical records, credentials review, and privileges
delineation, and continuing education programs. The division shall also formulate
recommendations for divisional Rules and Regulations reasonably necessary for the proper
discharge of the functions assigned to it by the department ehairmanchairperson. No such rule or
regulation shall become effective until approved by the appropriate department chair (or, by
majority vote, the department chair may elect to require voting on proposed division rules and
regulations by all eligible members of the applicable department), the Medical Executive
Committee and the Governing Body. To be considered, any such recommendation must receive
the favorable votes of a majority of the voters eligible to vote on the matter. The division shall
meet at least annually and as requested by the Division Chief and shall transmit reports to the
department chair and the Quality-AssuranceiRedormance—lmprovementMedical Quality Peer

Review Committee and Medical Executive Committees on the conduct of its assigned functions.

DEPARTMENT CHAIR
9.6-1 QUALIFICATIONS

Each department shall have a ehaimmanchairperson and, at the discretion of each
department, a vice-ehairmanchairperson who shall be members of the Active Medical
Staff in good standing and shall be qualified by experience and demonstrated ability in at
least once of the clinical areas covered by the department. Department chairs must be
licensed by the California Medical Board and be certified by an appropriate specialty
board or must demonstrate comparable competence.

9.6-2 SELECTION

Department chairmenchairperson and vice-ehairmenchairperson shall be elected every
year by those members of the department who are eligible to vote for general officers of
the Medical Staff. Elections shall be held at the department meetings {or by mail ballot).
Vacancies due to any reason shall be filled for the unexpired term through special election
by the respective department with such mechanisms as that department may adopt.

9.6-3 TERM OF OFFICE

Each department ehairmanchairperson and vice-shaimmanchairperson shall serve a two
(2) year term which coincides with the Medical Staff year unless they shall sooner resign,
be removed from office, or lose their Medical Staff membership or clinical privileges in that
department. Depariment officers shall be eligible to succeed themselves.

9.6-4 REMOVAL

After election, removal of depariment ehairmenchairperson or vice-ehairmenchairperson
from office may occur for valid cause, including, but not limited to, gross neglect or

Febraary2047Auqust 2018
Page 51 of 96

DOCS 11656%-000013/2322271.2

77



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
misfeasance in office, or serious acts of moral turpitude by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the
Medical Executive Committee and a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the department members
eligible to vote on departmental matters who cast votes.

9.6-5 DUTIES

Each ehairmanchairperson shall have the following authority, duties and responsibilities,
and the vice-chalrmanchairperson, in the absence of the ehaimmanchairperson, shall
assume all of the duties and otherwise perform such duties as may be assigned to him:

{(a) Acting as presiding officer at department meetings.

(b) Report to the QualityAssurance/Redormance—lmprovement/
GommitteeMedical Quality Peer Review Committee, the Medical Executive
Committee, and the Chief of Staff regarding all professional and administrative
activities within the department.

{c) Being responsible for the clinically related activities of the department.

Being responsible for the oversight of the OPPE Process within the Department for
all members with Clinical Privileges.

Generally and continuously assess, with the focus on improvement of, the quality
of patient care and professional performance rendered by members with clinical
privileges in the department through a planned and systematic process; maintain
the quality control programs, as appropriate, which includes overseeing and
maintaining the effective conduct of the patient care, evaluation, and monitoring
functions delegated to the department by the Medical Executive Committee in
coordination and integration with organization-wide quality assessment and
improvement activities.

Continuously surveilling the professional performance of all individuals in the
department that have delineated clinical privileges.

Develop and implement departmental programs for timely and effective
retrospective patient care review, on-going monitoring of practice, credentials
review and privileges delineation, medical education, utilization review, and quality
assessment, improvement, and all other clinically related activities of the
department.

= Be a member of the Medical Executive Committee, and give guidance on the
overall medical policies of the Medical Staff and Hospital and make specific
recommendations and suggestions regarding his or her depariment.

H Transmit to the Credentials Committee the department's recommendations
concerning practitioner criteria for clinical privileges, proctoring of specified
services, and corrective action, with respect to persons with clinical privileges in
his or her department.

Endeavor to enforce the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and
departmental policies within his or her department.

4 Implement within his or her department appropriate actions taken by the Medical
Executive Committee,

Eebruarys20+7August 2018
Page 52 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

78



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medica! Staff Bylaws

#al) Participate in every phase of administration of the department with activities
including:

(1) Recommending a sufficient number of qualified and competent persons to
provide quality care and treatment of patients;

{2) Recommending the appropriate services to be provided by the department;

(3) Recommending adequate space, supplies, and other resources needed by
the department;

(4) Cooperating with the nursing service and administration in evaluating
personnel matters of qualifications and the competence of individuals who
are not licensed independent practitioners and who provide patient care,
treatment, and services;

(5) Providing input regarding supplies, special regulations, standing orders,
and techniques to be employed.

Assist in the preparation of such annual reports, including budgetary planning,
pertaining to his department as may be required by the Medical Executive
Committee.

Assess and recommend to the Governing Body external sources for needed
patient care, treatment, and services not provided by the department or the
hospital;

Integrate the department or service into the primary functions of the hospital, and
coordinate and integrate interdepartmental and intradepartmental services;

Develop and implement departmental policies and procedures that guide and
support the provision of care, treatment, and services in the department;

Provide orientation and continuing education of applicable persons in the
department or service;

Recommend delineated clinical privileges for each member of the department; and

Perform such other duties commensurate with the office as may from time to time
be reasonably requested by the Chief of Staff or the Medical Executive Committee.

9.6-6 COMPENSATION OF DEPARTMENT CHAIRS

Department Chairs shall be compensated for their work spent representing and leading
the Medical Staff. Such compensation shall come from the Medical Staff treasury, for
which the Medical Staff has sole responsibility. The payment to individual physicians shall
be in the amount determined by the Medical Executive Committee. Payment to each
physician shall be contingent upon each physician's proper performance of those duties,
and the evaluation and determination of the quality of that performance is in the sole
province of the Medical Executive Committee.

9.7  DIVISION CHIEFS

Fabruary-2047August 201
Page 53 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

79



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

9.7-1

9.7-2

9.7-3

9.7-4

9.7-56

QUALIFICATIONS

Each division shall have a chief who shall be a member of the active Medical Staff_in
good standing, and a member of the division which he or she is to head, and shall be
qualified by training, experience, and demonstrated current ability in the clinical area
covered by the division.

SELECTIONS

Each division chief shall be elected by a majority vote of the members of the division. Ifa
majority fails to be reached, a division chief shall be selected by the department
chairmanchairperson. If there is a vacancy due to any reason, the department
chairmanchairperson shall designate a new chief, or call a special election.

TERM OF OFFICE

Each division chief shall serve a {2) two-year term that coincides with the Medical Staff
year or until his or her successor is chosen, unless he or she shall sooner resign or be
removed from office or lose Medical Staff membership or clinical privileges in that division.
Division chiefs shall be eligible to succeed themselves.

REMOVAL

After election, a division chief may be removed by the department ehairmanchairperson,
for valid cause, including, but not limited to, gross neglect or misfeasance in office, or
serious acts of moral turpitude with ratification by the Medical Executive Committee.
DUTIES

Each division chief shall:

{(a) Act as presiding officer at division meetings.

{b) Assist in the development and implementation, in cooperation with the department
chairmanchairperson, of programs to carry out the quality review, and evaluation
and proctoring functions assigned to the division.

(c) Evaluate the clinical work performed in the division.

Being responsible for the oversight of the OPPE Process within the Department for
all members with Clinical Privileges.

Conduct investigations and submit reports and recommendations to the
department shalrmanchairperson regarding the clinical privileges to be exercised
within his division by members of or applicants to the Medical Staff.

3’| _Perform such other duties commensurate with the office as may be delegated by
the department ehairmmanchairperson, including, but not limited to, designating
individuals to serve as Emergency Department call panels, evaluating and making
recommendations regarding requests for ciinical privileges including temporary
privileges, and determining satisfactory completion of proctoring requirements.

9.8 MEMBER-AT-LARGE, JOB DESCRIPTION

Fabroary204FAuqust 2018
Page 54 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

80



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
QUALIFICATIONS
Member-at-Large will be a member of the Active Medical Staff, meet all requirements
for medical staff membership and be a member in good standing.

SELECTIONS
Each Member-At-Large will be elected by a majority vote of the medical staff
members. If there is a vacancy due to any reason, the MEC shali designate a new
member-at-large to serve the remaining term, or call a special election.

TERM OF QFFICE
Each Member- At-Large shall serve a emetwg-year term that coincides with the
Medical Staff year or until his or her successor is chosen, unless he or she shall
sooner resign or be removed from office or lose Medical Staff membership or clinical
privileges.

REMOVAL
After election, a Member-At-Large may be removed by the Chief of Staff, for valid
cause, including, but not limited to, gross neglect or misfeasance in office, or serious
acts of moral turpitude with ratification by the Medical Executive Committee.

DUTIES
Each Member-At Large shall:
(a) Attend the Medical Executive Committee Meetings
(b) Perform such other duties as may be delegated by the Chief of Staff/MEC

February2017Auqust 2018
Page 55 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

81



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE X: COMMITTEES

10.1

10.2

10.3

DESIGNATION

The committees described in this Article shall be the standing committees of the Medical Staff.
Special or ad hoc committees may be created by the Medical Executive Committee as need to
perform specified tasks. The ehairnanchairperson and members of all committees shall be the
only voting members thereof (ref. Section 11.2-2(b). The ehaimmanchairperson and members of
each committee shall be appointed by and may be removed by the Chief of Staff. Medical Staff
committees shall be responsible to the Medical Executive Committee. Committees shall meet as
specified herein or at more or less frequent intervals, if so directed by the Medical Executive
Committee.

GENERAL PROVISIONS
10.2-1 TERM OF COMMITTEE

Unless otherwise specified, committee members shall be appointed for a term of one
year and shall serve until the end of this period or until the member's successor is
appointed, unless the member shall sconer resign or be removed from the committee.
Committee members may serve consecutive terms.

10.2-2 REMOVAL

If a member of a committee ceases to be a member in good standing of the Medical Staff,
or loses employment or a contract relationship with the Hospital, suffers a loss or
significant limitation of practice privileges, or if there is valid cause, including but not
limited to, gross neglect or misfeasance in office, or serious acts of moral turpitude, that
member may be removed by the Chief of Staff. Removal of the chairmanchairperson of a
committee against the chairmanchairperson’s wishes must be ratified by a majority vote of
the Medical Executive Committee.

10.2-3 VACANCIES

Unless otherwise specifically provided, vacancies on any committee may be filled by the
Chief of Staff or his/her designee.

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
10.3-1 COMPOSITION

The Medical Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the Medical Staff, the
department shairmanchairperson of each clinical department, and others as follows:

(a) Chief of Staff (President of the Medical Staff)
(b) Chief of Staff-elect (Vice President of the Medicail Staff)

(c) Immediate Past Chief of Staff (Treasurer, Credentials Commitiee
GhairmanChairperson)

(d) Past Chief of Staff (Secretary of the Medical Staff)

{e) GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Anesthesiology

February-2017August 2018
Page 56 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

82



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

| (] ChairmanChairperson of the Department of Emergency Medicine

| (9) GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Family Medicine

| {h) ChairmanChairperson of the Department of Radiology

| (i) GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Medicine

(il GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology
(k} GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Pathology

| {n GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Pediatrics

| (m)  GhalrmanChairperson of the Department of Surgery

(n) i Chairperson of the QARH Quality RPeer—RevieMedical Quality Peer
Revieww Committee

| (o) GChairmanChairperson of the Professional Behavior Committee

{p) Up to two Members-at-Large,

Ex-Officio members of the Medical Executive Committee, without vote, shall be as follows:
{c) Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital
(d) Chief Operating Officer
(e) Chief Nurse Executive
(N Representative of the Governing Body
Division chiefs and committee ehairmenchairperson may attend open session of the Medical

Executive Committee meetings as ex-officio members without vote. Other persons and/or staff
members may be invited to attend Medical Executive Committee meetings by the Chief of Staff.

10.3-2 DUTIES
The duties of the Medical Executive Committee as delegated by the Medical Staff are:

(a) Representing and acting on behalf of the Medical Staff in the intervals between
Medical Staff meetings within the scope of its responsibility as defined by the
Medical Staff and subject to such limitations as may be imposed by these Bylaws.

(b} Coordinating and implementing the professional and organizational activities and
policies of the Medical Staff that are not otherwise the responsibility of the
departments.

(c) Receiving and acting upon reports and recommendations of Medical Staff
departments, divisions, committees, and assigned activity groups.

| Febrsarny-20+7August 2018
Page 57 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

83



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(d)

(e)

®

(g)
(h)

(i)

@)

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

{p)

(q)

(r}

(s)

Providing liaison between the Medical Staff, the Chief Executive Officer, and the
Governing Body.

Recommending action to the Chief Executive Officer and Governing Body on
matters of a medical-administrative nature.

Establishing the structure of the Medical Staff, the mechanism for reviewing
credentials and delineating clinical privileges, establishing appropriate criteria for
cross-specialty privileges in accordance with Section 5.2-3, the organization of
quality assurance activities and mechanisms, termination of Medical Staff
membership and fair hearing procedures, as well as other matters relevant to the
operation of an organized Medical Staff.

Evaluating the medical care rendered to patients in the Hospital.

Participating in the development of Medical Staff and Hospita! policy, such as long-
range planning.

Approval of Medical Staff Self-Governance documents that supplement the Bylaws
(i.e. Rules and Regulations, standardized procedures, protocols, and policies).

Assuring that the Medical Staff is kept abreast of the accreditation program and
informed of the accreditation status of the Hospital.

Taking reasonable steps to promote ethical conduct and competent clinical
performance on the part of alf members, including the initiation and participation in
Medical Staff corrective review measures when warranted.

Reviewing the qualifications, credentials, performance and professional
competence and character of applicants and staff members and making
recommendations to the Governing Body regarding staff membership and renewal
of membership, assignments to departments, clinical privileges, and corrective
action.

Providing for the preparation of meeting programs, including continuing medical
education, either directly or through delegation to a committee or other agent.

Reporting to the Medical Staff at each general staff meeting.

Designating such special or ad hoc committees as may deemed necessary or
appropriate to assist the Medical Executive Committee in carrying out its functions
and those of the Medical Staff.

Reviewing the quality and appropriateness of services provided by contract
physicians.

Reviewing and approving the designation of the Hospital's authorized
representative for National Practitioner Data Bank purposes.

Developing and maintenance of methods for the protection and care of patients
and others in the event of internal or external disaster.

Establishing a mechanism for dispute resolution between Medical Staff members
(including limited license practitioners) involving the care of a patient.

February2847Auqust 2018
Page 58 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

84



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w)

{x)

()

@)

Affirmatively implementing, enforcing, and safeguarding the self-governance rights
of the Medical Staff to the fullest extent permitted by law, such rights of the
Medical Staff including but not limited to the following:

(1) Initiating, developing, and adopting Medical Staff bylaws, rules or
regulations, and amendments thereto, subject to approval of the hospital
governing board, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld;

(2) Selecting and removing Medical Staff officers in accordance with the
provisions of these Bylaws;

(3) Assessing and utilizing Medical Staff dues as appropriate for the purposes
of the Medical Staff;

(4) The ability to retain and be represented by independent legal counsel at
the expense of the Medical Staff;

(5) Establishing, criteria and standards for Medical Staff membership and
privileges, and for enforcing those criteria and standards;

(6) Establishing clinical criteria and standards to oversee and manage quality
assurance, utilization review and other Medical Staff activities including, but
not limited to, periodic meetings of the Medical Staff and its committees
and departments, and review and analysis of patient medical records;

4] Taking such action as appropriate to enforce Section 13.11 (Retaliation
Prohibited) of these bylaws regarding prohibition of retaliation directed
towards a member;

Taking such other steps as appropriate to meet and confer in good faith to resolve
disputes with the Governing Body, or any other person or entity, regarding any
self-governance rights of the Medical Staff.

After having met and conferred in good faith to remedy any dispute under this
section, exercising its discretion as appropriate to resolve the dispute, up to and
including resolution of the matter in the courts as permitted by law.

Reviewing the job description (e.g., qualifications, responsibilities, and reporting
relationships) of medical directorships in the hospital both to assure their adequacy
for Medical Staff purposes, and to avoid a conflict of duties between the medical
director and any Medical Staff leader;

Participating in the interview and review of candidates for position of medical
director in the hospital, and in approving or vetoing the selection of any such
candidate, with any veto being binding upon the hospital;

Reviewing the performance of the hospital's medical directors periodically and
transmitting the results of that review to the hospital board for its consideration;

Fulfilling such other duties as the Medical Staff has delegated to the Medical
Executive Committee in these bylaws.

Fobruary-2047August 2018
Page 59 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

85



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
(aa) Making recommendations to the Governing Body about the process to be used by
Medical Staff to review credentials and delineate privileges.

(bb) By action of 2/3 of the Medical Staff members present and entitled to vote, the
Medical Staff may, at a regular or special meeting at which a quorum is achieved,
remove and reassign a duty or duties delegated to the Medical Executive
Committee for a stated period of time, for a reason identified and supported by the
meeting.

The Chief of Staff may assign any of the above duties to a Subcommittee of the Medical
Executive Committee for detailed recommendation to the committee as a whole for the
Medical Executive Committee's final action.

The Medical Executive Committee is empowered to act on behalf of the organized
Medical Staff between meetings of the organized Medical Staff.

10.3-3 MEETINGS

The Medical Executive Committee shall meet as often as necessary, but at least ten {10)
times per year, and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and actions.

10.4 CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE
10.4-1 COMPOSITION

The Credentials Committee shall consist of at least four (4), and no more than six (6)
members of the Active Medical Staff. They shall comprise the three (3) most recent past
Chiefs of Staff, and the then current Chief. The Chair of this Committee may appoint up to
two additional members to the Committee. The two (2) additional members shall be
selected only from the pool of Active Medical Staff members who have previously served
as Chiefs of Staff. The committee chair shall be the Immediate Past Chief of Staff
(Treasurer of the Medical Staff}.

10.4-2 DUTIES
The Credentials Committee shall;

(a) Review and evaluate the qualifications and competence of each practitioner
applying for initial appointment and reappointment to the Medical Staff and for
clinical privileges or modification of clinical privileges. Applicants for initial
appointment may be interviewed by the Credentials Committee.

(b) Obtain and consider the recommendations of the appropriate departments
concerning appointment, reappointment, and clinical privileges.

(c) Submit required reports and information on the qualifications of each practitioner
applying for membership or particular clinical privileges including
recommendations to the Medical Executive Committee with respect to
appointment, membership category, department affiliation, clinical privileges, and
special conditions.

(d) Investigate, review, and report on matters referred by the Chief of Staff, the
Medical Executive Committee, or the Quality —Assurance/Redormance

Febraary-2047August 2018
Page 60 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

10.5

10.6

imprevementMedical Quality Peer Review Committee regarding the qualifications,
conduct, professional character, or competence of any applicant or Medical Staff
member.

(e) Submit periodic reports {o the Medical Executive Committee on its activities and
the status of pending applications for initial appointment, reappointment, and
clinical privileges.

10.4-3 MEETINGS

The Credentials Committee shall meet as often as necessary, but at least quarterly. The
committee shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and actions.

BIOETHICS COMMITTEE
10.5-1 COMPOSITION

The Bioethics Committee shall be chaired by a member of the medical staff, and shall
consist of physicians and such other staff members as the Medical Executive Committee
may deem appropriate. It may include nurses, lay representatives, social workers, clergy,
ethicists, attorneys, administrators and representatives from the Governing Body,
although a majority shall be physician members of the Medical Staff.

10.5-2 DUTIES

The Bioethics Commitiee may participate in development of guidelines for consideration
of cases having bioethical implications; development and implementation of procedures
for the review of such cases; development and/or review of institutional policies regarding
care and treatment of such cases; retrospective review of cases for the evaluation of
bioethical policies; consultation with concerned parties to facilitate communication and aid
conflict resolution; education of the Hospital staff on bioethical matters; and oversee the
development and implementation of policies related to patient rights and self-
determination.

10.5-3 MEETINGS AND REPORTING

The Bioethics Committee shall meet as often as necessary but at least quarterly and
maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and actions. The committee shall report
to the Medical Executive Commiittee.

BLOOD UTILIZATION REVIEW COMMITTEE
10.6-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of members of high blood utilization groups, including a
surgeon, anesthesiologist, internist/oncologist, obstetrician-gynecologist, and the
Transfusion Services Director. Ancillary members may include Transfusion Service
Supervisor and a QA representative. Other staff members may be appointed as the
Medical Executive Committee or its designee may deem appropriate.

10.6-2 DUTIES
Duties: To monitor blood utilization to include:

February-2047Augus| 2018
Page 61 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

87



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)
("
()

Observing transfusion and component-utilization practices

Usage, including discard of components, foliowing professional judgement &
industry best practices;

Appropriateness of use

Blood Administration Policies
Transfusion Reactions

Ability of Service to meet patient need

Compliance with Focused Practitioner Performance Review recommendations

10.6-3 MEETINGS

The commitiee shall meet at least quarterly and submit written reports to the Quality
Assurance/RerdermanceMedical Quality Peer Review Committee—tmprovement and
Medical Executive Committees.

10.7 BYLAWS COMMITTEE

10.7-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of at least two members of the Medical Staff, at least one of
whom shail be a prior Chief of Staff. Other staff members may be appointed as the
Medical Executive Committee or its designee may deem appropriate.

10.7-2 DUTIES

The duties of the Bylaws Committee shall include:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Conducting an annual review of the Medical Staff bylaws, as well as the rules and
regulations, policies and forms promulgated by the Medical Staff, its departments
and divisions;

Developing and submitting recommendations to the Medical Executive Committee
for changes in these documents as necessary to reflect or improve current Medical
Staff practices;

Receiving and evaluating for recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee
suggestions for modification of the items specified in subdivision {(a); and

Reviewing the hospital bylaws and policies for inconsistencies and conflicts with
Medical Staff documents and reporting issues and recommendations to the
Medical Executive Commitiee for its review.

10.7-3 MEETINGS

The committee shall meet as often as necessary, but at least annually, and report its
findings and activities in written form to the Medical Executive Committee.

rebraar—2047August 2018
Page 62 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

88



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

10.8 CANCER COMMITTEE

10.9

10.8-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall include a general surgeon, a medical oncologist, a diagnostic
radiologist, a radiation oncologist, a pathologist, a pain management specialist, and the
Cancer Liaison Physician. It shall also include the cancer program administrator, an
oncology nurse, a social worker/case manager, a performance improvement/quality
management professional, and the certified tumor registrar. Others may be appointed as
the Medical Executive Committee or its designee may deem appropriate, and in
conformance with the membership requirements of the American College of Surgeons'
Commission on Cancer. To assure continuity and to facilitate planning, the members
shall be appointed to serve for a period of three (3) years and may serve consecutive

10.8-2 DUTIES

The Cancer Committee shall be responsible for:

(a) Planning, initiating, implementing, evaluating, improving, and setting goals
regarding all cancer related activities within the Hospital.

(b) Scheduling and conducting multi-disciplinary educational cancer conferences, the
intent of which will be to provide consultative services in the form of a Tumor
Board.

(c) Developing and camying out a system of quality care evaluation with
documentation of its operation.

10.8-3 MEETINGS

The committee shall meet at least quarterly . Written minutes of the meetings shall be

kept and submitted to the Quality-AssuranceRedormanco-lmprovementMedical Quality

Peer Review Committee and Medical Executive Committees.

CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION COMMITTEE
10.9-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of at least five (5) members of the Medical Staff. The
members and ehairmanchairperson may be appointed by the Chief of Staff for a term of
three (3) years. Two members may be replaced annually. Other staff members may be
appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its designee may deem appropriate.

10.8-2 DUTIES

The committee shall:

(a) Submit a budget annually to the Medical Executive Commitiee for its approval,
action, and disbursement of funds.

{(b) Assist departments and divisions in planning and scheduling educational
programs.

Febroar-204+FAugust 2019
Page 63 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/232227].2

89



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

{c) Plan education programs for staff meetings and educational conferences.

(d) Approve all requests for CME credit for educational programs. Each request must
include:

(1) Demonstration of need.
(2) Statement of objectives.
{3) Assessment of improvement.

(e) Be responsible for arranging staff education programs for ftraining in
cardiopulmonary resuscitation if requested by the Medical Executive Committee.

(f) Keep attendance records and provide each member with a report of credit hours
on the member's request.

(9) Publish a monthly schedule of educational programs.
10.9-3 MEETINGS
The committee shall meet quarterly-as needed and submit written reports of its activities

to the Quality-AssurancelPedommancolmprovementMedical Quality Peer Review

Commitiee and Medical Executive Committees.

10.10 CRITICAL CARE COMMITTEE
10.10-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of at least one representative of the following specialties:
family medicine, internal medicine, infectious diseases, cardiothoracic surgery,
neurosurgery, pulmonary medicine, cardiology, general surgery, anesthesia, and
gastroenterology. The committee shall also include the pulmonary function laboratory
supervisor, the cardiac catheterization laboratory supervisor, the critical care unit head
nurse(s), the telemetry unit supervisor, and the critical care education nurse. Other staff
members may be appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its designee may
deem appropriate.

10.10-2 PURPOSE AND DUTIES
The purpose of the committee shall be to optimize care in the acute cardiac care setting.
The committee shall:
(a) Establish, review and update drug administration protocols.

(b) Establish, review and update standing treatment orders utilized in the critical
care unit.

(c) Update and streamline Code Blue carts, including the addition of new and
appropriate drugs and the deletion of old and inappropriate drugs.

(d) Establish, update, and revise Medical Staff protocols for various procedures.

February-204+FAugust 2018
Page 64 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

90



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.10-3

(e) Make recommendations concerning nursing personnel utilization, particularly as
relates to the manipulation of central lines.

) Revise and update admission and discharge criteria from the critical care unit,
and revise and update transfer criteria from the critical care unit to outsider care
facilities.

{9) Make recommendations concerning bed utilization in the critical care unit.

(h) Make recommendations concerning equipment procurement, utilization, and
procedure protocols.

(i) Mediate Medical Staff-Nursing problems.

) Perform such other duties as assigned by the Medical Executive Committee.

MEETINGS

The committee shall meet quarterly and submit written reports to the Quality

Assurance/Perdeormance-lmprovementMedical Quality Peer Review Commitiee and

Medical Executive Committees.

10.11 GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION COMMITTEE

10.11-1 COMPOSITION

The Graduate Medical Education (GME) Committee shall consist of at least
one supervising Medical Staff Member for each area where residents, medical students
and/or fellows serve in rotation. Other staff members may be appointed as the Medica!
Executive Committee or its designee may deem appropriate.

10.11-2 DUTIES

10.11-3

The duties of the GME Committee shall include:

(a)

(b)

Oversight of residents, medical students and/or fellows who rotate throughout
patient care areas per Medical Staff Policy, Supervision of Residents/
Fellows/Medical Students, 8710-513, and Supervision of Residents in Emergency
Medicine, 8710-571.

Maintenance of appropriate schedules and policies and procedures pertaining to
the residents, medical students and/or fellows.

(c) Review of quality of care provided to the patients by the residents, medical
students and/or fellows.
MEETINGS

The GME Committee shall meet at the discretion of the ChairmanaChairperson, on an as
needed basis or at least annually. The GME shall provide a report to the Medical
Executive Committee regarding the safety, quality of care, performance, supervision and
ongoing education needs of these practitioners.

Febran-2047Augus] 2018
Page 65 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

91



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.12 INFECTION CONTROL COMMITTEE

10.12-1

10.12-2

COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of at least one representative from each department of the
Medical Staff, and a representative from each of the following areas: Administration, the
nursing service, laboratory microbiology section, environmental services, central supply,
engineering, dietary, pharmacy, operating room, and the infection control practitioner.
Other staff members may be appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its
designee may deem appropriate.

DUTIES

Infections acquired in the Hospital or from the community are potential hazards for all
persons having contact with the Hospital. Effective measures must be developed to
prevent, identify, and control such infections. The Infection Control Committee shall
recommend corrective action based on records and reports of infections and infection
potentials among patients and Hospital personnel.

Basic elements of the program shall include:

{(a) Definition of nosocomial infections.

(b) A system for reporting, evaluating, and maintaining records of infection among
patients and personnel.

(c) Ongoing review of all aseptic and sanitation techniques in the Hospital.

(d) Specific written infection control policies and procedures for all services in the

Hospital.

(e) Preventive surveillance and control procedures relating to the inanimate
environment.

L} Input into the content and scope of the employee health program.

(9) Coordination with the Medical Staff on actions relative to the findings from
regular review of clinical use of antibiotics.

(h) Orientation and education of all Hospital personnel relative to infection
prevention and control.

(i) Action as required to assess the effectiveness of the infection control program.

The committee or infection control nurse, consulting with the ehairmanchairperson, may
institute measures or control measures where there is reasonably considered to be a
danger to any patient or to Hospital personnel from infectious diseases in hospitalized
patients after discussing the action with the attending staff member.

Any patient admitted to the Hospital with a diagnosis requiring isolation, as determined
by a previously approved list of isolatable diseases, will be admitted directly to
appropriate isolation. Any patient who is found to have an isolatable disease after
admission will be placed in appropriate isolation by either the attending physician or the

February-2047August 2018
Page 66 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

92



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.12-3

infection control nurse with the supervision of a physician member of the Infection
Control Committee. If there is a disagreement between the attending physician and
infection control nurse as to the level of appropriate isolation, arbitration and final
decision shall be by the ehairmanchairperson of the committee.

MEETINGS

The committee shall meet not less than quarterly, maintain a record of its proceedings
and activities, and report to the Quality-Assurance/Perormancetmprovement-Medical
Quality Peer Review Committee and Medical Executive Committees quarterly.

10.13 JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE OF THE MEDICAL STAFF

10.13-1

10.13-2

COMPOSITION

The committee shall be composed of: (a) five physician members of the active medical
staff to be appointed for terms of two years by the Medical Executive Committee (MEGC),
and who may be reappointed for additional terms; (b) two members of the Governing
Body, to be recommended by the Governing Body Chair for one year terms; and (c)
three members of hospital administration to be appointed by, and for a term determined
by, the Chief Executive Officer. The medical staff members shall include: (1) a
hospitalist, (2) one physician chosen from another hospital-based specialty, and (3) the
Chief of Staff. The immediate past Chief of Staff shall serve as an alternate physician
member.

DUTIES

The committee shall constitute a forum at which representatives drawn from the medical
staff, the Governing Body, and hospital administration shall meet and confer on any
issues that are of importance to any of the parties, to allow for open and fruitful
discussion of respective positions, and for resolution of differences.

The committee is to have wide scope, and, amongst its other activities, it:

(@) Shall assist in the development of policy;

(b) Shall consider plans for future growth, or changes in hospital organization;

{c) Is intended to facilitate open communication, particularly as it relates to actions
contemplated or taken;

(d) Shall discuss quality-of-care issues, or any matters of importance to the delivery
of patient care;

(e) Shall discuss problems that may arise among the parties;

f) Shall function as a liaison to facilitate communication on any matter among the
Governing Body, the medical staff, and administration;

(9} Shall satisfy the meet and confer requirements of California Business &
Professions Code Section 2282.5.

February-204TAugust 2018
Page 67 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

93



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.13-3

The committee shall reach its positions by a process of consensus, without the
necessity of a formal vote. However, it may elect to do so by a decision of the
committee in-toto.

MEETINGS

The commitiee shall meet as often as necessary to fulfill its responsibilities, but at least
quarterly. Any member of the committee shall have the authority to place matters on the
agenda for consideration by the committee. Any member of the committee may call for
a meeting by contacting the Secretary of the committee, who shall then convene a
meeting at the earliest opportunity of the members.

At its first meeting, and annually thereafter, the committee by consensus shall appoint a
member to serve as its Secretary, who shall (1) anchor the meetings; (2) act as the
recorder of its findings; and (3) prepare its written reports. The Secretary shall
coordinate meetings, prepare agendas when applicable, and be the committee's contact
individual for its members between meetings.

The Secretary shall prepare minutes of meetings when requested, to be later approved
by the committee at-large at its next meeting. He/she shall transmit written reports of
the committee’s activities to the MEC and the Governing Body at the direction of, and
with the content specified by, the committee.

10.14 QUALITY REVIEW COMMITTEES

10.14-1

10.14-2

COMPOSITION

With the approval of the Medical Executive Committee, Medical Staff  departments
may individually or jointly form one or more Quality Review Committees to perform all
quality assessment and improvement activities as specified in Section 9.4. Members of
a quality review committee shall be appointed from active members of the involved
department(s) by the chairperson(s) of the involved department(s), subject to the
approval of the Medical Executive Committee. Each Quality Review Committee shall be
composed of at least four members. Other staff members may be appointed as the
Medical Executive Committee or its designee may deem appropriate.  The
chalrmanchairperson of each QRC shall serve as its department's representative on the
Medical Staff—Quality -AssurancefRedormance—lmprovementQuality Peer Review

Committee.

DUTIES

In addition to performing the quality assessment and improvement function specified in Section
9.4, each Quality Review Committee shall:

10.14-3

(a) Involve department members in identifying important aspects of care, including
the indicators used to monitor care;

(b) Communicate, at least quarterly to the members of their departments, the
relevant and significant findings, conclusions, recommendations, and actions
taken by the Quality Review Committee.

MEETINGS

August 2018
Page 68 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

94



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

Quality Review Committees shall meet as often as necessary but at least quarterly. The
committee shall report to the represented department chairpersons and the Medical

Executive Committee through the Quality-Assuranse/RerormanselmprevementMedical
Quality Peer Review Committee at least quarterly.

10.15 LIBRARY COMMITTEE

10.16

10.16-1

10.15-2

10.15-3

COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of three (3) members of the Medical Staff. Other staff
members may be appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its designee may
deem appropriate.

DUTIES

The committee will identify needed library services, and act as an advocate to assure
that these programs are enacted or supported. Committee members will assist the
librarian to develop the library’s book and periodical collections, identify subject area
priorities, and provide expertise in various specialties and disciplines.

MEETINGS
The committee shall meet as needed and transmit written reports of its activities to the

ermanse—mprovementMedical Quality Peer Review Committee
and Medical Executive Committees.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

10.16-1 COMPOSITION
The Medical Executive Committee and the four most recent past chiefs of staff shall
serve as the Nominating Committee. The Immediate Past Chief of Staff shall serve as
the ehairmanchairperson of the Nominating Committee.

10.16-2 DUTIES
The committee shall nominate, from members of the active staff, a candidate for the
biennial election of the Chief of Staff-elect (Vice President) of the Medical Staff.

10.16-3 MEETINGS

The committee shall meet biennially or as needed, and report the nominees for Medical
Staff offices for announcement prior to the annual Medical Staff meeting.

10.17 OPERATING ROOM COMMITTEE

10.17-1

COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of the GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Surgery
and three other members of the Department of Surgery appointed by the Chief of Staff:
the GhairmanChairperson of the Department of Anesthesia and one other member of
the Department of Anesthesia appointed by the Chief of Staff; a member of the

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology appointed by the Chief of Staff a
£ 201
Page 69 of 86

DOCS 116569-0000)3/2322271.2

95



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.17-2

10.17-3

management representative of the Operating Room to be appointed by Administration;
and a consultant from Administration to be appointed by the Chief Executive Officer.
Other staff members may be appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its
designee may deem appropriate.

GhairmanChairpersonship of the committee shall be alternated between the Surgery
and Anesthesia Departments on alternate years. Members of the committee shall serve
for a period of two years. Each physician member shall vote with decisions of the
committee effective immediately subject to later ratification, revision, or revocation by
the Medical Executive Committee.

DUTIES

The committee shall:

(a) Conduct a periodic review of policies governing the scheduling of elective and
emergency procedures, and submit recommendations for change to the Medical
Executive Committee.

(b) Investigate and evaluate individual infractions of established policies.

(c) Function as liaison between Operating Room personnel and Medical Staff

members in operational matters such as scheduling, equipment, and other
matters affecting the proper and efficient functioning of the Operating Rooms.

MEETINGS

The committee shall meet at least every other month in addition to any meetings called
by a minimum of two committee members. Written reports shall be transmitted to the

Quality-AssurancelRerdormansoMedical Quality Peer Review Committee and Medical

Executive Committees.

10.18 PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

10.18-1

10.18-2

COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of at least five (5) members of the Medical Staff, one or
more members from (a) the pharmacy service, (b) nursing administration, (c) the Chief
Nurse Executive or representative, (d) the Infection Control Practitioner, and (e) the
Hospital Chief Executive Officer or representative. Other staff members may be
appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its designee deem appropriate.

DUTIES

(a) Be responsible for the development and surveillance of all drug utilization
policies and practices within the Hospital in order to assure optimum clinical
results and a minimum potential for hazard.

(b) Assist in the formation of broad professional policies regarding the evaluation,
appraisal,

U 201
Page 70 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

96



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.18-3

{c) Serve as an advisory group to the Hospital staff and the pharmacist on matters
pertaining to the choice of available drugs.

(d) Make recommendations concerning drugs to be stocked on nursing units and by
other services.

(e) Develop and periodically review a formulary or drug list for use in the hospital.

(f) Prevent unnecessary duplication in stocking drugs and drugs in combination
having identical amounts of the same therapeutic ingredients.

(9) Evaluate clinical data concerning new drugs or preparations requested for use in
the Hospital.

(h) Establish standards concerning the use, control, and proctoring of investigational
drugs and research in the use of recognized drugs.

1)} Review all significant untoward drug reactions.

(i) Review the appropriateness of empiric and therapeutic use of drugs.

(K) Review of antibiogram and appropriate antibiotics for the formulary.

() Responsible for the analysis of individual or aggregate patterns of drug practice.
MEETINGS

The committee shall meet at least quarterly and submit written reports of its  activities to

the Quality Assurance/Pedormanco—lmprovementMedical Quality Peer Review
Committee and Medical Executive Committees.

10.19 PHYSICIANS' WELL BEING COMMITTEE

10.19-1

10.19-2

PURPOSE

The Medical Staff recognizes its obligation to protect patients, its members, and other
persons in the hospital from harm. This Committee is designed to provide education
about member health; address prevention of physical, psychiatric, or emotional illness:
and facilitate confidential diagnosis, treatment, and rehabilitation of members who suffer
from a potentially impairing condition. The purpose of the process is to facilitate the
rehabilitation by assisting a member to retain and to regain optimal professional
functioning consistent with the protection of patients. If at any time during the diagnosis,
treatment, or rehabilitation phase of the process it is determined that a member is
unable to safely perform the privileges granted, the matter is forwarded for appropriate
corrective action. Refer to Medical Staff Policy, FTEME-TCHD Well-Being Policy, 8710-
511.

COMPOSITION

The committee will consist of at least four (4) members of the Medical Staff who are
well read and well versed in the problems of the well-being of members, Appointment
of a member to the Committee may be done only after consultation with the Chair of the

Committee. In so far as possible, members of this committee shail not serve as active
u 201
Page 71 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

97



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

participants on other peer review or quality assessment and improvement committees
while serving on this committee.

10.18-3 FUNCTIONS

The committee's functions are to:

(a)

(b)
()

(d)

{e)
()

(9)

(h)

Educate members and hospital staff about iliness and impairment recognition
issues specific fo members.

Receive self-referrals by members.

Verify reported problems suggesting member dysfunction, make assessments of
the validity of evidence, and as directed by the Well Being Committee
GhairmanChairperson, report those findings to the Medical Executive Committee
when the practitioner is providing or at risk of providing, unsafe treatment.
Receive referrals by others and maintain informant confidentiality.

Assure the protection of the public at large, as well as the impaired member.,
This will be done by making appropriate recommendations to the Medical
Executive Committee. Refer members to appropriate professional internal or
external resources for evaluation, diagnosis, and treatment of the condition or
concern.

Evaluate the credibility of a complaint, allegation, or concern.

Monitor the member and the safety of patients until the rehabilitation is complete
and periodically thereafter, if required.

Report quarterly to the Medical Executive Committee and the Governing Body
instances in which a member is providing unsafe treatment.

Initiate appropriate actions when a member fails to complete the required
program.

10.20 MEDICAL QUALITY PEER REVIEW COMMITTEE

10.20-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of a physician ehairmanchairperson, selected by the
Chief of Staff, and a member and an alternate member elected by each
department. The alternate member shall attend Medical Quality Peer Review
Committee meetings in the member's absence. All  department
chairmenchairperson, Medical Staff committee ehairmenchairperson, and the
Director of Patient Care Review will be asked to attend and participate in
committee functions when appropriate and will serve in an ad hoc capacity.

With the approval of the Chief of Staff, up to two additional physicians may be
appointed by the committee chair to promote committee priorities. The Chief of
Staff shall have the authority to remove the shaimmanchairperson and appoint a
new ehairmanchairperson prior to expiration of the one (1) year term, subject to
approval of the Medical Executive Committee.

10.20-2 DUTIES

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

Febriary-2047August 2018
Page 72 of 96

98



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

The Medical Quality Peer Review Committee shall perform the following duties:

(a) Accept responsibility and accountability for that portion of the overall
quality assurance/performance improvement program developed by the
Governing Body and Administration, which is related to the Medical Staff
including but not limited to, evaluation of the accuracy, timeliness and
completion of medical records.

(b) Recommend plans for improving and sustaining quality patient care on an
ongoing basis within the Hospital to the Medical Executive Committee for
approval. These may include mechanisms to:

(1) Evaluate opportunities for improvement in patient care and patient
safety (medical errors).

(2) Evaluate priorities for action on opportunities for improvement.

(3) Refer opportunities for improvement for assessment and for
corrective action to appropriate departments, divisions, or
committees.

(4) Evaluate the results of quality assurance, performance
improvement, safety activities, and patient satisfaction throughout
the Hospital to show measurable improvement in health outcomes,
decreases in medical errors and to ensure sustained improvements.

(5) Review and track medical errors and adverse patient events.
Causal factors related to the Medical Staff are referred per # 3.

(6) Review and evaluate the activities of subcommittees for department
and division quality review and hospital-wide quality assessment
and performance improvement activities, directly or through its
subcommittee(s).

(7) Evaluate the quality assurance/performance improvement/patient
safety activities on an annual basis to assure they are in proportion
with the scope and complexity of the Hospital's Services.

{c} Submit regular confidential reports to the Medical Executive Committee on
the quality of medical care provided and on quality review activities
conducted.

(d) Delegate specific responsibilities to and receive reports from the Quality
Assessment/Performance Improvement Committee.

10.20-3 MEETINGS

The committee shall meet as often as necessary at the call of its chairmanchairperson,
but at least ten times annually. It shall maintain a record of its proceedings and report
its activities and recommendations to the Medical Executive Committee and Governing
Body, except that routine reports to the Governing Body shall not include Focused
Practitioner Performance Review evaluations related to individual Medical Staff
members.

10.21 QUALITY ASSURANCE/PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE

Rebriar2847Auqust 2018
Page 73 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

99



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

10.21-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of the Medical Peer Review Committee physician
ehairmanchairperson with representation from medical staff, nursing, ancillary,
and administration as determined by the Medical Quality Peer Review
Committee Chair in consultation with the Chief of Staff.

10.21-2 DUTIES

The Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement (QA/Pl} Committee shall
perform the following duties:

Recommend plans for improving and sustaining quality patient care on an
ongoing basis within the Hospital to the Medical Quality Peer Review Committee
for approval. These may include mechanisms to:

1) Establish systems to identify opportunities for improvement in patient care
and patient safety (medical errors).

2) Set priorities for action on opportunities for improvement.
3) Refer opportunities for improvement.

4) Track, analyze and submit the results of quality assurance, performance
improvement, safety activities, and patient satisfaction throughout the
Hospital to show measurable improvement in health outcomes, decreases
in medical errors and to ensure sustained improvements.

5) Review adverse patient events.

8) Coordinate quality assurance/performance improvement/patient safety
activities on an annual basis to assure they are in proportion with the scope
and complexity of the Hospital's Services.

7) Accept specific responsibilities as delegated by the Medical Quality Peer
Review Committee.

8) Submit regular confidential reports to the Medical Quality Peer Review
Committee on quality review activities conducted.

10.21-3 MEETINGS
The committee shall meet as often as necessary at the call of its
ehairmanchairperson, but at least ten times annually. It shall maintain a record
of its proceedings and report its activities and recommendations to the Medical
Quality Peer Review Committee.

10.22 TISSUE COMMITTEE
10.22-1 COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of a pathologist, a radiologist, a gynecologist, 2 general
surgeon, and at least two representatives of other surgery subspecialties. Other staff
members may be appointed as the Medical Executive Committee or its designee deem
appropriate.

Febrsar-2017Augqust 2018
Page 74 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

100



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws
10.22-2

10.22-3

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
The committee shall be responsible for:

(a) Reviewing all surgical cases in which a specimen (tissue or non-tissue) is
removed, as well as all cases in which no specimen is removed.

(b) Evaluating the pre-operative and post-operative diagnosis and referring cases in
which discrepancies occur to the appropriate department for review resolution.

(c) Maintaining written evidence of tissue review findings.

(d) Referring pertinent problem cases to the Medical Executive Committee.
MEETINGS

The committee shall meet atHoast-quarterlyas needed and submit written reports to the
Quality-Assuranee/Rerformance-improvementMedical Quality Peer Review Committee

and Medical Executive Committees.

10.23 UTILIZATION REVIEW COMMITTEE

10.23-1

10.23-2

10.23-3

COMPOSITION

The committee shall consist of at least five (5) members of the Medical Staff.
DUTIES

The duties of the committee shall be to:

(a) Conduct utilization review studies designed to evaluate the appropriateness of
admissions to the Hospital, lengths of stay, discharge practices, use of medical
and Hospital services, and related factors which may contribute to the effective
utilization of services.

(b) Work toward the assurance of proper continuity of care upon discharge through,
among other things, the accumulation of appropriate data on the availability of
other suitable health care facilities and services outside the Hospital.

(c) Communicate the results of its studies and other pertinent data to the Quality
Assurance/Rerormance-improvementMedical Quality Peer Review Commitiee
and Medical Executive Committees. It shall make recommendations to these
committees for the optimum utilization of Hospital resources and facilities
commensurate with maintenance of high quality patient care.

MEETINGS

The committee shall meet at least quarterly, shail maintain a permanent record of its
findings, proceedings, and actions, and shall make a quarterly report thereof to the
i Medical Quality Peer Review Committee

and Medical Executive Committees.

10.24 INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE COMMITTEE

Februar-2047Augusl 2018

Page 75 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

101



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.24-1

10.24-2

COMPOSITION

The committee shall include as a minimum of the shairmanchairperson, the Chief Nurse
Executive or designee, the Chief Executive Officer or designee and an equal number of
physicians appointed by the Medical Executive Committee and registered nurses
appointed by the Chief Nursing Executive. Additionally, licensed or certified health
professionals who are performing functions requiring standardized procedures may be
appointed by the Chief of Staff or his/her designee.

DUTIES

The Interdisciplinary Practice Committee (IDPC) shall perform functions consistent with
the requirements of law and regulation. The IDPC shall routinely report to the
Govemning Body through the Medical Executive Committee and, in addition, shall submit
an annual report to the Governing Body and the Medical Executive Committee.

The IPC shall establish written policies and procedures for, but not limited to:

(a) Reviewing and approving standardized procedures in accordance with Section
2725 of the Business and Professions Code.

(b) Approving recommendation from Department(s) and Division(s) for adding Allied
Health Professional Categories within their respective rules and regulations.

{c) Reviewing as appropriate any clinical care provided to patients by an Allied
Health Professional to ensure competency.

(d) Intended line of approval for each recommendation of the committee.

(e) The committee shall be responsible for identifying functions and/or procedures,
which require the formation and adoption of standardized procedures under
Section 2725 of the Business and Professions Code in order for them to be
performed by Registered Nurses in the facility, and initiating the preparation of
such standardized procedures in accordance with this Section.

(f) The committee shall be responsible for recommending policies and procedures
for the granting of expanded role privileges to Registered Nurses and to
Physician Assistants, whether or not employed by the facility, and to provide for
the assessment, planning, and direction of the diagnostic and therapeutic care of
a patient in a licensed health facility.

10.24-3 MEETINGS

The IDPC shall meet at the call of the chaimmanchairperson at such intervals as the
ehairmanchairperson of the Medical Executive Committee may deem appropriate, but at
least annually.

10.25 PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR COMMITTEE

10.2541

COMPOSITION

The committee shall act as a sub-committee appointed by the Medical Executive
Committee as per the Medical Staff Professional Behavior Palicy.

Febraar—284+7Augyst 2018
Page 76 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/23222712

102



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

10.25-2 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The duties and responsibilities of the Professional Behavior Committee are defined in
Medical Staff Policy, FGM&-TCHD Professional Behavior Policy, 8710-511, and include,
but are not flimited to:

(a)

(b)

()
(d)
(e)

Reviewing all documentation and determining appropriate action(s) regarding
issues not resolved by prior interventions as defined in Professional Behavior
Policy, 8710-570;

Recommending any such appropriate action(s) to the Medical Executive
Committee;

Maintaining confidential records of recommendations, and,
Providing non-confidential feedback as appropriate.

Reporting periodically to the Medical Executive Committee.

10.25-3 MEETINGS

The committee shall meet as necessary.

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

February 2047 August 2018
Page 77 of 86

103



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE XI: MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

11.1

11.2

MEDICAL STAFF MEETINGS
11.1-1 REGULAR MEETINGS

An annual staff meeting shall be held within thirty (30) days of the end of the staff year
(the staff year ends June 30). The agenda for such meetings shall include reports of
review and evaluation of the work done in the clinical departments and the performance of
required Medical Staff functions. If the Medical Staff chooses, they may conduct regular
meetings on a more frequent basis.

11.1-2 SPECIAL MEETINGS

The Chief of Staff or the Medical Executive Committee may call a special meeting of the
Medical Staff at any time. The Chief of Staff shall cail a special meeting within fifteen (15)
days after receiving a written request for same signed by not less than one-fourth of the
members of the active staff and stating the purpose of such meeting. The Chief of Staff
shall designate the time and place of any special meeting, after consultation with the
Medical Executive Committee. Written or printed notice stating the place, day, and hour
of any special meeting of the Medical Staff shall be delivered either personally or by mail
to each member of the active staff not less than one week nor more than one month
before the day of such meeting by, or at the direction of, the Chief of Staff or other
persons authorized to call the meetings. If mailed, the notice of the meeting shall be
deemed delivered if deposited, postage prepaid, in the United States mail and addressed
to each staff member.

11.1-3 QUORUM

The presence of twenty-five (25%) percent of the total membership of the active staff at
any regular or special Medical Staff meeting shall constitute a quorum.

11.1-4 VOTING

For regular and special Medical Staff meetings, Medical Staff members entitled to vote
may do so either in person or by written proxy executed by the person and filed with the
Medical Staff Office, provided, however, that no voting member shall enter into a proxy
arrangement with any person other than another licensed physician entitled to vote.

MEETINGS OF DEPARTMENTS, DIVISIONS AND COMMITTEES

11.2-1 SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings may be called in addition to the regular meetings as provided in the
Bylaws. A special meeting of any department, division, or committee may be called by or
at the request of the ehairmanchairperson, or by one-third of the members, but not by less
than two members. Notice of such meeting shall be as provided above for the Medical
Staff meeting notices.

Fabasany-204EArqust 2018
Page 78 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

104



TRICITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

11.2-2 QUORUM
(a) Definition of a Quorum

At special meetings of the Medical Staff and at the General Medical Staff
meetings, fifty-one percent (51%) of those Active members present shali
constitute a quorum to vote on an action item. Quorum requirements for
the MEC and QAPI Committee shall require at least 51% of voting
members to vote on an action. Quorum requirement for all other medical
staff meeting shall be recognized when at least 3 voting members are
present to vote on an action item.

(b} Voting Rights

Persons serving under these Bylaws as ex officio members of a committee have
all rights and privileges of regular members except that they shall not be counted
in determining the existence of a quorum and shall have no vote.

11.2-3 MINUTES

Minutes of each regular or special meeting of a committee or department shall be
prepared and shall include a record of the attendance of members and the vote taken on
the matter. The minutes shall be signed by the presiding officer or member secretary and
copies thereof shall be submitted to the Medical Staff office and then forwarded to the
Medical Executive Committee.

11.2-4 REQUIRED ATTENDANCE

At the discretion of the ehairmanchairperson, when a member's practice or conduct is
scheduled for discussion at a regular department, division, or committee meeting, the
member may be requested to attend. If a suspected deviation from standard clinical
practice is involved, the notice shall be given at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting
and shall include the time and place of the meeting and a general indication of the issue
involved. Failure of a member to appear at any meeting, with respect to which he was
given such notice, unless excused by the Medical Executive Committee upon a showing
of good cause, shall be a basis for corrective action.

11.2-5 MANNER OF ACTION

Except as otherwise specified, the action of a majority of the members present and voting
at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action of the group. A meeting at
which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the
withdrawal of members, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the
required quorum for such meeting, or such greater number as may be specifically required
by these bylaws. Committee action may be conducted by telephone conference or other
electronic communication which shall be deemed to constitute a meeting for the matters
discussed in that telephone conference or other electronic communication. Valid action
may be taken without a meeting by a committee if it is acknowledged by a writing setting
forth the action so taken which is signed by at least a simple majority of the members
voting.

February20+#Auqust 2018
Page 79 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

105



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

11.2-6 RIGHTS OF EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS
Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, persons serving as ex-officio
members of a Committee shall have all privileges of regular members except they
shall not vote or be counted in determining a quorum.

| February-20+7August 2018
Page 80 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

106



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE Xil: CONFIDENTIALITY, IMMUNITY, AND RELEASES

121 AUTHORIZATION AND CONDITIONS

By applying for or exercising clinical privileges within this Hospital an applicant:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Authorizes representatives of the Hospital and the Medical Staff to solicit, provide,
and act upon information bearing upon, or reasonably believed to bear upon, the
applicant's professiona! ability and qualifications.

Authorizes persons and organizations to provide information concerning such
practitioner to the Medical Staff.

Agrees to be bound by the provisions of this Article and to waive all legal claims
against any representative of the Medical Staff or the Hospital who acts in
accordance with the provisions of this Article.

Acknowledges that the provisions of this Article are express conditions to an
application for Medical Staff membership, the continuation of such membership,
and to the exercise of clinical privileges at this Hospital.

12.2 CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

12.2-1 GENERAL

(a)

(b)

Records and proceedings of all Medical Staff committees have the responsibility
for evaluation and improvement of quality of care rendered in this Hospital,
including, but not limited to, meetings of the Medical Staff as a committee of the
whole, meetings of depariments and divisions, meetings of committees
established under Article X, and meetings of special or ad hoc committees created
by the Medical Executive Committee (pursuant to Section 10.1) or by departments
{(pursuant to Section 9.4 (i), and including information regarding any member or
applicant to this Medical Staff shall, to the fullest extent permitied by law, be
confidential.

The Medical Staff shall develop a “Medical Staff Focused Practitioner Performance
Review Activity Confidentiality Agreement" and require each member who is asked
to participate in Focused Practitioner Performance Review activities on behalf of
the Medica! Staff to execute such an agreement if, in the opinion of the Medical
Executive Committee, such an agreement is necessary to preserve the
confidentiality of the Medical Staff information.

12.2-2 BREACH OF CONFIDENTIALITY

Inasmuch as effective Peer Review and consideration of the qualifications of Medical Staff
members and applicants to perform specific procedures must be based on free and
candid discussions, any breach of confidentiality of the discussions or deliberations of
Medical Staff departments, divisions, or committees, except in conjunction with other
hospitals, professional society, or licensing authority, is outside appropriate standards of
conduct for this Medical Staff and will be deemed disruptive to the operations of the
Hospital.

123 IMMUNITY FROM LIABILITY

Febrianr-2047Auqust 2018
Page 81 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

107



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

12.3-1 FOR ACTION TAKEN

Each representative of the Medical Staff and Hospital shall be exempt, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, from liability to an applicant or member for damages or other relief for
any action taken or statements or recommendations made within the scope of his or her
duties as a representative of the Medical Staff or Hospital.

12.3-2 FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION

Each representative of the Medical Staff and Hospital and all third parties shall be exempt,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, from liability to an applicant or member for damages
or other relief by reason of providing information to a representative of the Medical Staff or
Hospital concerning such person who is, or has been, an applicant or member of the staff
or who did, or does, exercise clinical privileges or provide services at this Hospital.

12.3-3 LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE

The Tri-City Hospital District shall, at its expense, provide liability insurance coverage for
all acts of duly appointed officers and committee members performed in good faith in an
amount not to be less than $1,000,000.

12.4 ACTIVITIES AND INFORMATION COVERED
12.4-1 ACTIVITIES
The confidentiality and immunity provided by this article shall apply to all acts,
communications, reports, recommendations or disclosures performed or made in
connection with this or any other health care facilities or organization's activities
concerning, but not limited to:
(a) Applications for appointment, reappointment, or clinical privileges.
(b) Corrective action.
(c) Hearings and appellate reviews.
(d) Utilization reviews.
(e) Other department, or division, committee, or Medical Staff activities related to
proctoring and maintaining quality patient care and appropriate professional

conduct.

(f) Focused Practitioner Performance Review organizations, Medical Board of
California, and similar reports.

125 RELEASES

Each applicant or member shall, upon request of the Medical Staff or Hospital, execute general
and specific releases in accordance with the express provisions and general intent of this Article.
Execution of such releases shall not be deemed a prerequisite to the effectiveness of this Article.

February-2047Auqust 2018
Page 82 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

108



TRICITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

12.6

INDEMNIFICATION

The Tri-City Healthcare District shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Medica! Staff and
its individual members from and against attorneys' fees, judgments, settlements (to which the Tri-
City Healthcare District has agreed), and court-awarded costs incurred or suffered by reason of or
based upon any claim, action, special proceedings, administrative proceeding, or arbitration
brought by a third party relating or pertaining to any alleged act or failure to act within the scope
of peer review or quality assessment activities on behalf of the Tri-City Healthcare District,
including, but not limited to, service (1} as a member of or witness for a Tri-City Healthcare
District Medical Staff department, service, committee or hearing panel, (2) as 2 member of or
witness for the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of directors or any Tri-City Healthcare District
hospital task force, group, or committee, and (3) as a person providing information to any Tri-City
Healthcare District hospital or Medical Staff officer or committee for the purpose of aiding in the
evaluation of the qualifications, fitness or character of a Medical Staff member, past Medical Staff
member, or applicant with respect to any Tri-City Healthcare District medical facility or operation.
The Medical Staff or member may seek defense and indemnification for such losses and
expenses in accordance with this bylaw provision and Tri-City Healthcare District policy.
Payment of any losses or expenses as set forth herein by the Medical Staff or member is not a
condition precedent to the Tri-City Healthcare District's defense and indemnification obligations
hereunder.

The Tri-City Healthcare District’s indemnification obligation shall include payment of any part of a
judgment that is for punitive or exemplary damages if the Tri-City Healthcare District, acting in its
sole reasonable discretion and exercising independent judgment after providing the Medical Staff
member a reasonable opportunity to present relevant evidence and information on the issues,
finds the following:

(a) The judgment is based on an act or omission of the Medical Staff or member
acting within the course and scope of peer review or quality assessment activities
as defined above; and

(b) At the time of the act or omission giving rise to the liability, the Medical Staffs or
member's act or omission was in good faith, without actual malice and in the
apparent best interests of the Tri-City Healthcare District: and

(c) Payment of the claim or judgment would be in the best interests of the Tri-City
Healthcare District.

Any dispute between the Medical Staff or member and the Tri-City Healthcare District regarding
defense and indemnification under this bylaw provision and/or District policy shall be resolved by
binding arbitration pursuant to the laws of the State of California, Code of Civil Procedure § 1280
et. seq. The parties agree that the arbitrator shall interpret this bylaw provision and District policy
as a whole and not inconsistent with each other to the greatest extent possible.

ugust 201
Page 83 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

109



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE Xlll: GENERAL PROVISIONS

131

13.2

13.3

13.4

RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Medical Staff shall initiate and adopt such rules and regulations as it may deem desirable for
the proper conduct of its work and shall review every two years and revise (if necessary) its Rules
and Regulations to comply with current Medical Staff practice. Upon the request of (1) the
Medical Executive Committee, or the Chief of Staff or the bylaws committee after approval by the
Medical Executive Committee, or (2} upon timely written petition signed by at least 10% of the
members of the Medical Staff in good standing who are entitled to vote, consideration shall be
given to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of Medical Staff rules and regulations. Such action
shall be taken at a regular or special meeting of the Medical Staff, provided notice of the next
regular or special meeting at which action is to be taken included notice that a rules or regulations
change would be considered. The notice shall include the exact wording of the existing language
of the rule(s) or regulation(s), if any, and the proposed change(s) and that there be a 30-day
period for responding to submission of petitions. Following adoption such rules and regulations
shall become effective upon approval of the Governing Body, which approval shall not be
withheld unreasonably. Neither body may unilaterally amend the Ruies and Regulations.
“Temporary Rules and Regulations” may be put into place by the Medical Executive Committee
while waiting for a vote by the Medical Staff. This will allow changes to be made when
necessary, but subject to final approval by the Medical Staff.

Applicants and members of the Medical Staff shall be governed by such Rules and Regulations
as are properly initiated and adopted. If there is a conflict between Bylaws and the Rules and
Regulations, the Bylaws shall prevail. The mechanism described herein shall be the sole method
for the initiation, adoption, amendment, or repeal of the Medical Staff Rules and Regulations.
Members of the Medical Staff shail be given written notice of new adopted Rules and
Regulations.

DUES ASSESSMENTS

Reasonable dues shall be assessed members of the Medical Staff in an amount to be determined
by the Medical Executive Committee each year. The Medical Staff will use such dues as
appropriate for its purposes. Such dues shall be due and payable at the time of each member's
biennial reappointment. Application for reappointment will be considered as incomplete if dues
(or other fines or assessments) are not paid within the time frame described in Section 4.6-5 and
the member is deemed to be voluntarily resigned without the rights to a hearing as described in
Section VII. If a delinquent staff member is voluntarily resigned for non-payment of dues, he will
incur the cost and process of a new application should he desire to reinstate his membership.

CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS AND HEADINGS

The captions or headings in these Bylaws are for convenience only and are not intended to limit
or define the scope of or affect any of the substantive provisions of the Bylaws. These Bylaws
apply with equal force to both sexes wherever either term is used.

AUTHORITY TO ACT

Any member or members who act in the name of this Medical Staff without proper authority shall
be subject to such disciplinary action as the Medical Executive Committee may deem
appropriate.

February-2047August 2018
Page 84 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

110



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

13.5 DIVISION OF FEES

Any division of fees by members of the Medical Staff is forbidden and any such division of fees
shall be cause for exclusion or expulsion from the Medical Staff.

13.6 NOTICES

Except where specific notice provisions are otherwise provided in the Bylaws, any and all notices,
demands, requests required or permitted to be mailed shall be in writing properly sealed, and
shall be sent through United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid. An alternative
delivery mechanism may be used if it is reliable, as expeditious, and if evidence of its use is
obtained. Notice to the Medical Staff or officers or committees thereof shall be addressed as
following;

Name and proper title of addressee, if known or applicable
Name of Department, Division or Committee

c/o Medical Staff Manager / Chief of Staff

Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way

Oceanside, California 92056

Mailed notices to a member, applicant or other party, shall be to the addressee at the address as
it last appears in the official records of the Medical Staff or the Hospital.

13.7 DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

All nominees for election or appointment to Medical Staff offices, department chairs, or the
Medical Executive Committee shall, at least 20 days prior to the date of the election or
appointment, disclose in writing o the Medical Executive Committee those personal, professional,
or financial affiliations or relationships of which they are reasonably aware could result in a
conflict of interest with their activities or responsibilities on behalf of the Medical Staff.

13.8  NOMINATION OF MEDICAL STAFF REPRESENTATIVES

Candidates for positions as Medical Staff representatives to local, state and national Hospital
Medical Staff sections should be filled by such selection process as the Medical Staff may
determine. Nominations for such positions shall be made by the Nominating Committee.

13.9 MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS FILES
13.9-1 INSERTION OF ADVERSE INFORMATION

The following applies to actions relating to requests for insertion of adverse information
into the Medical Staff member's credentials file:

(a) As stated previously in Section 6.1-1, any person may provide information to the
Medical Staff about the conduct, performance, or competence of its members.

(b) When a request is made for insertion of adverse information into the Medical Staff
member's credentials file, the respective department chairmanchairperson, and
Chief of Staff shall review such a request.

Februarr2047August 2018
Page B5 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

m



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

{c})

(d)

After such review a decision will be made by the respective department
ehairmanchairperson and Chief of Staff to:

(1) Not insert the information;

(2) Notify the member of the adverse information by a written summary and
offer him the opportunity to rebut this assertion before it is entered into this
file; or

(3) Insert the information along with a notation that a request has been made
to the Medical Executive Committee for an investigation as outlined in
Section 6.1-2 of these Bylaws.

If adverse information is inserted into a member's file, the member shall be
promptly notified and shall have an opportunity to address the Medical Executive
Committee and submit contrary information. The Medical Executive Committee,
when so informed, may either ratify or initiate contrary actions by a majority vote.

13.9-2 REVIEW OF ADVERSE INFORMATION AT THE TIME OF REAPPRAISAL AND
REAPPOINTMENT

The following applies to the review of adverse information in the Medical Staff member's
credential's file at the time of reappraisal or reappointment.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

Prior to recommendation on reappointment, the Credentials Committee, as part of
its reappraisal function, shall review any adverse information in the credentials file
pertaining to a member.

Following this review, the Credentials Committee shall determine whether
documentation in the file warrants further action.

With respect to such adverse information, if it does not appear that an investigation
and/or adverse action on reappointment is warranted, the Credentials Committee
shall so inform the Medical Executive Committee.

However, if an investigation and/or adverse action on reappointment is warranted,
the Credentials Committee shall so inform the Medical Executive Commiitee.

No [ater than sixty (60) days following final action on reappointment, the Medical
Executive Committee shall, except as provided in (g):

(1) Initiate a request for corrective action, based on such adverse information
and on the credential's committee’s recommendation relating thereto, or

(2) Cause the substance of such adverse information to be summarized and
disclosed to the member.

The member shall have the right to respond thereto in writing, and the Medical
Executive Committee may elect to remove such adverse information on the basis
of such response,

In the event that adverse information is not utilized as the basis for a request for
corrective action, or disclosed to the member as provided herein, it shall be

Februan-2047A0qust 2018
Page 86 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

112



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

removed from the file and discarded, unless the Medical Executive Committee, by
a majority vote, determines that such information is required for continuing
evaluation of the member's:

(1) Character;

(2) Competence; or

(3) Professiona! performance.

13.8-3 CONFIDENTIALITY

The following applies to records of the Medical Staff and its committees responsible for
the evaiuation and improvement of patient care:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The records of the Medical Staff and its commitiees responsible for the evaluation
and improvement of the quality of patient care rendered in the Hospital shail be
maintained as confidential.

Access to such records shall be limited to duly appointed officers and committees
of the Medical Staff for the sole purpose of discharging Medical Staff
responsibilities and subject to the requirement that confidentiality be maintained.

Information which is disclosed to the Governing Body of the Hospital or its
appointed representatives—in order that the Governing Body may discharge its
lawful obligations and responsibilities—shall be maintained by that body as
confidential,

Information contained in the credentials file of any member may be disclosed with
the member's consent, or to any Medical Staff, professional licensing board, or as
required by law.

A Medical Staff member shall be granted access to his own credentials file, subject
to the following provisions:

{1) Timely notice of such shall be made by the member to the Chief of Staff or
his/her designee;

(2) The member may review, and receive a copy of, only those documents
provided by or addressed personally to the member. A summary of all
other information-including Focused Practitioner Performance Review
committee findings, letters of reference, proctoring reports, complaints,
etc.—shall be provided to the member in writing by the designated officer
of the Medical Staff within a reasonable period of time, as determined by
the Medical Staff. Such summary shalt disclose the substance, but not the
source, of the information summarized.

(3} The review by the member shall take place in the Medical Staff office
during norma! work hours, with an officer or designee of the Medical Staff
present.

13.9-4 MEMBERS' OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST CORRECTION/DELETION AND TO MAKE
ADDITION TO INFORMATION IN FILE

February-2047August 2018
Page 87 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

113



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

When a member has reviewed his file as provided under Section 13.8-3(e), he
may address to the Chief of Staff a written request for correction or deletion of
information in his credentials file. Such request shall include a statement of the
basis for the action requested.

The Chief of Staff shall review such a request within a reasonable time and shall
recommend to the Medical Executive Committee, after such review, whether or not
to make the correction or deletion requested. The Medical Executive Committee,
when so informed, shall either ratify or initiate action contrary fo this
recommendation by a majority vote.

The member shall be notified promptly, in writing, of the decision of the Medical
Executive Committee.

In any case, a member shall have the right to add to his own credentials file, upon
written request to the Medical Executive Commitiee, a statement responding to
any information contained in the file.

13.10 MEDICAL STAFF ROLE IN EXCLUSIVE CONTRACTING

13.10-1 In the event of a disagreement between the Medical Executive Committee and the
Hospital regarding an exclusive contract arrangement, the Medical Executive Committee
may review and make recommendations to the Governing Body regarding all quality of
care issues related to exclusive arrangements for physician and/or professional
services. Such arrangements include:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

execution of an exclusive contract in a previously open department or service;
renewal or modification of an exclusive contract in a department or service;
termination of an exclusive contract in a department or service; and

the execution, renewal, or termination of any exclusive vendor or prime vendor
contract for medical supplies or equipment.

13.10-2 The Medical Executive Committee may conduct a notice and comment hearing to
assess the quality of care issues related to such arrangement. The results of any such
hearing shall be reported to the Governing Body.

13.10-3 The Governing Body shall give great weight to the recommendations of the Medical
Executive Committee on quality of care issues; and

13.11 RETALIATION PROHIBITED

(a)

(b)

Neither the Medical Staff, its members, committees or department chairs, division
chiefs, the Governing Body, its chief administrative officer, or any other employee
or agent of the hospital or Medical Staff, may engage in any punitive or retaliatory
action against any member of the Medical Staff because that member claims a
right or privilege afforded by or seeks implementation of any provision of these
Medical Staff bylaws.

The Medical Staff recognizes and embraces that it is the public policy of the State
of California that a physician and surgeon be encouraged to advocate for

Februan2047August 2018
Page 88 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013:/2322271.2

114



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

(c)

medically appropriate health care for his or her patients. To advocate for medically
appropriate health care includes, but is not limited to, the ability of a physician to
protest a decision, policy, or practice that the physician, consistent with that
degree of learning and skill ordinarily possessed by reputable physicians practicing
according to the applicable legal standard of care, reasonably believes impairs the
physician’'s ability to provide medically appropriate health care to his or her
patients. No person, including but not limited to the Medical Staff, the hospital, its
employees, agents, directors or owners, shall retaliate against or penalize any
member for such advocacy or prohibit, restrict, or in any way discourage such
advocacy, nor shall any person prohibit, restrict, or in any way discourage a
member from communicating to a patient information in furtherance of medically
appropriate health care.

This section does not preclude corrective and/or disciplinary action as authorized
by these Medical Staff bylaws.

13.12 MEDICAL STAFF REPRESENTATION BY LEGAL COUNSEL

Upon the authorization of the Medical Staff, or of the Medical Executive Committee acting on its
behalf, the Medical Staff may retain and be represented by independent legal counsel.

Febraape2047Auqust 2018
Page 89 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

115



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

ARTICLE XIV: ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAW
14.1 PROCEDURE

Upon the request of the Bylaws Committee, the Chief of Staff, and Medical Executive Committee,
or upon timely written petition signed by at least 10% of the members of the Medical Staff in good
standing who are entitied to vote at Medical Staff meetings, consideration will be given to the
recommendation to the Governing Body regarding the adoption, amendment, or repeal of these
Bylaws. Such adoption, amendment, or repeal of the Bylaws may be acted upon following
introduction of the proposed action at a Medical Staff meeting or by mail ballot or by electronic
method the proposed action to each staff member entitled to vote at least 10 days prior to a
scheduled staff meeting. Such introduction shall include the exact wording of existing Bylaws
language, if any, and the proposed change(s).

14.2 ACTION OF BYLAW CHANGE

Discussion and vote on adoption, amendment, or repeal of Bylaws shall take place at the next
Medical Staff meeting following introduction as outline in 14.1. In this instance, a quorum of
voting members must be present for the purpose of enacting a Bylaws change. In addition, and
as an alternative method, balloting may occur electronically by the use of a verifiable e-mail sent
to the Director of the Medical Staff Office. The change shall require an affirmative majority vote of
the members voting at a meeting in person or by electronic ballot.

14.3 APPROVAL

Bylaws changes adopted by the Medical Staff shall become effective following approval by the
Govemning Body, which approval shail not be withheld unreasonably, Neither body may
unilaterally amend the Medical Staff Bylaws. If approval is withheld, the reasons for doing so
shall be specified by the Governing Body in writing, and shall be forwarded to the Chief of Staff,
the Medical Executive Committee, and the Bylaws Committee.

14.4  EXCLUSIVITY

The mechanism described herein shall be the sole method for the initiation, adoption,
amendment, or repeal of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

14.5 UPDATING BYLAWS AND RULES AND REGULATIONS

At the end of each year the staff secretary shall make certain that all amendments to the Bylaws
and Rules and Regulations, which have been made during the year, are added to the Bylaws and
Rules and Regulations. Review of the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and Regulations should
also ascertain that they do not conflict with the Governing Body's bylaws.

146 EFFECT OF THE BYLAWS
Upon adoption and approval as provided in Article XIV, in consideration of the mutual promises
and agreements contained in these bylaws, the hospital and the Medical Staff, intending to be
legally bound, agree that these bylaws constitute part of the contractual relationship existing
between the hospital and the Medical Staff members, both individually and collectively.

14.7 SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST/AFFILIATIONS
14.7-1 Successor in Interest

These bylaws, and privileges of individual members of the Medical Staff accorded under
these bylaws, will be binding upon the Medical Staff, and the Governing Body of any

Febraar2047Auqust 2018
Page 90 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

116



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bytaws
successor in interest in this hospital, except where hospital medical staffs are being
combined. In the event that the staffs are being combined, the Medical Staff shall work
together to develop new bylaws, which will govern the combined medical staffs, subject to
the approval of the hospital's Governing Body or its successor in interest. Until such time
as the new bylaws are approved, the existing bylaws of each institution will remain in
effect.

14.7-2 Affiliations

Affiliations between the hospital and other hospitals, health care systems or other entities
shall not, in and of themselves, affect these bylaws.

Febriary-2047Auqust 2018
Page 91 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

117



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
RULES AND REGULATIONS

1. Meetings of the Medical Staff shall be held annually in June, unless otherwise designated by the
Chief of Staff. There will be one additional General staff Meeting per Medical Staff year, to be
held in the month of January.

2. Autopsies shall be performed by the Hospital pathologists at the request of the attending staff

member. The following criteria identify deaths in which an autopsy may be encouraged:

(a) Deaths in which autopsy may help to explain unknown and unanficipated medical
complications to the attending physician.

(b) Deaths in which autopsy may help to allay concerns of the family and/or the public
regarding the death, and to provide reassurance to them regarding same.

(c) Unexpected or unexplained deaths occurring during or following any dental, medical, or
surgical diagnostic procedures and/or therapies.

(d) Deaths of patients who have participated in clinical trials (protocols) approved by
institutional review boards.

(e) All obstetrical deaths.

f) All pediatric deaths.

(g9) All cases of unusual death and of medical-legal and educational interest.

Securing an autopsy will be performed according to the Patient Care Services Policy Manual,
policy Autopsy, Authorization of, IV.P.4.

It is the attending physicians responsibility upon notification of death to explain to the family the
benefits and rational of an autopsy, the associated cost and offer them the opportunity to request
or deny an autopsy.

Refer to Department of Pathology Rules and Regulations for the Notification guidelines for an
autopsy.

3. Patients shall be attended by their own private practitioners, who are members of the Medical
Staff. Each attending member shall provide the name of an alternate who shall be a member of
the Medical Staff qualified to manage the care/treatment needs of the attending member's
patients. Assent of the named alternate wili be obtained by the Medical Staff office. Applicants
shall name an alternate as part of the application process. Patients requiring admission with no
attending member shall be assigned to the physician on Emergency Department call that day.
Members are not permitted to sign out to the Emergency Department.

4, Each department shall formulate its own Rules and Regulations, policies and procedures for
approval by the Medical Executive Committee.

oF All orders for treatment shall be in writing. Medical Staff Policy Medical Record Documentation
Requirements, 8710-518, sets forth in detail the standard for this regulation.

6. The Safety Officer will report at least annually, and more often as needed, to the Medical
Executive Committee regarding Mass Casualty and/or Disaster Planning. His report will include
recommended responsibilities of members of the Medical Staff. The Medical Executive
Committee will inform the members of the Medical Staff at least annually of these assignments.

7. Except in an emergency, no patient shall be admitted to the Hospital until a provisional diagnosis
or valid reason for admission has been stated. In the case of an emergency, such statement
shall be recorded by the admitting member as soon after admission as possible.

Febriary-20+7Auqust 2018
Page 92 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

118



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Medical Staff Bylaws

8. Members admitting private patients shall give such information as is necessary to assure the
protection of other patients from those who are a source of danger.

9. The Hospital shall admit patients suffering from all types of diseases except for those specifically
excluded by state and county laws relative to a general hospital not having facilities for isolation
of communicable diseases. Neuropsychiatric patients may be admitted only when proper
facilities and care may be available.

10.  AM. admissions and outpatient surgery admissions must be arranged in accordance with the
Hospital's Policies and Procedures.

11.  Patients shall be discharged only on order of the attending member or his/her designee.

12.  The attending member shall be held responsible for the preparation of a complete medical record
for each patient as defined by the medical records committee. An abbreviated form, for transient
admissions not exceeding 48 hours for minor procedures, may be used. For all other patients, a
complete medical record shall include a discharge summary, which shall be completed within two
weeks following the patient’s discharge.

13.  When the history and physical examination are not recorded on the chart before the time stated
for the operation, a scheduled operation shall be canceled.

14.  All original records are the property of the Hospital and shall not be taken away except for court
order, subpoena, or statute. In cases of readmission of a patient, all previous records shall be
available for the use of the attending member. This shall apply whether he is attended by the
same member or not. When patients request a copy of their medical records, either a copy of the
record or a pertinent summary may be provided.

15. Access to medical records for staff members in good standing for bona fide study and research
shall be done in accordance with the Hospital's HIPAA policies. Subject to the discretion of the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief of Staff, former members of the Medical Staff shall be
permitted access to information from the medical records of their patients covering all periods
during which they attended such patients in the Hospital.

16.  All surgical operations and diagnostic procedures shall be performed with informed consent
except in an emergency. The informed consent for hysterectomies and sterilization procedures
must meet specific requirements as set forth in Title 22.

17. Al operations performed shall be fully described by the operating surgeon in his operative report,
describing the technical procedures used, findings, the specimens removed, the postoperative
diagnosis, and the name of the primary surgeon and any assistants. The operative report shall
be written or dictated immediately after surgery and is to be subsequently signed by the surgeon.
If the operative report is dictated, a summary progress note must be written in the medical record
immediately after the surgery to be available for the next level of care.

18.  All tissues, foreign bodies or devices removed at operation shall be sent to the Hospital
pathologist, who shall make such examination as he may consider necessary to establish his
findings and/or arrive at a diagnosis. His authenticated report shall be made a part of the
patient's medical record.

19.  One member shall be designated as attending physician for each inpatient. The attending
physician has overall responsibility for the medical care of his patient. When clinically
appropriate, the attending physician may transfer his responsibilities to another qualified

Febriar—2B4TAuqust 2018
Page 93 of 96
DOCS 116569-000013/232227].2

119



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

20.

21.

physician member. The attending physician may also delegate specific aspects of the medical
evaluation and treatment of his patient to another member. The attending physician documents
the transfer or delegation of these responsibilities by written orders on the medical record. When
care is transferred or delegated to a member for the performance of a surgery or procedure, post-
operative care is also transferred or delegated. However, anesthesiologists may also
appropriately participate in postoperative care.

Consultations:
Consultants

(a) A consultant must be qualified to give an opinion in the field in which his opinion is sought.
The status of the consultant is determined by the Medical Staff on the basis of individual
training, experience, and competence. The consultant must be a member of the Medical
Staff or have Temporary Privileges.

(b) Essentials of a Consultation

A satisfactory consultation includes examination of the patient and medical records. An
opinion signed by the consultant must be in the medical record. When operative
procedures are involved, a consultation, except in an emergency, shall be recorded prior
to the operation.

(c) Responsibility for Requesting Consultations

The attending member is responsible for requesting consultation when indicated. It is the
duty of the Medical Staff, through its committees and departments, to make certain that
members of the staff do not fail in the matter of calling consultants when needed. The
member requesting consultation shall write his reasons for same on the order sheet or
progress notes. If the consultant is to assume management of the case, this must be so
designated on the order sheet.

(d) To assure that each patient is treated appropriately the following conditions will require a
consultation from a qualified physician who is credentialed:

1. 5150 holds
2. Drug Overdoses
3. Suicide Attempts

Around-the-clock sitters are required for patients in categories (a) through (c) above,
unless, in the opinion of the primary member of psychiatric consultant, such sitters are not

required.

4, All patients on a ventilator for more than 48 hours must have a consultation by an
intensivist or pulmonologist.

5. Hemorrhagic Strokes & Ischemic Strokes

Drugs used shall meet the standards of the Pharmacopoeia and National Formulary. New and
unofficial drugs, with the exception of drugs for bona fide clinical investigations, may not be used.
Exceptions to this rule shall be well justified and approved by the department and the Medical
Executive Committee.

Febriary-2047August 2018
Page 94 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

120



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

Rules and Regulations regarding stop orders on dangerous drugs and narcotics shall be
formulated by the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee, with the approval of the Medical
Executive Committee, and shall be found in the standing orders of the Hospital.

In the event of a Hospital death, the deceased shall be pronounced dead by the attending
practitioner or histher designee within a reasonable time. The body shall not be released until an
entry has been made and signed in the medical record of the deceased by a member of the
Medical Staff. Exceptions shall be made in those instances of incontrovertible and irreversible
terminal disease or when the patient's course has been adequately documented to within a few
hours of death. Policies with respect to release of dead bodies shall conform to local law.

The member is in complete charge of the medical care and treatment given to his patient while in
the Hospital. The Hospital has set certain guidelines and rules for the member to work within,
and these have been established by the physicians themselves to insure a good leve! of patient
care. However, the Hospital also has a responsibility to the patient, to all the doctors, and to the
Governing Body to insure that these guidelines are followed for the good of all concerned.

If a Registered Nurse has concern regarding an attending member's care or treatment of a
Hospital patient, or if an attending member cannot be located within a reasonable time, she
should notify her Nursing Supervisor or the Nursing Supervisor on duty.

After notification, the Nursing Supervisor will first discuss this with the attending member if
available, or his/her designee. She will then use her judgment as to whether the information
should go to the Director of Nursing Service and/or Executive Medical Staff, utilizing the following
order:

First; GhairmanChairperson of Department(s) involved
Second: Chief of Staff

Third: Immediate Past Chief of Staff

Fourth: Chief of Staff-elect

The Nursing Supervisor will always notify the Director of Nursing Service of her actions directly or
in writing.

Each member shall be required to attend 25 hours of CMA Category | education programs and
submit a record to the Continuing Medical Education Committee annually as determined by the
Credentials Committee.

Practitioners sixty (60) years of age or older and with at least 5 years of staff membership, or
practitioners with twenty-five (25) years of staff membership at Tri-City Medical Center, may be
exempted from the ED call with the approval of the Division Chief, Department Chair and the
Medical Executive Committee.

Respiratory therapists designated by an associate director of the Cardiopulmonary Division may
take telephone orders from staff members related to oxygen administration, inhalation therapy,
ventilator adjustments, auctioning, and chest physical therapy. Orders transmitted by phone will
be written on the patient order sheet with the respiratory therapist's signature and the printed
name of the physician as soon as practical. The charge nurse will be informed of the new order
immediately.

A member unable to practice because of physical or mental iliness will notify his department
ehairmanchairperson. Inability to practice for a period of three months will automatically resuit in
a leave of absence status as defined in Section 4.7 of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

Febriary- 2047 August 2018
Page 95 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

121



TRI-CITY HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Medical Staff Bylaws

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

Non-approved symbols and abbreviations may not be used in patient charts. The Medical
Records Department maintains the non-approved listing.

Member privileges for treating patients in the intensive care units are identical to their privileges
throughout the Hospital. Generally, these admission criteria include patients requiring monitoring,
as well as those non-monitored patients who require continuous observation and skilled,
specialized nursing care.

Daily progress notes must be written by the attending member on all acute patients in the acute
care setting. Refer to Medical Staff Policy, Medical Record Documentation Requirement Policy,
8710-518, or its successors.

An exception to the above rule will be mental health unit patients, on whom progress notes will be
written six days per week by the attending member.

When serving on the Emergency Department call roster, each member shall respond to requests
from the Emergency Department as referenced in Medical Staff Policy, Emergency Room Call:
Duties of the On-Call Physician, 8710-520. Each department/division may specifically define the
Emergency Department call for its area of specialty in its own department/division rules and
regulations.

Sedation shall be a specifically delineated privilege as moderate or deep sedation. Any and all
members of the Medical Staff shall be granted and re-granted privileges to perform sedation in
accordance with the Medical Staff Policy, Criteria for Granting Adult and Pediatric
Sedation/Analgesia Privileges Policy and Procedure, 8710-517.

Prior to either side asserting its legal rights under section 22825 of the Business and
Professional Code with respect to any dispute arising under this section, the Medical Staff and
the hospital governing board shall meet and confer in good faith to resolve the dispute.
Furthermore, if the dispute is not resolved prior to seeking court intervention, the parties will
submit the dispute to non-binding mediation, the procedure of which will be explained in
supplemental regulations.

Maximal sterile precautions will be used during insertion of Central Venous Catheters (including
Peripherally Inserted Central Catheters) or guidewire exchanges. Use aseptic technique
including the use of a cap, mask, sterile gown, sterile gloves, and a large sterile sheet.

in addition to physicians, the following persons may perform Medical Screening Exam as that
term is defined in the Medical Staff Policy Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call
Physicians, 8710-520:

(a) In the Emergency Department: by a Physician Assistant who has been determined to be
qualified and experienced and as delegated by the supervising physician.

{b) In the Labor and Delivery Unit: by a Registered Nurse who has determined to be qualified
and experienced in obstetrical nursing and who is required to follow standardized
procedures as approved by the Medical Staff.

BYLAWS: Revised Mareh-25-2047August 22, 2018
ADOPTED by the Tri-City Medical Staff on:

Date:

April 27, 2017

APPROVED by the Governing Body on:
Date: April 27, 2017

February-2047Auqust 2018
Page 96 of 96

DOCS 116569-000013/2322271.2

122



Tri-City Medical Center
Delineation of Privileges
Cardiology (Revised 1/19)

Provider Name:

Request

Privilege Actlon

MSO Use

Only

Page 1

Please check the box next to the privilege bundie(s) you wish to request. Please strike through any
procedure within your requested bundle that you do not wish to request.

: The Division of Cardiology consists of physicians who are Board
Certified in Cardiovascular disease by the American Board of Internal Medicine or are actively progressing
toward certification.
Applicants who are progressing toward Board Certification must complete formal training prior to applying for
medical staff membership in the Division of Cardiology and must become Board Certified within five (5) years of

the initial granting of medical staff membership, unless extended for good cause by the Medical Executive
Committee.

By virtue of appointment to the Medical Staff, all physicians are authorized to perform occult blood testing and
order diagnostic and therapeutic tests, services, medications, treatments (including but not limited to
respiratory therapy, physical therapy, occupational therapy) unless otherwise indicated.
A" L H
Initial Requirement: Must meet basic qualifications as outlined above.
Proctoring Requirement: A minimum of & cases proctored resulting in any combination of H&P'sand/or
Consultations.
Reappointment Criteria: Documentation of & cases within the past two years Is required.,
Admission of a Patient to Inpatient Services
Performance of a History and Physical Examination, including via telemedicine
Performance of a Cardiac Consultation, including via telemedicine

Operation of Fluoroscopy Equipment
Prerequisite Criteria: Requires Current Fluoroscopy certificate.

ALLIED HEALTH PRACTITIONER SUPERVISOR PRIVILEGES
Supervision of an approved category of Allied Health Practitioner
SEDATION/ANALGESIAPRIVILEGES:
Moderate Sedation/Analgesia
Initial/Reappointment Criteria: Per Medical Staff policy 8710-517

Deep Sedation Sedation/Analgesia
Initial/Reappointment Criteria: Per Medical Staff policy 8710-517

BASIC INVASIVE PROCEDURES:
Initial Criteria: Must meet basic qualifications as outlined above and have performed at least four (4) of
each privilege requested within the previous 24 month period Is required.
Proctoring Requirements: One(1) of each privilege requested,
Reappointment Criteria: In order to maintain this privilege bundle, competency criteria of four (4)cases
of each procedure requested within the previous 24 month period Is required.

Venous cut-down & Percutaneous Central Venous Pressure Catheters

Insertion of Temporary Transvenous Cardiac Pacemaker

Elective Cardioversion

Printed on Wednesday, January 09, 2019

123



Tri-City Medical Center
Delineation of Privileges
Cardiology (Revised 1/19)

Provider Name:

Request Privilege Action

MSO Use
Only

— Swan-Ganz Catheter Insertion & Monitoring )
CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION PROCEDURES

Initial Criteria: Must meet basic qualifications as outlined above and provide tralning and show current
competency of have performed at least three-hundred (300) cases; if more than 12 months since
completion of training, documentation of forty (40} cases within two (2) years prior to application is
required.

Proctoring Requirements: Five (5) cases

Reappointment Criteria: In order to maintain this privilege bundle, competency criteria of forty
(40)cases within the previous 24 month period Is required.

—_— RIGHT Cardiac Catheterization S
J— LEFT Cardiac Catheterization i

R Coronary Arteriography i

Proctoring: Five {5} Cases

Reappointment Criteria: [n on maintain this privilege bundle, competency criteria of Seventy five
(73} cases of which twenty {20} must be done at TCMC within the previous 24 month period

SPECIAL PROCEDURES

Initial Criteria: Must meet basic qualifications as outlined above and the specific criteria
indicated below.

Permanent Pacemaker Insertion (single/dual/biventricular chamber) and/or intra-cardiac
defibrillator (ICD) (single/dual/biventricular chamber) requires proof of completion of fellowship
training or twenty-five (25) cases.

Pericardiocentesis: Requires a Fluoroscopy Certificate

Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, excluding Atrial Fibrillation Ablation requires completion
of accredited fellowship in Clinical Cardiac Electrophysiology, Board Certification or eligibility & twenty (20)
cases within the past 12 months prior to application.

Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, including Atrial Fibrillation Ablation requires completion
of accredited fellowship in Clinical Cardiac Electrophysioclogy, Board Certification or eligibility & twenty (20)
cases within the past 12 months prior to appiication.

Transesophageal echocardiegraphy (including passing the probe) requires documentation of
training or a course.

- ~ FRaFE—Harh

Page 2 Printad on Wednesday, January 09, 2019

124



Tri-City Medical Center

Delineation of Privileges
Cardiology {Revised 1/19)

Provider Name:

Request Privilege Action
MSO Usa
QOnly

Proctoring Requirements:

Permanent Pacemakers/ICDs: two (2)

Pericardiocentesis: one (1)

Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, excluding Atrial Fibrillation Ablation: two (2)

Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, inciuding Atrial Fibrillation Ablation: two (2)

Transesophageal echocardiography: two (2)

Reappointment Criteria:

Permanent Pacemaker/ICD cases: ten (10)

Pericardiocentesis: one (1)

Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, excluding Atrial Fibrillation Ablation: Twenty (20)

Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, including Atrial Fibrillation Ablation: Twenty (20)

W-{ )

Transesophageal echocardiography: ten{10)
- Permanent Pacemaker/ICD Insertion —
A Pericardiocentesis —
e Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, excluding Atrial Fibrillation Ablation e e
ol Electrophysiologic Testing with Ablation, including Atrial Fibrillation Ablation rr
— Rotationti-Atherockamy e
pry Transesophageal echocardiography il

NON-INVASIVE PROCEDURES:

Initial Criteria: Must meet basic qualifications as outlined above and be a cardiologist with fellowship

training and is an active reading panel participant and has sufficient case volumes to fulfill reappointment

volume requirements as outlined below for each procedure requested.

Practoring Requirements:

EKG: twenty five (25)

Stress ECHO: two (2)

Thoracic ECHO: two (2)

Holter Monitor: two (2)

Treadmill: two (2)

Reappointment Criteria:

EKG: five hundred (500) or active reading panel member as attested by Division of Chief or designee,

Stress Echo: five (5) Documentation of Stress Echos performed at other facilities (including the

physician's office) will count towards this requirement.

Thoraclc Echos: two hundred (200) or active reading panel member as attested by Division of Chief or

designee.

Page 3 Printed on Wednesday, January 09, 2019

125



Tri-City Medical Center
Delineation of Privileges
Cardiology (Revised 1/19)

Provider Name:

Request

Privilege

Action

MSO Use
Only

Page 4

Holter Monitor: forty (40), of which ten (10) must be performed at TCMC or active reading panel member

as attested by Division of Chief or designee.

Treadmill: fifty (50) or active reading panel member as attested by Division of Chief or designee.

EKG

Stress Echo
Thoracic Echo
Holter Monitor

Treadmills

PERIPHERAL VASCULAR INTERVENTIONAL PROCEDURES (Refer to Medical Staff Policy # 8710-504 for ks

Initial, Proctoring, and Reappointment Criteria)

Peripheral Angiography - By selecting this privilege, you are requesting the core privileges listed immediately =l
below. If you do not want any of the core privileges below, strikethrough and initial the privilege(s) you do

not want.
Carotid
Cerebral
Extremity
Pulmonary
Thoracic

Visceral

Peripheral Intervention - By selecting this privilege, you are requesting the core privileges listed immediately =
below. If you do not want any of the core privileges below, strikethrough and initial the privilege(s) you do

not want.
Angioplasty
Drug infusion
Stent graft
Stent placement

Thrombolysis

Venography and Venous Intervention - By selecting this privilege, you are requesting the core privileges —=
listed immediately below. If you do not want any of the core privileges below, strikethrough and initial the

privilege(s) you do not want.
IVC filtar
Stent
Tissue plasminogen activator (tPA)

Venous Sampling

Printed on Wednesday, January 09, 2019

126



Provider Name:

Tri-City Medical Center
Delineation of Privileges
Cardiology (Revised 1/19)

Request

Privilege

Action

MSO Use

Only

Page 5

Venous Thrombolysis

Print Applicant Name

Applicant Signature

Date

aﬁslon/nepartment Signature {By Signing this form I agree with the granting of these privileges indicated

above.)

Date

Printed on Wednesday, January 09, 2019

127



@"‘) Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Y OU

ADMINISTRATION REVIEW CONSENT AGENDA

January 3™, 2019
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

1.

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

Administration of Vitamin K Injection and
Erythromycin Ophthalmic Qintment to
Newborns Standardized Procedure

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Cardiac Cath Lab Standardized Procedure

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

3. Care of the Newborn Standardized

Procedure

2 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Droperidol Administration, Monitoring and-or
Discontinuing Drug Standardized Procedure

DELETE

Forward to BOD for Approval

5. Identification of Newborns Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Practice Change

6. Massive Transfusion Protocol Policy Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approval
7. Pneumococcal and Influenza Vaccine .

Screening and Administration Standardized riﬁ&%r‘:;wé Forward to BOD for Approval

Procedure 9
8. Sedation/ Analgesia Used During .

Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approval
9. Stroke Code, Emergency Department .

Procedure Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approval
10. Surgical Hand Asepsis Procedure 3 Year Review, Forward to BOD for Approval

1.

Administrative Policies & Procedures

Qutsourcing Sterile Compounding Policy 206

DELETE

Forward to BOD for Approval

[1.

Food and Nutrition

Emergency Preparedness Food and Nutrition
Disaster Plan Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Mammograghy_ Women’s Center

Communication of Results Women Center
Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Completion of Diagnostic Report Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Distribution of Mammography Reporis Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

4. Film Retention, Check Out and Copying

3 Year Review,

Forward to BOD for Approval

Practice Change

Palicy Practice Change
5. Mammography Medical Outcomes Audit 3 Year Review,

Policy Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approval
6. Mammography QA Plan DIT Policy 3 Year Review, Forward to BOD for Approval

7. Scheduling of Self Referring Mammography

Patients Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

8. Screening Mammography Palicy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

9. Self Referring & Self Requesting Patients

Policy DELETE Forward to BCD for Approval
| 10. lE::.a"f(fa!’& Personnel Listing Women's Center Fi’:ra\:;;; Rgg;iv;é Forward to BOD for Approval
Page 1

128



@3’) Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

R @)1

ADMINISTRATION REVIEW CONSENT AGENDA

January 3", 2019
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Management

1. Utilization Review Process Policy

Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Pharmacy

3 Year Review,

1. Antidote Stocking Policy Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approvai
. o . . 3 Year Review,
2. Restricted Antimicrobials Policy Practice Change Forward to BOD for Approval
| Progressive Care Unit
1. High Profile Patients in Progressive Care Unit NEW Forward to BOD for Approval with
(PCU) Palicy Revisions
Radiology
1. Imaging Services General Safety
Management #128 DELETE Forward to BOD for Approval

. MRI After Hours Coverage Procedure #122

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2
3. MRI Emergency Procedures Procedure #111
4

. MRI Safety Zones Procedure #113

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

5. Oral Contrast Administration Procedure #106

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

6. Patient Interaction Procedure #126

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

7. Patient Procedure Refusal Procedure #127

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

8. Radiologists Coverage Non IR Procedure
#125

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

9. Scope of Service Procedure #121

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Rehabilitation

1. Physical Therapy Assistant Supervision Policy
613

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

Women and Newborn Services

1. Adoption Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

2. Partners in Care for WNS Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

3. Release of Minor to Other than Birth Mother
Procedure

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval

4. Surrogacy Policy

3 Year Review,
Practice Change

Forward to BOD for Approval with

Revisions

Page 2

129



=)
(G‘) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: ADMINISTRATION OF VITAMIN K INJECTION AND ERYTHROMYCIN

OPHTHALMIC OINTMENT TO NEWBORNS

POLICY:

A Function: To provide guidelines for Women’s and Newborn Services (WNS) nurses
administering Vitamin K and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to newborns.

B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: z
C. Consent;
1. The RN shall obtain verbal parental consent prior to administration of the Vitamin K- injection

and the Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to the newbom.

i. If the parent or legal guardian declines the Vitamin K- injection and Erythromycin
Ophthalmic Ointment refer to documentation guidelines. In the Medication
Administration Record (MAR) this will be documented as “refusal”.

D. Administration/Documentation:
1. The newborn's patient record

i. Refer to Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services (PCS) policy Medication
Administration.

il. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized
procedure, the Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the
electronic health record as a standardized procedure.

a. Not required if a screening process triggers the order
i Document given or “refused” in the MAR
a. If refused complete Refusal ofr Newborn Eye Prophylaxis and/or Refusal

of Vitamin K form{s), original to be kept with the patient chart and one
copy to be given to the parent or legal guardian and notify Pediatrician of
refusal(s).

PROCEDURE:
A. The RN will administer Vitamin K 1 mg IM and Erythromycin Ophthaimic Ointment to the
newborn within two hours of birth.

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS PROVIDING INTERVENTIONS:
A Current unencumbered California RN license and working in WNSWamen's-and-Children's

SepvicesiNICU-
B. Initial Evaluation: Orientation
C. Ongoing Evaluation: Annually
\'A DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through coliaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
Patlent
Care Pﬁ::;‘:::'& Department |  Nurse i id Inter- Medical Professlonal | o
Sarvices Procadures of Executive Theraneties disciplinary | Executive | Administration Affairs Dirsctors
Content c ittee Pediatrics | Committee c PGI Committee | Committes Committes
Expert omm ommittes
gf,gg- g,"?:' 5’%";}%09- 1811?02 7107, 12/09, | B/07, 12/08, B’%'”zg“’- 12/05,
JoART ‘ 05/15, 08/18 . 9/13, 05/15, 09/13, g 01/19 10M15,nfa | 8/07, 2/10;
07113, 0415, 13, 415, 09/18 o015, 1018 | 015 6/11.1015
06/18 07/18 07/18 ' 11118 0

130



Patient Care Services
Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Qintment to Newboms Standardized Procedura
Page 2 of 6

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

V. CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform the Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin
Ophthalmic Ointment to Newborns Standardized Procedure

V. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

Patient Care Services Policy: RGS-Medication Administration

Refusal of Vitamin K Form 6385-1012 English - Sample

Refusal of Vitamin K Form 6385-1014 Spanish - Sample

Refusal of Newborn Eye Prophylaxis Form 6385-1011 English - Sample
E. Refusal of Newborn Eye Prophylaxis Form 6385-1013 Spanish - Sample

P OO

131



Patient Care Services
Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointrnent to Newborns Standardized Procedure
Page 3 of 6

SAMPLE

l, have been advised and my physician,

Dr. (physician's name, printed) has recommended that my newborn receive a single
intramuscular injection of .5-1.0 milligrams of vitamin K (phylonadione) within two hours of birth for prevention of vitamin K deficiency
bleeding (Hemorrhagic Disease of the Newbom).

Hemorrhagic Disease of the Newbarn usually occurs in the first week of life, but can occur up to 3 months of age. Early warning
signs of this disease include but are not limited fo:

o skin bruising

= blood seepage from any body opening

Upon observing any such symptoms, a physician should be notified immediately.

Very minimal correlations between childhood leukemia and the use of vitamin K in infanis have been reported. If the treatment is nat
provided, the following injuries could occur:

e onsel of vitamin K deficiency bleeding (Hemorrhagic Disease of the Newborn)

e inlracranial hemorrhage

e sejzure

e death
I have read and | understand the above material My physician has informed me of the nature of this medical freatment, the risks,
benefits, and alternalives thereof, and the probable consequences of receiving and declining this ireatment. All my questions have
been answered. Despile this informafion, and the recommendation of my physician, | refuse fo allow the hospital to adminisler a
vilamin K injection to my infant. 1 also understand that no circumcision will be performed on any male infant who has not
received the vitamin K injection.

| accept full responsibility for any delrimental effect my refusal may have on my infant. 1, as an individual, and on behalf of my infant
child, hereby release, indemnify and hold harmless Tri-City Medical Center, its agenis, servants, and employees, including but not
limited to anyone involved in my care and the delivery and care of my child, for any and all liability for any injury resulting from my
refusal {o allow reatment. | have made this decision of my awn free will with full understanding and knowledge of the harm that
may result to my child as & result of my decision not to allow my child to receive a vitamin k injection.

{ understand that the physician named above and other physicians who provide services to me are not employees, servants or
agents of the hospilal but independent contractors.

! ! i AMPM
Nama: Palienl/Representalive Signature: Palient/Representative Dats Time

If signed by a person other than the patient, indicate relationship to patient

Exampies: Spouse, Periner, Lega Guardian
If patient is unable lo sign, slate reason:

{ { AMPM
Witness - TCHD Representative (print name) Signature » Firma Date « Fecha Time « Hora

INTERPRETATION (Complete if Interpretation provided)
Interpretation provided in preferred language: (O Telephonic [ VRI

Q] Face-to-face: {3 | have accurately and completely reviewed this document in patientipatient's legal representative preferred
language with: (1 Patient (7] Patient's legal representative

! { AM/PM
Interpreter iD number or Name Interpreter Signature {if present) Dale Time

(1 Patient refuses TCHD's inlerpretation services and selects as interpreler:

Name and relationship to patient
Aftix Palien! Label

(@’) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way - Oceanside « CA+ D2056

REFUSAL OF VITAMIN K FORM
HIBHIIE

{Rev ¥17) White - Medical Record  Canary - Patient

132



Patient Care Services
Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromyein Ophthalmic Ointment 1o Newborms Standardized Procedure
Page 4 of 6

SAMPLE
Fecha:
Nombre de ia madre:

Yo, , he sido aconsejada y mi médico, el Dr.Aa Dra.
(imprima/escriba en letra de molde el nombre del médico):
ha recomendado que mi recién nacido reciba una sola inyeccién intramuscular de entre 0.5 a 1.0 miligramos de vitamina K
(fitonadiona) dentro de la primera hora de haber nacido pare la prevencién del sangrado por causa de la deficiencia de vitamina
K {Enfermedad Hemorrégica de! Recién Nacido). Hay una forma oral disponible de [a vitamina K, pero no ha mostrado ser tan
efecliva y pone a la criatura en riesgo de tener un sangrado tardfo.

La Enfermedad Hemorrégica del Recién Nacido usualmente ocurre en la primera semana de vida, pero puede ocumir hasta los 3
meses de edad. Las sefiales de alerta o advertencia temprana de esta enfermedad Incluyen pero no se limitan a:

e moretones en la piel

» sangre que filtra (sale) de cualquier aberiura del cuerpo
Al observar cualquiera de estos sintomas, se le debera notificar al médico inmediatamente.

Ha sido minima la correlacién que se ha reportado entre la leucemia infantil y el uso de la vitamina K en los recién nacidos. Sino
se proparciona el tralamiento, las siguientes lesiones o dafios pueden ocurir:

¢ Inicio de sangrado por deficiencia de la vitamina K (Enfermedad Hemorrégica del Recién Nacido)

e hemorragia intracraneal

® convulsiones

e muerle

He leldo y comprendo el materialfinformacién anterior. Mi médico me ha informado acerca de la naturaleza de este tratamiento
médico, los riesgos, los beneficios y las altematives del mismo, y también acerca de las probables consecuencias de recibir y
de rehusar este tralamiento. Todas mis preguntas han sido respondidas. A pesar de esla informacién y de la recomendacién de
mi médico, rehiiso permitir al hospital administrarle una inyeccitn de vitamina K a mi criatura. Comprendo, ademés, que no
circuncisién se realizard en ningtin recién nacldo que no haya recibldo la inyeccién de vitamina K.

Acepto completa y total responsabilidad por cualquier efecto perjudicial que mi rehiiso pudiera tener en mi criatura. Yo, como
individuo, y en nombra de mi criatura, por la presenta libaro, indemnizo, y exonero a Tri-City Medical Center, a sus agenles,
sarvidores y empleados, incluyendo pero no limitdndose a cualquier persona involucrada en mi atencién médica, y en el parto

y atencion de mi cristura, de cualquier y toda responsabifidad por cualquier lesidn/dafio que resulte de mi rehtso a permitir el
tratamiento. He tomado esta decisién por mi propia voiuntad y con la completa comprensién y conocimiento del dafio a mi criatura
que podria resullar como consecuencia de mi decision de no permitir que mi criatura reciba una inyeccitn de vitamina K.

Comprendo que el médico mencionado anteriormente y otros médicos que me proparcionan servicios san contratistas
independientes y no son empleados, servidores (dependientes) o agentes del hospital.

Firma: Fecha: Hora: AM/PM
(Madre o Padre)

Si se firma por alguien més que no sea la madre o ef padre del paciente, imprima su nombre en letra de molde e indique la relacién
con el paciente:

Nombre: Relacién:
Testigo: Fecha: Hora: AM/PM
Affix Patient Label
‘@) Tri:Gty Medical Center n
4002 Vista Way » Oceanside + CA « 52058
: REFUSAL OF VITAMIN K
WM weroson caviaminak
{Rex 0114} Whits - Hospital  Yellow - Patiant

133



Patient Care Services
Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Gintment to Newboms Standardized Procedure
Page 5 of 6

SAMPLE

l have been informed by my physician,
Dr. (physician's name, printed) that California State law! requires both of my newbom

infant's eyes to be treated with efficient prophylaxis freatment approved by the California Depariment of Public Health Erythromycin is
the medication provided at Tri-City Medical Center.

The hospilal intends to comply with Califomia Stale law by administering an approved prophylactic agent fo the newbom's eye within two
hours after the infant's birth in order to prevent ophthalmia neonatorum and gonorheal ophihalmia, which most commonly result from
Sexually Transmilted Infections. Neither agent stings or otherwise initates the eyes. If any other symploms are observed, a physician
shouldbe notified immediately.

The most common side effects can last up fo 24 hours and include:
e blurred vision
o swelling, redness andfor puffiness fo the eyelids

if the treatment is nol provided, the following injuries could accur
e severe eye infection up to and including permanent impaired vision or blindness
= other systemic infection with significant complications

| have read and | undersland the above material. My physician has informed me of the nature of this medical treatment, the risks,
benefils, and alternalives thereof, and the probable consequences of receiving and declining this treatment. All my questions have
been answered. Despile this information, | refuse lo allow the hospita! to administer a prophylaclic agent to my infant's eyes.

1accept full responsibility for any detrimental eflect my refusal may have on my infant. 1, on behalf of myself and my newborn infant, hereby
release, indemnify and hold harmless Tii-City Medical Cenler, its agents, servants, and employees, including but not fimited to anyone
invelved in my care and the delivery and care of my child, for any and all liability for any injury resulting from my refusal fo aliow treatment.

| understand that by signing this document | am agreeing not to have the treatment for my infant child and lo assume full
responsibilily for the consequences for any civil or criminal action made against me as a resull of my decision not to allow my infant
child lo undergo prophylactic-efficient treatment

| understand that Ihe doclor named above and other doctors who provide services lo me are not employees, servants or agents of
the hospital but independent contractors.

— { { AMPM
Nama: Paliant/Representaive Signature; Palient/Representative Date Time

If signed by a person other than the palient, indicate relationship to patient:

Examples. Spouse, Partner, Legal Guardian
If patient is unable to sign, slate reason:

APM

/ i
Witness — TCHD Representative (ptint name) Signature » Fima Date « Fecha Time * Hora

INTERPRETATION {Complete if Interpretation provided)
interpretation provided in preferred language; [ Telephonic 3 VRI
U Face-lo-face: (1 | have accuralely and completely reviewed this document in patient/patient's legal representative preferred
language with: [0 Patient () Patient's legal representative

L { AMIPM
Intespretar 1D number or Name Inlerpretes Signature {if present) Date Time

{1 Patient refuses TCHD's interprelation services and selecis as interpreter-

Name and relationship tc pafient

1The Business and Professions Code Seclion 551 requires the Infant's eye be treated within two hours efter birth with & prophylactic-efficient treatment to prevent
ophthalmia neonatorum and gonomhaal ophthaimia.

& Affix Patient Labe)
( ) Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way « Oceanside « CA - 92056
REFUSAL OF NEWBORN
Il"llﬁ!ﬁ[!!llﬂmm EYE PROPHYLAXIS FORM
[Rav 517} White - Medical Record Canary- Pallent

134



Patient Care Servicas
Adminisiration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to Newboms Standardized Procedure

Page 6 of 6
SAMPLE
Fecha:
Nombre de la madre:
Yo, he sido informada por mi médico,
el Drfla Dra. (nombre del médico en lefra de molde) que la Ley

Estalal de California' requiere que ambos cjos de mi recién nacido sean tratados con tralamiento profilactico-eficiente aprobado
por el Departamentlo de Salud Piblica de California. Los agentes profilacticos aprobades por el Departamenio de Salud Publica de
California, incluyen (1) uno porciento de nitrato de plata en ampolietas de cera administradas sin ifrigacién con solucién salina; o (2)
pomadas oftalmicas o gotas conleniendo tetraciclina o erifromicina.

El hospital se propone cumplir con la Ley Estatal de California, administrandole un agente profitactico aprobado a los ojos del recién
nacido a menos de dos horas de haber nacido la criatura con el fin de prevenir la ofialmia neonatorum y fa gonorrea oftalmica, los
que mas comunmente resulian de fas Infecciones Sexualmente Transmitidas. Ninguno de los agentes causan ardor o irritan de
ninguna manera a los ojos. Sise observa cualquier ofra sinloma, se deberia nofificar inmediatamente a un médico.

Los mas comunes efectos secundarios pueden durar hasta 24 horas e incluyen:
s Vision borrosa
o inflamacién, enrojecimiento y ofhinchazon en los pérpadas

Si no se provee el tratamiento, los siguientes dafios podrian ocurrir _
* infeccién severa de los ojos hasta llegar e incluir impedimento permanente de a vista o ceguera
¢ otras infecciones sistémicas con significativas complicaciones

He leido y comprendo el malerial anteriormente expuesto. Mi médico me ha informado acerca de la naluraleza de esie tralamiento
médico, los riegos, los beneficios, las alternativas de los mismos, y las probables consecuencias de recibir y de rehusar esle
tratamiento. Tadas mis preguntas han sido respandidas. No obstante esta informacién, yo rehiso permitir que el hospital
administre un agente profilactico a los ojos de mi criatura.

Aceplo compleia responsabilidad por cualquier efecto detrimental (que causa dafio) que mi rehitso pueda causar en mi criatura.
Yo, en mi nombre y en nombre de mi criatura recién nacida, por este medio absuelvo, indemnizo y ibero de toda responsabilidad

a Tn-City Medical Center, a sus agentes, servidores, y empleados, incluyendo pero no limitandose a cualquier persona involucrada
en mi cuidado y en el acfo de lar a luz y en el cuidado de mi criatura, de cualquier y loda responsabilidad y obligacion por cualquier
dafio resultanle de mi rehiso a permitir el fratamiento.

Comprendo que, al firmar este documento, estoy aceptando a no tener el tralamiento para mi criatura y asumo totaf responsabilidad
de las consecuencias de cualquier accion civil o criminal hecha contra mi como resultado de mi decision de no permitir que mi
crialura se someta al fratamiento profilactico-eficiente.

Comprendo que el médico nombrado anteriormente y ofros médicos que a mi me proveen servicios no son empleados, servidores o
agenles del hospital, sino contratistas independientes.

Firma del padre {madre/fpadre) Fecha / Hora

Si ha sido firmado por ofra persona que no sea la madre o e! padre del paciente, escriba el nombre en letra de molde e indique ta
relacion o &! parentesco con el paciente:

Nombre en letra de molde " Relacién con el paciente
Testigo:

_ﬁepresentante del Hospital Fecha /Hora

!La Seccion 551 del Codigo de Negocios y Profesiones de California requiere que ef ojo dela criatura sea tratado en menos de dos horas de haber nacido
con un tratamiento profiachico-eficiente para prevenir la ofialmia neonatorum y la gonorea oftéd mica.

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 \ista Way - Oceanside - CA - 92056

REFUSAL OF NEWBORN EYE

WIMAIAR  sevoso LA pRoFILAXS OcuLAR EN
el RECIEN NACIDO

Rev 12130

Affix Petient Label

White - Medical Record  Canary - Patient

135



(@’) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CARDIAC CATH LAB PROCEDURES

l. POLICY:
A.
B Circumstances:
1.

Function: Provide care for patients who will be receiving services through the Cardiac Cath Lab.

Setting: Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Cath Lab

2, Supervision: None required.
3. Patient contraindications: None.
C. Expected Outcomes:
1. To outline personnel and duties involved in procedures in the Cath Lab.
2. To delineate steps in elective or emergent procedure in the Cath Lab.
3. To assure that any patient undergoing a cardiac procedure at TCMC will be assessed for
pre procedure risk and will be directed to the appropriate level of care.
i PROCEDURE:
A. Cardiac Catherization with Possible Percutaneous Transluminal Coronary Intervention
1. The Registered Nurse (RN) shall order the following if previous results fremare greater
than 90 days or no results are available:
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical, if available.
b. Cardiology:
| i. Perform-eElectrocardiogram (EKG). Retrieve and print any previous
EKG, if available.
c. Labs:
, i. Complete blood count (CBC)
ii. Complete Metabolic Panel {Chem 12)
iii. PT/PTT/INR
V. CKMB Lipid Panel
vi. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure.
d. Nurses Order:
i Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge Intravenous (V)
ii. intraveneus-{IV} Normal Saline {NS) at 20 mL/hour
i, Point of care (POC) blood glucose, if patient diabetic.
e. Diet:
i. Ensure nothing by mouth (NPO) prior to procedure except for small
amounts of water to take oral medications.
B.
Patient
carg Pg::;‘:::l& Nurss Division of Pharmacy & dls::?:{l:ary Madical Rrofesslional Board of
o | ocedurs | oo | Cordoony | OO | e | o | | e | Dl
03/13, 033, 03/13, 1013,
wie | owie | oogie | Qo | TR e s | oS | o | romews | YR

136



Standardized-Rrocedure-MarualPatient Care Services
Cardiac Cath Lab Procedures Standardized Procedure

Page 2 of 4
C. Elective Cardioversion:
1. The RN shall order the following, if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available:
a. Obtain previous lab & history and physical, if available.
b. Cardiology:
i. Performm-EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.
(oF Labs:
i. INR, complete metabolic panel (Chem 12), CBC
ii. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure.
d. Nurses Order:
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
i, IV NS at 20 mL/hr
ii. POC blood glucose, if patient diabetic.
e. Diet:
i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure, except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
D. Pericardiocentesis:
1. The RN shall order the following, if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available:
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical, if available.
b. Cardiology:
i. Rerferm-EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.
c. Labs:
i. cBC
ii. Complete Metabolic Panel (Chem 12)
iii. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure.,
d. Nurses Order;
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. IV NS at 20 mL/hr
iii. POC blood glucose, if patient diabetic.
e. Diet:
i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure, except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
E. Implantable Cardioverter Defibrillator Implant/Change;
1. The RN shall order the following, if needed:
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical, if available.
b. Cardiology:
i. Rerorm-EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.
C. Labs:
i. CBC
ii. Complete metabolic panel (Chem 12}

if. INR/ PT/ PTT

137



Standardized-Rrocadure-ManualPatient Care Services
Cardiac Cath Lab Procedures Standardized Procedure

Page 3 of 4
iv. BNP
V. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure.
d. Nurses Order:
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. NS at 20 mithr
e. Diet:
| i Ensure NPO after midnight, except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
| F. Permanent Pacemaker Insertion/Change:
1. The RN shall order the following, if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available:
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical, if available.
b. Cardiology:
i. Rerorm-EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.
C. Labs:
i CBC
ii. Complete metabolic panel (Chem 12)
ifi. PT/PTT/INR
iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure
d. Nurses Order:
i. Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge IV
ii. IV NS at 20 mL/hr
iii. POC blood glucose, if patient diabetic.
e. Diet:
i Ensure NPO prior to procedure, except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.
| G. Implantable Loop Device Implant/Explant:
1. The RN shall order the following, if previous results from greater than 90 days or no
results available:
a. Obtain previous lab and history and physical, if available.

b. Cardiology:
i Rerdorm-EKG. Retrieve and print any previous EKG, if available.

c. Labs:

i. CBC

ii. Complete metabolic panel (Chem 12)

iii. INR

iv. Labs may be drawn prior to procedure.
d. Nurses Order:

i Start 22, 20 or 18 gauge (V

ii. IV NS at 20 mUthr

iii. POC blood glucose, if patient diabetic.
e. Diet;

i. Ensure NPO prior to procedure, except for small amounts of water to take
oral medications.

L. REQUIREMENTS FOR REGISTERED NURSE INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Current unencumbered California RN license.
B. Current Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) certification.
C. initial Evaluation: Orientation
kD.  Ongoing Evaluation: Annually

,HEIV. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collabaration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration,

138



Standardized-Rrocedura-ManuaiPatient Care Services
Cardiac Cath Lab Precedures Standardized Procedure
Page 4 of 4

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

| A&V, CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A, All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed orientation are authorized to direct and
perform the Cath Lab Standardized Procedure.

139



2
‘Q) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: CARE OF THE NEWBORN

POLICY:
A.

Function: To define the care and immediate treatment post-delivery for the newborn:

1. -wWeighing greater than or equal to 2000 grams-that
A-2.  ils equal to and are greater than 35 6/7 weeks gestational age.
B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: Labor and Delivery (L&D}, Newborn Nursery, and Mother-Baby

2. Supervision: None required. Physician's office/answering service or well-baby line will be
notified of delivery time and date.

3. Requires that a Registered Nurse (RN) provide immediate care to administer medications,
provide nutrition and/or nutritional support, and to perform procedures, laboratory and
diagnostic tests that are considered to be routine care to the well born term or near term
newborn infant.

4, The Women and Newbom Services (WNS) RN must adhere to the policies of the institution and
must remain within the scope of practice as stated by the Nurse Practice Act of the State of
California.

PROCEDURE:
A. Newborns greater than or equal to 2000 grams and who are equal to and greater than 35 6/7

weeks gestational age shall receive:

1.

Prophylactic treatment of eyes (Erythromycin ophthalmic ointment) and medication to

normalize coagulation (Vitamin K) within 2 hours of delivery time.

a. Refer to Patient Care Services (PCS) Standardized Procedure (SP): Administration
of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to the Newbomns.

b. Exception: Parents who refuse verbal consent.

2. The newborn shall receive Hepatitis B vaccine or Hepatitis B vaccine/HBIG immunoglobulin
injection if indicated according to the mother's HBsAg status and-within-42-hours-af-delivery
tire-

a. Refer to PCS SP: Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and Hepatitis B

Immunoglobulin (HBIG) (Hyper B Sd®) to Newboms.

b. Exception: Parents who refuse verbal consent.
B. Infant nutrition:

1. Breastfeeding
a. Initiate feedings as soon as possible but no longer than 2 hours following delivery.

i. If cesarean delivery, as soon as possible (ASAP) when mother and infant
are reunited.

ii. If mother and infant are separated for longer than 3 hours, initiate breast-
pumping (even if mother going to NICU to breastfeed).

1) Refer to WNS Procedure: Infant Feedings Breast-MilkPumping:

ii. Assess and attempt to feed 8-12-ermers times within a 24 hour period
utilizing infant feeding cues as indicators-approximatel-every 2-3-hours
and-on-demand-

P(a::::t Clinical Nurse ::tr:l Dept Pharmacy & Inter- Madical Professional
Services ;rgg':::: s Executive | Collab- of Therapeutics | disciplinary | Executive I::_::‘t:; Affairs gfr:;’o':;
CEc’:‘ntent Committee Councll orative Peds. Committes Committee | Committee Committee
pert Practice
ity oses, | oomz,1m3, | 12,08, | 020, e
08112, 11113, | osusos g JLLfed ¢ g ' 10/15,03117, | 0214,
0415 | 0415 06116 gﬁig: s 315111153. nsnar,?,’: ;ns. osn1sdll1:;i17, 31%?: 01/19 a L‘%ﬂ 5-,
0 8

140



Patient Care Services

Care of the Newhomn Standardized Procedure

Page 2 of 4
iv. No breastmilk substitute (such as formula) will be given unless by a
providers order or per Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring
Standardized Procedure.
iv=1}  Alternative feeding methods are preferred per Infant Feedmgs
v. Obtain lactation consult as clinically indicated
1) Refer to WNS Policy: Infant Feedings.
2. FormulaBstile-feeding

a. If mother requests infant to be fed by a breastmilk substitute:

i. Educate on the risks and give the Risks of Formula Supplementation
education flyer.

iii. Document informed decision with patient education

fii. Call provider for an order per Infant Feedings Policy

iv. Give patient and significant other Elsevier-Clinical-Skills: Fformula
Ffeedrng Eeducatlon

C. Procedures:
1. Newborn hearing screen

a. Ensure hearing screen is ordered per WNS Policy: Hearing Screening Program:
Newborn and Infants.

2. Obtain Total Serum Bilirubin at approximately 24 hours of age or sooner if baby visually

appears to have jaundice. o

a. Notify provider of Total Serum Bilirubin at higherlevels above threshold of
initiating phototherapy per the phototherapy treatment eurvegraph.

b. Notify provider of Total Serum Bilirubin prior to discharge if he/she is not already
aware of the result and the baby will not be rounded on/seen again by a pediatrician
prior to discharge.

3. If infant Coombs positive, order CBC with manual differential, retic count, and total serum
bilirubin STAT and call provider with results.

a. Contact physician immediately upon return of test results.

4, All infants meeting criteria will have a car seat challenge performed prior to discharge as
per WNS/Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) Procedure: Car Seat Challenge Test.
5. All infants meeting criteria will have neonatal abstinence scoring performed as per

WNS/NICU Procedure: Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome, Management ofScering.

6. All infants will have pulse oximetry done after 24 hours of life or prior to discharge per PCS

SP: Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical Congenital Heart Disease (CCHD).

D. Laboratory tests:
1. Point of care glucose testing
a. Perform per PCS SP: Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring.
2. Toxicology

a. Obtain a urine specimen if mother has a positive toxicology screen, a positive
history of substance use, is suspected of substance use or with diagnosis, has had
Iess than or equa[ to three prenatal vusuts ar susplcmn of placental abruptlon

3 Cord blood screen (Dlrect Coombs and blood typlng) ASAP
4, Newborn metabolic screen prior to discharge but at least 24 hours following delivery.

141



Patient Care Services
Care of the Newborn Standardized Procedure

Page 3of 4
a. Refer to PCS Procedure: Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen.
5. Perform CBC with manual differential and blood culture on newborn between 6 - 12 hours
of age if:
a. If Mother is GBS positive, received no treatment or received a dose of antibiotics
less than 4 hours prior to delivery
i. Infant is either less than 37 weeks estimated gestational age (EGA)
ii. Infant is greater than 37 weeks EGA , but mother had a rupture of
membranes greater than 18 hours:
6. Notify provider of CBC with manual differential results if abnormal
a. Abnormal CBC for infant, at least one of the following:
i. WBC greater than 35,000 or less than 9,000
i ANC less than 1500
ii. Platelet Count less than 120,000
E. Call provider immediately for maternal/infant signs of chorioamnionitisfinfection or the following
symptoms:
1. Maternal temperature greater than or equal to 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit plus two or more
of the foilowing:
a Maternal tachycardia (greater than 100bpm)
b. Fetal tachycardia (greater than 160bpm)
c. Uterine tenderness
d. Foul smelling amniotic fiuid
e. Maternal leukocytosis (greater than 15,000 WBC)
. DOCUMENTATION:
A. Document assessment, actions and provider notification/response in electronic health
record (EHRY) as appropriate.
B. When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure, the

V.

Al.

Registered Nurse shall enter the med:catron!order mto the (EHR) as Standardized Procedure.

BC. Priorto adm:mstratlon of vaccines see PCS Policy: Vaccination Administration.
E:D. Document patlent (motherllegal guardlan) teaching in the education section of the EHR.

REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Current unencumbered California RN license working in Women's and Children's Services

>

B. Education: Register Nurse

C. Initial Evaluation: Orientation

D. Ongoing Evaluation: Annual

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.

B. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

A. All Registered Nurses in WNS who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above

are authorized to direct and perform “Care of the Newborn” Standardized Procedure.

142



Patient Cara Services
Care of the Newbomn Standardized Procedura
Page 4 of 4

VIl. RELATED DOCUMENT{(S):

PCS Policy: Vaccination Administration

PCS Procedure: Newborn Screening, Collection of Specimen

PCS Standardized Procedure: Administration of Vitamin K Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic
Ointment to Newborns

PCS Standardized Procedure: Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and Hepatitis B
Immunoglobulin (HBIG) (Hyper B Sd®) to Newborns

PCS Standardized Procedure: Blood Glucose Newborn Monitoring

PCS Standardized Procedure: Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical Congenital Heart
Disease (CCHD)

WNS Policy: Infant Feedings

WNS Policy: Hearing Screening Program: Newborn and Infants

Elsevier Clinical Skills: Formula Feeding Education

ET® mm o owp

K—J WNSINICU Procedure Car Seat Challenge Test
K. WNS/NICU Procedure: Neonatal-Abstinence-Scoring Abstinence Syndrome, Management of

Vill. REFERENCE(S):

A. AWHONN Core eCurriculum for Maternal-Newborn Nursing 4™ edition. St Louis, Missouri: Elsevier
Saunders 20011Z,

B. Gilstrap, L.C. ed., et al. Guudellnes for Perinatal Care, 8thZ™ Edition. AAP & ACOG 20172042,

C. Schrage, S. et al: Prevention of Perinatal Group B Streptococcal Disease: Revised Guidelines from

CBC MMWR, 2010; 59 (no RR10) November19 2010

143



STANDARDIZED PROGCEDURES-MANUALPATIENT CARE SERVICES

@ Tri-Gity Medical Center

Oceanside, California

DELETE - droperidol no
longer on hospital
formulary

'I

Patient Care
Clinicat Nurse Pharmacy Inter Medical Professional
Sorvices | Policies 8 | Executive Dhsion.of and disciplinary | Executiva | Admin- | g B of
Expert Procedures | Committea gy Therapautics | Committes Committes Committes
| B 8/04,7/03, |

1 9/06,
°’$fffé°gi%°a 12110, 213, | 1219213, w6 oans | 1173 | 1ma,0n3, f oo a0ns, | e — 12/08,

<= | 1015, 06/18 G g 01/18, 098 | 0716, 10118 | 0916, 11/18 g 4409,2111,
9/15, 06/18 07/18 1013
11116

144



Standardized Pracedure Manual

Standardized Procedure: Ordering 12 Lead ECG for Administration of Droperidol and/or Discontinuing the Drug
Page 2 of 2

145



Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE: IDENTIFICATION OF NEWBORNS
| Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities in identification of the mother/baby couplet as

required by Title 22 of the California Code

Supportive Data:  All newborns will be identified with the birth mother's last name (with the possible
exception being with Adoption and Surrogacy) before leaving the room the birth
occurred in Labor and Delivery, and Obstetrical Operating room){-PR-LDRR-OB
Operating-Reem) to ensure proper identification. Newborns born outside the hospital will
be banded on admission to Tri City Medical Center (TCMC)befere-separation-etthe
mother-baby-ceuplet. All infants admitted to the Emergency Department (ED) will be
banded per hospital policy. Newbornsless-than2 weoks-cf-age-will-be-banded-on

admiselonteLCC

Equipment: Newborn Identification Bands (two for the infant, one for the mother and another
for the significant other).

In the event of computer downtime a blank identifi catron-wrist band set will be
utilized in Women’s and Newborn Services (WNS). ED will follow the hospital

procedure for banding: Identification, Patient Policy. Aztocirfantib-bands{4};

A. POLICY:
1. All newborns shall be banded before separation from hislher birth mother. (Referto-Rationt

2, All newborns born outsrde the hospltal shall be banded and-printed-upon admission to the
WNGS) or Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)}FGMG.

2:3. [If infant is admitted to the Emergency Department (ED) it will be banded per the ED
Registration proces

| 34. For the following situations see these policies:

Safe Surrender: See Administrative Policy New Abandonment #380

Adoption: See WNS Procedure: Adoption Peliey

Surrogacy: See WNSWGS- Procedure: Surrogacy Reliey

Release of Minor to Other Than Birth Mother: See WNS Procedure: Release of Minor

to Other Than Birth Mother Procedure

opow

B. PROCEDURE:
1. Following delivery of the infant, -a set of four bands with matching Parent/Baby ID numbers will
be printed. They will contain the following information:;
a. Mother’s {ast and first name
b. Newborn’s Medical Record Number
c. Sex of newborn: BOY or GIRL
d. Date of birth.
+e. Time of birth (24 hour clock)

2. The identification bands must be verified as complete and accurate by two staff members
along with the mother or support person.
a. ldentification must be completed before any separation of mother/ baby couplet.
3. Separate and attach the set of four completed bands as follows:
a. One large band is applied to the mother’s wrist next to her admission Aztec bar code
band.

P Care | Fasiinical s Nurse | Medical Staff | Pharmacy& | Medical Professional | g .
Content o s el Exocutive Department | Therapeutics Executive | Administration Affairs Directors
Expert Committse Committee or Division Committes Committes Committes

12/93; 03/97, |
08/06; , 10/97, 07/00,

oy oae | oaog; | 10406, 11108, nia nfa nla 01118 1h0s. 110, 1 06103, 04/04,

. 07/13, 09118 ) ' 12/06, 01/10,
08/13

146



Patient Care Services Prosodure-Manual
Identification of Newborns Procedure

Page 2 of 10

1.
2.

3.

4.

b. One large band is applied to the-fathers-wrist{era significant-cthersupport person
{8O}-identified by the birth mother).

The two smaller bands will be applied to the newborn extremities :

When a newborn is transferred to Mother/Baby, all bands must be verified as complete

and accurate by two staff members. Verify the band number, baby name, MRN, date

and time of birth.

e. Whenever a newborn is separated from the mother for any reason, bands must be
checked prior to separation and upon returning the newborn to the mother.

f. Should the mother or the newborn, lose a band, a new set of four bands with new
identical numbers must be printed and all must be appiied and old bands removed.

g. If possible, re-banding should take place with the mother and/or significant
ethersupport person as a witness.

h. If new bands are issued to the mother/baby seuplecouplet, one of the newborn's old
bands needs to be attached to the Newborn Identification Upon Re-Banding form- and
have a parent sign that the information on the bands is correct with the re-banding
of the mother, significant-ethersupport person and baby.

i. If mother of infant is discharged prior to infant,—the newborn’s mother and/ or support

person should continue to wear hisfher 1D band (with matching numbers) until the infant

is released from the hospital.

Q.0

CERNER DOWNTIME IDENTIFICATION PROCEDURE:

At delivery, complete a set of four bands with matching numbers.

a. Identification must be completed before any separation of mother/ baby esuplecouplet.
Complete the following information for placement on the band:

a. Mother's last and first name

b.— Methers-medisal Record-Number

e-b. Newborn's Medical Record Number

gc. Sex of newborn: BOY or GIRL

ed. Date of birth,

fe.  Time of birth (24 hour clock)

The four bands MUST have IDENTICAL numbers and all information must be accurate and
legible.

Proceed with remainder of procedure for placement of bands.

D. DOCUMENTATION:

At the time of delivery, document identification numbers; on the Labor and Delivery Summary
and the Newborn History and Physical.

Document presence and accuracy of bands at time of transfer, in the Mother Baby Unit when
mother is separated from the infant and when the mother is reunited with the infant. to

If re-banding occurs, document in the patient record in both the mother's and the infant's patient
records with the new identification band number and add a comment stating the reason for
re-banding.

At discharge, identification is verified and one newborn ID band is attached to the Newborn
Identification form. Record the Alse-reserded-are-the-mother or significant ethersupport
person and witness signatures with and-the date.

E. FORM(S}):

PON

Newborn Identification & Discharge Instructions ferm-English - Sample
Newborn Identification & Discharge Instructions ferm-Spanish - Sample
Newborn |dentification Upon Re-Banding form English - Sample
Newborn |dentification Upon Re-Banding form Spanish - Sample

147



Patient Care Services Rrocadure-Manual
Identification of Newbomns Procedure
Page 3 of 10
F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Patient Care Services Policy: Identification, Patient,-Ratient Care-Services-(RCS)-Policy
#ALA
2. Women & Newborn Services Policy: Adoption Rrosedure
3. Women & Newborn Services Policy: Surrogacy Procedure
4, Women & Newborn Services Procedure: Release of a Minor to Other Than Birth Mother
| E<G. REFERENCE(S):
1. American Academy of Pediatricians, & American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists
(AAP, ACOG). (201767). Guidelines for Perinatal Care (86™ Edition). Washington, DC.
2, Besuner, P. {2007). Association of Women's Heaith, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses
(AWHONN): Templates for Protocols and Procedures for Maternity Services (2™ Edition).
Washington, DC
2:3. The Joint Commission R® Report: Distinct newborn identification requirement. Issue 17,
June 25 2018
4, 5 :

148



Patient Care Services Rrecedure-Manrual
Identification of Newboms Procedurs
Page 4 of 10

@110 14 13/8 cto-¢ O SAMPLE O O O

CAREPLAN Problems resolved: Yes[1 No{J If No, describe plan

DIET
Breast Feeding Frequent feeding - q2 - 3°
Formula Feeding Type Frequency. __ |

TAKE HOME MEDICATIONS Medications (dosage, frequency, indications) DatefTime
Last dose given

Medications Received 1.

Prescriptions Given 2.

None Ordered 3.

Instructions for medication(s) given to Parent [] Significant Other / Caregiver (J

Relationship, , understands instructions and performed return demonstration.
— — RN /LVN

BABY: REPORTABLE CONDITIONS

a. Fever 100.4°F or aver by rectum f. Ages & Stages taught O

b. Listlessness or restlessness Brochure given to parent(s) Eng Spn  Other

¢. Excessive crying or high pitch shillcry  Pass Refer Waived Diag. Refer

d. Any unusual rash RN /LVN

e. Loose, watery bowel movements (mucous and foul odor)
f. Vomiting ("not just spitting up”) or refusal to eat several times in a row.
g. Jaundice (press gentiy on tip of nose or cheek, yellow calor appears, of yellow coloration of the whites of eyeballs)

OTHER SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

FOLLOW-UP APPOINTMENTS
Dr. Date/Time Call for appointment____ Telephone,
Other Date/Time Call for appointment______ Telephone
| RECEIVED AND UNDERSTAND THE NURSES INSTRUCTIONS.
RN/LVN

Parent / Significant Other / Caregiver

Date:
RN Validation Signature
NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION Affix infant’s identification band here

Check appropriate box below

O | hereby acknowledge that | have compared the identification band with my own band numbered
and | am taking my baby from the hospital

[0 1 hereby acknowledge that | have checked the identification and | am taking the appropriate baby from the hospital

Parent Witness Date Time
Signature if other than parent Relationship identification Verification

&) Affix Patient Label

( Tri-Gty Medical Center

4002 Vista Way + Oceensida + CA » 02058

: NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION &
WHOMIME ~~ oiscrarc nsTrRUCTIONS

Rov 809} White - Chart  Yellow - Patient

149



Patient Care Services Rrocedura-Manual
Identification of Newborns Procedura
Page 50f 10

SAMPLE

L S e G S R A e e R e e e B S D A ek e B R R e S EP E  e et b e e

@)Ic 141318 c-toc O O O O

CARE PLAN Problems resolved [JYes [JNo If no, describe plan

DIETA
[} Dando Pecho  Cada 2-3 horas (Elbebe debe de orinar 6-8 panales y 2-3 movimuentas del intesting en 24 horas).
C1Botella  Tipo Frecuencia

MEDICACIONES PARA LLEVAR A LA CASA (Dosificacion, frecuencia, indicacion)
Fecha/Hora De Uluma Deosis
[0 Medicocion Recibida 1

(3 Prescripciones Enlregadas 2.

£ Ninguno Ordenado 3
INSTRUCCIONES POR MEDICACIONES ENTREGADAS [ Padre [ Signilicante Otro/Caregiver
Relacién Entrende instrucciones y ejecutd demostracion del retomno RN

OTROS INSTRUCCIONES ESPECIFICAS

BEBE, REPORTABLE CONDICIONES
. Ficbre de 100.4 F o alto por el recto

-]

b.  Yomitar ("no solé escupir’) o negar comer varins veces seguidas

¢. Liorar en excesive o chillar en altavaz

d. Decaida o intranqguilidad

e. Mavimientos del infestino sucllos, acuoses (elor sucio ¥ mucoso)

f.  Cualquicra salpullido raro

2. Ic.lcricgn {Aprcle suavemente en la punta de nariz o mejilla, color amarillo aparece, o colorido amarillo o lo blanco de
glebo del ojo

OTROAS INSTRUCCIONES ESPECIFICAS o o -

CITAS DE LA CONTINUACION

Dr Fecha/Hora Liame por cita Telefonea

Otro Fecha/Hora Liame peor cita Telefonea

He Recibido y verifico comprension de todas las instrucciones dadas por la enfermera,

Padre/ Significante otro/Caregiver Fecha RNVLVN

RN Validation Signaturc

IDENTIFICACION DE RECIEN NACIDO
AfMix infant’s identification band here
. ”
1 Por lo presente reconozeo que he comparado Ia venda de identificacion con mi venda propia
numerada y me llevo mi bebe de la clinica.

[7 Por lo presente reconozeo que he verificado la venda de identificacion y me llevo of bebe

apropriado dc cl hospital.
Pacienle Fecha RN/AVN
Signature of other than parcnt Relationship Identification Verifieation
ADJRESSQGRAPH
8 viciy Med
( Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Visla Way, Oceanside, Califomnia 92056
NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION &
DISCHARGE INSTRUCTIONS

7400-4009 {5/05)
Whita - Chart Yellow - Patiant

150



Patient Care Services Rrocedura-Marual
Identification of Newboms Procedure
Page 6 of 10

SAMPLE
NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION UPON RE-BANDING

Baby is being re-banded.

I hereby acknowledge that | have verified the baby band removed and the new bands applied are correct.

Old Band #

New Band #

Parent Signature Relationship Date & Time

If other than parent:

Written Name Signature Relationship

Identification Verification (i.e. Driver's License, Passport)

Witness Name Witness Signature Date & Time

Affix infant’s (and Banded Adults if appropriate) identification band(s) below

@) Tri-Gity Medical Center T
4002 Visla Way « Oceanside - CA - B2056
‘ NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION
'“”!_Jllﬂlﬂ UPON RE-BANDING
[Rev 11513}

151



Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
|dentification of Newboms Procedura

Page 7 of 10
( ( salpLE ( (
IDENTIFICATION DEL RECIEN NACIDO AL CAMBIARLE LAS PULSERAS
Al bebé &e le estén poniendo nuevas pulseras.
Por esle medio reconozco que he verificado las pulseras que le han quitado al bebé y que las nuevas
pulseras Identificativas que le han puesto estan correclas.
Namero da las pulseras vigjas
Nomero de las pulseras nuevas
Nombre de uno de los padres
Sila persona quien finna no es uno da los padras, indique el nombre y la relaclén/parentesco:
Nombre ; Relacion/parentesco
Verificaclon de ldentidad
Firma Fecha Hora aAM OPM
Testigo (Witness):
Represenlania dal hospital {(Hospital Representativa)
Pepue las pulseras de identificacién del bebé abajo (affix infant's identification bands helow)
@9 Alix Pallent Label
‘ Tri-Gity Medical Center

4002 Vista Way « Ocaanside + CA » 32058

NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION
M o e
[Rev 8713}

152



Patient Care Services Rrecadura-Manual
Identification of Newboms Procedure
Page 8 of 10

SAMPLE

NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION VERIFICATION UPON DISCHARGE

ria w

D L hereby ecknowledge that I have compared the identification band with my own

numbered and ] am taking my baby from the hospital.

D [ hereby acknow taking the appropriate
baby from the ho DELETE
Parent Witness Date & Time

Signature if other than parent Relationship

Identification Verification

Affix infant's (and Mom’s if appropriate) identification band(s) below

(@} Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Viste Way < Oceanside < CA < 92058

IR

7400-1008

I" NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION

Affix Patient Label

163



Palient Care Services Rrosedura-Manual
Identification of Newboms Procedure

Page 9 of 10

SAMPLE

VERIFICACION DEL RECIEN NACIDO AL DARLE DE ALTA

Marque abajo el cuadri iad

D Por la presente reconozco que he comparade la pulsera identificativa con mi propia

pulsera niimero y me llevo a mi bebé del hospital.
I_—:l Por la presente reco ue me llevo al
bebé apropiado del DELETE
Firma de uno de los padres Testigo Fecha y hora
Signature if other than parent Relationship Identification

Affix infant’s (and Mom’s if appropriate) identification band(s) below

(@9 Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way < Qceanside <> CA © 92058

TR

7400-1008

”"""" NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION

Affix Patient Label

154



Patient Care Services Rreceduro-Manrual
|dentification of Newboms Procadure
Page 10 of 10

( ( ﬁAMPLE ( (

NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION UPON RE-BANDING

Baby is being re-banded.

| hereby acknowledge that | have verified the baby band removed and the new bands applied are correct,

Old Band #
New Band #
DELETE
Parent Signature Relationship Date & Time
If other than parent:
Wiritten Name Signature Relationship

Identification Verification (j.e. Driver's License, Passport)

Witness Name Witness Signature Date & Time

Affix infant’s (and Banded Adulis if appropriate) identification band(s) below

2 Affix Patient Labal
‘) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way » Oceanside * CA » 92058

; NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION
W ™o e
TRav Tt

155



(@) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: NEWO03/16 SUBJECT: Massive Transfusion Protocol (MTP)

REVISION DATE(S): 8548

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 05/18
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 84/4610/18
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 04161118
Blood Utilization Review Approval: o14611/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02{4611/18
Administration Approval: 0119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 03/16n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 03116

PURPOSE:

1. Protocolized transfusion has been shown to improve clinical outcomes as-well-asand transfusion

efficiency in trauma patients who require massive transfusion. This document provides guidelines
for utilization of the massive transfusion protocol (MTP) at Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC).

DEFINITIONS:

1. Massive Transfusion (MT): Acute administration of 4 or more units of Red Blood Cells (RBC) in 1
hour or 8 or more units in 24 hours. Alternatively: Replacement of 1 or more blood volumes (1
blood volume equals approximately== 5000 mL) in 24 hours.

2. Massive Transfusion Protocol (MTP): The coordinated team process to meet the physician
identified need for MT, led by the MBphysician, between clinical staff, the Blood Bank staff and
ancillary staffto-rreetthe-MD-physician-identified-reedforMT. MTP includes collaboratively
agreed upon ratios of blood and blood components to be prepared and transfused to meet
identified patient’s needs.

3 Emergency Release: Due to the critical condition of the patient, blood and blood products are
released for transfusion before all required compatibility testing is completed.

POLICY:
1. Patients meeting the definition of MT with current, ongoing or impending use should be
considered for activation of MTP by the MBphysician.
a. MTP Activatior-activation should be considered for patients who will/have received
greater than 4 RBC units in 1 hour and appear to have an acute on-going requirement for
RBC use.
2. MTP may be activated by the order of a physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) in the
Operating Room (OR), Interventional Radiology (IR), Emergency Department (ED), Intensive
Care Unit (ICU) or Women and Newborn Services (WNS).
a. The requesting department should identify a primary contact person for communicating
with the Blood Bank when possible.
b. Multiple people contacting the Blood Bank during MTP are to be discouraged.
3. If the patient needs to have additional RBC on hand at all times but does not need the MTP, order
“Fransfuse-Lab Prepare RBC” with a comment to “Keep Ahead (X number) of RBC".

PROCEDURE:
1. Activate MTP upon the order of the Physisianphysician/AHP by calling a telephone order to the
Blood Bank (x7904). Blood Bank wili indicate patient testing status and whether Emergency

156



Patient Care Services
| Massive Transfusion Protocal (MTP) Policy

Page 2 of 6

3-5.

Release is necessary for immediate transfusions. Historical Rroblems-problems such as
antibodies may also be available with the initial call.
Include the following information in the telephone order to initiate MTP:

a. Patient name, gender and age

b. Medical Record Number (MRN)

c. Blood Bank armband number, if available

d. Diagnosis or source of bleeding

o&—Estimated-blosd-aseirata-of loss

fe.  Current or intended location—The Blood Bank will contact phlebotomy for STAT draw if
necessary for the MTP.

gf.  Staff member name and phone number for notifications
If not already done, obtain sample and enter a STAT order for type and crossmatch as soon as

possible (ASAP).
a. If possible, the type and cross-match should be collected prior to the start of the
transfusion.

h-b. Blood Bank staff will notify the physician/AHP if known history of clinically significant
antibody and collaborate with pathologist to determine how to proceed.

C. Turnaround time to issue blood is approximatelyexpectedte-be 20 minutes if crossmatch
is already completed.

If necessary, at least two (2) Group O} uncrossmatched units are available for emergency release

pnor to completion of the type and crossmatch.

j=a. Call Blood Bank for emergency release units and enter an electronic order for “Emergency
O Neg", if possible.

k-b.  Ata minimum, provide ordering physician/AHP name and number of requested units. Itis
preferred to also provide patient name, MRN, and Blood Bank armband number (if
available).

ke. Send a courier to the Blood Bank with a completed Transfusion Request form to obtain
the emergency release units.

m-d. Blood Bank personnel will dispense requested emergency release units to the courier.—Fe

ae. For all blood products issued as 'emergency release, the physician/AHP must initial the

following statement at the bottom of each Transfusion Record: “Due to critical condition of
patient, | accept unit without crossmatch”.

The initial MTP will consist of releasing two RBC immediately for use without cooler to

courier 1. Then units will be 4ransfusion-of-prepared in multiples of five (5) RBC units and

five (5) Thawed Frozen Plasma (FP) units at a 1:1 ratio followed by one (1) unit of

Plateletpheresis (PLPH).

a. 30 minutes are required to thaw and label FP if a second Clinical Laboratory Scientist
(CLS) is available in the Blood Bank. Total turnaround time to issue FP is 45 minutes.

b. One (1) PLPH is normally on hand. The first PLPH will be issued for immediate
transfusion, and Blood Bank will keep ahead one (1) PLPH until end of event or
alternative physician/AHP instruction.

The clinical team must place-a-telephene-erdersend a courier for subsequently prepared rounds

of blood products i-as long as the MTP event hemerrhage- continues unabated. Notify

Transfusion Servnce when MTP is d|scontinued by the physicianIAHPMD See—1-2—be~low—

&7

Dlspensmg Blood Products for use:

a. Products (including emergency released O Neg uncrossmatched units) are picked up by a
designated TCMC staff member presenting a correctly-completed “Transfusion Request
Form” for the products.

157



Patient Care Services
| Massive Transfusion Protocol (MTP) Policy
Page 3 of 6

E.

6-9.

+10.

8:11.

8-12.

b. RBC and FP units will be issued in coolers,

c. PLPH and cryo pools are placed in a dual bag delivery system after dispense is
completed in Cerner. Do not infuse after expiration date and do not store in coolers.

Transfuse 10 units Cryoprecipitate (Cryo) as needed for decreased fibrinogen values, per

physician/AHP orders.

a. Cryo units will be set up as ordered by the clinical team.

ab. Normally 5-unit pools in single bags are available within 10-20 minutes,

Send the following labs STAT after four (4) units of blood products received by patient, per

physician/AHP orders:
a. CBC

b. Chem 12

c. PTT

d. PT/INR

e. Fibrinogen

Calcium administration should be considered and calcium labs be ordered at the
discretion of the practitioner during massive transfusion scenarios.

o .
icianiAllD dore HY?S

same-ine-as-bleed produsts
Send the following labs STAT as needed, per physician/AHP orders:

a. Comprehensive metabolic panel

b. ABG

Endpoints/termination

a. Orders to keep ahead will be maintained until a member of the clinical team notifies the
Blood Bank of end-of-event or the physician/AHP updates orders.

b. Blood Bank staff may cail patient location to verify continuation of MTP.

c. Once stabilized, Blood Bank will keep ahead two (2) RBC units and one (1) FP (2:1 ratio),
for 24 hours.

d. When appropriate endpoints are reached, as judged by the clinical team, the MTP must
be discontinued by phone-notification to the Blood Bank, to limit resource wastage.

e. Most reliable transfusion endpoint is a collaborative decision based on operative field
examination, laboratory results, and clinical parameters.

f. At the completion of the case, the department will be responsible for the return of all
unused bleod products and coolers to the blood bank.

g. Any products returned unacceptable for reissue will be discarded.

FORM(S):

1.

Transfusion Request Form - Sample

158



Patient Care Services
| Massive Transfusion Protacol {(MTF) Palicy
Page 4 of 6

SAMPLE

TRANSFUSION REQUEST FORM

Physician ordering transfusion: (Last name, first name)
. M.D.

SPECIAL PATIENT REQUIREMENTS: OO IRRADIATED
OTHER:

Product ordered for transfusion and quantity to be dispensed now:

Product icheck) Quantity
O-NEGUNGROSSMATCHED-RER-BLOOD CELL{RBC)S
EMERGENCY RELEASE RED BLOOD CELLS (RBC)

RANDOM RBC-S, LEUKOPOOR

PLATELET PHERESIS(PLPH), LEUKOPOOR

THAWED PLASMA (TP)

CRYOPRECIPITATE

AUTOLOGOUS RBC:S

DONOR SPECIFIC RBC~S, LEUKOPOOR

OTHER BLOOD COMPONENT:

Oo0oO0ooOooQoao

ADDITIONAL ORDER NOTES:

O Massive Transfusion Protocol (5 RBCs:5FP:1PLPH) until ordering physician discontinuves/stops

Transfusion Service Identification Band Number:

Order verified by: , R.N. Date: Time:
|  Dispensed: Dale: Time:
@)) Alfix PafienfLabel
‘ Tri-Gity Medical Center
4002 Visla Way « Oceanslde = CA » 92056
|| ” II TRANSFUSION REQUEST
~7500-1008
(Fav. 5/14) While-Chail  Yelow - Riood Bank

159



Patient Care Services
| Massive Transfusion Pratacol (MTP) Policy

Page S of 6

U=

SAMPLE

Guidslines for Completing Transfusion Request Form
(Add to back of page 1)

Attach a current patient chart label to each copy of the form,
Record the name of the physician ordering the transfusion on the comesponding line.
Check the type of product requested and indicate the number required for the current transfusion.

Record the Transfusion Service ID band (BB ID) number in the corresponding area on the form. Use the
current band number verified from the patient’s BB ID armband.

160



Palient Care Services
| Massive Transfusion Protocol (MTP) Pollcy
Page 6 of 6

SAMPLE

TRANSFUSION REQUEST FORM

Physician ordering transfusion: (Last name, first name)

. M.D.

SPECIAL PATIENT REQUIREMENTS: O IRRADIATED
OTHER:

Product ordered for transfusion and quantity to be dispensed now:

Product [check]
O—NEGUNCROISMATCHED-RED-BLOOD-CELL(RBCTS
(S

EMERGENCY RELEASE RED BLOOD CELLS (RBC)
RANDOM RBCZS, LEUKOPOOR

PLATELET PHERESIS(PLPH), LEUKOPOOR
THAWED PLASMA (TP)

CRYOPRECIPITATE

AUTOLOGOUS RBC=S

DONOR SPECIFIC RBCSS., LEUKOPOOR

OTHER BLOOD COMPONENT:

OoooOoBO0O0OAO

ADDITIONAL ORDER NOTES:

O Massive Transfusion Protocol (5 RBCs:5FP:1PLPH) until ordering physiclan disconfinues/stops

Transfusion Service Identification Band Numbery:

Order verlfied by: . RN, Date: Time:
Dispensed: Date: Time:
To: Loc: Cooler ID: By:
) Al PaflantLabel
‘ ) Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way « Oceanside  CA « 92034
H" | | || TRANSFUSION REQUEST
“7500-1008
(R 214) while-Chart Yelow - Bood Bank

161



@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

| STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: PNEUMOCOCCAL AND INFLUENZA VACCINE SCREENING AND

ADMINISTRATION

l POLICY:
A. Function:

1. To provide guidelines to the Registered Nurse (RN) when administering Pneumococcal
and/or Influenza Vaccine(s) to the appropriate patient(s) as indicated per criteria set forth
by the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee and the Medical Executive Committee.

2. To provide guidelines when a physician does not want the patient to receive the
vaccine(s).

B. Circumstances for Pneumococcal Vaccine:

1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center

2, Supervision: None required

3. Exclusions: Immunization in the laboring patient and women currently pregnant will be
according to physician orders and not this standardized procedure.

4, Patient indications:

a, Pneumococcal Vaccine Risk Assessment for all patients 65 years and older.

b. Prevnar 13 should be given to patients age 65 and older who have never
received Prevnar 13, Pneumovax 23, or have unknown vaccination history.

c. If the patient does not meet criteria above, do not immunize.

5. The Pneumococcal Vaccine should NOT be routinely given without a physician’s order if
the patient:

a. Has a contraindication:

i. Had a previous reaction to the Pneumococcal vaccine.

ii. Received a bone marrow transplant within the past 6 months.

iii. Has received chemotherapy or radiation within the last 2 weeks.

iv. Has received the shingles vaccine (Zostavax) within the last 4 weeks.

b. Ordered not to have vaccine by physician.

c. Refuses or advocate refuses.

6. If no exclusion criteria identified, then immunize.

C. Circumstances for Influenza Vaccine:

1. Setting: Tri-City Medical Center

2. Supervision: None required

3. Exclusions: immunization in the laboring patient will be according to physician orders
and not this standardized procedure.

4, Patient indications:

a. Influenza Vaccine Risk Assessment for all patients 6 months of age and older.

b. The Influenza Vaccine should be given to patients admitted and/or discharged
during the normal flu season until the vaccine is no longer available, if any of the
following indications are met:

i Age 6 months and older.

i, Women who will be pregnant during the influenza season (October
through March) NOTE: Influenza vaccine is not contraindicated at any
stage of pregnancy.

Patient | ciinical
Care Policies & Nurse Pharmacy & Infection Inter- Medical Professional Board of
|Servlus Procedures Exgcutive | Therapeutics Control disciplinary | Executive | Adminlstration Affairs Dot
“antent Connifies Commitiee Committes Committee Committes | Committse Committee
pert
/08, 12111, 2115, | 12/1, 07115, 212,
s, | e oue. | 0UE | oute, o | doma | onte s |osngame | owe [V | s

162



Patisnt Care Services
Pneumonia and Influenza Vaccine Screening and Administration Standardized Procedure

Page 2 of 3

i, Women who are knowingly pregnant shail receive single-dose
preservative free* vaccine (*Not to exceed 1mcg of Thimerosal per 0.5mL
dose).

1) Pharmacy to provide single-dose syringe/vial for knowingly
pregnant women if available.

iv. Influenza immunization history is unknown by patient or advocate.

5. The Influenza Vaccine should NOT be given if the patient:

a. Has contraindication

i. Has allergy to eggs or reaction to prior influenza vaccine (i.e.,
anaphylactic allergic reaction).

ii. Had diagnosis of Guillian-Barre Syndrome within six {6) weeks of
vaccination (will be left up to the individual healthcare provider to decide if
recommended).

ii. Received bone marrow transplant within past six (6) months.

iv. Had a previous influenza immunization this flu season.

b. Ordered not to have vaccine by physician.
(3 Refuses or advocate refuses.
6. If no exclusion criteria identified, then immunize.
. PROCEDURE:

A, During the initial assessment, the RN will complete the Pneumococcal /Influenza Vaccination
Adult Immunization Assessment Screen in Cerner to determine whether or not the vaccinations
are indicated according to the following criteria:

1. if the patient meets any inclusion criteria and no exclusion criteria, the RN will inform the
patient/advocate that they are eligible for the vaccination(s), give the patient/advocate
the vaccination information sheet(s), and plan to administer the vaccination(s).

2. If the RN is unsure of whether the patient is a candidate for the vaccine(s), the physician
should be contacted for specific orders.

B. Unless the physician has signed an order to withhold the Pneumococcal and/or Influenza

vaccine, remove the age appropriate dose assigned by pharmacy from the Pyxis Medication
station and administer the vaccine(s).

C. For patients in the Emergency Department, the Pneumococcal and/or Influenza vaccine should
be administered at the time the physician order is received.

DOCUMENTATION:

Document the vaccine administration in the medical record.

Document vaccine lot number and site of administration.

Document that the Vaccination Information Sheet was given to the patient.

Document refusal of immunizations.

When administering medications or implementing orders from a standardized procedure, the
Registered Nurse shall enter the medication/order into the electronic health record.

moow»

1. Not required if a screening process triggers the order.

PATIENT EDUCATION:

A. If the patient meets inclusion criteria, the RN will review the Pneumococcal and Influenza
Vaccine Information sheet(s) with the patient and give the patient a copy.

B. For transfers to skilled nursing facilities and other hospitals, print and send a copy of the

Immunization Tab indicating vaccine(s) administered, with a copy of the Medical Record.

REQUIREMENTS FOR R.N. INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. Current unencumbered California RN license

B. Initial evaluation: Orientation

C. Ongoing evaluation: Annually with Skills Lab/Skills Validation

163



Patient Care Services
Pneumenia and Influenza Vaccine Screening and Administration Standardized Procedure

Page 30f3
VI. DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
B. Review: Every 2 years or review procedure per Hospital policy.

Vil.  CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All RNs who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are authorized to
direct and perform Administration of Pneumococcal and/or Influenza Vaccine.

164



2
(CU) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

SEDATION/ANALGESIA USED DURING THERAPEUTIC OR DIAGNOSTIC
PROCEDURE

Purpose:

To establish guidance for the safe administration of sedatives used specifically for a
level of sedation referred to as moderate sedation/analgesia (previously referred to as
‘conscious sedation”) and deep sedation, delineate required components of care
delivery and facilitate comparability of care organization-wide in sedation/analgesia.
This procedure does not apply to therapeutic/diagnostic procedures when
anesthesiologist is present or NICU setting.

Equipment:

The following equipment/supplies are readily available and functional during sedation
and recovery periods:

Emergency cart with cardiac monitor/defibrillator and airway management equipment
readily available

Cardiac Monitor

Capnography Monitor

Pulse oximeter with alarm

Blood Pressure (BP) Monitor

Suction Equipment

Positive-pressure oxygen delivery system available

Reversal medications -Naloxone (Narcan) and Flumazenil (Romazicon) - readily
available

A. DEFINITION(S):

1. Richmond Agitation-Sedation Scale (RASS):

4 Combative Overly combative or violent, immediate danger to staff

3 Very Agitated Pulls on or removes tubes or catheters or has aggressive
behavior toward staff

2  Agitated Frequent non purposeful movement or patient-ventilator
dyssynchrony -

1 Restless Anxious or apprehensive but movements not aggressive or
vigorous

0  Alert and calm W N o

-1 Drowsy Noat fully alert, but has sustained, more than 10 seconds,
awakening with eye contact to voice

-2 Light Sedation Briefly, less than 10 seconds, awakening with eye contact to
voice

-3 Moderate Sedation  Any movement, but no eye contact to voice

-4  Deep Sedation No response to voice, but any to movement to physical
stimulation : : _

-5 Unresponsive No response to voice or physical stimulation

2, Minimal Sedation: A drug-induced state during which patients respond normally to verbal
commands. Although cognitive function and coordination may be impaired, ventilatory and
cardiovascular functions are unaffected. This level of sedation is associated with the RASS
score of - 2.

3. Moderate Sedation/Analgesia (Previously referred to as “Conscious Sedation"): A drug-induced
depression of consciousness during which patients respond purposefully to verbal commands,
either alone or accompanied by light tactile stimulation. (Note: Reflex withdrawal from painful
stimulus is not considered a purposeful response.) No interventions are required to maintain a
patent airway, spontaneous ventilation is adequate, and cardiovascular function is usually
maintained. Moderate sedation/analgesia may only be administered during therapeutic,

Review Clinical

“atiant Care | Policies & Nurse Department of Pharmacy & Mpdical o isasional Board of
Services | Procadures | cJuCi | Anesthesiology | TGITRLLES | e | A | e | Dirctors
Expart Z

09/06, 10/08, 08/12, 0812, 10012, 1012, 06117,

2%1115,;%%;’11% 05?124.13}18 05116, 07118 | O¥17.0918 | 0317, 1118 tm:8 01119 A 10112, 06/17

165



Patient Care Servicas
Sedalion/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure

Page 2 of 13

diagnostic or surgical procedures. This level of sedation is associated with the RASS score of —

3.

a. Medications used for Moderate Sedation should be those easily titrated for this purpose.
Rapid onset anesthetics (e.g. propofol, etomidate, ketamine, and thiopentat) are not
appropriate for moderate sedation and must not be used for this purpose.

Deep Sedation/Analgesia: A drug-induced depression of consciousness during which patients

cannot be easily aroused but respond purposefully following repeated or painful stimulation.

Patients may require assistance in maintaining a patent airway and spontaneous ventilation

may be inadequate. Cardiovascular function is usually maintained. This level of sedation is

associated with the RASS score of - 4,

a. A Registered Nurse (RN) may not administer medications for deep sedation (propofol,
ketamine, or etomidate) or provide monitoring for deep sedation.
b. Medication administration for deep sedation may only be performed by a physician who

has been privileged in deep sedation.

c. Monitoring for deep sedation may be performed by a physician/AHP.

Anesthesia: Consists of general anesthesia and spinal or major regional anesthesia. It does not

include local anesthesia.

a. General anesthesia is a drug-induced loss of consciousness during which patients are
not arousable, even by painful stimulation. The ability to independently maintain
ventilatory function is often impaired. Patients often require assistance in maintaining a
patent airway, and positive pressure ventilation may be required because of depressed
spontaneous ventilation or drug-induced depression of neuromuscular function.
Cardiovascular function may be impaired.

Rescue: Rescue of a patient from a deeper level of sedation than intended is an intervention by

a practitioner proficient in airway management and advanced life support. The qualified

practitioner corrects adverse physiological consequences of the deeper-than-intended level of

sedation (such as hypoventilation, hypoxia, and hypotension) and returns the patient to the
originally intended level of sedation. It is not appropriate to continue the procedure at an
unintended level of sedation.

Allied Health Professional (AHP): An individual credentialed/privileged to provide specified

patient care, treatment and services.

End tidal CO; (EtCO,). The measuring of End tidal CO, (EtCO,) via the Capnography machine

is not a diagnostic measurement. Rather, EtCO, measurements are to give a non-invasive

trending measurement. Therefore, it is important to establish a patient's baseline EtCQ, before
sedation is given.

Respiratory depression: can be defined as:

a. EtCO; values 10mmHg higher or lower than the patient’s baseline with an absolute
maximum of 50mmHg

b. 10% change in EtCO, values above or below a patient's baseline
c. Apnea that last for fifteen (15) seconds or longer
B. POLICY:

1. Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) provides for the safe administration of sedatives; to minimize
clinical risks to patients; and assure comparability of care throughout the organization.

2. This policy is intended to discuss the care of patients receiving a specific level of sedation/
analgesia under the care of non-anesthesiologists privileged to administer sedation/analgesia. It
has been designated to be applicable to procedures performed in a variety of settings and by
various disciplines. These settings may be inpatient or outpatient and include but are not limited
fo:

a. Moderate Sedation: Cardiac Catheterization Lab, Critical Care, Telemetry, Diagnostic
Imaging, Emergency Department, Operating Room/ Endoscopy/ Bronchoscopy, Post
Anesthesia Care Unit, Interventional Radiology.
b. Deep Sedation: Emergency Department
3. This policy excludes:

166



Patient Care Servicas
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure

Page 3 of 13

a. Patients who are NOT undergoing therapeutic or diagnostic procedures (i.e.,
preoperative or postoperative sedation, pain management, sedation for insomnia, or
seizure management)

b. Emergent procedures

c. Patients undergoing major regional anesthesia or general anesthesia.

d. Situations where it is anticipated that the required sedation analgesia will eliminate
purposeful response to verbal commands or tactile stimulation accompanied by partial or
complete loss of protective refiexes; such patients require a greater level of care than
covered in this policy.

e. Otherwise healthy patients receiving peripheral nerve blocks, local or topical anesthesia.

f. Minimal Sedation/Anxiolytic - note: if patient slips into the moderate sedation level, this
sedationfanalgesia procedure must be implemented.

g. Drug or aleohol withdrawal or prophylaxis.

h. The use of any level of sedation/analgesia in any area of the hospital where an
anesthesiologist is present,

i. Single doses of sedatives and narcotics (oral [PO], intramuscular [IM], or intravenous
[IV]) given in usual and customary doses for routine care of patients during procedures
such as dressing changes, etc., do not require the provider to follow the sedation policy
as long as the RASS score remains at a — 1 or below.

j The decision to use a single dose of medication for anxiolysis or pain control or to use
the sedation policy should be based on the patient's history and planned procedure.

4, Patient Consent:

a. Pre-procedural education, treatments, and services are provided according to the plan of
care

b. Physician/AHPe shall be responsible for discussing alternatives and risks prior to
administration of medication as in any other procedure.

ct Procedural/informed consents are required to be signed by all patients before any
invasive procedures. See Patient Care Services Policy: Consent for Operative or
Other Procedures for complete details.

5. The Registered Nurse (RN) will monitor the patient for the presence of pain. Any patient
undergoing a procedure who expresses concern regarding unresolved pain management has
the right to request pain relief. Any patient request for temporary cessation or termination of the
procedure will be honored as expeditiously as possible.

6. Medical Staff Credentialing Requirements:

a. In order to prescribe and administer moderate or deep sedation/analgesia a
physician/AHP must have requisite privilege (physician/AHP privileges available on
TCMC Intranet). See Medical Staff Policy: Criteria for Granting Moderate and Deep
Sedation/Anesthesia Privileges to Non-Anesthesiologists.
7. RN Training Requirements:

a. Moderate sedation self-study and test.
b. Demonstrate competency in basic dysrhythmia recognition
c. BLS, training including airway management, recognition of cardiovascular and

respiratory side effects of sedatives and variability of patient responses with re-
certification every two (2) years is required.
d. ACLS, PALS, ENPC, NRP required (staf-memberis+eadily-available-as appropriate to
patient population).
i. Healthcare providers shall use child CPR guidelines for children from one (1)
year of age to puberty.

1) Signs of puberty include breast development on the female and
underarm, chest, and facial hair on the male. Once a child reaches
puberty, healthcare providers shall use adult CPR guidelines for
resuscitation.

8. Administering medications:

167



Patient Care Services

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procadure

Page 4 of 13

a.

b.

| h.

Medication administration for deep sedation may only be performed by a physiciant who
has been privileged in deep sedation,

The physician/AHP is present prior to administering any moderate sedation/analgesia
medication.

travenous-{l\} sedation/-analgesia drugs should be given in small incremental doses
that are titrated to the desired endpoints of analgesia and sedation. Sufficient time must
elapse between doses to allow the effect of each dose to be assessed before
subsequent drug administration. When drugs are administered by non-IV routes (eralPO,
rectal, intramusecular{IM)}, intranasal), allowance should be made for the time required
for drug absorption before supplementation is considered.

All medications commonly used in moderate sedation, regardless of their safety profile,
produce general anesthesia and may cause cardio~respiratory arrest.

See resource on TCMC Intranet for the list of medications commonly used for moderate
sedation/analgesia, reversal agents, and typical dosages for all ages.

The RN who is directly responsible to administer medications, monitor and observe the
patient’s response to medications shall be with the patient at all times and may not
engage in tasks that would compromise continuous monitoring during the procedure.
Medications used for Moderate Sedation should be those easily titrated for this purpose.
Rapid onset anesthetics (e.g., propofol, etomidate, ketamine, and thiopental) are not
appropriate for moderate sedation and must not be used for this purpose.

A Registered Nurse (RN) may not administer medications for deep sedation (e.g.,
propofol, ketamine, or etomidate) or provide monitoring for deep sedation.

9. Required Staff, Equipment and Supplies

a.

Sufficient numbers of qualified staff (in addition to the person performing the procedure)
are present to evaluate the patient, assist with the procedure, provide sedation and/or
anesthesia, monitor, and recover the patient.
Minimum Staffing Requirements
i. Moderate Sedation

1) Physician/AHP to perform procedure

2) RN to monitor patient

2)3}) Healthcare provider (e.g., RN, Respiratory Therapist, technician) to

assist the physician/AHP with the procedure

ii. Deep Sedation

1) Physician/AHP to perform the procedure

2) Physician/AHP to monitor the patient

3) RN to assist physician/AHP

C. PROCEDURE PRE-SEDATION:
1. Pre-procedure RN:

a.
b.

C.

Reviews the anticipated needs of the patient are assessed to plan for the appropriate
level of post--procedure care.
Ensures a pre-anesthesia/sedation assessment is performed by the physician/AHP and
documented in the health record.
Ensures the physician/AHP documents patient’s unchanged condition from last History
and Physical (H&P) or performs a pertinent pre-anesthesia/sedation assessment, to
include, but not limited to:
i. Cardiac, respiratory and/or other major system abnormalities
ii. Current medications and drug allergies and/or adverse experience with
sedation/analgesia and anesthesia.
ifi. Airway Assessment: Patient's ability to hyperextend neck, maintain airway and
open mouth without difficulty,-and if teeth are intact and mallampati score.
iv. Time and nature of last oral intake. Recommended guidelines
1) Patients should be NPO prior to procedure time for:
a) Two (2)Six{6) hours after clear liquids

168



Patient Care Services

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure

Page 5 of 13

b)

a)

6}b)

System

Eight (8} hours after solids

2) Oral medications may be taken with small amounts of clear liquids.

3) Patients under ten (10) years of age must be NPQ for a period of time as
indicated below:

Infants O to —3-2 years of age:

i) No solids the day of procedure

iii) Formula efruntil six (6) hours before procedure

i)
ihiv)

bBreast milk until four {(4) hours before procedure
Clear liquids until two (2) hours prior to procedure

Mv) NPO thereafter until the procedure.

.'.'.) =l |Iq-HIEI‘S uAt She (6)-hours-priox tg. progadure
.'")} ﬁ':ag' II;quadsﬂuntil ul'lll e”e ) I'EH:E pror-to-procedure

Ages 3 to 10 vears:

i) No solids the day of procedure

i) Clear liquids until two (2)fewr4} hours prior to procedure
iii) NPO thereafter until the procedure

v, American Society of Anesthesiologists (ASA) Physical Status Classification

ASAPS
Classification

Definition

Examples, including but not limited to:

ASA |

A normal healthy
patient.

Healthy, non-smoking, no or minimal
alcohol use

ASAll

A patient with a mild
systemic disease.

Mild diseases only without substantive
functional limitations. Examples include (but
not limited to): current smoker, social
alcohol drinker, pregnancy, obesity (30 <
BMI < 40), well-controlled DM/HTN, mild
lung disease

ASA Il

A patient with severe
systemic disease.

Substantive functional limitations; One or
more moderate to severe diseases.
Examples include (but not limited to): poorly
controlled DM or HTN, COPD, morbid
obesity (BMI 240), active hepatitis, alcohol
dependence or abuse, implanted
pacemaker, moderate reduction of ejection
fraction, ESRD undergoing regularly
scheduled dialysis, premature infant PCA <
60 weeks, history (>3 months) of MI, CVA,
TIA, or CAD/stents.

ASA IV

A patient with severe
systemic disease that
is a constant threat to
life.

Examples include (but not limited to): recent
( < 3 months) MI, CVA, TIA, or CAD/stents,
ongoing cardiac ischemia or severe valve
dysfunction, severe reduction of ejection
fraction, sepsis, DIC, ARD or ESRD not
undergoing regularly scheduled dialysis

ASAV

A moribund patient
who is not expected to
survive without the
operation.

Examples include (but not limited to):
ruptured abdominal/thoracic aneurysm,
massive trauma, intracranial bleed with
mass effect, ischemic bowel in the face of
significant cardiac pathology or multiple
organ/system dysfunction

169



Patient Care Services
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeulic or Diagnostic Procedure
Page 6 of 13

ASA VI Patient declared brain
dead whose organs are
being removed for
donor purposes.

=

Verify physician/AHP orders for sedation.
e. Ensure |V access in place (as ordered by physician/AHP):
i. Appropriate equipment to administer intravenous fluids and drugs including blood
and blood components is available.
f. Review/initiate individualized plan of care.
| 2. Immediately Pre-Procedure, RN monitoring or assisting the physician/AHP shall:
a. GheekVerify the procedural consent form is accurate and complete
b. Verify procedure with patient
| c. Obtain baseline vital Ssigns: BP, heart rate, respiratory rate, EtCO,, LOG-Aldrete,
RASS, oxygen (020,-) saturation, RPpain score and document on the Sedation
Flowsheet or electronic medical record.
i. For pediatric patients, include height and welght Calculate correct dosage of
reversal agent for potentlal admlmstratlon pnor to procedure

ed. Ensure a “time out” is completed before sterlmg the procedure as described in the
Patlent Care Semces Procedure Umversal Protocol

D. INTRA-PROCEDURE FOR PLANNED MODERATE SEDATION:
| 1. Measure/assess on an ongoing basis and document every five (5) minutes or more often if
significant changes in the patient’s condition occurs during the procedure:
a.
b. Heart rate
i. Continuous EKG rhythm is recommended for all patients receiving moderate
sedation/analgesia, and REQUIRED for patients with ASA score of |l or greater.

c} Respiratory rate
d. Adequacy of ventilation
e. EtCO; (except for mechanically ventilated patients)
f. O, Saturation
g. Level of sedation for adults using the RASS:
4 Combative Overly combative or violent, immediate danger to staff
3 Very Agitated  Pulls on or removes tubes or catheters or has aggressive
behavior toward staff
2 Agitated Frequent non purposeful movement or patient-ventilator
- dyssynchrony
1 Restless Anxious or apprehensive but movements not aggressive or
vigorous
0 Alertandcalm _ _
-1 Drowsy Not fully alert, but has sustained, more than 10 seconds,
awakening with eye contact to voice
-2 Light Sedation Briefly, less than 10 seconds, awakening with eye contact
to voice
-3 Moderate Any movement, but no eye contact to voice
Sedation
-4 Deep Sedation No response to voice, but any to movement to physical
! _ stimulation -
-5 Unresponsive  No response to voice or physical stimulation
h. Level of sedation for pediatrics using the Aldrete Score:

170



Patient Care Services

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure

Page 7 of 13

Activity: Able to move 4 extremities voluntarily or on Score: 2
command
Able to move 2 extremities voluntarily or on Score: 1
command
UnaAble to move no extremities veluntarily-oon  Score: 0
command
Breathing Able to breathe deeply and cough freely Score: 2
Dyspnealimited-breathing-or-tachyprea Score: 1
Apneic e~meachanical-ventilator Score: 0
Circulation: BP less than or equal to (<)= 20% of pre- Score: 2
anesthetic level
BP is= 20% to 5048% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 1
BP greater than or equal to (>)= 50% of pre- Score: 0
anesthetic level
Consciousness: Fully awake Score: 2
Arousable-en-calling Score: 1
Not responding Score: 0
Oxygen Greater than (>} 92% on room air Score: 2
Saturation (Pulse
Oximetry):
Needs supplemental oxygen to maintain Score: 1
greater than (>) 90%
Less than (<) 90% with oxygen Score: 0
Pain level

O, saturation and heart rate are monitored continuously throughout the procedure. If O,

saturation is not maintained at or above 90%, (unless baseline was below 90%), obtain

an order for supplemental oxygen and/or anesthesia consult. Supplemental oxygen is

also recommended during the procedure for the following:

i. ASA class lll or greater patients

iil Patients whose O, saturation reading is less than 90% pre-procedure while on
room air

The measuring of End-idal-GB,+{EtCO,) via the Ccapnography machine is not a

diagnostic measurement. Rather, EtCO, measurements are to give a non-invasive

trending measurement. Therefore, it is important to establish a patient’s baseline EtCO,

before sedation is given.

i. If during the procedure hypoventilation or respiratory depression occurs,
intervene immediately by:

1) Repositioning the patient's head to open up the airway
2) Verbally or physically stimulate the patient to breathe
3) If the patient is apneic, start bag/mask ventilation.

ii. Respiratory depression can be defined as:
1) EtCO; values 10mmH&Gg higher or iower than the patient’s baseline with
an absolute maximum of 50mmHg
2) 10% change in EtCO, values above or below a patient’s baseline
3) Apnea that last for 15 seconds or longer
ii. Important: Respiratory depression may occur after the procedure is complete.
That is, before the patient returns to a level of consciousness. Continue to
monitor the patient with EtCO, until the patient is fully awake and alert or returns
to baseline.
Medications and fluids including drugs, dosages, route, times and personnel
administering drugs are documented in the medical record.
Any unusual occurrences are documented.

171



Patient Care Servicas
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procadura
Page 8 of 13

E. INTRA-PROCEDURE PLANNED FOR DEEP SEDATION:

1.

F. P :

1. Patients status is assessed immediately after the procedure and/or administration of moderate

The RN shall document vital signs as requested by physician/AHP.

OST PROCEDURE CARE, DOCUMENTATION AND DISCHARGE:

or deep sedation and vital signs and pain level are continuously monitored and documented
every 5 - 15 minutes according to the patient's condition or until the vital signs return to the pre-
procedure baseline (minimum recovery time is 30 minutes), and the following criteria are met:

a.

e.
f

Patient achieves a score of 8% or greater (or pre-sedation baseline), on the modified
Aldrete scoring system:

Activity: Able to move 4 extremities voluntarily or on Score: 2
command
Able to move 2 extremities voluntarily or on Score; 1
command
UnaAble to move no extremities voluntarilyoron  Score: 0
command
Breathing Able to breathe deeply and cough freely Score: 2
Dyspneatimited-breathingortachypnea Score: 1
Apneic er-mechanical-ventilater Score: 0
Circulation: BP less than or equal to (<)= 20% of pre- Score: 2
anesthetic level
BP is= 20% to 5048% of pre-anesthetic level Score: 1
BP greater than or equal to (>)= 50% of pre- Score: 0
anesthetic level
Consciousness; Fully awake Score: 2
Arousable-op-calling Score: 1
Not responding Score: 0
Oxygen Greater than (>) 92% on room air Score: 2
Saturation (Pulse
Oximetry):
Needs supplemental oxygen to maintain Score: 1
greater than {>) 90%
Less than (<) 90% with oxygen Score: 0

If the patient does not meet the above criteria, the physician/AHP is notified for further
orders.

If a reversal agent has been used the patient shall be recovered for an additional ninety
(90) minutes.

Patients must meet the following discharge criteria prior to being discharged home:

i Pre-procedure LOC

ii. Pre-procedure Aactivity

iii. Vital signs within pre-procedure values

iv. Oral fluids retairedtolerated

V. Pain controlled

vi. Voided

vii. Evaluate procedure site
vii.  Dressing clean & dry

Obtain a Physician/AHP order for discharge when all criteria are met.
The patient and/or designated adult receives discharge instructions if outpatient and
accompanied home by a responsible adult.

Monitoring Outcomes:
a.

Outcome data shali be collected in all areas where moderate or deep sedation/analgesia
is performed. Data shall be aggregated by department/service and practitioner specific.

172



Patient Care Services
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure

Page 9 of 13

The anticipated needs of the patient are assessed to the plan for the appropriate level of
post—-procedure care.
Pre--procedureal education, treatments, and services are provided according to the plan of care,
treatment, and services.

Patient Discharge:

a. Patients are discharged from the recovery area and the hospital by a qualified
physician/AHP ard-bywhen they meeting discharge criteria.

b. Patients who have received sedation in the outpatient setting are discharged in the

company of a responsible, designated adultperson per Patient Care Services Policy:
Outpatient Post Anesthesia/Procedure Discharge/Transportation Guidelines.

G. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.
2.
3.

4,

Agents Commonly Used for Procedural Sedation

Sedation Flow Sheet 8720-1030 - Sample
Patient Care Services Policy: Qutpatient Post Anesthesia/Procedure
Discharge/Transportation Guidelines

H. REFERENCE(S):

1.
2.

45,

Conner, R. (2017). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 2017 Edition. Denver, CO:
Association of PeriOperative Registered Nurses.

ASA Physical Status Classification System. (2014). Retrieved January 11th, 2016, from
American Society of Anesthesiologists: https://www.asahq.org/resources/clinical-
information/asa-physical-status-classification-system

In, U. L, 8. K, & L. M(20086). Thelan's Critical Care Nursing Diagnosis and Management (Sth
Edition ed., p. 153). St. Louis, Missouri: Mosby Elsevier.

Nicholau, T. K. {2015). Postanesthesia Scoring System. in R. D. Miller, Miller's
Anesthesia (8th Edition, p.2942), St. Louis, Missouri: Saunders Elsevier

Rothrock, Jane C. (2015) Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery, 15th Edition.

173



Patient Care Services
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure
Page 10 of 13

SAMPLE
Physician: Procedure:
Allergies
| Immediately Prior To This Procedure

Ht:
[ History & Physical completed and altached. ) Power Note: ED Wt
Hislory of difficulty with anesthesia/Sedation. (J Yes ONo
0 interval Change in patjeot! i i i
NPO Status:
Alrway Assessmeant VWNL _ : :
Physician's verification DELETE — Use electronic documentation
Q1 have discussed the I« its
and risks and the possibl nt's/

Patient legal representati

| ASA Classification
) Class |  Normal heaith patient 0 Class I A patient with severe systemic disease that limits
activity but is not incapacitating.
O Class I A patient with mild systemic disease. [1 Class IV A patiert with an incapacitating systemic disease
O Emergency medical condition that is & constant threat to life.
| Plan for Sedation |
Plan:
O  Moderate Sedatior/Analgesta Medication:
3  Deep Sedation/Analgesia
Q  Supplemental Oxygen
Q w
{d  Patient is an approprizte candidate for planned sedation
| Post Sedation Plan of Care i
0  PACU/OP-PACU to non-monitored bed ()  Emergency Depariment
L  PACUKOP-PACU to ICU Comments:
0  PACU/SPRA to Telemetry
3  ©OP-PACU then discharge home
Q  ICU-TELE direct
{0  ACSMNon-Monitored bed

Informed Consant

O  Risks, benefits, and alternatives explained and patient/surrogate accepted plan for sedation/procedure
| Re-evaluation

{0  Patient re-evaluated immediately prior to sedation. [See Flow Sheet]

Signature
Attending Physician: Date: Time:
Affx Petient Labai

@ Tri-Gity Medical Center

4002 Vista Way + Ocaanside + CA - §205€

PHYSICIAN PRE-PROCEDURE/
Illllﬂ!ﬂ!m" SEDATION ASSESSMENT

e 518}

174



Patient Care Services
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure

Page 11 0f 13
SAMPLE
Sedation Flow Sheet
Procedure;
Allergles: Date:
HODFEB-ALDREI’E SCORING SYST EM Pre | Post| D/C || MOPIFIEB-ALDRETE SCORING SYSTEM| Pre | Post | BjC
AGTIVITY CIRCULATION
Able to move 4 extremities wumtamy or on command | 2 BP <= 20% of pre-zesthetic leve! 2
Able to move 2 extremities voluntadily o on command | 1 BP ig=20% to 5045% of pre-anesthelic
level
YraAble lo move no extremities woluntarieron ] BP >= 58% of pre-anesthetic level o
BREATHING REGPIRATION & CONSCIOUSNESS :
Able to breathe deeply and cough freely 2 Fully awske 2
Dyspnea-fimited-breathing-oe-tchypnen 1 Arousable-en-ealling 1
Apneicererrmechenicalreniiiater 0 Not responding 0
0. SATURATION (PULSEOXIMETRY) [ ]
Greatar than () $2% on room alr
Neueds supplemental axygen to maintain 1
| greater than {>) 90%
Lass than {<) 00% with 0
Calculate TOTAL SCORE befare | Imiadiately after procedure and upon discharge or discontinuing 1:1 Monitoring
[ Physician Pre-Procedura Sedation Assessment form in chart
|Oyss Ono
Time Out Time: """\
Protedure Start: Pre Procedure
Target
Procedure End: PzinScore:
KO uum’ mms
UTnEBT um.monz Evaumon: wmun wonsr
Patient Time | BP HR| RR]|ETCDOZ| 02 RASS Paln Nurslng Notes
Assessment sat% | {LOC) Lavel Madications / Cardiac thythm
Immediate
Pre-Procedure vital signs
Intra-Procedure
vital signs
Minimally
S¥ery S mintes
based on patient's
condition

Immediale Post-Procedre
vital signs

Post-Procedure
vitalsigns

until mests criteria for
discharge or discontinue
1:1 manitoring

175



Patient Care Servicas
Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedura

Page 12 of 13

SAMPLE
*LOC =Level of Consciousness Score patientsusingthe RASS score as listedbelow: Medication Totals

0 = Alert and Calm -1= Awakens to voice (eye openingfcontact) >10 seconds
+1 = Anxious, apprehensive, not aggressive -2= Light scdation, awakens to vaice {eye opening/contact) <t0sec
+2 = Frequent nonpurposeful movement, fights ventilalor  -3= Moderale sedation, movemant! eye opening no eye contac
+3 = Pullis or removes tbe(s), catheters; apgrassive -4= Deep sedation, na response to voice, movement of eye
+4= Combative, viclent, dznger lo slaff vpening to physical simidation

-§= Unarousable, no response to voice or physical stimulation
Signature DatefTime

Affix Patient Labe!

@ Tri-C;rgx Medical Center

MO02 Vista * Oceanside » CA » 52055

SEDATION FLOW SHEET

8720-1030
Hev 11117)
Sedation Flow Sheet
Case Attendees: Role:
OMD OPA DRNDORT [(Screb (i0ther
OMD OPA ORNORT OSerub Dother -
OMD OFA (RN RY OScrub DOther
OMD DIPA TIRN O RT DSerub DOther
OMD OPA TRN ORT DScrub DOther,
Pafient Position;
Specimen Collected: GNo O Yes :
Specimen Description Test Requested Verified with Physician Specimen comments
DOyes [Ino
Oyes Ono
Oyes Omo
Implants Placed: D No [ Yes
Implant D Cotalog | Manufacturer | Expiration | Serial | LotNo. | Size Implant Site Quantity
Description number Date No.
Scope used during pracedure: OUTCOMES: {Ona selection requirediCheck all that apply)
O No Complications, case campletad as plannad
Madications given on fleld: O Unplanned escalation to moderate sedation level
e e 0 Unplanned escalation to deep sedation level
| Medicatian Medication Dose | Commentis) O Patient received reversal medications ( i.e Naloxone, Flumazenil)
@ Unplanned respiratory suppert required in ght or moderate sedation

(L.e. placement of nasel trumpet or oral airway, supraplottic airway, or
ET tube, chin itfaw thrust, assisted ventilation with beg-valve-mask)
Cxygen saturation < 85% for greater than 3 minules

Hemodynamic instability requiring intervention (e g. fuid botus, presser
agents)

O Palient expesienced a sericus adverse event (e.g. perforation,
anaphylaxis, aspiration, cardiac arrest, death)

Unplanned admissien/ transfer Lo a higher level of care
Other’Comments,

jajy s}

oo

DISCHARGE CRITERIA FOR PATIENTS GOING HOME {Complets for Outpatients Only)

Pre-Procedure LOC Met Not Met NA
Pre-Pracedure Activity Met Not Met A

176



Patient Care Services

Sedation/Analgesia Used During Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedure
Page 13 of 13

SAMPLE
Vitd signs within preprocedure values Met ot Met A
Ord Auids Relained Mat Not Met A
Pain Contrdled Mat Not Met WA
Voidad Mat Not Mat NA
| Evaluale procedure Site Met hot Met A
Dressing Clean and dry Yes NIA Changed X
Signature Date/Time
~ Affix Patient Labed
Trl-Crtx Medical Center
002 Vista Wy « Oceanside « CA « 52056
SEDATION FLOW SHEET
T
8720-1030
Rew 10T}

177



8Ll

Agents Commonly Used For Procedural Sedation

ONSET, PEAK
CLASS & DOSING EFFECT, AND
MECHANISM OF | GUIDELINES (IV DURATION OF ADVERSE DRUG
DRUG ACTION ADMINISTRATION | ACTION REACTIONS COMMENTS REVERSAL
Midazolam | Benzodiazepine IV: 0.02-0.04 mg/kg | Onset(IV): 1-3 min | Respiratory and Advantages include quick | Flumazenit (0.2
{Versed) cardiovascular onset and short duration of | mg over 15
{Binds to GABA IM: 0.02-0.1 mg/kg | ** allow 15-30 min | depression may action. Reduce dose by seconds, may
receptor resulting | PO: 0.5-0.8 mg/kg | for effect with PO occur. May also 25-30% when combining repeat every 1
in CNS administration** cause ataxia, with opioid to decrease risk | min with MAX
depression) dizziness, of respiratory distress. of 4 doses
Peak Effect (IV): 5- { hypotension,
7 min bradycardia,
blurred vision, and
Duration of paradoxical
Action(1V}); 20-40 agitation.
min
Lorazepam | Benzodiazepine IV: 0.02-0.04 mg/kg | Onset(IV): 3-7 min | Respiratory and Slower onset and longer Flumazenil (0.2
(Ativan) IM: 0.5-1 mg cardiovascular duration of action than mg over 15
(Binds to GABA Peak Effect(IV): 10- | depression may midazolam. Limited utility | seconds, may
receptor resulting 20 min occur. May also in procedural sedation due | repeat every 1
in CNS cause ataxia, to slower onset of action. min with MAX
depression) Duration of Action | dizziness, Reduce dose by 25-30% of 4 doses
(IV): 6-8 hrs. hypotension, when combining with
bradycardia, opioid to decrease risk of
blurred vision, and | respiratory distress.
paradoxical
agitation.
Diazepam Benzodiazepine IV: 1-5mg Onset(lV): 1-6 min | Respiratory and Longer duration of action Flumazenil (0.2
(Valium) IM: Unreliable cardiovascular than midazolam and mg over 15
(Binds to GABA absarption ** allow at least 30 | depression may lorazepam. Limited utility in | seconds, may
receptor resulting | PO: 5-10 mg min for effect with occur. May also procedural sedation due to | repeat every 1
in CNS depression PO administration®™ | cause ataxia, slower onset of action, min with MAX
dizziness, Reduce dose by 25-30% of 4 doses
Duration of Action | hypotension, when combining with
(IV/PQ): 6-8 hrs. bradycardia, opioid to decrease risk of
blurred vision, and | respiratory distress.
paradoxical
agitation.




641

ONSET, PEAK

CLASS & DOSING EFFECT, AND
MECHANISM OF | GUIDELINES (IV DURATION OF ADVERSE DRUG
DRUG ACTION ADMINISTRATION | ACTION REACTIONS COMMENTS REVERSAL
Fentanyl Opioid narcotic IV: 0.5-1 meg/kg; Onset: 1-2 min Hypotension, Quick onset and short Naloxone
(Sublimaze) bradycardia, duration of action. Reduce | (0.4mg initially
(Binds to opioid MAX: 2 meg/kg per | Peak Effect: 10-15 | respiratory dose when combining with | followed by
receptor in the procedure or 250 min depression, benzodiazepines. Less 0.1-0.2mg
CNS) mcg nausea, vomiting, histamine release and every 2-3 min
Duration of Action: | constipation, biliary | hypotension than as needed)
30-60 min spasm, and skin morphine.
rash
Meorphine Opioid narcotic IV: 2-4 mg Onset: 2-3 min Hypotension, Slower onset and longer Naloxone
increments; bradycardia, duration of activity vs. (0.4mg initially
(Binds to opioid Peak Effect: 20 min | respiratory fentanyl. More histamine followed by
receptor in the MAX :15-20 depression, release and hypotension 0.1-0.2mg
CNS) mg/procedure Duration of Action: | nausea, vomiting, especially in under every 2-3 min
IM/SQ: not 2-4 hrs. constipation, biliary | resuscitated patients vs. as needed)
recommended due spasm, and skin fentanyl. Reduce dose
to tissue necrosis rash when combining with
with repeat doses benzo.
(0.1 mg/kg; max 4
mg/DOSE)
Meperidine | Opioid narcotic IV: 25-50 mg Onset: 5 min Seizures, No major advantage over | Naloxone
(Demerol) increments hypotension, other opioids. Use is not (0.4mg initially
(Binds to opioid Peak Effect: 1 hour | bradycardia, recommended in the followed by
receptor in the MAX: respiratory elderly due to increased 0.1-0.2mg
CNS) 160mg/procedure Duration of Action: | depression, risk of adverse events every 2-3 min
2-4 hrs. nausea, vomiting, including seizures. as needed)

constipation, biliary
spasm, and skin
rash




081

ONSET, PEAK

CLASS & DOSING EFFECT, AND

MECHANISM OF | GUIDELINES (IV DURATION OF ADVERSE DRUG
DRUG ACTION ADMINISTRATION | ACTION REACTIONS COMMENTS REVERSAL
Propofol Hypnotic/anestheti | IV bolus: 1mg/kg Onset: 30 seconds | Hypotension, heart | Rapid onset and short NONE
(Diprivan) ¢ phenalic block, asystole, and | duration of action. Bolus

compound MAX: 100 mg Duration of Action: | other arrhythmias, | doses are restricted to

/procedure 10-15 min bradycardia, and patients monitored for

{General possible infection hypotension and

anesthetic and from lipid based bradycardia (ED/ICU). No

sedative vehicle. analgesic effect, caution

properties; for respiratory distress

Structurally Allergic reactions in | when combined with

unrelated to patients with a opioids.

opioid, barbiturate, history of an egg

and allergy

benzodiazepine

drugs)
Ketamine Dissociative IV: 0.2-1mg/kg Cnset 1-2 min Can cause Hypertension NONE
(Ketalar) general anesthetic and tachycardia. Avoid in

(Produces a
cataleptic-like
state in which the
patient is
dissociated from
the surrounding
environment;
Produces intense
analgesia and
sedation without
causing
hypotension)

IM: 2-4 mg/kg

MAX: 2mg/kg (per
procedure)

Duration of Action:
15-30 min

patients with aneurysms,
elevated ICP, or
hypertension. Produces
both sedation and
analgesia. SLOW IV push
to avoid respiratory
depression, especially
when combined with
opioids.




181

Pediatric Dosages-IV
{under 12 years of age)

Incremental

Medication- Dose

Pediatric IV/IM | Dose (Pediatric) Interval Reversal

Midazolam 0.05-0.1 mg/kg, max total dose 6 Q 3-5 min Flumazenil IV: Children >1 year old: Start 0.01 mg/kg (max dose: 0.2 mg)

(Versed) mg given over 15 seconds; may repeat 0.01 ma/kg (max of 0.2mg) after 45
seconds. Then every minute (max of 4 doses) to a max total cumulative
dose of 0.05 mg/kg or 1 mg whichever is lower. Usual total dose 0.08 to 1
mg

Fentanyl 0.5-2 megrkg, start with 0.5 megikg | Every 15-30 | Naloxone 1V: Birth (including premature infants) to 5 years old or < 20 kg 0.1

(Sublimaze) may repeat every 15 min up to max | min mg/kg {max of 2 mg) repeat every 2 to 3 minutes if needed.

3 mcg/kg total for procedure >3 years old or >20 kg 2 mg, if no response, repeat every 2-3 minutes up to

10 mg.

Meperidine 0.5-1 mg/kg, max of 150 mg per Every 5 min | Naloxone IV: Birth (including premature infants) to 5 years old or < 20 kg 0.1

(Demerol) procedure mg/kg (max of 2 mg) repeat every 2 to 3 minutes if needed.
>3 years old or >20 kg 2 mg, if no response, repeat every 2-3 minutes up to
10 mg.

Lorazepam 0.02-0.09 mg/kg (Usual 0.05 Every 20 Flumazenil IV: Children >1 year old: Start 0.01 mg/kg (max dose: 0.2 mg)

(Ativan) mg/dose) min given over 15 seconds; may repeat 0.01 mg/kg (max of 0.2mg) after 45
seconds. Then every minute {max of 4 doses) to a max total cumulative
dose of 0.05 mg/kg or 1 mg whichever is lower. Usual total dose 0.08 to 1
mg

** Etomidate 0.1-0.2 mg/kg 0.05 mg/kg | N/A

{Amidate) every 5 min

Ketamine IM: 2-5 mg/kg/dose Every 20 N/A

(Ketalar) IV: 0.5-1 mg/ka/dose min

** Dosing information in children less than 10 years old is limited with Etomidate

Pediatric Dosages-PO/Rectal
(under 12 years of age)

Medication-

Pediatric IV/IM | Dose (Pediatric) Comments | Reversal

Midazolam 0.25-1 mg/kg; PO or Rectal Aliow 20-30 | Flumazenil IV: Children >1 year old: Start 0.01 mg/kg {max dose: 0.2 mg)

(Versed) (usual 0.5 mg/kg) max 20 mg per | minutes for | given over 15 seconds; may repeat 0.01 mg/kg (max of 0.2mg) after 45

procedure effect seconds. Then every minute (max of 4 doses) to a max total cumulative

dose of 0.05 mg/kg or 1 mg whichever is lower. Usual total dose 0.08 to 1
mg

Diazepam 0.2-0.3 mg/kg; PO or rectal, max of | Allow 30-60 | Flumazenil !V: Children >1 year old: Start 0.01 mg/kg (max dose: 0.2 mg)

(Valium) 10 mg per procedure minutes for | given over 15 seconds; may repeat 0.01 mg/kg (max of 0.2mg) after 45




Al

effect seconds. Then every minute (max of 4 doses) to a max total cumulative
dose of 0.05 mg/kg or 1 mg whichever is lower. Usual total dose 0.08 to 1
mg
Ketamine 5-8 mg/kg for 1 dose, mixed in 0.2- | Allow 30 N/A
(Ketalar) 0.3 ml/kg of cola or other beverage | minutes for
effect
Cautions:
(1) There is an increased risk of respiratory depression and cardiovascular depression with combinations of benzodiazepines and opioid
narcotics

(2) Respiratory depression effects may last longer than analgesic; monitor for respiratory depression and apnea

(3) Use smaller (25-30% decrease) doses in elderly patients (>65 years of age)

(4) Use of naloxone (0.4 mg dose) to reverse narcotics respiratory depression, especially if mild, can result in surge in sympathetic tone,
hypertension, and ultimately pulmenary edema, in some cases

References:

Lexicomp Online ®, Lexi-Drugs ®, Hudson, Ohio: Lexi-Comp, Inc.; March 22, 2017 2, Micromedex Solutions. Truven Health Analytics, Inc. Ann
Arbor, MI. Available at http.//www.micromedexsolutions.com. Accessed March 22, 2017

3. Hom E, Nesbit SA. Pharmacology and pharmacokinetics of sedatives and analgesics. Gastrointestinal Clinics of North America 2004; 14(2):247-
268




(@) Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: STROKE CODE, EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT

Purpose: To outline the procedure for prompt recognition of a patient with signs and symptoms of
stroke or worsening stroke and to outline appropriate interventions.

Supportive Data: Rapid response is critical to obtain required data for a prompt diagnosis and appropriate
intervention.

Equipment: Stroke Admission Packet

A. POLICY:
1. A Stroke Code shall be initiated if a patient presents to the Emergency Department (ED)

experiencing “stroke-like” symptoms of less than eight (8) hours duration.

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Stroke Code Activation:

a. Patient with “stroke-like” symptoms who are ein route to Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC)
by Emergency Medical Service (EMS) providers will have a Stroke Code activated by the
Mobile Intensive Care Nurse (MICN) prior to arrival by dialing 66 and notifying the
operator.

i The MICN will notify the ANM/Charge RN as well as the ED Physician.

b. Patients with “stroke-like” symptoms who present through triage should be immediately
placed in an emergency department bed and notify the ED ANM/Charge RN and ED
physician.

i. The Registered Nurse or Unit Secretary will activate a Stroke Code at the direction
of the ED Physician by dialing 66 and notifying the operator.

c. The operator will page the Stroke Team consisting of:

i Computed Tomography (CT) Technologist

ii. Lab Phiebotomist

iii. Stroke Coordinator

iv. Radiology Technologist

V. Lab Technologist

2. Notification of Neurologist:
a. The Neurologist on call will be notified by the ED Pphysician.
3. Initial Care of the Stroke Patient per physician orders:

a, Initial care of the stroke patient should include immediate stabilization of the airway,
breathing, and circulation (ABC's). This is quickly followed by an assessment using the
MNIHSS{National Institute Health Stroke Scale} (NIHSS).

b. The ED Physician serves as the Stroke Team Leader and is responsible for initial
evaluation and stabilizing treatment, as well as determining eligibility for thrombolytics in
collaboration with the Neurologist.

c. Determine time of symptom onset.

i. This is defined as when the patient was at his or her previous baseline or
symptom-free state. For patients unable to provide this information or who awaken
with stroke symptoms, the time of onset is defined as when the patient was last
awake and symptom-free or known to be “normal”.

d. Obtain finger stick blood sugarglucose.

i. Notify-=mergeney-Deparment ED Rphysician of result.

e. Initiate continuous cardiac monitoring

f. Monitor blood pressure every 15 minutes until thromboalytic eligibility is determined.

Batignt Clinical Medical
Sorvices | OISR | gty | S | e meatis | Evective | Administation | | Aftare | Bowrdor
(:Ec;lnu:t Committea Committes or Division Committee Committes Committee
04/09; .,
i 3221{1171 sl (}22,’11; ol nia oz/i7, g | 0112 02117, 0118 02112, 03T, | 02112, 0an7

183



Patient Care Servicaes

| Stroke Code, Emargency Department Procedure

Page 2 0f 5

g. Obtain vital signs including: heart rate, blood pressure, respiratory rate, oxygen saturation,
and estimated weight.

h. Obtain 12 lead Electrocardiogram (ECG).

I. Obtain Intravenous (iV) access.

i. Place 18 or 20 gauge IV in antecubital (AC) or forearm.
i Initiate supplemental oxygen as ordered.
k. Perform NIHSS assessment and Swallow Screen prior to any oral intake.
i. Notify ED physician of results.
4, Time Parameter goal is to maintain the best practice times listed below per physician orders:

a. Draw STAT [abs to include prothrombin time (PT)/international normalized ratio (INR),
partial thromboplastin time (PTT), Glucose, and Creatinine —complete within 45 minutes of
arrival but not to delay tPA administration.

i. Draw labs prior to CT scan.

b. Obtain STAT CT scan — completed within 25 minutes of arrival.

i. The Emergency Department RN accompanies all Stroke Code patients to CT
scan.

i CT Technologist will notify Radiologist of the Stroke Code CT for STAT read.

iii. Radiologist will notify the Emergency Department Physician of CT results within 20
minutes of completion.

C. Obtain portable chest x-ray and ECG - complete within 45 minutes of arrival but not to

delay r Patients tPA administration.

oF Care of the Ppatients Eeligible for Fthrombolytics per physician orders:

aoow

Continuous cardiac monitoring

Place second peripheral IV,

Place Foley Catheter prior to rtPA administration if ordered by the ED Physician.

Monitor blood pressure Q 15 minutes,

i Acceptable Bblood pressure obtained prior to administration of rtPA is a systolic
blood pressure less than (<) 185 and diastolic blood pressure of less than (<)
110.

If patient is eligible for rtPA treatment informed consent will be obtained by ED Physician

and/or Neurologist.

i. Signed consent is not required for administration of ritPA.

| 6. Administer rtPA per Rphysician Qorder:

a. Recommended TOTAL dose of rtPA is 0.9 mg/kg, not to exceed 90 mg.
b. Reconstitute and administer tPA as follows:
| i. Reconstitute rtPA with 100 ri-mL of sterile water for injection utilizing the transfer
device to create a solution with a concentration of 1 mg/mL.
i. With a second Registered Nurse, calculate the weight based dose of rtPA.
ii. Remove from the vial any quantity drug in excess of that specified for patient
| treatment, calculate the excess dose and discard 10 m-mL less than that dose.
This will allow for the complete dose of rtPA to be infused.
iv. Withdraw the bolus amount (bolus dose is 10% of total dose) and administer [VP
over 1 minute.
V. Program the infusion pump to deliver the remaining dose over 60 minutes.
vi, nPA must be double checked by two Registered Nurses and documented in the
Medication Administration Record.
7. Monitoring During and Post Thrombolytic Administration:
a. Continuous cardiac monitoring.
b. Monitor blood pressure-:

i. every 15 minutes times-for 2 hours;

ii. {Then every 30 minutes for 6 hours;

bdii. §Then every 1 hour imes-for 16 hours.

Hv.  Notify-Emergensy-Department- ED Physician immediately for systolic blood
pressure greater than (>) 185 and/or diastolic blood pressure greater than (>)
110.

184



Patient Care Services
| Stroke Code, Emergency Depariment Procedure
Page 3of 5

C.

8.

89,

c. Monitor neurological status every-:

i 15 minutes times-for 2 hours;

fi. {Then every 30 minutes for 6 hours;

&iii. tTthen every 1 hour times-for 16 hours.

kiv.  Neurological assessment should include: leve! of consciousness, orientation,
response toa commands, motor scoring of upper and lower extremities, language,
dysarthria, and pupillary response.

v.  Ifthe patient develops a severe headache, acute hypertension, nausea, vomiting
or has worsening neurological examination notify Emergensy-Department-ED
Physician immediately.

#kvi.  Monitor temperature and maintain normothermia.

bevil.  Monitor blood sugar and maintain euglycemia.

d. Continue monitoring patient upon transport and during diagnostic tests. If unable to
perform assessment/vital signs during test, document reason and resume
assessment/vital signs as soon as test is completed.

i. Note: most diagnostic areas have vital sign monitoring capability but staff may not
be able to perform assessment during test

Care of the Rpatients eligible for Fthrombectomy

a. Neurology and/ or Emergency-MedicineED pPhysicianMD will discuss case with on
call Interventional Radiologist

b. The Registered Nurse (RN), Unit Secretary, or designee will activate a Code
Thrombectomy at the direction of the Interventional Radiologist and/or ED
Physician by dialing 66 and notifying the operator.

c. The operator will page the Code Thrombectomy Team consisting of:

i. AdministrativeHoeuse sSupervisor

ii. Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Charge Nurse

iii. Stroke eCoordinator

d. The operator will also call 5400 and notify eOperating fRoom (OR) desk to gather
their team (aAnesthesiologista, aAnesthesia tTech and OR RN});. tThe OR desk will
return a call to the private branch exchange (PBX) with OR team names and call
response.

e. The operator will call the Interventional Radiology Team (RN, scrub tech, rad tech)
as per the on-call schedule

Disposition of Stroke Patient:
a. Monitoring Post Thrombectomy without thrombolytics (tPA):
b-i. Continuous cardiac monitoring, vitals and groin checks:
1) Every fifteen (15) minutes for one (1} hour
2) tThen every half ('2) hour for (1) hour
3) tThen every one (1) hour for four (4) hoursX4;
4) {Then routine.
ii. NIHSS Qevery one (1) hour for x six (6) hours
b. Monitoring Post Thrombectomy with thrombolytics (tPA)
i. Continuous cardiac monitoring;
kli. Monitor blood pressure, VS and NIHSS:;
1)  eEvery fifteen (15) minutes fortimes two (2)-hours
2) tThen every thirty (30) minutes for six (6) hours;
3) tThen every one (1) hour times sixteen (16) hours-
Stroke patients who have received thrombolytics and/or Thrombectomy are admitted to
the Intensive Care Unit
Stroke patients who do not meet the criteria for admission to the Intensive Care Unit
should be admitted to 4 Pavilion or Telemetry.

3

4

RELATED DOGUMENTS/IFORM(S):

185



Patient Care Services
| Stroke Code, Emergancy Deparment Procedure
Page 4 of §

1. 24 hour rtPA Flow Sheet. Form # 6010-1010 - Sample

D. REFERENCE(S):

1. Guidelines for the Early Management of Adults with Ischemic Stroke. Stroke, Journal of the
American Heart Association, 2007: 1655-1708
| 2. Guidelines for the early management of patients with acute ischemic stroke: a guideline for

healthcare professionals from the American Heart Association/American Stroke Association.
Stroke. Volume 44 pages 870-947 (2013)

186



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Stroke Code, Emergency Department

Page 5 of 5
24 hour rtPA Flow Sheet. Form # 6010-1010 - SAMPLE
Level of Consciousness Response to Commands Hotor Score-10 sec-anns, 5seclegs Dysarthriy Pupil Assessment
O=hjert 2=Obtunded ) Open/Close eyesimakes fist O=No Drift 1=Dritt C=Normal ariculation Reaction to light: ~ B=Brick
o | 1-Drowsy $-ComalUnresporsive (=Periorms both tacks correctly 2-Some efort against gravity 120k o moderate dysartvia F=Fired S-Slggh
E . . 1=Performs one tasks correctly I=Ho effort against gravity & coma
s mﬁﬁmwmﬂhﬂ 2=Pesforms nethar task correctly 4=No movement 2=Severo dysarthria, Pupd atre:
1=Answers i
K} = one conectly Language - ] Pupil Reaction i .o......
1=Mid to moderate aphata B-Brisk 123 3 5 B 7
28 l - JC .m mmEmTan mm mm  mm o
Abbreviated NIHSS § s|sl= = =
HHHHHHHHHAHHHEHEHHHHHRHAHHHHHHEHHEHHHEHHEHEE
Tuma
Systolc Rlood Pressure
Diastobe Bood Pressure
Haart Rate
Pupid Sze: Right
Pupd See: Left
Pupd Reaction: Right
Pupd Reaction: Leht
Level of Contoiousness
Oventaton Questons
Response to Commands
Motor Score Right Amm
Left Arm
Motor Score Right Leg
Left Leg
Language
Dysartheia
TOTAL SCORE
‘Cronsie s RILINA
inidals ]
Neurn checks and Vaal A et Laet
@Mwm kb
@ 15 Mimans. % 2 Hours Signature Date/Time Signature Derte/Teme

A VS WY + Donansde « CA « Z058
& 30 Mrustes X 8 Houts

& { Hour X 10 Houwrs

el 24 Hour t-PA Flow Sheet Souem DesiMine Einaive DeteTime

o Wy Pemrard par of Gve recard "Document any sits abnormalities in the EHR?

181



@ Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution:
Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

SURGICAL HAND ASERSISANTISEPSIS

Purpose:

To outline the steps to effectively perform surgical hand asepsisantisepsis

Supportive Data:

Surgical hand antisepsis is the primary line of defense to protect the patient from
pathogens on the hands of scrubbed team members, whereas sterile surgical
gloves are the secondary line of defense. Surgical hand asepsisantisepsis is
performed by personnel who will be scrubbed for the surgical procedure to remove dirt,
skin oil and microbes from the hands and forearms to reduce the microbial count to as
near zero as possible and to leave an antimicrobial residue on the skin to prevent growth
of microbes for severai hours. Al personnel who perform surgical hand antisepsis
shall maintain healthy condition of their fingernails and skin of their hands/arms.
Unhealthy skin or fingernails may impede removal of microorganisms during hand
antisepsis.

A. POLICY:

1.

Surgical hand antisepsis shall be performed prior to donning sterile gowns and gloves
for operative or other invasive procedures.

A:B. PREPARING TO SCRUB:

a—Hale Conar

b— Mask

e Prolaetuoye o
St
Personnel ehould-bashall don-in surgical attire prior to beginning surgical hand asepsis
antisepsis (see Patient Care Services [PCS] Policy XK Surgical Attire2).

a, The scrub shirt should be tucked into pants or fit snugly to the body.

2:b.  All jewelry must be removed or confined within the surgical attire. Hand and wrist
jewelry may not be worn.

a¥a al=Ya CLELEL Y

Don fresh surgical mask and adjust snugly over nose and mouth.
Don protective eyewear, unless eye protection is integrated into mask or user will be wearing an
orthopedic hoods.

Inspect hands and forearms:
a. Cuticles, hands and forearms should be free of cuts, open lesions or breaks in skin
integrity.
i. Persons with breaks in skin integrity shall not scrub.
#b.  In addition to Administrative Policy: Dress and Appearance Philosophy - 415,
Natural-nallsfingernails should be kept-short (less than4/42mm or 0,08") and in good
repair. Nail jewelry, artificial nails, nail extenders, nail wraps or any other nail treatments
are not allowed. If nail polish is worn, it must be free of chips or peeling.

ata - ) - - - na - alela
Femnut-to ottt DO~ = SHEFrrS =i = et oE1Eeb =

B-C. SURGICAL HAND ASERSIS-ANTISEPSIS WITH WATER-AND-APPROVED ANTIMICROBIAL

SOARSURGICAL HAND SCRUB:
. Steril b Fwith el
[ Patient Ciinical

Care Operating Policles & Nurse Infection Pharmacy & Madical Professional i
Services Room PracT A Executive Control Therapeutics | Executive | Administration Affairs Dieein
Content | Committee c ittae Committea | Committee | Committee | Committes Committee

Expert omm

11/12; 01113,

! 0718 1212, 0818 09/18 1018 n/a 1018, 01/19 02/13, nfa 02/13
o718 1118

188



Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Surgical Hand AsepsisAntisepsis Procedure
Page2of3

3:1.  Surgical hand antisepsis using a surgical hand scrub should be performed accordmg to
manufacturer’s instructions for use.O ! ! 56068
arsa-

4:2.

Remove debns from underneath f‘ ngernails
using a disposable nail cleaner under running water,

4. Apply the amount of surgical hand scrub product recommended by the manufacturer to
the hands and forearms using a soft, nonabrasive sponge. A commercially prepared,
pre-moistened surgical scrub brush with approved surgical scrub agent may be used.

5. Visualize each finger, hand, and arm as having four sides. Wash all four sides
effectively, keeping the hands elevated.

6 Scrub for length of time recommended by the manufacturer. The scrub should be timed
to allow adequate product contact with the skin.

7. Avoid splashing surgical attire.

8 Discard sponge, if used.

9. Rinse hands and arms under running water in one direction from fingertips to elbows.

10. Hold hands higher than elbows and away from surgical attire.

6:11. In the OR or procedure room, dry hands and arms with a sterile towel (drying from
fingertips to elbow, while bending forward at the waist) using sterile technique before
donning a surglcal gown and gloves

189



Patient Care Services Rroceduro-Manual
Surgical Hand AsepsisAntisepsis Procedure

Page 3of 3

D. SURGICAL HAND ASERSIS-ANTISEPSIS WITH USING APPROVED WATERLESS-ALCOHOL

BASEDBSURGICAL HAND RUB:

1. Perform surgical hand antisepsis using a surgical hand rub according to the
manufacturer’s instructions for use.

4:2. {fhands are visibly soiled, wash hands with soap and water.Prewash-hands-and

2:3. Remove debris from underneath fingernails using a dlsposable nail cleaner under
running water.Glearundernails-using-a-disposable-nail-stick-

34. Rinse hands and forearms under running water and dry hands and forearms thoroughly with
a disposable paper towel.

4:5.  Apply the surgical hand rub product to the hands and arms according to the
manufacturer’s instructions for use, including amount of product to be dispensed for
each use, method of application, and time.aleshel-based-surgical-hand-antisoptic-agent
ascerding-te-manufacturersrecommendations-

&.6. Allow hands and arms to dry completely before donnlng gown and gloves, per

1.

2,

manufacturer’'s instructions for use. Do not dry with a towel.

S. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

Administrative Human Resources Policy: Dress and Appearance Philosophy 8610-
415
Tri-City Healthcare District Approved Surgical Scrub ProductsGurrent

E-F.REFERENCE(S):

Geleﬁade-sozs-‘r-Conner, R (2018) Gmdelines for Penoperative Practlc:e 2018
Edition. Denver, CO Assoc:atlon of PenOperatlve Reglstered Nurses

190



Tri-City Healthcare District
Approved Surgical Scrub Products

Surgery/iRiCath Lab:

Ecolab Scrub Stat (2% CHG) “multi-dose dispenser”

Avagard “multi-dose dispenser”

Betadine (individually packaged brushes)

BD E-Z Scrub 116 (3% PCMX - individually packaged brushes)

Note: Approval for all surgical scrub products must be obtained through the Infection
Control Committee prior to use,

191



(@"’) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

DELETE - incorporated into
Pharmacy Policy: Drug
Compounding for Medication
Not Commercially Available

ISSUE DATE: 03/15
REVISION DATE:

SUBJECT: Outsourcing Sterile Compounding

POLICY NUMBER: 8610-206

Administrative Content Expert Approval:

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Comrmittee Approval:

Medical Executive Committee Approval:

Administration Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:

Board of Directors Approval:

09/18
44/4409/18
04451118
02151118
0119
03H8n/a
03/15

192



Administrative Policy Manual
Sterfle Compounding Policy

Outscurcing
: Page 2cf 4

193



Administrative Paolicy Manual

Qutsourcing Starile Compounding Palicy
i Paga3of 4

194



Adminisirative Policy Manual
Outsourcing Sterile Compounding Policy
Page 4 of 4

195



2
(@) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 05/88 SUBJECT: Emergency Preparedness: Food &

Nutrition Plan

REVISION DATE: 12/09, 01/10, 10/11, 02/12

| Food and Nutrition Department Approval: 03/18
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
| Environmental Health & Safety Committee Approval: 11/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 01119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 02112
A. PURPCSE:
1. Tri-City Medical Center will have the means Tto insure efficient Food & Nutrition services and

C.

to maintain adequate availability of personnel in the event of disaster; to establish the means to
provide nutritional assistance to staff and patients supemse— and malntaln proper
management of food, supplies;. and-pers s

DEFINITION(S):

1. An emergency as “unexpected or sudden event that that significantly disrupts the
organizations ability to provide care, or the environment of care itself, or that results
sudden, significantly changed or increased demand for the organization’s services”.

POLICY:

1. The facility maintains at least (7) days staple and (2) days perishable foods in inventory.
Within our supply, we maintain a minimum of (4) days (96 hour) diaster meals, bottled
water and disposable supplies in the facilities secured warehouse area.

2. A Nutrition Service Disaster and emergency plan is prominently posed in the food
service department and reviewed by all department employees at least annually. This
plan will be referred to when the facility experiences a loss of water supply, electricity,
natural gas, or experiences and emergency/disaster. It is possible that any or all of these
services may be interrupted.

3. The Nutrition Service Director, Dietitian, or Food Service staff member in charge will
consult with the House Supervisor or Administrator to determine the nature of the
emergency and the anticipated duration. If needed, all or part of the emergency meal plan
will be implemented to ensure provisions of nutritious meals to patients despite the
limitations of the disaster. The Meals for All Emergency Solution menu may be used
during and emergency/disaster at the discretion of the Food and Nutrition Service
Department, House Supervisor, or Administration. in the event the emergency/disaster is
anticipated to last beyond one meal, the Registered Dietitian will be notified.

196



Food and Nutrition Sarvices
| Emergency Preparednass: Food & Nutrition Plan Pelicy

Page 2 of 6

|_S.D. NOTIFICATION:

21,

B:E.

3:2.

32,

Food & Nutrition Services will be notified of the disaster plan activation from the PBX operator
announcesing “CODE ORANGE" or "CODE YELLOW" using utilizing-the overhead page.
Food Service Supervisor/Charge Respons:bllltles-(-feed—senqee-supemseg

4-a. ReadlLocate the Unlt Leader Responsibilities found in the Department Disaster binder

. The &charge duty responsibilities will
transfer to the mManager/dDirector of Food and Nutrition Services upon their arrival
to the facility and briefing with the Command Center. aflerons-arrives.

ab. A Gcompleted staff -and-send-one-employees-with-the-personnel inventory form eF and
emergency incident message form will be delivered to the Incident Command Center
via staff. These forms can be located -arefourd in the Department Disaster sarual
Binder -located in the patient food service supervisors' office and in the main Food &
Nutrition Services office.

b-c.  The Incident Command Center is located in the French rooms. If the Incident Command
Center is not set up, then staff is to notify contast the Emergency Department for
further instructions.

ed. All Food Service staff will be Rrecalled staff from breaks for standby to report to

disaster priority areas when assigned. (Staf-should-return-immediatoly-if they-hearthe
evorrsad-page-astivatingthe-deosiorsland)

The dDirector of Food and Nutrition Serv'ices will initiate the departmental disaster call-in
roster, if the situation warrants it and requested by the Incident Command Center. tree-if

Za. In the event of a major disaster situation, all off duty personnel are required to report to
the designated iLabor pool for further direction.
All on-duty employees are to report immediately to the department for instructions.
a. Information regarding staffing levels and available staff resources is completed on the
lincident eEmergency mMessage form and taken to the ilncident sCommand eCenter in the
French rooms.
Staff will begin to inventory and document all Ffood products and disposable supplies wil-be
inventeried. They will report their findings to the Director of Food and Nutrition or their
designee
Meals will be served in the cafeteria when possible unless circumstances prevent the use of
that area. If this occurs, then—lf-resessary; other serving areas and times will be designated by
the Food and Nutrition dDirector or designee.
In the event the emergency/disaster situations affects the normal operation of patient food
servnce the Dlrector of Food and Nutrition or designee
will be responsible for any changes necessary to serve food to the patients
and will notify all the affected departments. the-units- The Command Center shall also be
notified of the changes as well.
Disposable ware will be utilized lin the event the emergencyldrsaster—dlsaster situatlon when
normal food service operations are dlsrupted ¢ E SEEFE :

AThe Ilst of current vendors who can provude emergency refrigeration, water, and food supplies is
kept on file (Appendix B) in the Department Disaster Binder. Emergency phone numbers for
contacting vendors at night or on weekends for all of the vendors is in the Department Disaster
Binder as well. erfile:

197



Food and Nutrition Services
| Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nulrition Plan Policy

Page 3of 6

49. Inthe event that the kitchen can not be accessed or utilized, one option may be the Meals for All
(Nutricopia) which has an inventory of 7800 meals as well as 1950 snacks for patients, staff
and vus:tors Refer to Meals for All Implementatlon procedures 3090—meal5+&ady—te—eat

8§:10. The Director of Food and Nutntnon or deslgnee

h s-form will update the Command Center

on an hourly basis, unless extreme cm:umstances warrant and immediate notification.

6-11. A beverage station will be set up, upon request, for the Command Center.

+12. The Food and Nutrition dDepartmental Disaster Plan prosedures-on-disastercontrel will be
updated and reviewed on an annual basis-arrually.

13. The Food and Nutrition Department maintains an emergency water supply which is kept in
the basement storage and disaster cage. This includes:
a. 80 five gallon jugs or approximately 400 gallons
b. 9500 gallons of canned water

814. Water may be accessed from the City of Oceanside. In the event that this water is inaccessible,
water from the City of Vista would be accessed. Water may also be accessed from two 10,000
gallon drums located on the roof of the medical center. Details of how this water would be
accessed are found in the Dlsaster Manual Englneenng spemf ic pollcy (Fallure of H20
Dtstnbution) g z E
eu+tee— Alternatlve sources for water mclude commercral water supphers i.e. Rayne nd
Arrowhead.

&15. Disaster supplies and food designated for disaster use are stored separately from Food and
Nutrition Services, in a room in the basement under the Operating Room Suites.

16. In the event that the kitchen cannot be utilized for meal preparation, alternative sites are available,
a. i-e—the Occupational Therapy kitchen,
b. -the Pavilion kitchen.
8.c. Disaster Atents may be set up and utilized as needed inthe-parking-lot.

E-F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Food & Nutrition Services Disaster Call Tree
2. Disaster Call List for Vendors

198



Food and Nutrition Services
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy

Page 4 of 6

Appendix A
Procedure for Disaster Control
A. Procedure for Handwashing Dishes

1. Use two (2) lanterns

2. Strip and stack dirty trays, etc.

3. Handwash dirty trays, etc., in portable sinks as follows:

a. Sink #1 (WASH) - add Pantastic Detergent according to manufacturer’s instructions
izl to hot water (at least 110 degrees F)
b. Sink #2 (RINSE) - plain hot water (at least 110 degrees F)
c. Sink #3 (SANITIZE) - add Quat sanitizer solution according to manufacturer's
instructions3-purps-sanitizer to hot water (at least 110 degrees F)
d. Dry on rack
B. Waste Disposal

1. Garbage will be placed in closed containers and removed since garbage disposals could not be
used. If garbage and trash could not be removed, they would need to be buried in a pit on the
property.

C. Emergency Power

1. If Qon emergency power, most equipment is still functioning. If pilot gas is available, gas grills,
gas ovens, convection ovens (without blowers), gas stoves, deep fat fryers and boilers can be
utilizedused.

2. Food items that can be prepared include any type of frozen entree, grill items, frozen items that
are fried, soups, frozen vegetables and gravies that could be cooked on the stove.

3. if boiler gas only is available, steamers and steam kettles could be used. Food items that can
be prepared include frozen entree, frozen vegetables, fish potatoes, dehydrated potatoes,
soups and gravies, and freeze-dried coffee.

34, Flashlights are kept in the supervisors' office. Battery-operated lanterns are kept in the
storeroom.

D. Reserve Water

1. Using the reserve water supply, all china, glassware and utensils would be replaced by
disposable paper goods, and we would handwash only the essential items such as serving
utensils and pots and pans,

E. Communications

E1. Food Service would rely on telephones in-house to keep updated on the discharge and
admissions of patients to the nursing floors and would modify the diets according to the foods
available under the circumstances.

F. Security

1. Only Supervisors have the keys to the refrigerators and freezers. All would be locked except for
those in use,

2. The doors to the kitchen would be locked to prevent outsiders from coming into the kitchen.

3. The walk-in freezer and the walk-in refrigerator would be locked until a freezer truck and a
refrigeration truck could be obtained from Hollandia, if necessary. However, most freezers and
refrigerators are on emergency power.

+4. Supervisors would only allow authorized personnel into the walk-ins and the storeroom.

G. Employees

1. The manager will initiate the departmental call tree if necessary (Appendix A).

2. Methed-of-callin—If telephone service is available, they would be called.

23. [f phone service is out, an employee would be sent to the homes of those living nearest the
hospital.

4. H-ret-access-in-e—out—Shifts would be aranged for people to work and rest out in the cafeteria,
take naps and sleeps when needed.

3:5. Moderate amounts of water and towels would be provided for washing.

. Concerns
1. The most immediate concern is proper sanitation and handling and storage of perishable food

items, disposal of refuse and the comfort and well being of the patients and employees.

199



Food and Nutrition Services
Emergency Preparedness: Food & Nutrition Plan Policy
Paga 5ol 6

Appendix B

Disaster Menu - the following food supplies will last a minimum 9672 hours and are located in the OR basement
or in the Disaster Storage Container. The menu is planned for a census of 180 patients, 400 staff, 85 visitors.
200 for each meal.

If food within the department is not available, MRE sMeals for all are available as a supplement to foods
within the department; 30007800 meals are kept on site in the OR basement or in the Disaster Storage
Container. These meals may be utilized as needed for patients on all regular and therapeutic diets, staff,
and the community. Patients on liquid diets are to be provided Garnationlnstant Breakfast-Rlus—or Boost
Plus 1 can/meal and one snack with bottled water — to provide 1420 kcal, 56 gm protein. RepleteBoost
Glucose Control is provided for insulin dependent diabetics on full liquids (10 cases/25 pack); Resource
Fruit Beverage is provided for clear Ilquids 3 casesl24 pack), Nepro is avallable as an approprlate
supplement for renal patients. “Fk E : BHeE g RtE-eR-pUresd-c
Patients on a puree diet Ihese—paﬂente will a|so receive supplemental Camaﬂon—lnstant—Brealcfast—Plus—o:
Boost Plus with each meal. Thickened juices (1 case) and thickener (1 case) are available for those
patients with dysphagia who require thickened liquids.

Type of Diet Type of “Disaster Food” Provided/meal
Regular, soft, mechanical soft Meals for All MRE
Cardiac Meals for All MRE
Low sodium, NAS Meals for All MRE
Renal MRE Meals for All with Nepro
Pureed 1 Thick & Easy Puree meal with 4 oz pureed fruit
and 1 can GIB-Plus-or Boost Plus
Full liquid Boost Plus GiBRkis (diabetic FL receive 1 can
Replete Boost Glucose Control)
Clear liquid Resource fruit beverage
Enteral feedings Fibersource, Nepro are available
A. Procedure for Food Preparation and Service for Disaster Where No Power Available:
1. Dietitians' Office - Use one (1) lantemn
2. Diet Clerks' Office - Use one (1) lantern
3. Patient Food Service
a. Pour HOT water into 5 - 2 1/2 gallon Containers, using individual tea bags and freeze-dried
coffee for beverages.
b. Trayline - push trays manually.
c. Use disposable ware for patient tray service with regular tray.
d. Supervisors: Check temperature of hot water.
4. Cooks
a. Boil water for coffee and tea for patient food service and cafeteria.
b. Keep foods wam in ovens.
Cs Dish up small amounts of food to be served on trayline and in cafeteria.
d. Replenish foods frequently.
5. Dishroom - Using 2 lantemns, handwash dirty trays, etc., in portable sinks:
a. SINK #1 (WASH) Add Pantastic Detergent accourding to manufacturer’s
instructions 4-pumps-Selitaire to hot water (at least 110 degrees F)
b. SINK #2 (RINSE) Plain hot water (at least 110 degrees F)

c. SINK#3 (SANITIZE) Add quat sanitizer solution according to manufacturer's
instructions 4-pumps-Sterbae to hot water (at least 110 degrees F)

B. Procedure for Specific Disaster, Mass Casualties and for Disruption of Service
1. There shall be controlled traffic through flooded area.
a. Outside of the depariment, Environmental Services personnel will reroute traffic away from
flooded areas.

200



Food and Nutrition Services
| Emergency Preparedness; Food & Nutrition Plan Policy

Page 6 of 6

b. Within the depariment, all employees will be required to leave and relocate to an
uncontaminated area as designated by the supervisor.
(X If it is impossible to relocate traffic, area will be sanitized with a sanitizing agent to prevent

contamination.
There shall be communication to all depariments regarding contaminated area.

a. The switchboard shall notify all departments to discourage employees from going to the
cafeteria, andfor to notify them of alternate routes.
b. The department will call the nursing units if patient tray service will be interrupted. Patients

who require food before trays can be sent from the kitchen will be served food from the
supply available on the nursing units.
All food processing preparation and delivery shall be halted in contaminated areas.

a. All food carts and related equipment should be relocated to an uncontaminated area, if
possible.
b. Coffee service may be provided to employees.

There shall be an orderly and organized plan of clean up and enough personnel so that the most

vital areas are cleaned first.

a. Environmental Services and Facilities Management personnel will assist designated Food
& Nutrition Services personnel to clean the kitchen areas, hallways to elevators, hallways to
stairwells, cafeteria area, restrooms and offices, respectively.

b. Within the kitchen and cafeteria, the areas shall be cleaned in the following order: Patient
food service area, food production, receiving area, diet office, dishroom, cafeteria serving
area, cafeteria, storerooms and dietary offices.

All contaminated equipment and floors shall be cleaned and sanitized using appropriate

disinfectant. All personnel should be extra conscious of hand washing techniques.

Once clean up in the kitchen is complete, food preparation and processing may resume. Food

carts may be delivered to the floors when hallways are free of contamination. Staff will call nursing

floors to notify them of delivery of patient trays.

The switchboard will notify all departments when contaminated hallways have been cleaned and

sanitized.

201



Food & Nutrition Services Disaster Call Tree

STANDING ORDER 9.1 CALL LIST (DISASTER AND MASS CASUALTIES)*

AREA
OFFICE

FOOD PRODUCTION

DISHROOM

DIET OFFICE

PATIENT FOOD
SERVICE

CAFETERIA

i

ik

POSITION
Director**

Clinical Dietitian
Clinica! Dietitian(Alt)*

Cook
Buyer (Purchasing)
Receiving Clerk

Food Service Supervisor
Food Service Worker
Food Service Worke
Food Service Worker
(Alt)*

Diet Clerk
Diet Clerk
Diet Technician

Food Service Supervisor

Food Service Worker
Foecd Service Worker
(Alt) *

Cafeteria Supervisor
Food Service Worker
Food Service Worker
{Alt) *

NAME

Marty Acevedo

Linda Gastelum
Kelli Gecewicz

Maurilia Parra
Gloria Breault
Andres Carachure

Lisa Van Poelmann
Jesus Tello
Rolando Guiterrez
Michael Adams

Paul Riecke
Mary Lou Grose
Terry Qdfina

Eric Clemens
Marily Carachure

Josefina Blancas

Jeff Pigza
Maria Elena McKeag
Tina Fucci

PHONE

760-941-5841
760-758-4904
760-715-8744

760-945-2250
760-480-9380
760-726-3798

760-822-0027
760-216-6130
760-643-9142
760-277-7002

760-224-1008
760-757-4330
760-758-2825

760-842-5988
760-724-0846
760-724-1901

760-721-1078
760-758-8104
760-727-8516

Indicates the person to be called only when more than 25 casualties are expected.
These employees are to be called first and they will then call others, as needed.

202



| Food & Nutrition Services Disaster Call List for Vendors
A, Emergency Refrigeration and Freezers
Hollandia Dairy maintains standby refrigerator and freezer trucks. Contact Ken May.

USFoods also will provide standby refrigerator and freezer trucks. Contact Jennifer WeirDave-Sherake.

B. Procedure for obtaining food and related supplies - refer to the following vendors' list:
ITEM VENDOR
Water *Arrowhead Bottling Company

(Contact Facilities Department first at Ext. 7148)

which are available for emergency situations,
Dairy Products Hollandia Dairy - contact:
Ken May

Primary - US Foodservice Emergency Contact List — Corona Division
(800) 888-3147 +

Name Ext. Mobile Pager Home
ndrzejczyk, Paul — V=R-Healthcare (858) 354-
iHa Populus, Phillip - 8983 6994(714)552- - -
anager, Healthcare 7574
Garcia, Alex — Account Executive 8783 {909)292-8326
'tass, Emily — Account Executive 8740 (714) 747-7452 - (951) 734-3396
Jya, Julie — Account (562) 572-
ecutiveStratton, Jessica — Account 87658746 1567(909) 315- - -
xecutive 0773
Nix, Colleen — Account Executive 8139 (805) 407-9764 - (805) 921-1587
! - (619)-204-
$herako, Dave :Jennifer Weir 87658733 0879(909) 921- . )
Account Executive 9456
Stappas, Shanti — Account Executive 8758 (704) 953-1845 - -
Truong, Nam — Account Executive 84568733 (626) 236-3956 - (951) 817-0543
$ands, Anne — Account Executive 8777 (949) 322-5197
arrabure, Maria — Account
Iéxecutive (818) 585-4604
Burns, Seamus — Account Executive (805) 720-0626
Secondary - US Foodservice Emergency Contact List - Corona Division
(800) 888-3147 +
Name Ext. Mobile Pager Home

. (714) 343-4480-
ﬂacFall, Graylon — President 8935 (619) 218-1376 - -
McLain, Jeff — Vice President,
Operations 8973 {951) 505-7380 - -
Miller, Lee — Transportation Manager 89448973 (951) 204-3037 - -
ancer, Lonnie Loc, Warren — (714) 904-6637
wperations Manager 89926044 (626) 664-5398 B )
$tappas, Shanti — Vice President 3678 (704) 953-1845

203



[National Sales |

Produce Sunrise Produce
| Danny Calvillo 851-347-8076760-994-3379

Meat Tip-Top Meats - contact

Jehr/Biane-HaedrchSteve —760-438-2620 (office)

760-720-5753-(howmme)

204



@ Tri-City Medical Center

QOceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER
PATIENT-CARE-SERMIGES-ROLICYY - JIANUAL

Wemen'e—Dlagnosiic—Conter
ISSUE DATE: 11/99 SUBJECT: Communication of Results —
Women's Center
REVISION DATE(S):
STANDARD—NUMBER:
CROS5-RERERENGE:
Mammography Department Approval: 10117
Department of Radiology Approval: 06/4810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11
A, AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM:
1. Radiologists and Records Techs
B. PURPOSE:
1. To meet Mammography Quality Standard Act (MQSA) standards to ensure that
reports/results are sent to patients and referring physicians in a timely way .
C. POLICY:

1.
2.

The Mammography Center will provide patients with written results within thirty (30) days.
Self-referring patients will receive the written report as well as the summary.

Results that are "suspicious” or "highly suggestive of malignancy” will be communicated
directly by the interpreting Radiologist or designee ASAP to the referring MD or, if self-
referred, to the patient. Self- referred patients will be given the Breast Help Line phone
number, 840-5100, for a list of physicians for follow-up.

Patients that are called back to eur the facility for additional views will be scheduled within
ten (10) working days. Our The department's scheduler will make several attempts to contact
the patient. If the patient cannot be reached, a letter will be sent to the referring physician
reporting our request for follow-up. If we-the mammography department receives no
response within five (5} working days, a certified letter will be sent to the patient's residence
signifying the importance of breast imaging follow-up. A copy of receipt of letter will be filed
with the patient's records.

EXTERNAL LINK(S):

1.

Mammography Quality Standards Act (MQSA) of
1998 https://www.fda.qov/downloads/Radiation-
EmittingProductsIMammograghyguaIithtandardsActandProgramlReguIationsIUCM 11

0849.pdf
Mammography Clinical Experience Requirements

(2017) https:/iwww.arrt.org/docs/default-sourcel/discipline-

documentslmammogragh!.'mammograghy-clinical-exgerience-reguirements-
2017.pdf?sfvrsn=4

205



Mammography Women's Center
Communication of Results — Women's Center Policy
Page 2 of 2

E. REFERENCE(S):
1. Mammography Quality Standards Reauthorization Act, Pub, L., Title XLIl § 263b. (1998).

3-2. U.S. Food & Drug Administration (2017, November 16) Mammography Quality
Standards Act and Program. Retrieved from https://iwww.fda.gov/Radiation-
EmittingProducts/MammographyQualityStandardsActandProgram/default.htm

206



@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER
PAHIEMNTCARESERMCES POLICY L DAMRILAL

Wormen's—Diagnostic Coanter
ISSUE DATE: 10/97 SUBJECT: Completion of Diagnostic Report
REVISION DATE(S): ROLICY NUMBER:
CROSS-REFERENGE:

Mammography Department Approval: 10117
Department of Radiology Approval: 06/4810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 1118
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11
A RESPONSIBILITY:

1. Transcriptionists, Radiology Records Techs
B. PURPOSE:

1. To expedite the finalization of the diagnostic report.
C. POLICY:

1. The diagnostic report will be dictated, transcribed, printed, and distributed to the referring

physicians in a timely manner.

D. PROCEDURE:

1. The transcription department will transcribe the diagnostic report in a timely manner.

2. The Radiologist will review the report and make corrections.
3. The Radiologist will finalize the report.
4, Periodically, throughout the day, the signed reports are printed for distribution.

ST/Eorme03/PolisiosM c ; SiaaR 203

207



o
(@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER
EATEMT CARE-2ERAVICES POLISY MARLLAL

i s DI tic—Coant
ISSUE DATE: 0512 SUBJECT: Distribution of Mammography
Reports
REVISION DATE(S): STRAKDAED WM ER:
Mammography Department Approval: 1017
Department of Radiology Approval: 06/1810/18
Pharmacy &Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11118
Administration Approval: 114801119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11
A. AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM:
1. Radiologists and Radiology records techs
B. PURPOSE:
1. To expedite the finalization and timely distribution of the of the mammography reports to
the Requesting physicians.
o POLICY “A"~FOR MAMMOGRAPHY EXAMS

1.

B2,

Requiring no pricr films from outside facilities

gt

o
:

Scheduled returning patients wili have their images loaded from the PAC's system
and available at their appointment time.
Radiologist will interpret mammogram and compare with previous images.
Report will be transcribed and Radiologist wi ll finalize the report.
Reports will be automatically faxed to the referring physician within 24 hours of
Transcription.
Normal result letters will be mailed to patients within 30 days.
Self referred patients, if a health provider (or a responsible designee) is not named
or is unavailable, then the report must be provided to the patient.
Communications to the patient, if there is no health care provider, it must
include: 1) the complete report of findings referenced above 2) the summary
written in lay terms that is required for all patients.

a2 Needing comparison films from outside facilities
The patient's current mammogram-will-be-placed study will be flaged in eur
the "hold-pending prior films" box for no longer than 10 working days
If outside images have not arrived within this a | 0-day period, images will be
dictated And results faxed to referring physician within 24 hours
When and if images arrive from outside facilitiesy, eur the mammography films study
will be pulled flaged for the radiologist and an addendum comparison report will be
dictated,transer-bed transcribed and-sent-out and finalized by the radiologist. The
final result will be faxed to the referring physician through the automated fax
server application:

ROLCY-c—~mMammograms with "suspicious or highly suspicieus suggestive malignancy”
assessment}

The interpreting Radiologist will pheredictate and finalize the report te-and faxed to

208



| Mammography Women's Center
Distribution d Mammography Reports Policy

Page 2 of 2

1.

the referring physician with theirhis findings within 24- hours of mammography study.

i. A letter will be mailed to the patient indicating the need to follow-up with their
physician any abnormality seen on their mammogram within 5 working days.

i If a biopsy or surgical intervention is attained, then the pathology report is
collected from the Jlab and these findings are entered into-ourthe
mammography tracking program for statistical computation.

Hili. The interpreting Radiologist will add an addendum to the report
documenting the pathology findings. The addended report is refaxed to
the referring physician with the addended results.

E-D. PROCEDURE:
Twice daily Remote Installation Service (RIS) will automatically transmit a facsimile to the
requesting physician after the Radiologist approves the diagnostic report.

209



(@9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER

ISSUE DATE: 6/93 SUBJECT: Mammography Image/DataEilm

Retention, Check-Out and Copying

REVISION DATE(S):

Mammography Department Approval: 1017
Department of Radiclogy Approval: 06/1810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 0811
A, AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM:

1. Radiology records technician, radiologic technologist.
B. PURPOSE:

1. To ensure that all original films and reports are retained in accordance with Joint Commission

(JC)HCAHO and hospital policies; to ensure that all appropriate requests for films and/or reports
are handled in the proper manner to maintain patient confidentiality and legal requirements.

POLICY:
1. All employees are responsible to maintain the files, films, and reports in good order.

PROCEDURE:
1. Retention:
a, ImagesFims and reports are filed by the Imaging Services Department using the
patient's medical record number and a terminal digit and most recent year of visit.
b. All images/datafilms and reports are retained for ten (40 5) years by the Imaging
Department.
i. Films on all minors (under age 18) are retained until 25 years of age.
ii. Mammographs are retained for-10 years or 5 years if a new set of images are
performed at the facility -

210



Mammography Women's Center
| Mammography Image/DataFiim Retention, Check-Out and Copying Policy

Page 2 of 3

E. REQUEST COPY OF REPORTS/MAMMOGRAMS/ULTRASOUNDCORYING:
1. Requests for copies of report/images on a discéims should be directed to the Film Library.
2. Requests by patients:

a. Patients may check out their original reports/mammograms only if they complete
the authorization form for disclosure of individually identifiable health
information, as set forth and consistent with California and Federal law
concerning the privacy of such information.

b. Patients need to fill out the Authorization for Use or Disclosure from and sign the
form by presenting their identification documents.

3. Requests by Mammography from outside facilities:

a. Women’s Diagnostic Center may request a copy of
reports/mammograms/ultrasounds through Medical Record Department Fax
Transmittal Sheet.

b. Patient needs to sign and fill out the authorization form to authorize the release

of medical records, mammograms and reports to Tri-City Medical Center
Women’s Diagnostic Center,

211



Mammography Women's Cenler
| Mammography Image/DataFilm Retention, Check-Out and Copying Policy
Page30of 3

cC. Mammographer needs to send the release of authorization request by finding the
fax number from Mammography Centers Directory.

F. FACSIMILE TRANSMISSI ON (FAX):

1. In accordance with Administrative Compliance Policy: Faxing Protected Health Information
522-and-Prosedura#342, confidentiality of all patient records must be maintained at all times,
and is not to be discussed with any person not directly associated with the case.

2. Facsimile machines may be used to transmit confidential information (e.g., reporis),
but reasonable care must be taken to assure the information reaches its destination
{e.q., confirmation form) and is kept confidential.

3. Per Administrative Information Technology Policy: Fax Transmissions 616 Aa FAX
transmittal sheet must accompany any records that are sent via facsimile machine and
maintained as a permanent part of the patient's file. See-attached-form-

G. DISCIPLINARY ACTION:
1. Failure to follow these guidelines for film retention and release will result in disciplinary action.

H. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Administrative Compliance Policy: Faxing Protected Health Information 8610-522

2, Administrative Compliance Policy: Patient Access to Protected Health Information in the
Designated Record Set 8610-516
4:3. Administrative Iinformation Technology Policy: Fax Transmissions 8610-616

L REFERENCE(S):
21. U.S. Food & Drug Administration (2017, November 16) Mammography Quality Standards

Act and Program. Retrieved from https://www.fda.gov/Radiation-

EmittingProducts/MammographyQualityStandardsActandProgram/default.htm

212



@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN S CENTER

ISSUE DATE: 05/11 SUBJECT: Mammography Medical Outcomes
Audit

REVISION DATE(S): 03/13

Mammeography Department Approval: 10117
Department of Radiology Approval: 064810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 01119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11

A. AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM:

1. Computer data input and output coordinated by Mammography supervisor. Pathology
reports and mammography exams are correlated by—tha—Bmasl—Heakh—Nwse—Nawgater—and
presented to the lead interpreting Radiologist for review and presentation at the Radiclogy
Division meeting.

3. PURPOSE:
1. To statistically aggregate patient mammography data outcomes for physician analysis and to
comply with Mammography Quality Standard Act (MQSA) standards.

C. POLICY:
1. Medical Audit analysis will be prepared, reviewed and presented semi-annually at the
Radiology Division meeting. Audit analysis must be retained for 36 months.

D. PROCEDURE:
1. Tri-City Medical Center's system for tracking positive mammograms is as follows:
a. Mammograms with "suspicious” or "highly suggestive of malignancy" assessment:
i. The interpreting radiologist will explain the results to the patient.
fii. The radiologist will pheredictate and finalize the report.
i, tThe reportresulis will automatically be sent to the referring physician-with

iv. Mammography department’s patient coordinator will phone the referring
physician office to follow up radiologist’s request for new findings.

v, The letter will be mailed to the patient, within 5 working days, indicating the
need to follow-up with their physician on any abnormal finding.

ivi. Nurse-ravigaterMammography supervisor tracks pathology results for all
breast biopsies. The pathology report is verbally called and faxed to the
ordering physician by the mammography supervisor BreastHaalth-Nurse
Navigater within 24-48 hours of result.

vii.  Once pathology report has been called into ordering physicianMb the report
is then scanned into PAC system for radiology-pathology correlation by lead
interpreting radiologist. The pathology reports are given to the Mammography
Supervisor who will serrslate document this information with-the into patient's
mammogram’s chart+r-the through computerized mammography medical

213



Mammography Women's Canter
Mammagraphy Medical Outcomes Audit Policy

Page 2 of 2
audit.
viii. Women's Diagnostic tracking system for “positive mammography
findings” as “suspicious or highly suggestive Malignancy”:
ix. 1) Determines whether biopsies are done on the patient by tracking the
list of Birads 4&5 through Discern Analysis on Cerner
X. 2) Determines whether the biopsy specimen was benign or malignant by

tracking pathology on patient’s power chart and directing the report to
lead interpreting physician for correlation.
w=xi. 3} Facility provides list of any non-compliant patients who were
recommended biopsy but not result were obtained. Facility documents
all attempts to provide this information.

= - - — La¥a T PV - -

E. TO RETRIEVE CLINICAL OUTCOMES DATA:

Log on to Gemer Cerner application mammography

Select Medical Audit icon

Select date range and run reports

Print rep011and submit to lead interpreting radiologist for review and presentation
Place report in Medical Audit Binder for documentation.

F. REFERENCE(S}:
81. U.S.Food & Drug Administration (2017, November 16) Mammography Quality

Standards Act and Program. Retrieved from https://iwww.fda.qov/Radiation-

EmittingProducts/MammographyQualityStandardsActandProgram/default.htm

R

214



@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN’'S CENTER

=5 .2 =

| ISSUE DATE: 12/99 SUBJECT: Mammography Quality Assurance
(QA) Plan
| REVISION DATE(S):
Mammography Department Approval: 10117
| Department of Radiology Approval: 06/4810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 0811

A. PURPOSE:
1. To ensure the safety, reliability, clarity and accuracy of mammography services performed at
Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC).

B. POLICY:
1. The Edgar and JoAnne Jones Mammography Quality Assurance Program will meet the

I Mammography Quality Standard Act (MQSA) standards and those of other appropriate
regulatory bodies. The program will be reviewed bi-annually by the responsible mammography
interpreting physician as mandated by California Code of Regulations, Title 17, Section
30317.20. The program will consist of multiple parts and be supported by a system that
incorporates the following:
a. Audit of Results

i. Whereby positive results are entered into the system

. System in place to obtain all pathology results

jii. System in place to compare pathology results with physician interpretations

iv. Analysis data kept for at least 24 months following the analysis

Reporting of Results - communication of results to patients and physicians.

Appropriate procedures to ensure consistency and safety in performance and

procedures.

Defined processes/responsibilities to support the service

Monitering of important aspects of care

Patient satisfaction data

Competent staff - orientation, training, and continuing education

Equipment - Quality Control testing and corrective actions followed up when results not

acceptable

i. Annual Medical Physicians Survey performed in a timely and complete manner, with

results and recommendation reviewed by the facility
i. Performance improvement

oo

Se~oa

C. RESPONSIBILITIES :

1. Responsible individuals shall:
a. Be qualified for assignments,
b. Know the specifics of their assigned tasks.
| c. Have adequate time to perform duties.
| DIT-ClinicaliMammography-Q-A—Rian

215



Mammography Women's Center
Ralisy-Ftle-Mammography Quality Assurance (QA) Plan Policy
Page 2 of 2

D. EXTERNAL LINK(S):
&1. Mammography Quality Standards Act (MQSA) of
1998 https://www.fda.gov/downloads/Radiation-
EmittingProducts/MammographyQualityStandardsActandProgram/Regulations/UCM1108

49.pdf

B-E. REFERENCE(S):
1. California Code of Regulations, Title 17, Section 30317.20

+2. Mammography Quality Standards Reauthorization Act, Pub. L., Title XLIl § 263b. (1998).

216



o
@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER
RAHENT-CARE-SERVIGES-ROLICY- MANUAL

Y, - O tieCant
ISSUE DATE: 01/00 SUBJECT: Scheduling of Self-Referring
Mammography Patients
REVISION DATE(S): PG R 2R
CROSS REFERENCE
Mammography Department Approval: 10117
Department of Radiology Approvai: 06/4810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 01119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11
A. DEFINITIONS:

1. Self-Referred: comes for a mammogram but has no personal health care provider or the
provider declines responsibility.

2, Self-Requesting: has taken the initiative to come for a mammogram, can name health
care provider, but does not have a referral.

A-B. PURPOSE:
1. To clarify the Women's' Center self-referral process for screening versus diagnostic exams.
2. To clarify follow up for the self-requesting and self-referring patients.

B:.C. POLICY:

1. The Women’s Center will perform self-referral exams for screening only. Self-referring patients
with breast symptoms must have a physical exam by an physicianM-D- prior to mammogram
scheduling.

2. FEMGC-The Women's Center will ensure that follow up for self-referring and self-requesting

patients meet MQSA standards.

&:D. PROCEDURE:
1. Scheduling:

4-a.  The scheduler will confirm whether the exam is for screening or diagnostic purposes.

2:b.  The scheduler will ask for referring physicianh-D- for all patients.

3:c.  The scheduler will inform the self-referring patient with breast symptoms of this Policy
(Diagnostic Exam) and provide the Breast Help Line number, 940-5100 for physician
referral information.

2. Interpretation:

a. Self-referred: The interpreting physician will assume responsibility for women's
breast care; including education and physical exam, communication of results
(see Mammography Policy: Communication of Results).

b. Self-requesting: The Women's Center will document that the designated provider
accepts responsibility for follow up, or the interpreting physician will assume

responsibility for women's breast care treat-the-patientas-abovein4-1, if

physician declines.

STiEorms03RoliciesiMammolSell-Reforrale._7.03
217



Mammography

| Scheduling of Self-Referring Mammography Patients Policy
Page 2 of 2

=

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
| 41. Mammography Policy: Communication of Results

218



@b) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER
PATENIT-CARESERMICES POLISY MAMNUAL

Woemen's Diaghostic Center
ISSUE DATE: SUBJECT: Screening Mammography
REVISION DATE(S): POUCY-HILUMERR:
CRRSS REFERENGE:
Mammography Department Approval: 10117
Department of Radiology Approval: 0614810/18
Pharmacy &Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 1118
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11
A AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM:

1. Licensed Radiologic Technologist processing certification from the American Registry of
Radiology Technologists (A-R-R-R:) and the California Certified Radiologic Technologist
(C-R-T:) in Mammography. Must have performed 200 mammograms in a 24-month period.

S. PURPOSE:

1. To provide consistent guidelines for screening mammograms to detect unsuspected breast
cancer in symptomatic women and meet all Mammography Quality Standard Act (M-Q-S-A:)
and American College of Radiology (A-C-R:) accreditation requirements

C. POLICY:

1. Screening Mammography is indicated in symptomatic (including patients with a family history of
breast cancer) women at least 40 years of age, with or without referring physicianM-B- order.
4a. Exception: Screening mammography will not be done on pregnant or lactating women

uniess ordered by physician.
D. PROCEDURE:
1. Standard views to be done:
2-a. Craniocaudal (cc)
3:b. Mediolateral (mlo)

4:2. | the patient is a symptomatic and/or something abnormal is seen on mammogram, show films
to Radiologist for recommendations for additional imaging studies. The Radiologist will complete
an "Additional Evaluation Required" form, which constitutes a diagnostic order from
physiciani-B.

§-3. If a breast abnormality is identified on the same date of service prior to the patient leaving, and
additional films are performed, the patient's screening mammogram will be edited by the
technologist to a diagnostic mammogram as per Radiologist's orders.

6-4. Ifthis breast abnormality is identified after the patient has left our facility, the patient will be
billed for the screening mammogram on the original date of service and will be billed for a
diagnostic mammogram on the return visit.

5. One copy of this order will be given to the registrar in the Women's Diagnostic Center and a
second copy to the Billing Department.

EXTERNAL LINK(S):

219



Mammography Women's Center
Screening Mammography Policy
Page 2 of 2

1. Mammography Clinical Experience Requirements
(2017) https:/iwww.arrt.org/docs/default-source/discipline-

documents/mammography/mammography-clinical-experience-requirements-
2017.pdf?sfvrsn=4

F. REFERENCE(S):
+1.  AART (2017, July 1) Updated Mammography Content Specifications, Clinical Experience

Requirements, and Task Inventory. Retrieved

from https://www.arrt.org/news/2017/03/22/updated-mammography-content-
specifications-clinical-experience-requirements-and-task-inventory-effective-july-1-2017

220



@) L ) DELETE - incorporated into
Tri-City Medical Center | Scheduling of Self-Referring

Oceanside, California Mammography Patients
Mammography
o oD} o Cont
ISSUE DATE: 61/00 SUBJECT: Self-Referring & Self-Requesting
Patients
REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER:
CROSS-REFERENCE

Mammeography Department Approval-Date{s): 10117
Department of Radiology Approval-Date{s}): 08/1810/18
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval-Date{s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval-Bate(s): 11/18
Administration Approval: 01119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date(s): n/a
Board of Directors Approval-Date{s): 08/11

221



-
(ev) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MAMMOGRAPHY WOMEN'S CENTER
PATEM T CARE SERICES ROLICY WMAMNIIAL

~ s Dj i Cont
ISSUE DATE: 11/99 SUBJECT: Staff & Personnel Listing Women's
Center
REVISION DATE(S):
PO piUyisER
CREECTERERENG=
Mammography Department Approval: 1017
Department of Radiology Approval: 06M1810/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 0119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/11

A. PURPOSE:

1. In addition to quality control (QC) test records, a quality assurance (QA) program includes
clearly assigned personnel responsibilities. The QA program should identify the person
responsible for overall quality assurance and compliance with the quality standards at the
facility. It should also identify the QC technologist and the medical/ physicist and describe their
responsibilities within the QA/QC program

B. PERSONNEL.:

1. The Edgar and JoAnne Women's Center has an actively involved lead interpreting radiologist to
oversee the program. The program also includes a physicist and a Mammography Diagnostic
Specialist who serves as the facility's Quality Control technologist. Other technologists and
darkroorm-personnel help with testing.-but-Tthe Diagnostic Specialist ensures that the program is
being-run according to MQSA standards. All personnel associated with mammography services
must meet the MQSA qualifications, training and continuing education requirements.

2, See the Mammography Staff and Responsibilities List

C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
21. Mammography Staff and Responsibilities List

D. EXTERNAL LINK(S):
1. Mammeography Quality Standards Act (MQSA) of
1998 https:/iwww.fda.gov/idownloads/Radiation-
EmittingProducts/MammographyQualityStandardsActandProgram/Requlations/UCM1108

49.pdf
2. The Mammography Quality Standards Act Final Regulations: Preparing for MQSA

Inspections; Final Guidance for Industry and FDA
(2001) https://www.fda.gov/downloads/MedicalDevices/DeviceRequlationandGuidance/G

uidanceDocuments/ucm094441.pdf

REFERENCE(S):
1. Mammography Quality Standards Reauthorization Act, Pub. L., Title XLIl § 263b. (1998).

o

222



Mammography Women's Center
Staff & Personnel Listing Women's Center Policy
Page 2 of 2

3:2, U.S. Food & Drug Administration (2017, November 16} Mammography Quality Standards
Act and Program. Retrieved from https:/fiwww.fda.qov/Radiation-

EmittingProducts/MammographyQualityStandardsActand Program/default.htm

223



Mammography Staff and Responsibilities List

Name Pgr/Ext/Telephone Primary Responsibilities
Lead Interpreting Physician
Responsible Pgp720-025-00584 Clinical/Medical Oversight of
Radiologist Dr. William—-Johrsor | Ext—4055 Marmmography Program Auditing
Jennifer Mayberry Hm: interpreting Physician
Communication
desk: 760-940-7815
Mobile: 503-330-
5719
Responsible Pgr: QC/QA program,
Technologist Margaret Patterson | Ext: 5573 ensure MQSA standards

Nazita Sanders

Hm: 760 758-0007
Work mobile phone:
760-696-7964

Qc
Technologists

Karen Niggli Connie
George

Pgr:
Ext: 5572
Hm:

Daily Calibrations, Mammography

Radiation Safety QC, Program

Physicist Glen DeaconFady 619 421-7670 Validation,
Khassem 562-234-7664 Equipment

Imaging Cell: 760 802-7299
Operations Lou Bello Ext: -3063 7225 Daily Operations
Manager Bucky Basaez

Work Mobile phone

number:Hm:

760-277-0422

Imaging Director

Steve Young

Cell: 760 208-7442
Ext: 3980
MobileHm: 760 757-
8969

Administrative Oversight, Budget,
QA/QC/P! Programs for
departments

224



‘@? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE MANAGEMENT

| ISSUE DATE: 10/08 SUBJECT: Utilization Review Process

REVISION DATE(S): 04/10, 02/12, 02/13

Case Management Department Approval-Date{s): 414/1510/18
Utilization Review Committee Approval-Date{s): HH1811/18
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nia
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval-Date{s): 04461118
Administration Approval: 0119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date(s): 02H6 n/a
Board of Directors Approval-Date{s}: 02/16
A. PURPOSE:

1. To establish criteria for utilization review process.
B. POLICY:

1.  Case Management staff will utilize hospital approved (InterQual®) Severity of liness/Intensity of

Service (SI/1S) guidelines to perform and document admission reviews, observation status and
continued stay reviews, discharge disposition review and retroactive review for all patients as
stated in this procedure.

2. Case Management staff will identify appropriateness of level! of care (i.e. ICU/CCU,
DOU/Telemetry, Acute Care, Monitored Med/Surg, Rediatres, NICU, and Women's Care
Services).

3. Case Management staff shall identif-review admission criteria for Observation vs. Inpatient.

4, Every reasonable effort shall be made se-that-for appropriate admission criteria are-to be

documented inthe-approprate-EMR-within 24 business hours of admission.

PROCEDURE:
1. Admission Review
a. All new Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Admissions {Inpatient & Observation Service)
and transfers within-toTCMC {example-2-R{e1GL)-shall have an initial InterQual®
review performed not later than 24 business hours following admission to TCMC,-seven
(—l)—elays—per—week—to determine appropriateness of an admission to a Level of Care®.
i, Priority of Initial Review:

1) Medicare
2) Medi-Cal & Cash
3) Commercial Insurance

ii. Every reasonable effort shalt be made to complete Initial CM Reviews within 24
calendar hours of admission to TCMC

ii. EXCEPTIONS: Routine postpartum, newborn care.

1) Vaginal Delivery - provide review 48 hours following delivery
2) Cesarean Section Delivery — provide review 96 hours following delivery
b. Admission Review shall include a “Patient Status Reconciliation” — the physician order
must match the correct level of care- Inpatient vs Outpatient / Observation,

i, Case manager shall contact the admitting physician to discuss any discrepancy
and clarify the physician’s intent. The Case Manager shall contact the UM
Medical-Directo-PhyscianPhysician Advisor as needed.

c. Clinical review findings shall be documented in Allscripts (InterQual®); within 24
business hours of admission.

225



Patient Cars Management
Utilization Review Process Policy
Page 2 of 3

i. The following medical groups’ Utilization Management staff will perform utilization

review for their capitated patients per contractual agreement.

1) PCAMG (Primary Care Associates Medical Group)

2) GTCIPA (Greater Tri-City Independent Physician Association)
3) Graybill Medical Group (except CHG)

ii. TCMC Case Management staff and the medical groups’ utilization management
staff will have ongoing communication regarding cases, issues, problems, on an
as-needed basis.

2. California Children's Services {CCS)

a. Identify all patients under the age of 21 and screen for potential CCS eligible diagnosis
(refer to CCS approved diagnoses).
b. Review all patients under 21 for changes in clinical condition representing a potential

California Children’s Services (CCS) -eligible condition. If the patient appears to mest
the eligibility criteria, a referral is made to the Social Worker and communication is made
to the Busmess Off ice to generate a referral to CCsS.

3 California Department of Correction (CDCR):
a. Clinical updates shall be provided daily Monday through Friday via pre-scheduled

conference call
4, Ct:ntinued Stay Review'
a. All inpatients will be reviewed for Continued Stay-, Monday — Friday, utilizing InterQual®

guidelines’ Intensity of Service (IS) and appropriateness of level of care and medical
necessity asfollews-(unless Payor has been granted electronic health record (EHR)
Access by TCMC for the purposes of perforrmng thelr own cllmcal revnews)

&b.  If Continued Stay cntena are not met or the current level of care is no longer appropriate,
dissuss-case is discussed with the attending/treating physician-te-determine-the-plan-of
zare,

i. NOTE: If attempts to contact/discuss the case with the attending/treating
physician are unsuccessful, refer case to the Physician Advisor.

gc. InterQual® reviews shall be provided to the payer / review organization via Allscripts or
in manner requested by the payer.

i. The payer information (including authorization number and days authorized) will
be documented in Affinity under the PA notes for the specific patient.

e-d. When a patient is transferred to another area of the hospital, the transferring case
manager / social worker is responsible for:

i, Hand-Off Communication to accepting Case Manager / Social Worker utilizing
SBAR format as adopted by TCMC, and documented in Allscripts

226



Patient Care Managemeant
Utilization Review Process Policy
Page 3of 3

ii. Completing all electronic medical record documentation.

D. REFERENCE(S):

1. InterQual Level of Care Criteria, Acute Care - Adult (Annual Edition as appropriate & updated)

227



o
@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PHARMACY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 05/94 SUBJECT: Antidote Stocking
REVISION DATE(S): 04/97, 08/00, 05/02, 02/03, 07/06, POLICY-NUMBER: 8390-10002

07/09, 01112

Pharmacy Department Review: 10/4709/18
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 02/03,07/06,-07/00,14/12,14/1409/18
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/03,07/06,-0709,4/12,01/1511/18
Administration Approval: 0119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/45 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 02/03,0H06,-072/00, 112, 2/15
A. DEFINITION(S):
1. Antidote: a substance which can counteract a form of poisoning
B. PURPOSE:
1. To ensure supply of antidotes are consistently available, controlled, and secured
C. POLICY:
1. Antidote medications will be primarily stocked in the Pharmacy Department
2. Antidote medications that require immediate administration upon patient arrival shall be stored
in the Emergency Department
3. Pharmacy will supply a minimum of an 8 hour supply of antidotes unless mechanisms for more
rapid resupply or transfer is in place
4, Pharmacy will supply up to 24 hours for patients likely to be maintained for longer periods or
when definitive care is planned
5. A list of antidotes stocked and approved for use at Tri-City Medical Center shall be reviewed
and maintained at least annually; available via the Intranet (see attachment)
6. The telephone number of the Poison Control Center shall be posted in the Pharmacy,
Emergency Department, and all other patient care areas
D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Antidote Information Chart
E. REFERENCE(S)

1. Dart RC et al. Expert Consensus Guidelines for Stocking of Antidotes in Hospitals that Provide
Emergency Care. Annals of Emergency Medicine. 2000;-54{3)-386-3842017 doi:
10.1016/j.annemergmed.2017.05.021. [Epub ahead of print]

2. California Poison Control System. Antidote Chart. Last Updated Gstebert4-2044March 2017.
Available from: http.//www.calpoison.org/hcp/home.html. Date Assessed: Octobera4-
20440ctober 11, 2017.

228



Antidote Information Chart

Generic/Brand Toxin Notes Stocking Stocking
Recommendation* Lacation
Acetyleysteine/Mucomyst Acetaminophen poisoning | Use orally. Dilute at least by 3:1 8 hours: 28 g or 5 x 30ml (20%) | Pharmacy
(oral) ratio vials
24 hours: 56g or 10 x30 ml
(20%) vials
Acetylcysteine/Acetadote Acetaminophen poisoning | Loading dose should be infused over | 8 hours: 24g or 4 x 30ml (20%) | Pharmacy
av) 45-60 minutes. Generic N- vials
acetylcysteine can be used if 24 hours: 30g or 5 x 30ml
Acetadote is unavailable (consult (20%) vials
with poison control and administer
via a micropore filter)
Antivenom Crotalidae Rattlesnake venom 8 hours: 18 vials Pharmacy
Polyvalent Immune-FAB Al T
{ovine)/ CroFab
Antivenom Black Widow Black Widow Spider Risk of allergic hypersensitivity 8 hours: ] vial Drop ships from
Spider/Antivenom venom (equine). 24 hours: | vial Merck only if
case presents
(Latrodectus Mactans) due tE litrrited
availability
Call 800-672-
6372
Atropine Sulfate Organophosphate/carbam | May require large amounts in severe | 8 hours: 100mg or 13 vials ED and
ate insecticide and other cholinesterase inhibitor poisoning. {0.4mg/ml, 20m| each) Phanmacy
cholinesterase inhibiters Also stocked in the Strategic 24 hours: 200mg or 26 vials
(i.e. warfure agents), National Stockpile but will need {0.4mg/ml. 20l each) Use
bradycardia induced by a | supplies for first 48 hours. preservative free product
variety of toxin Coordinate with local Homeland
Security Office
Calcium Chloride Calcium channel blocker | Can cause severe tissue necrosis if 8 hours: 10 g or 10 vials (10%, | ED and
poisoning; hypocalcemia | extravasation occwrs, Central 10ml) Pharmacy
induced by various agents | administration recommended or give | 24 hours: 10gor 10 vials (10%,
calcium gluconate 10ml)
Calcium Gluconate Hydrofluoric acid skin 8 hours: 30g or 30 vials (10%, ED and
eXposure or poisoning; 10ml}) Pharmacy
hypocalcemia induced by 24 hours: 30g or 30 vials (10%,
a variety of agents 10ml)
Carnitine (L- Hyper ammonemia from 8 hours: 10g or 10 x Ig vaals Pharmacy
Carnitine)/Carnitor valproic acid toxicity 24 hours: 10 x 25g tubes E
Cyanide Antidote Cyanide; sodium Newer, safer, and easier to use than 8 hours: 10g or 2 kits , ED and
Kit/Cyanokit nitroprusside toxicity conventional cyanide kit. Contains 24 hours: 10g or 2 kits | Pharmacy
hydroxycobalamin. May cause red |
discoloration of unne and skin. May
cause laboratory test interference
Dantrolene Malignant hyperthermia 8 hours: 1000 mg or 50x 20 mg | Surgery/OB OR
vials MH Carts and
Pharmnacy
24 hours: 1300 mg or 56 vials
Deferoxamine/Desferal iron poisoning IV use only 8 hours: 12g or 6 x 2g vials ED and
24 hours: 36gor 18 x 2g vizls Pharmacy
Digoxin Immune digoxin poisoning; other | Consult with peison center regarding | 8 hours: 15 vials Pharmacy
. s e cardiac glycosides (i.¢. dosing, especially for cardiac 24 hours; 20 vials
FAB(ovine)/ DigiFab oleander, foxglove) glycosides than digoxin
Dimercaprol/ BAL in oil Heavy metal poisoning IM administration only 8 hours: 600mg or 2 amps Pharmacy
10% (100mg/ml, Iml each)
24 hours: 1800mg or 6 amps
{100mg/ml, 3ml)
DMSA (Succimer)/Chemet | Heavy metal porsoning 8 hours: 1gor 10 x 100mg Phammacy
capsules
24 hours: 3gor 30 100mg
capsules

229



EDTA-Calcium/Versenate

Heavy metal poisoning

8 hours: Igor 1 x 1(0mg/5ml
amp

Drop shipment
from

24 hours: 3g or 3 x 1000mg/5ml | Amerisource
amp Bergen Specialty
only
Generic/Brand Toxin Notes: ‘Stocking Stocking
Recommendation Location’
Flumazenil/Romazicon Benzodiazepine overdose | Primarily used for iatrogenic over 8 hours: 6mgor 6 x 1mg/1ml ED, Pharmacy,
sedation. Use in patients on chronic | vials Crash Carts
benzodiazepines may cause
withdrawal seizures. Caution with 24 hours: 12mgpr 12
seizure disorders and head injury. x1mg/10m) vials
Use small doses initially to avoid
abrupt awakening/delirium,
Fomepizole/Antizol cthylene glycol toxicity or | Manufacturer wall replace expired 8 hours: 1.5gor | x 1.5ml Pharmacy
methano! poisoning stocks (1g/ml) vials
24 hours: 45gor3 x 1.5mi(]
g/ml) vials
Glucagon beta blocker/calcium Anticipate nausea and vomiting 8 hours: 90mg ov 90 x 1mg kit ED and
channel blocker toxicity 24 hours: 250mg or 250 x lmg | Pharmacy
kits
Idarucizumab Monoclonal antibody that | Specific enly for dabigatran; not 8 hours: 5gor2 x (2.5g/ 50mL) | Pharmacy
binds to dabigatran and its | effective for other oral anticoagulants | vials
acylglucuronide
metabolites and 24 hours: 10 g or 4 x (2.5g/ 50
neutralizes their mL) vials
anticoagulant effects
Leucovorin Folic acid antagonist 8-24 hours: 300 mg or 3 (100 Pharmacy
mp} vials
Levocarnitine Acute valproic acid 8hours:9gor9x 1g(200 Pharmacy
toxicity mg/ml) vials
24 hours: 15gor 15x Ig (200
mg/mi) vials
Lipid emulsion 20%/ Lipophilic cardiotexic Immediately after administration 8-24 hours: 3000 mL or 12 bags | Pharmacy
Intralipid drugs severeal lab tests of patient (250 ml each)
scrum/blood may be interpretable
Methylene Blue methemoglobinemia 8 hours: 400mg or 4 x 10ml Pharmacy
(10mg/ml) amps or 8 x 10 ml]
(0.5 mg/ml) amps
24 hours: 600mg or 6 x 10ml
(10mg/ml) amps or 12 x 10 ml
(0.5 mg/ml) amps
Naloxone/Narcan opiate overdose Use small initial doses to aveid 8 hours: 20mg or 50 x ED, Pharmacy,
abrupt awakening/withdrawal 0.4ml2ml amps or10 x 2mg/2 ml | Crash Carts
syringes
24 hours: 40mgor20x
|_2mp/2ml syringes
Octreotide oral sulfonylurea Do not use long-acting depot 8 hours: 200 mcggr2 x Iml Pharmacy
: poisoning products (0.1mg/ml) amps
acetate/Sandostatin 24 hours: 1000mcg or 1 x Sml
{0.2mp/ml) multidose vial
Physostigmine/Antilirium anticholinergic poisoning, | Admnister at low dose (0.5mg)and | & hours: 4mgor2 x 2ml ED and
especially antimuscarinic | slowly, over 2-5 minutes to avoid (1ml/ml) amps Pharmacy
delirium severe adverse reactions including 24 hours: 20mg or 10 x 2ml
bradycardia, asystole, and seizures. (1mg/ml) amps

Contraindicated in TCA or similar
poiscning with prolonged QRS
intervals

230



Generic/Brand Toxin Notes Stocking Stocking
Recommendation Location
Pralidoxime (2- cholinesterase inhibitor Also stocked in the Strategic 8 hours: 7gor 7 x 1g (20ml) Pharmacy
poisoning National Stockpile but will need vials
) PAM)/Protopam (organophosphate or supplies for first 48 hours. 24 hours: 18gor 18 x 1g (20ml)
"nerve gas") Coordinate with local Homeland vials
Security Office
Pyridoxine (Vitamin B6) isoniazid (NIH) poisoning | Large amounts needed for poisoning: | 8 hours: 9g or 3 vials Pharmacy
5g is the minimal antidotal dose used | (100mg/ml, 30m! each) or the
in an ingestion of unknown amount. | equivalent
Note: the 100mg in | ml vials
contain the preservative 24 hours: 24g or 8 vials
chlorobutanol. A 5g dose requires 50 | (100mg/ml, 30ml each) or
of these vials and will deliver a toxic | equivalent.
dose of preservative, The 30ml vials
may anly be available from Use prescrvative free
compounding pharmacies product
Phytonadione (Vitamin K) | warfarin, warfarin-hased If patient has life threatening bleed, 8 hours: 50mg or 5 x 10mg/mi Pharmacy
rodenticide poisoning use in combination with prothrombin | amps
complex concentrate (PCC) or fresh 24 hours: 200mg gr 20 x
fiozen plasma 10mg/ml amps
Protamine Hepann reversal May also partially neutrahze low- 8-24 hours: 500 mg or 2 vials Pharmacy and
molecular weight heparins (10 mg/ml, 25 ml each) Surgery
Prothrombin Complex warfarin, aliemative oral There hnvc'zccn no studies Min: 5000 units or 5 x 1000 Pharmacy
. anticoagulants evaluating the effect of PCCs on unit/vials
Concentrate (Profilnine) (rivaroxaban/Xareho, bleeding in humans receiving the
apixaban/Eliguis)} new oral anticoagulants. Data is
limited but can be considered. See
Pharmacy Anticoagulation Prolocol
for more information
Sodium bicarbonate sodium channe] blocker IV bolus dosing for reversal of 8 hours: 63g (750 mEq) or ED and
toxicity & urinary sodium channel blockert toxicity; 750m] of 8.4% solution Pharmacy
alkalinization continuous infusion used for 24 hours: 84g (1000 mEq)or 1
alkalinization of the urine (aspirin liter of 8.4% solution
overdose). Monitor for alkalemia.
Uridine 5-FU, capecitabine Recommended for use within 96 8 hours: 20 ggor 2 x 10 g packets | Cardmnal Health
: . poisoning hours of last dose where toxicity is Specialty
triacetate/Vistogard evident or expected 24 hours: 40 gord x 10 g Division (SPD}
packets available 24/7
for urgent
delivery (1-866-
677-4844)

* Suggested Stocking Recommendation is based on dose to treat a single 100kg patient for 8 hours and for 24 hours for antidote purposes anly).
Subject to availability. Twenty-four hour supply may not be sufficient for entire treatment course

Dart RC et al. Expert Consensus Guidelines for Stocking of Antidotes in Hospitals that Provide Emergency Care. Annals

of Emergency medicine. 2017: doi: 10.1016/.annemergmed.2017.05.021. [Epub ahead of print]

California  Poison

Control

System.

Antidote

Chart. Last

Updated

from: hitp://www.calpoison.org/hep/home.html. Date Assessed: October 11, 2017.

March 2017.

Available

231



e}
‘69 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PHARMACY-MANUAL
ISSUE DATE: 10110 SUBJECT: Restricted Antimicrobials
REVISION DATE(S):
Pharmacy Department Approval: 03/4509/18
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval:
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: 10/10,-03/4509/18
Medical Executive Committee Approval: A E-OELEL0MRT1/18
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0718 nia
Board of Directors Approval: 18140,-07115
A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide a list of restricted antimicrobials where prescribing of such medications is limited to
specific indications or medical specialty in order to improve clinical outcomes, reduce rates of
emerging resistance, and reduce the incidence of adverse events.

2, To provide restriction criteria and outline requirements for prescribing and dispensing of
restricted antimicrobials

3. To provide a process that streamlines the approval of restricted antimicrobials

3, POLICY:

1. Restriction criteria shall be reviewed and revised at least annually by Pharmacy and the
Infectious Disease (ID) Physician based on usage patterns, microbiology data, and cost-
effective analyses.

2. Restriction Criteria shall be approved by the Pharmacy & Therapeutics (P&T) committee.

a. Use of antimicrobials that do not meet criteria shall require ID approval.
b. The Infectious Disease Physician shall collaborate with those who fail to comply with the
restriction guidelines set forth by P&T.

Ch All restrictions apply to inpatient and emergency room patients with the exception of patients

enrolled in investigational antibiotic drug studies.
C. PROCEDURE:

1. The clinical pharmacist and/or Pharmacy Ciinical Manager shall review all requests for restricted
antimicrobials.

2. If the patient meets criteria for use of the agent {see Antimicrobial Agents Requiring Approval:
Criteria For Use), the clinical pharmacist will approve the request.

3. I the patient fails to meet criteria, the prescriber will be notified that continued use of restricted
antimicrobials requires approval by the Infectious Disease Physician, and/or Intensivist as
indicated by criteria use guidelines-

4, If the prescriber insists on using a restricted antimicrobial, the patient will be provided with
enough doses (i.e. up to 24 hours, or through the weekend) to allow enough time for the
prescribing physician to contact the Infectious Disease Physician and obtain approval. The
prescriber will be notified of how many doses will be dispensed pending approval.

5. The Infectious Disease Physician will determine if the antimicrobial is indicated and provide
approval if continued use of restricted antimicrobial is deemed appropriate.

6. he-lnfectious-Disease-physician-shall-notify pharm agarding of-appravaklt is the

ordering physician’s responsibility to follow-up with a maintenance order for the
antimicrobial after approval from the Infectious Disease Physician has been obtained

232



Phamacy-banual
Restricted Antimicrobials Policy
Page 2 of 2

6:7. In addition to Infectious Disease Physician approval, all non-formulary agents require
approval from the Clinical Pharmacy Manager

| D. EORMS/RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Antimicrobial Agents Requiring Approval: Criteria For Use

233



ANTIMICROBIAL AGENTS REQUIRING APPROVAL: CRITERIA FOR USE

ANTIBIOTICS:
1. Amikacin
a. All use restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
2. Aztreonam (Azactam)
a. Treatment of documented aerobic gram-negative bacilli infections in which beta-

lactams are contraindicated due to a true anaphylactic penicillin or cephalosporin
allergy (any prescriber)
i Monotherapy should be used only when cultures and sensitivities have
been reported
b. Empiric therapy is restricted to Intensivists or Infectious Disease Physicians

23. Cefepime (Maxipime)
a. For treatment of documented Pseudomonas aeruginosa—Serratia-or-Acinetobacter

spesies- (any prescriber)
b. For empiric treatment of febrile neutropenia (any prescriber)

c. Other Eempiric therapy restricted to Oncologists, Rulmenelegy~Critical
GaresIntensivists, or Infectious Disease specialists-Physicians
4, Ceftaroline (Teflaro)

a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
5. Ceftolozane-tazobactam (Zerbaxa)
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
6. Ceftazidime (Fortaz)
a. For treatment of documented Pseudomonas aeruginosa (any prescriber)
b. Empiric therapy restricted to Oncologists, Intensivists, Infectious Disease

Physicians, or Nephrologists
7. Ceftazidime-avibactam (Avycaz)
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
8. Colistin/colistimethate
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians

9. Dalbavancin (Dalvance) & oritavancin (Orbactiv)
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
b. Should not be dispensed unless ordered by infectious Disease Physician and

approved by pharmacy Clinical Manager
10. Daptomycin (Cubicin)
a. For treatment of serious infections (except involving the urinary tract or lungs)
with confirmed vancomycin resistant Enterococcus faecalis/faecium (any
prescriber)

234



11.
12,

6-13.

14.

#15.

16.

17.

b. Empiric therapy or UTI is restricted to Intensivists or Infectious Disease

Physicians
Ertapenem (Invanz)
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
Fidaxomicin (Dificid)
a, Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
Linezolid (Zyvex@)-(Zyvox)
a. For treatment of desumented-serious infections (except involving the urinary tract) with

confirmed vancomycin resistant Enterococcus faecalisifaecium (any prescriber)

b. Empiric therapy or UTI is restricted to Rulmensclogy—Critisal-Caraelntensivists, or
Infectious Disease specialistsPhysicians

Fosfomycin (Monurol)

ba. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians

Meropeﬁem (Merrem)®)

a. For treatment of serious infections due to documented multi-drug resistant gram
negative bacilli that are only sensitive to the carbapenem class of antibiotics (any
prescriber)-

b. For treatment of extended-spectrum beta-lactamase (ESBL) producing
Enterobacteriacae.

C. Empiric therapy restricted to Oncologists, Rulmerelegy-Critisal-Garelntensivists, or
Infectious Disease specialists-Physicians

Meropenem/vaborbactam)

a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians
Quinupristin/dalfopristin (Synercid)
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians

ialists.
42:-18. Tigecycline Frygasi®)-(Tygacil)
a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Rhysisian-Physicians

13— Ceftarcline{Teflaro®)

235



ANTIFUNGALS:

1.

2.

Amphotericin B liposomal (Ambisome)

a. All use restricted to Oncologists, Intensivists, or Infectious Disease Physicians

Micafungin (Mycamine)

a. For treatment of documented invasive candidiasis (not urine or respiratory),
pending species identification (any prescriber)

b. Empiric therapy is restricted to Oncologists, Intensivists, or infectious Disease
Physicians

Posaconazole {Noxafil)

a. IV formulation: All use restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians

b. PO formulation: All use restricted to Oncologists or Infectious Disease Physicians

Isavuconazonium (Cresemba)

a. Non-formulary agent restricted to Infectious Disease Physicians

Voriconazole (Vfend)

a. For treatment of documented invasive aspergillus infections (any prescriber)

b. Empiric therapy or other fungal infections restricted to Oncologists, Intensivists,

or Infectious Disease Physicians

236



L)
(&) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PROGRESSIVE CARE UNIT

ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: High Profile Patient (HPP)
Admission Process
REVISION DATE(S): POLICY-NUMBER:{Optional)
Progressive Care Unit Department Approval: 07/18
s : Afa
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 11/18
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa

Board of Directors Approval:

A.

DEFINITION:

1.

A Law Enforcement Agency such as the California Department of Corrections and
Rehabilitation (CDCR) or the San Diego County Sheriff (SDSD) will alert the Progressive
Care Unit (PCU) Manager of the custodial status of the patient prior to admission.

+2. A High Profile Patient (HPP) may be identified as a person who is easily recognized by
either name or appearance. These patients will have notoriety in the public either through
media or gang affiliation. Outside of the incarcerated setting, these patients pose an
increased risk to the security of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD)TCME.

PROCEDURE:

1. Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Security -Managereof Patient Access Manager, Director of
Medical Records, -Senier-Director of Risk and Chief Nurse Executive (CNE) will be notified
immediately upon receiving information of incoming High-Rrofile-Ratient-{HPP) to the Progressive
Care Unit (PCU) by the PCU management team or designee.

a&2. The HPP will be admitted to room 300 or 314 to ensure that there is a reduction in foot traffic
outside of the patient door

2:3.  Only PCU core staff will be assigned to provide care for the HPP.

2-4.  The Patient Access Manager for Admitting or designee will be notified by PCU staff to register
the HPP.

5. j i Risk Management will register the patient.
4:a. The HPP will be registered as “John or Jane Doe" per TCMC's policy.

&b. The HPP will be directly admitted to the PCU unless emergency care is required.
6.c. The HPP will be registered at bedside.

#6. The Patient Access Manager will inform the Director of Medical Records of patient's
identification number so unauthorized chart access can be periodically monitored.

a7.  Off unit test or procedures will be scheduled as either the first or last patient of the day as long as
it does not pose any problem to the health and wellbeing of the HPP. Examples of test or
procedure and locations are as follows: (this list is not inclusive).

b-a. X-ray
&b. Intervention Radiclogy
éc. Computed Tomography (CT)
8d. MRI
8:8.  Nursing staff on the PCU will be educated daily about the TCMC privacy policy.

237



Progressive Care Unit

High Profile Patient (HPP) Admission Process Palicy

| Page2of2

40:9. If the HPP becomes critical or deemed to be actively dying, visitation will follow the California
Department of Correction and Rehabilitation/San Diego Sheriff Department visitation guidelines
as well as the following PCU guidelines:

a.
b.
c.
| d.

e.
f.

&h,

H-g.

All visitations must be known 24 hours in advance.

The names of all visitors will be given to the TCMC Security department

All visitors will check in with Security. Visitors will not be allowed to check in at the main
visitor desk.

Visitors will be escorted to the PCU by a TCMC Security Officer and then handed over to
the appropriate custody personnel

Visitors will not be allowed to carry any personal items into the PCU

Jackets, coats, and vests must be removed prior to entering the patient room and these
items are to be placed into a locker provided by the PCU.

Visitations will be limited to one hour.

After the visitation has ended, TCMC Security will be notified and will escort the visitor into
the main lobby area.

42:10. The PCU management team will monitor the HPP chart for unauthorized access

43-11. HIPAA violations and unauthorized chart access will lead to immediate disciplinary
actions up to and including immediate suspension of the employee pending investigation.

3-12. Once the HPP is discharged, Security, Risk, and the CNE will be notified by the PCU
management team or designee.

B:C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Patient Care Services Policy: In-Custody Patients
4:2. Patient Care Services Policy: Unidentified or Confidential Patient

238



2
(@’) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution

\
i

DELETE ~ no longer needed.
Content covered in Hospital
Policies and orientation.

Popscear

PROCEDURE: GENERAL SAFETY MANAGEMENT

Radiology

Pharmacy &

Medical

Professional

Department of Board of
Departmant Therapeutics Exscutive Administration Affairs "
Roview Radiology Committes Commitiee Committee 1L
02/18 10118 nia 1118 01/18 nfa 082011

239



Patient Care Services Procedure Manual
Imaging Services General Safety Management Procedure 128
Page 2 of 2

240



Distribution-maging-Services7633-122Radiology

-
(&9 Tri-City Medical Center

PROCEDURE:; AFFER-HOUR'S-MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI) AFTER HOURS
STUDIES-{e-be-performed-afiera1:00-utilizing-MRI-7633-122
Purpose: The following guidelines have been established in an effort to provide access to
MRI} services and ensure a safe environment
during off-hours (on-call).
Nursinetmolications:
Equipment: MRI Scanner
A. PROCEDURE:
1. After hours exam list. The only procedures to be performed after the department closes (after
hours) 21:88-are listed below.-Rriertc-10RM-all-MRI-servises-are-available-
a. Pregnant patient to rule out appendicitis

b Spinal Epidural hematoma/abscess

c. Cauda equina

&d. Magnetic resonance angiography (MRA) of the brain for stroke code follow-up
e

For other procedure, Fthe ordering physician of-the-MRl-procedureregquesiod-after
heurs-must contact the radiologist en-staff-after-8-pm-the-radiologist “on call’, to discuss

the medical necessity of performing an MRI exam during off-hours.

Zi.  The ordering physician shall notify the radiologist if the patient is unconscious,
unresponsive, cannot provide reliable history and there is no family that can
pravide information.

3:2. The emergent nature of the exam requested will be determined by the radiologist. if the exam is
deemed necessary, the radiologist will contact the Film Library and ask the records staff to call
in the MRI technologist on call duty.

4:3. After hours safety {after21:00)

a. A security-officersecond staff member trained in MRI safety shall be present during
procedures done after hours due to the remote nature of the MRI building. Under no
circumstances shall an MRI technologist be allowed to perform a MRI exam on a patient
without another MRI screened hospital member in attendance.

§4. MRI Services Hours of Operations
a. MRI department hours of operation:

i. Monday — Friday 07307%00am to 200024:00.

ii. Saturday - Sunday 0730-8:00am—to 18004:00pm-On-Call-at-end-ofrautina-shift.

—SnndenCa-callogl:
b. MRI staff on call when department is closedafler-heurs-on-call-hours-of-operation:

#5. Physician's Responsibility
8a. Ordering the MRI test and obtaining approval from the radiologist on duty, Ordering an
IV or IV lock on all inpatients fo be placed prior to transport for MRI. Assist with
completion of the MRI Medical History Questionnaire for Patient's who are unable to do
S0.
8:6. Nursing Staff’'s Responsibility
a. Supply the MRI Medical History Questionnaire to the patient for completion if the patient
is coherent and an accurate historian.

Radiology Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Department Deél:;::;:ent = Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs I?I‘:::?o?:
Review iad Committes Committee Committes
02/18 1018 nfa 11718 01/19 n/a 08/2011

241



I

Radiologylmaghg-Services-Rrocadura-Manual
After-Hours-MRI After Hours Studies Procedure 7633-122
Page 2 of 2
b. Notify MRI personnel if the patient is unconscious, unresponsive, can not provide
reliable history and there is no family that can provide information.
c. The nursing staff is responsible for placement of an IV or IV lock and assuring that the
MRI Medical History Questionnaire is complete prior to transporting the patient to MRI.
48:7. Unable to Perform Test
a. Patients who are severely claustrophobic, above the weight limit of 350 pounds or body
habitus (body shape) prohibits entry into magnet's bore.
14-8. Emergency Department
a. Nursing or hospital transport personnel shall transport a patient from the emergency
department to and from MRI. MRI requires a health care professional to remain with the
patient during after hour's procedures because of the remote nature of the MRI building.
429. Critical Care Patients
a, Nursing personnel from one of the critical care units shall transport critically ill patients to
and from MRI. MRI requires a health care professional to remain with any unstable or
critically ill patient.
43-10. General Care Unit
a. Nursing or hospital transport personnel shall transport a patient from a general care unit
to and from MRI. MR requires a health care professional to remain with the patient
during after hour’s procedures because of the remote nature of the MRI building.
+4-11. Conscious Sedation
a. Certain instances, such as conscious sedation, require that an RN {or MD} who is
competent to manage conscious sedation accompany the patient to MRI and remain
with the patient during the procedure. If the unit which houses the patient has no nurse
on duty that is competent to manage conscious sedation, the unit nursing supervisor
shall locate a qualified RN.
48-12. Ventilated Patients
a. If a patient requires continuous mechanical ventilation, a MRI compatible ventilator is
available and is housed in MRI zone 4. The Respiratory Therapist will determine if the
MRt compatible ventilator will be used or if the patient will be manually ventilated.
36-13. Patients Experiencing Emergency or Code in MRI
a. Full resuscitation cannot occur in MRI zone 4 (the scan room) because of safety issues.
b. MRI level 2 personnel will initiate basic life support and move the patient from the scan
room to a safe location where full resuscitation can continue.
B—ARRROVAL-RROCESS
2|. QI 1"'?.'9': Egl Imalg_ulgg ”
3 Profossional Afiairs.C it
. Board of Diroct

242



2]
(G") Tri-City Medical Center

Radiology
Disteibution: ina-Sarvicas-7633-144

PROCEDURE: MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI) EMERGENCY PROCEDURES 7633-111

Purpose: To provide emergency MRI Magnetic Safety Guidelines to MRI personnel and other
staff,

Equipment: MRI Scanners

A MEDICAL EMERGENCIES

1.
2,

4:5.

&-7.

Only trained MRI personnel may enter the magnet rooms without supervision. All other staff

must be directly supervised by trained MRI personnel.

In case of a Mmedical emergency;

a. Dial 66 to report the nature of the emergency along with the location to the response
team.

+b. Inform the operator the emergency is located in the MRI building and a-magnetic-safety
alert-must be communicated to the emergency responders.

Under no circumstances shall emergency medical response procedures be administered in the

magnet rooms. Emergency responders are not allowed to enter the MRI magnet rooms without

supervision of trained MRI personnel.

If the emergency is related to a patient complication, MRI personnel shall remove the patient

immediately from the magnet room and transport to the inpatient staging area in MRI Safety

Zone 3.

The magnet room door shall be closed upon removal of the patient to avoid entry of any

unsupervised staff. This precaution is to prevent the possibility of exposure of metallic objects to

the strong magnetic field and generate the missile effect.

During an emergency event MRI personnel or designee shall be posted outside the entrance

door to the MRI building and shall monitor ail emergency responders in order to prevent non-

approved equipment from entering the MRI building. All MRI emergency medical equipment is

located within the MRI building and is labeled MRI magnetic safe or MRI not magnetic safe.

If not already responding, the i i i Imaging Director or Operations

Manager shall be contacted and informed of the nature of the emergency.

All adverse events shall be documented on the Quality Review Report (QRR). The Safety

Officer, ImagingRadielegy Director, and Operations Manager shall be notified immediately via

telephone and within 48 hours in writing.

B. FIRE EMERGENCIES

1. In case of a Fire emergency;
a. Dial 66 to report the nature of the emergency along with the location to the response
team.
2b.  Inform the operator the emergency is located in the MRI building and a-magretis-safety
aler-must be communicated to the emergency responders.
4+2.  MRI personnel shall immediately remove the patient and other MRI personnel from the magnet
room and the building.
2:3.  If the fire occurs in the magnet room, the fire shall be extinguished using a non-ferrous fire
extinguisher (the fire extinguisher near the outside door of the control room is non-ferrous).
34. Ali doors shall be closed to contain the fire.
4:5. Emergency responders may only enter the magnet rooms under the direct supervision of trained
MRI personnel.
6. The serie~MRI Technologist shall supervise all emergency fire procedures
7. In the event that MR trained personnel are not on duty, Tri-City Healthcare District
(TCHD) Security will control access for emergency personnel to enter the building.
Radiclogy D Pharmacy & Madical Profassional
WR ; Department °§:§:‘:}::;°f Tg:r:‘;:&:l:s g:;c;m Administration = :r:lf:iil?ioa g;:;l;;
B 08/18 10118 na 11118 01119 nfa 08/11

243



Radiology

Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) Emergency Procedures Procedure 7633-111

Page 2 of

C.

2

CRYOGEN QUENCH EMERGENCIES:

§1. A quench of superconducting magnet refers to a sudden conversion of liquid helium or
nitrogen to vaparous gas. This is usually preceded by a visual or audible warning of a
quench resulting in a loss of oxygen within the scan room. The MRI machine is equipped
with a sensor and audible alarm system located adjacent to the operator’s console which
senses changes with oxygen levels within the scan room. In the unlikely event of a
supeconducting magnet quench, the major efforts must be directed to evacuating all
patients, TCMC staff and members of the public away from areas that vaporized gasses
may reach. Patient and personnel safety is the first concern. Equipment safety is
secondary.

2. Types of quench emergencies:

a. Small leaks: These would lead to small clouds of fog that clearly remains above the
head leve! and are visibly removed by the heating and air conditioning system (White fog
like plumes that sink to the floor). They consist of cold air and do not lead to suffocation.
In this case, overpressure is not present. There is not risk of suffocation for either the
patient or personnel. The patient can be removed in an orderly process. Contact with
cryogenic parts is prohibited.

b. Partial or complete failure of the quench line: large fog-iike clouds including impaired
visibility are present. These clouds spread at the level of a person’s head. In this case,
the pressure in the RF-room will increase as well. Open all doors (the control room door
first, and then the RF-room) and evacuate patients and personnel immediately.
Depending on the extent of the leak, patients, personnel and rescue responders may be
endangered. As a rule, rescue responders should not work alone, but rather in groups of
two or more members.

c. Usually, the strongest gas flow occurs only after several minutes and will subsequently
subside. However, the course of gas flow is not fully predictable since at the time of
occurrence, the type of error in the quench line is generally not fully known.

3:D. PROCEDURES:

4:1. In the event of a superconducting magnet quench with patients and personnel in the area
the followmg procedure must be followed
e-a. MRI personnel and patlents should be evacuated |n an orderly manner.

d:b. Dial 66 to report the nature of the emergency along
with the location to the response team. Inform the operator the emergency is located in
the MRI building and a-magnetic-safety-alest-must be communicated to the emergency
responders.

c. MR! personnel should mntnate the quench procedure in the event of catastrophic
fire event near the cryogen storage area or threat to life/safety:

s, Push quench button located in the MRI control room

6-d. In the event that MRI trained personnel are not on duty, hespital the -Security
Department will be notified to will-make the decision to quench the magnet and to
secure the area.

E—ARREOMA L RROCEES

4. Beard-ot-Birsctors

244



| A,

(@) o . RadiologyBistribution:
Tri-City Medical Center ; i
PROCEDURE: MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI) SAFETY ZONES 7633-113
Purpose: Establish MRI safety zones defined by the American College of Radiology safety
guidelines. Establish rules for the general public, unscreened MR! patients,
screened MR patient/personnel, screened MRI patients under constant direct
supervision by trained MRI personnel.
Equipment: MRI Scanners
PROCEUDRE:
1. MRI Safety Zone rules as defined by the American College of Radiology safety guidelines.

a. Zone 1 is unrestricted for the general public and patients. This area is the main lobby,
reception desk, registration desk, janitor's closet, MRI office, outpatient waiting area and
the outpatient waiting area bathroom.

b. Zone 2 is restricted access, for dressing rooms and immediate hallway, North hallway
outside scanner control room #1, side entrance and hallway located on the North end of
the building. No one is allowed in this zone unless accompanied by safety trained MRI
personnel. A verbal-sereeningforpasemakers- metallic screening of the patient or
visitor will be performed prierte for admittance to this zone.

c. Zone 3 consists of the scanner control rooms and inpatient waiting/staging area. Anyone
entering this area shall be required to remove all loose ferrous metal from their persons
and secure such in the lockers provided for this purpose. This includes physicians,
nursing staff and any other staff accompanying the patient.

d. Zone 4 consists of the MRI magnet rooms. No one may be brought into this area without

having completed the MRI metallic screening form. This form will have been reviewed
and srgned by the patlent and the—safety—traned— MRI persennel-technologist and

~This includes physicians,

nursmg staff and any other staff accompanylng the patlent Nothing may be brought into
this area without the direct authorization/supervision of the MRI technologist. MRI
magnet room doors must remain closed at all times.
2. MRL-All Technologist, Imaging Aid/Lift Team, Reseption; Environmental Staff-Registration,
Registration/ Reception, pharmacy staff, Nursing, Engineers, Materials Supply workers,
Security, Sstaff requirements::
3. All staff working in MRI,

re required to complete a MRI safety

in-service upon hire and annually thereafter. All MRI personnel are required to complete initiaf
MRI safety tralnlng and competenmes pnor to worklng in the department

fam#-y—member—) In the mstances where a famlly member accompanles the patlenteub}eet mto

the restricted area, safety trained MRI personnel will be assigned the role of Safety Monitor for
that person. Only one additional family member will be allowed into the restricted area at a time.
This rule i is in effect at aII times

6-5. j : :
Feqwed-te-have a—A minimum of two safety tralned MRI personnel must be present dunng the
scan session.

#6.  All personnel must have a working knowledge of, and a willingness to follow all safety
requirements.

| B——ARPROVAL PROCESS
Radlology T’harmacy & Madical Profassional
Wﬂ : Department De;: ;:::nt of Therapsutics Exacutive Administration Affairs g‘::;?o:;
Ravisten oy Committea Committee Committee
- 07118 1018 nia 1118 0118 nfa 08/11

245



Radlologylmaging-Serdees
MR} Safety Zones Procedura 7633-113
Pags 2 of 2

246



(@9 L i RadiologyBistribution:
Tri-City Medical Center i i
PROCEDURE: ORAL CONTRAST ADMINISTRATION 7433-106
Purpose: To assure safe practice when administrating oral contrast media.
Equipment
A. PROCEDURE
1. The radiology technologist or RN shall review the outpatient physician order prior to taking
patient back to procedure area or administrating oral contrast.
2. Procedures normally performed without the radiologist present in the room, which requires oral
contrast, shall be protocoled by the radiologist prior oral contrast administration.
3. Prior to administering the oral contrast the radiology technologist or RN shall confirm the patient

has properly followed the correct bowel preparation for the procedure to be done.

B. LABELING
1. A standardized method for labeling all medications will minimize errors. Anytime medications
are prepared but are not administered immediately, the medication will be labeled with
medication name, strength, date, time and secured in such a way that it can be readily
determined that the contents are intact and have not expired.

a. At a minimum, all medications are labeled with the following:
b. Medication name, strength, and amount (if not apparent for the container)
c. Single dose medication shall be discarded
I 6— APPROVAL PROGESS
2[. D! ;"'sl.'e'l' Eel Imagrlngg it
3 Profossional Affairs.C it
| 4 BoardofDirectors
Radiology l;harmacy & Madical Professional
WR ; Department D?:;::}:m of | Therapeutics Executiva Administration Aftairs glg::o::
} Roviclen ay Commitiee Committee Committee
| = 08/18 10118 nia 1118 0118 nfa 0811

247



|

er
(@9 Tri-City Medical Center

RadiologyDistribution:
IRaging-Servicos7633-126

PROCEDURE IMAGING SERVICES PATIENT INTERACTION 7633-126

Purpose: Guidelines for general conduct expected during patient interactions designed to assure our
patients are treated with dignity, compassion and respect.

Nursinalmelisations:

Eguizran

A PROCEDURE:

1. Always address your patient by their last name

2. Confirm two patient identifiers

2-3. Review patient gender identity preference

34. Always infroduce yourself to your patient and state your role. Educate the patient in terms that
are clear to the patient. Be sure to observe communication queues that the patient understands
you're expleitation explanation.

4:5. Always obtain the patients permission prior to any intervention. Instruct the patient as to what
steps you are about to take and ask the patient if it is ok to proceed. Communicate to the patient
each step/task you are going to take to complete the procedure as those tasks are being
performed.

&:6. When itis necessary to change a patient for artifact free imaging, explain the need for artifact
removal to the patient. Only have the patient remove clothing or jewelry that would cause an
artifact in the area of the exam.

6:7. Be aware that people can feel very vulnerable in a patient gown and make every attempt to
keep the patient properly covered. Offer a blanket to the patient to provide additional coverage.

+8.  If your patient appears to be uncomfortable, for any reason, acknowledge their concern and ask
what you can do to help the situation.

89. If the patient requests another person in the room, at any time, for any reason, get an escort or
second technologist immediately.

9-10. Male technologist shall never perform an endovaginal exam on a patient without a female
chaperone.

B—ARPPROVELPROGEES
4— Beard-efDireslors
Radioclogy Pharmacy & Medical Professionat
Wﬂ ; Daparl:nent Dt:!p:dr::':::lyof %::ﬁ&u g:r:c;:tltv:e Administration a :nftf:::gea g;:::?;:;
- 078 10118 nla 118 01119 nia 08/11

248



@ L . RadiologybBistribution:

Tri-City Medical Center i ‘
y PROCEDURE: PATIENT PROCEDURE REFUSAL 7633-127

Purpose: To guidelines to follow when a patient refuses to complete the imaging study.
Nursingdmalications:

Equiprment

A PROCEDURE

1. Any patient can refuse an imaging procedure at any time.

2. Technologist should make every effort to ensure the patient is educated regarding the
procedure.

3. If the patient refuses further testing after an imaging procedure has been started, the
technologist should submit any images for interpretation with a complete explanation of the
incomplete study.

4, The technologist should requesthave the charges adjusted according to what was actually
completed, taking any questions to their immediate supervisor.

4+5. Allimaging partial studies shall be interpreted and archived to Picture Archiving Computer
System (PACS) and reported in the elentronic health record (EHRher) by the radiologist even
if the study is incomplete.

B—APPROVEL PROCEES

2’_ E ‘|.|s|_|e||| EEI Imagl_mg; it

3 Profossional Affairs C i

4 Board-of Diract

T, e [y O -l o B~ B L
Raviewsd Committee Committee Committes Approved |
£/08; 6/11 07118 10118 na 118 o119 na 6/09; 6/11

249



| (@) ) ] RadiologyDistribution:
Tri-City Medical Center i :
"\ PROCEDURE: RADIOLOGIST'S COVERAGE NON-INTERVENTIONAL RADIOLOGY 7633-125
Purpose: To ensure efficient physician oversight/coverage of procedures performed in
diagnostic radiology service areas to reduce waiting times
Nursine Imelications:
' Equipment

A PROCEDURE:

1. The Radiologists scheduled specialty assignments will be posted in the reading room. Their
daily schedule, including information on days off will be posted. The schedule board will be
updated daily.

2, In order to minimize patient waiting times, a technologist should not wait more than 15 minutes
for a radiologist to arrive in the procedure area. If the radiologist assigned to the area is
unavailable, the technologist shall then seek another radiologist to perform the needed service.

3. If a technologist has waited more than the 15 minutes and cannot find another radiologist to

| perform the case, then the technologist should immediately contactpage the supervisor of the
area or contact the department manager or director for assistance.
B—ARRROVAL-PROCESS

2 Modical B five O it

3. Profossional- Affairs C i

4 Board of Diract

| Radiology [ pocoom [ Pharmacyd Medicat “Professional e
e | opiment | Mooy | Trpaas | S | Adeeston | | A | S
| = 06/18 1018 na 11118 01119 nia 02111

250



‘ @) Tri-City Medical Center

RadiologybBistributien:

\ PROCEDURE:

SCOPE OF SERVICES 7633-121

Purpose:

The department of Imaging Services provides diagnostic and therapeutic services to
all referred patient populations; i.e., necnatal, pediatric, young adult, adult and
geriatric. A referred patient population includes inpatients, outpatients and
emergency services patients.

Equipment '

LA,

A PROCEDURE:

1.

32,

6-5.

Routine imaging services are performed 24 hours a day with specialty areas on-call as needed
for emergency procedures at the main hospital campus. Outpatient services are provided at the
main hospital facility and off campus at the outpatient imaging center. Imaging services include:
Diagnostic Imaging
Fluoroscopy
Mammography
Nuclear Medicine —
Epidural Injections
Interventional Radiology

Computed Tomography

Medical Sonography

Bone Densitometry

Magnetlc Resonance Imagmg (MRI)

Including lodine Therapy

T S@hea0oD

Imaglng Serwces is staffed by board certlf ed radlologlst cllnlcal nurse manager. certlf ed
physician assistants, licensed technologist and registered or registry eligible medical
professionals including, registered general radiographer, registered diagnostic medical
sonographers, registered vascular technologist, registered nurses, registered nuclear medicine
technologist, registered MRI technologist, registered interventional technologist and registered
Computerized Fomagraphy-Tomography (CT) Technologist. Support personnel include
radiology records techs, transcnptnomst—bﬂmg—eee@nates

Each member of the imaging team is responsible for identification of opportunities for
improvement of the process and services. Select team members may be involved in data
collection and results outcome. All team member support accurate and effective data collection
for effective quality improvement.

Imaging services are integrated with medical and nursing services by referrals, consultations
and reporting results of therapeutic interventions and diagnostic procedures. The department
interacts with all hospital departments and with multiple outside interests including: vendors,
service engineers, physicists, schools, sales representatives, other clinical trainees, couriers,
and inspectors from the Joint Commission, California Department of Public Health (CDPH),
American College of Radiology (ACR), and Food and Drug Administration (FDA).

Imaging services team members participate in process improvement teams, continued quality
improvement teams and other multidisciplinary teams in accordance with the quality
management plan and Tri-City Health Care DistrictFSME&'s governance model.

Radiolegy Pharmacy & Medical Profassional

Dapartment
Revislon

Department of
Radiology

Therapsutics
Committee

Exacutive
Committes

Administration

Affairs
Committes

Board of
Directors

0718

10118

nfa

11/18

01118

nfa

08111

251



‘@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

REHABILITATION SERVICES ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 2197 SUBJECT: Physical Therapy Assistant
Supervision

REVISION DATE(S): 01/06, 01/09, 04/12, 05/15 POLICY NUMBER: 613

REVIEW DATE: 3/00,-4/03

Rehabilitation Department Approval-Date{s): 056/4405/18
Department of Medicine Approval-Date(s): ni/a

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval-Date{s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval-Date{s): 044511/18
Administration Approval: 01119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date{s): 05H5n/a

Board of Directors Approval-Date(s}): 05/15

| A PURPOSEPOLICY:

1. To comply with the Physical Therapy Regulations California Code of Regulations Title 16
Division 13.2 Article 4 Section 1398.44 for adequate supervision of Physical Therapy
Assistants.

B- s

1:2. The Physical Therapy Staff will be responsible to follow the progress of each patient, provide
direct care to the patient, and to assure that the physical therapy assistant does not function
autonomously.

| &B. PROCEDURE:
1. Adequate supervision shall include all of the following:

a. The supervising physical therapist shall be readily available in person or by
telecommunication to the physical therapy assistant at all times while the physical
therapy assistant is treating patients. The supervising physical therapist shall provide
supervision of the assigned patient care rendered by the physical therapy assistant.

b. The supervising physical therapist shall initially evaluate each patient and document in
the patient’s record, along with his or her signature, the evaluation and the plan of care.
C. The supervising physical therapist shall formulate and document in each patient's

record, along with his or her signature, the treatment program goals and plan based
upon the evaluation and any other information available. This information shall be
communicated verbally or in writing by the supervising physical therapist to the physical
therapy assistant prior to initiation of treatment by the physical therapy assistant. The
supervising physical therapist shall determine which elements of the treatment plan may

252



Rehabilitation Services
Physical Therapy Assislant Supervision Policy 613
Page 2 of 2

be assigned to the physical therapy assistant. Assignment of these responsibilities must
be commensurate with the qualifications, including experience, education, and training of
the physical therapy assistant.

d. The supervising physical therapist shall re-evaluate the patient if necessary, and modify
the treatment goals and plan as needed. The re-evaluation shall include treatment to
the patient by the supervising physical therapist. The re-evaluation shall be documented
and signed by the supervising physical therapist in the patient's record and shall reflect
the patient's progress toward the treatment goals and when the next re-evaluation shall
be performed.

e. The physical therapy assistant shall document each treatment in the patient’s record,
along with his or her signature. The physical therapy assistant shall document in the
patient’s record and notify the supervising physical therapist of any change in the
patient’s condition not consistent with planned progress or treatment goals. The change
in condition necessitates a re-evaluation by a supervising physical therapist before
further treatment by the physical therapy assistant.

| D.  REFERENCE(S):
1. Physical Therapy Regulations California Code of Regulations Title 16 Division 13.2 Article 4

Section 1398.44

253



o
@9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

WOMEN AND NEWBORN SERVICES (WNS)

ISSUE DATE: 06/14 SUBJECT: Adoption
REVISION DATE(S):

Women and Newborn Services Department Approval: 12/18
Department of OB/GYN Approval: 1213n/a
Perinatal Collaborative Practice Approval: n/a
Department of Pediatrics Approval: 12M3n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nfa
Administration Approval: 01/19
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 06/14

A DEFINITIONS:
1. Adoption: A legal process that creates a new, permanent parent-child relationship where one
did not exist. This adoption is coordinated through one of 3 options:
a. Agency adoption:
b. Independent adoption
C. State Department of Social Services
2. Adoption Letter of Intent: a legal-decument- professional document (letter) outlining the
adoption agreement between the Birth Mother and adoptive parent(s). It should include the
following:
Name of natural/biological mother (Birth Mother)-and
dDate of birth (BOB} (not required)
Name of natural mother's physician (preferred-not required)
Expected date of confinement {preferred-not required)
Adopting couple's legal names, address, telephone number and identification numbers
i Driver’s license
i Social security number (last 4 digits) or other identification
1) (Authorized forms of additional ID can include: Passport, Military 1D,
Bank Card with photo, Social Security card with last 4 digits provided in
letter,
2) One form of picture ID is always required.
I ef.  Ifitis an agency adoption the Letter of Intent should include above information on
Agency DeStgnee (to whom baby will be released) w1th an agency adoption.

pEEE"

B. POLICY:

1. Tri City Health Care District (TCHD) TCMG Wemen's-and-Children'sWomen and Newborn
Services (WNS} including-NIGY-provides comprehensive, quality, family-centered care within an
interdisciplinary framework. Situations regarding the appropriate discharge of minors {e-g=
newberns)-for infantbaby(s) being placed for adoption may arise at any time.

2. Wemen-s—and—Childronr's—Serdees’ WNS personnel discharging infantbaby(s)s within the
context of adoptions shall adhere to the following (including but not limited to):

a. TCHD T+-Gity Medical-Center-policies and procedures
b. Governmental regulations and laws
c. Court orders

254



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Adoptions Policy

Page 2 of 9
3. Prior to admission:
a. When a Letter of Intent is received concerning a planned adoption, the social worker will
place a copy in the Perinatal Watch List Book and in the identified file in the Social

Worker off ice

4, Upon Admrssron |f a Letter of Intent is presentrecaivad:
a. A copy of the Letter of Intent will be placed on the Birth Mother and baby's charts.

b. Nursing will place a social service order.
| c. If any questions or confusions arise concerningwith-the Letter of Intent, first contact
information shall be the birth mother.
B If a Letter of Intent is not on file, with mother of baby consent the social worker willshat:

a. Notify the agency/private attorney identified by the mother of the baby that FEMESTCHD
must have specific information on letterhead stationary to consider this an adoption.
Socral worker will obtain verbal consent from mother of the baby prior to the call

%6. AII hospltat charges to mother and baby erI be charged to the Brrth Mother unless other
arrangements were made

40:8. Social Work:
a. A hospital social worker evaluation for all parties involved in the adoption process will be
completed.
] +-9. Admitting/ID Banding: (FEMCTCHD-Patient Care Services (PCS) Procedure:
Identification/Banding of Newborns)
l a. The newborn infantbaby will be banded as per the guidelines for the Birth Mother
keeping her infantbaby
i. The Birth Mother and support person (if any) will receive matching baby bands
| immediately after delivery. The Birth Mother retains all rights to the infantbaby
until discharge and may see, hold and feed the infantbaby as often as she
wants, or designate any other person to do so. At any time the Birth Mother has
the right to change her mind regarding the adoptive couple's involvement.
| ii. The last name of the irfantbaby shall remain that of the Birth Mother throughout
the hospitalization
i, If the intended birth parent(s) are to be the primary providers while in the
hospital, they will be given an additional baby band (and baby an additional
downtime set of bands) with the consent of the mother. All consent will be
clearly documented in the infantbaby's chart, and a note documented with the
infantbaby band information.
b. In the event the adoptive parent(s) are not banded the down time bands may be
utilized in the event of rooming in.
i. Legibly hand write information: Name, Medical Record Number (MRN), Date
and time of birth
il Document in Cerner the adoptive parent band numbers

255



Women and Newbom Services (WNS)

Adoptions Policy

Page 3of 9

| C.

E.

- G-F.

D.

sC. On Discharge both bands will be attached to the Newborn Identification form.

RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONSENT: (FEMGTCHD-Reference Administrative Compliance
Policy: Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) 8610-513)

1.

2,

*3.

Release of information regarding the infantbaby(s) shall be provided by the Birth Mother whose

electronic ID bands match those of the infantbaby(s) only.

a. The intended adoptive parents may receive any information regarding the infartbaby(s)
condition or care when the Birth Mother signs the Authorization for Use or Disclosure
form.

i. Written information from the baby can be given to the intended Adoptive Parents
at discharge (depart instructions or education)

ii. Other chart documentation beyond the discharge or education must be obtained
from medical records

b. The Birth Mother shall sign all consents for care/procedures.

If Adoptive Parents request written information regardmg the baby’'s medical history,

diagnosis and treatment, this can be provided via medical records.

Verbal information to the Adoptive Parents can only be released with the written

permission of the Birth Mother utilizing the Release of Patient Information form.

VISITATION:

1.

3.

1.

(Reference WNS Policy:-8670-1+45 Visitation in NICU, FTCMCTCHD-AdministrativePCS Policy:
86146-304: Visiting Guidelines, Relisy7400-180-WCSWNS Policy: *Partners in CareZ for
WGSWomen and Newborn Services). In the case of adoption infaatbaby visitation will be
determined by the written permission via the hospital form Authorization for Visitation and/or
Release of Patient Information.

Intended Adoptive Parents may not visit infartbaby(s) independently unless granted written
permission (such as the hospital form Authorization for Visitation and/or Release of Patient
Information) by the Birth Mother, or has been “banded” by the Birth Mother as the significant
other.

Birth Mother has the option to request that the rewberrbaby to be non-couplet care.

BIRTH CERTIFICATE:

The birth certificate worksheet shall be filled out by the Birth Mother and may include the

following:

a. A temporary name

b. All medical information entered on the birth certificate worksheet shall pertain to the
pregnancy, including the labor and delivery information of the Birth Mother

All legal changes of the birth certificate for the intended specified adoptive parents will take

place in a court of law when the adoption process is completed and finalized according to

California law, refer to the San Diego County Vital Records and Statistics manual or call the vital

records department.

PROCEDURE for NEWBORN DISCHARGE in an ADOPTIVE STATUS (LETTER OF INTENT
PRESENT):

256



Women and Newbom Services (WNS)
Adoptions Policy
Page 4 of 9

1. Nurse to obtain discharge order for rewbernbaby.

2. Social Worker (SW) to verify intent of Birth Mother to proceed with adoption and ensure Letter of
Intent is on chart.

a. If there is no Letter of Intent prior to the mothers discharge, the Birth Mother will be
discharged with her infantbaby and will make arrangements outside the hospital. This
rule may be waived if a state licensed adoption agency provides disposition plans
verbally to social worker and this is documented in the medical record.

3. AD 22 is to be completed and obtain Birth Mother's signature, indicating her permission to
release the newbernbaby to Adoptive Parent(s) or Identified Party. If Birth Mother is unable to
sign the social worker will assist to determine the best next of kin (such as the first next of kin to
arrive to the hospital) on a case by case basis..

a. RN or Charge Nurse to fill out Part |

b. RN or Charge Nurse to have Birth Mother sign release of infantbaby on Part I and

witness the signature to include the date (all copies must be legible)

a¥e atm -¥a -

gc. Have person(s) designated to receive the child sign the remaining copies of AD22 Part
.

i. Verify receiver has two forms of identification (at least one with a photo and
identification information):
1) Picture ID, which may include Driver's License
2) Social Security Number or Other Identification
ed. RN or Charge Nurse to witness receiver signatures, including date. Offer copy to the
person receiving the rewbernbaby.
i. If copy refused-write on the bottom “Refused Copy”
fe. Make 3 copies of the AD 22. one copy to Adoptive Parents and send original and extra
copy to Perinatal Data Coordinator.

RO

5:4. RN Nurse-to collaborate with Social Services to help arrange and coordinate date and time of
rewbermbaby's discharge to the Adoptive Parents.

6:5. RN erGharge-Nurse-to verify identity of person(s) baby being release to the rewbernbaby prior
to discharge and document appropriate information on AD 22 form. ID must match information
provided on Letter of Intent.

+6. RN erGharge-Nurse-to verify identity of rewbernbaby being released for adoption planning.

a. One newborn identification bracelet is left on the newbernbaby.
b. One newborn identification bracelet is taped to the newborn identification discharge
instructions.
i. This form must be signed by the person(s) receiving the rewberrbaby and
witnessed by the nurse completing the form.
ii. Verification of ID is to be noted in the appropriate

place.

forms
18:7. Mother continues to sign for all consents for treatment for the baby until the AD22 is signed.
After it is signed she may still visit the baby and remain involved in the care of the infantbaby.
+-8. The Birth Mother retains all rights to the irfantbaby until discharge and may see, hold and feed
the infantbaby as often as she wants, or designate any other person to do so. She is

257



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Adoptions Policy
Page 5 of 9

responsible for signing any necessary consents for the infantbaby. At any time the Birth Mother
has the right to change her mind regarding adoptive couple’s involvement.
12:9. If Letter of Intent present and AD22 signed:

a. Intended Adoptive Parents or agency designee will assume care of the infantbaby, all
regular discharge procedures will occur to include all rewborababy care and discharge
teaching and infantbaby will be discharged to the person identified on the Letter of Intent
and AD22,

b. Discharge must be cleared by admissions/finance before the infantbaby(s) is released
from the hospital. Call finance if the discharge is planned or prior to discharge.

c. There will be no “boarder” status of term inféntbaby(s) meeting discharge criteria in the
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit.

| H.G. PROCEDURE for NEWBORNBABY DISCHARGE WITHOUT A LETTER OF INTENT PRESENT:

1. If no Letter of Intent and no AD22 signed:
| a. The Birth Mother assumes care of infantbaby when cleared for discharge (refer to
signed waiver of liabifity).
b. The Birth Mother shall follow standard discharge procedures including discharge
teaching.
C. Discharge must be cleared by admissions/finance before the infantbaby(s) is released

from the hospital.-{refer-to-sighed FoCMCfinancial-agreement)-Call finance if the

discharged is planned or prior to discharge.
d. The infartbaby will be discharged to the arms of the Birth Mother

EFH. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Document in the Birth Mother and rewbernbaby patient care records.
I a. That the rewbernbaby was discharged for the purpose of adoption planning

| 1. BONDING PROVISIONS OF INTENDED PARENTS:
1. If space allows the intended Adoptive Parents may room in to allow for bonding (if and when
permitted by Birth Mother)
| 2. The intended Adaptive Parents with infantbaby(s) in the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)
will need to make arrangements for overnight stay(s) outside of Tri City Medical Center. NICU
rooming in will be the exception.

¥-J. FETAL DEATH/DEMISE:
1. The Birth Mother will follow standard procedures for release of remains.

K. FORM(S):
1. Newborn Identification & Discharge Instructions 7400-1008 — Sample

1+2.  Health Facility Minor Release Report AD 22 Form - Sample (available via external link:
http:/iwww.cdss.ca.gov/cdsswebl/entres/forms/English/AD22.PDF)

L. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Fe-Gity-Medical- Conter-Administrative-Policy-#8610-3814PCS Policy: “Visiting Guidelines:"
2. -Ci i Administrative Policy-#8640-543: “Disclosure of Protected Health
Information (PHI).- 8610-513

3. Fr-Gity-Medical- Gente~WNS NICU Policy-#6070-1145: “Visitation in the NICU=

34. WNS Policy: Partners in Care for Women and Newborn Services
e M

Fr-GCity-Medical-Genter-PCS Procedure: Zldentification of Newborns-=

258



Women and Newbomn Servicas (WNS)
Adoptions Policy
Page 6of 9

259



Women and Newbom Services (WNS})
Adoptions Policy
Page 7 of 9

®.|r1 41 3/8 c-io-c O SAMPLE O O O

CAREPLAN Problems resolved. Yes[J No [J If No, describe plan

DIET

Breast Feeding Frequent feeding - g2 - 3°
Formula Feeding Type Freguency,
TAKE HOME MEDICATIONS Medications (dosage, frequency, indications) Date/Time
Last dose given

|

Medications Received 1.

Prescriptions Given 2.

None Ordered 3.

Instructions for medication(s) given to Parent [J Significant Other / Caregiver O

Relationship, , understands instructions and performed return demonstration.
I _ RN/ LVN

BABY: REPORTABLE CONDITIONS

a. Fever 100.4°F or over by rectum f. Ages & Stages taught [

b. Listlessness or restlessness Brochure given to parent(s) Eng Spn  Other

c. Excessive crying or high pitch shillcry  Pass Refer Waived Diag. Refer

d. Any unusual rash RN/ LVN

e. Loose, watery bowel movements (mucous and foul odor)
f. Vomiting (“not just spitting up”) or refusal to eat several times in a row.
g. Jaundice (press gently on tip of nase or cheek, yeliow color appears, or yellow coloration of the whites of eyeballs)

OTHER SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

FOLLOW-UP APPOINTMENTS
Dr. DalefTime Call for appoiniment______ Telephone
Other, Date/Time Call for appointment______ Telephone
| RECEIVED AND UNDERSTAND THE NURSES INSTRUCTIONS.

_ RN/LVN
Parent / Significant Other / Caregiver

Date:

RN Validation Signature
NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION Affix infant’s identification band here

Check appropriate box below

O | hereby acknowledge that | have compared the identification band with my own band numbered
and | am {aking my baby from the hospital

3 | hereby acknowledge that | have checked the idenfification and ! am taking the appropriate baby from the hospital

Parent Withess Date Time
Signature if other than parent Relationship Identification Verification

&’ Affix Patisnt Labet

( ) Tri-Gity Medical Center

4002 Vista Way « Oceanside + CA + 52056

\ NEWBORN IDENTIFI &
NEMIUIE  “oiscraree wsTrucTIoNs

[GL. ) White - Chart  Yellow - Patient

260



Women and Newbom Services (WNS)
Adoptions Policy

Page 8 of 9

SAMPLE

BTATE OF CALFOANA - HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY CALIFORAIA DEPANTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

HEALTH FACILITY MINOR RELEASE REPORT

Prepare originat and 3 copies: one copy sach for hospltal file, birth parent, and person receiving minor, SEE INSTRUCTIONS DN REVERSE SIDE
Send criginal to: Califomia Depariment of Social Services (Within 48 hours as required by Health & Salely Code Section 1283)

744 P Street, W/S 19-67
Sacramento, Califomla 85814

1}

N CALTFORNLA, A BIRTH PARENT MAY PLACE A CHILD FOR ADOPTION BY AN:

A bith prrent may piace & child bn foster cane with wn pgency or wilh & persce. Within six months, the birth parent must sither sign a relinguish an lncap
Adoplion Placement Agreement, or rectalm tha child. I tho birth parent fals io taka sny of thess actions, e court coutd fnd the child has baen abandoned and issue sn
ordar terminating tha birth parenCs parmental ights 1 the chid and order & plan of adoption for tha chid,

TMPORTANT NOTICE
THIS HEALTH FACILITY RELEASE FORM IS NOT A RELINGUISHMENT FOR OR CONSENT TO ADOPTION.

ency Adoption: The bith porent refingquishas tha chitd 1o 8 kcenaad 14 o public adopton agency for the agency in placa the chid with B lamily i has been
:gpm“syldhr:'duubn. lﬂuh&hunmmdumwhmm nnrmll:;.rma maﬂoﬁnmnu. Burmuunm}:m:::’bmdmﬂn
Calilomin Department of Social Services, B bitth parent may cancel tha relingulthmant nefmm-m the minguishmeni is fled wih the Cafifomin
D.pmmldSudnlSmIcu.Muﬂﬂpcrlnlwﬂmbnguhnuwmmhln of the child, uniess either (1} the agrees o aliow the birth parant lo
wtﬁmnmnhhrrmlmdwmwmmldﬂd iha binth parent, or (2} the uishmen named the prospective ade, parents mnd the adoption Is
completed,

not
Independent ton: The birth paren selacks nnd places the child diracily wils the praspoctive adoptive p Hthe mgm:llunlhlnldullnd
nlalrd.lutnl , ha birth p. mmiﬂmb-ldviudn!mmhurighznglm“mmmmzu_mbyanm 'rovires and than sign an
Indepandent Adoplion Plscemen! Agreemant. The Indapendant kon Placament Agreament b an 1t
30-day pariod, the birth parant may rovoka the pgresmant and m tha chiki or may walve the right to revoke tha agreemant. The parent musi
byluguu:n}m of the Calllomia Department of Soclal Services or § delegaled county adoption agency baloro signing & walvar of the right o ravoke the
P ¥ A

Inday

8

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION

Chiid's Nama Bidhdate Gender [ ] Male Female
PARENT'S AUTHORIZATION (FI out complalely before parent signs. Altsraions or delations favafidate form).
AL, , the parent of
sulhorize Hospkal lo release my child io
residing at (complele sddress)
for the purpase of || tndependent Adoption by (full names) residing
at (addness) who hasfhave my pamission to cara for my chiid in
hismerihelrhome, [ Agency Adoption planning, | Faster Care, i | Other, Explain . This

suthorization only releases my child from the hospital. 1t is not a consent Io or relinguishmant for adeption. | retain &ll parentat righls to the custody
and control of my chid. If the child is placed for Independent Adopiian, | will be Interviewsd by a soclal worker from the Califomia Depariment of
Soclal Services or a delegaled county ndoption agency afier the prospeclive adoplive parents fie tha adoplion peliion with the Suparior courl.

B. MEDHAL AUTHORIZATION
I authorize and empower tha person(s) named in Section 1) A above to meke any provisions for medical and surgical carw for my child idantified on
ihls repor, including anaesthesia, which may be deemed nacessary or advissble by any licensed phys'clen, for 8 period nol 1o excesd six months
from the date of my child's release from this hospital.

TWEne] Toaut TRrn. o person
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY PERSON({S) RECEIVING CHILD
On {data) IAve recetved (chikt's name) for the purposa of O Independent Adogtion,
] Agency Adoption planning, {1 Foster Care, [ Cther, us explainad above. If the child Is ralsased for Independeni Adoption and en edoplion petilion

i not Bled within 30 days, the Celifomia Department of Sodal Sarvices Wit begin an Investigation to determine if a foslor care Ecansing law Is being
vialaled.,

Uwea understand thal this authorizes only the release of this chid from the hospital. This is not a consent or relinguishment of this ehild for adoplion.

[ fOats) {Sigrusure of perwns mesbvirg od)

(Orpeatzatam - Ape Seatia)

[
identificalion of person{s) receiving chitd {two I1D's required): Driver's licensa number, Stala
Saocial Security number or
othar identification
Telephona number ( )
V. REPORT CF HOSPITAL
(Mema of Hoapasi: (Adarees)
[Mame of ABersling Pleyscon) (Jomary Agtagsion Ontay [Onchargs Qate)
{Mothars Neme) ooe) Platery Addraet)
{Fathar's Nartw) ooa) (Fatwry, Addreis)
AD ZI (TKI2) o T

261



Women and Newbom Services (WNS)
Adoptions Palicy
Page 9of 9

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE HEALTH FACILITY MINOR RELEASE REPORT

This form shall be completed for each child under 16 years of age who is discharged from a health facliity to B person other than the child's
parent, relative by blood or marmriage, or person having legal custody unless the child is ransferved to another health facility or comes within
Sections 300, 601 or 602 of the Welfare and Institutions Code and s released to an agent of a public weifare, probation or law enforcement
agency.

Section |. Enter the child's name, birthdate and sex (as shown on the "Record of Liva Birth® (VS 10) if the child is a newbom).

Section Il.. The name and address of the person(s) or agency authorized by the parent or grardian to remove a chitd from the health facility
and, il an Independent adaption, the name and address of the person(s) with whom the child will be placed must be entered in the
appropiiale spece belore the parent or guardian signs the authorzation.

Saction ll. The person(s) or agency recelving the child shall be the sama as the person or agency designated by the parent or guardian in
Section I,

Section IV, Complele the entire section. If the father's name is unknown or withheld, this should be indicaled.

A copy of the Health Facility Minor Release Repori shall be offared fo both parent or guardian and the person{s) remaving the child from the
health facility as all persons ara entilied to copies of any documents they may sign. If the eopy s refusad, this should be noled end retained
in the heallth facility fiie with the health facility copy.

CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING RELEASE OF MINOR FROM HEALTH FACILITY
Section 1283 of the Heallh and Safety Code states:

"(a) No health facility shall surrender the physical custody of a minor undar 16 years of age to any person unless such surrender is
authorized in writing by the child's parent, the person having legal custody of the child, or the caregiver of the child who is a relative of tha
chitd and who may authorize medical care and dentlal care under 6550 of the Family Code,

"(b} A haelth facility shall report to the California Depariment of Health Services, on forms supplled by the department, the name and address
of any person and, [n the casa of a person acting s en agent for en organization, the name and address of the organizetion, intc whose
physical cusiody a minar under the age of 16 is surrandered, other than a parent, relative by blood or marriage, or person having legal
custody. This report shall be transmitied to the depariment within 48 hours of the surrendering of custedy. No report 1o the depariment Is
required if 8 minor under the age of 16 Is translemed to ancther heaith facllity for further care or if this minor comes within Section 300, 601,
or 602 of the Welfare and Institulions Code and is released to an agent of a public welfars, prabation, of law enforcement agency.®

CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING PLACEMENT OF CHILDREN
Section 8609(b) of the Family Code slates:
"Any parson, other than a birth parent, or any organization, asseciation, or corporation that, without holding e valid and unrevoked ficense to
place children for adoption Issved by tha department [of Soclal Services), places any child for adoption is guitty of a misdemeanor.™
CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING TERMINATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS
Seclion 7820 of the Family Code in part states:

*A praceeding may be brought under this pard for the purpose of having any child under the age of 18 years declared free from the custody
and control of either or bolh parents if the child comes within any of the lollowing descriptions set out in this chapler.”

Seclion 7822 of the Family Code in par states:

“(e) A proceeding under this part may be brought where the child . .. has baen lafl by both parents or the sole parent in the care and custody
of another for a peried of six months . , , without any provision for the child's support, or without communication from the parent or parents,
with the intent on the part of the parent or parents to abandon the child.”

*{d) It the parent has placed the child for adoption and has not refused to give the required consent i adoption, evidence of the adoplive
placament shall not in itself prectude the court from finding an intent on the part of thal parent to abandon the child. If tha parent has placed
the child for adoplion and has refused (o give the raquired consent to edoplion but has not faken reasonabie aclion to obtaln custody of the
child, avidence of the adoplive placement shall not in itself preclude the court from Rnding an intent on the part of that parent to ebandon the
child.”

262



),
(@) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

WOMEN=3 AND NEWBORNGHILDREN:S SERVICES (WNS) ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 10/94 SUBJECT: Partners In Care for Womenis and
Newbornehildren's Services

REVISION DATE(S): 01/00, 06/03, #/0808/09, 3/4007/10,
05414

Women and Newborn Services Department Approval: 11/18

Department of OB/GYN Approval: 42M13n/a

Department of Pediatrics Approval: 12143n/a
Administration Approval: 0119

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 0614 n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 6/03,-8/08,7/10,-06/14

I
A. PURPOSE:

I 1. The staff of Tri—City Medical Center {(TCMC) for Women-s and NewbornChildren's Services are
committed to supporting the strength and integrity of families as they adapt to the physical and
psycho/social changes brought about by childbirth. We promote a patient and family centered
care philosophy that is a mutually beneficial partnership between healthcare providers, patients,
and their families. In order to address special circumstances, exceptions may be made by the
Charge RN and/or the Assistant Nurse Manager on duty. The healthcare team supports the
presence of family and friends as “Partners in Care” and encourages their ongoing participation

during their stay at Fr-City-Medical-Genter TCMC

B. PROCEDURE:

1. All Partners In Care:
a. Will be issued a visitation sticker for safety and security purposes.
b. Will need to perform thorough hand hygiene prior to entering and exiting the
patient room.
c. Will have a restriction of visitation for those children 14 and below during the
influenza or RSV season as restricted throughout the community.
d. Children must be over the age of one and need to be accompanied by an adult

other than the patient when they are visiting.

i. They cannot be accommodated overnight.

iii. Strollers must be occupied.

ili. Car seats are not allowed on the unit for safety reasons.

e. Will need to wait in the waiting room if an emergency occurs or if there is need for
patient privacy.
f. In order to provide a confidential environment for patients and a safe environment

for everyone, waiting in the hallways is not permitted.

B-g. Still photography/cameras are encouraged of the baby and/or mother and family,
but not of the delivery or; procedures.-Rhysicians/Midwives-nor-hospital-staff: In
some situations it may be requested that no photography is performed.

I—Apterataltesting-arealirdage:

| 2. Exceptions to Family Presence or Visitors:

263



Womenis and Newborn Ghildrar’s-Services (WNS) Marual
Partners in Care for Womerre- and Ghildrer-s-Newborn Services Policy

Page 2 of 3

2-3.

Except when the patient, staff or provider chooses to restrict family and other

“Partners in Care,” limitations on the presence of these individuals may be

appropriate in exceptional circumstances, such as when:

i. A legal reason (e.g., a restraining order, the patient is in legal custody or a
court order this will prohibit all visitors).

ii. Behavior is disruptive to maintaining a therapeutic environment on the
patient care unit.

iii. A family member or visitor who is actively coughing, sneezing or has had a
fever in the last 24 hours is requested to not visit. This may jeopardize the
patient’s and baby's health.

Labor and Delivery:

“Partners in Care” are welcome in the patient's room, 24 hours/day, at the discretion of
the patient. Visiting may be limited by the healthcare team if the patient’s medical
condition warrants. Waiting lounges are available during —those occasions. The patient's
spouse/significant other is encouraged to stay overnight while on the Labor and Delivery
unit.

To ensure their comfort and safety, children 14 and below must be accompanied by an

adult who is not the patient's primary support person while in iabor.

Antenatal testing area/ triage:

i The antenatal testing/triage is a semi-private area for testing and evaluating
expecting mothers.

ii. In order to respect the privacy of our patients only one support person is
recommended in the room during this short term cbservation.

Operating Room/PACU:

i One support person is welcome to attend a cesarean birth. Observation
may be denied in the event of an emergency.

iii. For Cesarean births, one visitor (usually the banded person) will be invited
to the Recovery Room after initial stabilization of the patient.
1)  Other friends and family may wait comfortably in the waiting lounge.

4,

Postpartum:

“Parenters in Care” are welcome to visit between 9a.m. and 9p.m. The number of
guests may be |ll'l'llted in semnprlvate rooms.

264



Women:s and Newborn Children’s-Sarvices (WNS) Manual
Partners in Care for Women's- and Ghildrer-s-Newborn Services Policy

Page3af 3

b.

g-c.

As long as the patient doesn't have a “suite-mate”, the spouse/significant other is

encouraged to stay overnight so they can participate in providing care and support to

their new family.

i. The support person must be over the age of 18, unless the father of baby is a
minor.

ii. Chairs are provided;, the second bed is reserved for possible admission.

If the patient does have a “suite-mate” then all guests and significant others

would need to go home by 9 p.m., when visiting hours are over, to ensure privacy

for all involved.

5. Transition Newbora-Nursery:

At the discretion of the healthcare team¥the "banded" primary support person is
welcome in the TransitionNewbem—Nursery -at-any—hme

265



@) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution:

Womens and NewbornGhildrer's
Services (WNGS)

PROCEDURE:

RELEASE OF A MINOR TO OTHER THAN BIRTH MOTHER

Purpose:

To outline the proper steps requnred to release a mlnor toa person other than the birth

Supportive Data:

On occasion, babies are placed in Child Protective Services (CPS) custody and
placement is arranged by CPS. In these instances, it is necessary to have the
California Department of Social Services Health Facility Minor Release Report (AD

22) completed and proper identification of the foster parent or agency
representative verified prior to release of baby. On occasion, babies are

discharged while their mother remains hospitalized. In these instances it is
necessary for the baby S mother to completed Authorizatlon for Release of Mlnor

A. PROCEDURE
On-Admissior-or-wWhen it is known that a child is to be released to someone other than a birth
mother a Social Service Consult needs to be ordered.
All infartbaby bands will be applied as per the Identification/Banding of Newbomns procedure.

1.

2.
2:3.

| 3.4,

All hospital charges to mother and baby will be charged to the birth mother unless other

arrangements are made.
Release of Information/ConsentRELEASE OF-INFORMATION/CONSENT: (FCMCTCHD
Administrative Policy: Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) #8610-513)
a. Release of information regarding the infartbaby(s) shall be provided by the birth mother
whose ID bands match those of the infantbaby(s) only.
The foster parents may receive any direct information regarding the
infantbaby(s) condition or care after the birth mother, parent or guardian signs
the Authorization for Use or Disclosure form. If it is a Child Protective Service
(CPS) hold the form is not required.
Written hospital discharge information summarizing the minor's medical history,
diagnosis and treatment that may be required for the continuity of care and
treatment shall be provided at discharge.
If a complete medical record is requested this may be done by referring the
requester to medical records.

b. The birth mother or parent shall sign all consents for care/procedures.
c. When a baby is being released to someone other than the mother, the mother still
retains rights to obtain information and be kept informed of baby's status.
| l Women and Parinatal
| Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Do | Danetmen: | Collaborativa | Dopartment | goppgyiics | Executive | Administration | Affairs ot

: Rp ; Practice Committee Committee Committee
| | o6/14, 12118 12113, nla n/a 12/13, n/a nfa nfa 0119 06/14, nfa 06/14

266



Women's and NewbornGhildran's Services {(WNS
Release of a Minor Rracedure-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedure
Page 2 of 9

d. If a baby remains in the hospital for medical reasons a birth mother or parent can visit
the baby and remain involved even if she has already signed the AD22.
4.5. Discharge to Foster Care or Someone Other Than the Birth Mother:

a. Verify discharge order for newbernbaby. {RefertoWGCS/AICU Rolicy-#-6385-400:
lﬂialats-te-ﬁeetepaam—Meﬂaer—Remans-Hesp{talazed}

b. Validate if there is an active Child Protective Services (CPS) hold on rewbernbaby.
i. If CPS places a hold on baby, Social Worker will place Court Hold Form inside
baby's chart in the front and inform nurse. Unless the Hold is released by CPS,
SW will coordinate with CPS re: placement of baby. Pertinent information re;
assigned foster parent(s) will be provided to nurse for purpose of completion of
AD 22; however, foster parent(s) information will not be documented on
permanent record.
C. Nurse will coordinate the rnewberbaby's discharge planning with the Social worker who
will communicate the plan with the assigned Foster Parent(s) or guardian.
i. The date and time of pick-up should be arranged
d. AD 22 is to be completed when a child is going to someone other than a legal parent.
The hospital staff is to obtain birth mother's or parent signature, indicating her
permission to release the rewbernbaby to a person other than a parent or Identified
Party. If birth mother or parent is unable to sign the social worker will assist to determine
the best next of kin (such as the first next of kin to arrive to the hospital) on a case by
case basis..
i. RN er-Charge-Nurse-to fill out Part |
ii. RN er-Gharge-Nurse-to have birth mother or parent sign release of infant on Part
Il and witness the signature to include the date (all copies must be legible)
it If infant is on a CPS hold, the bithmother’s or parent’s signature is not required.
CPS Hold must be written across part Il
iv. Have person(s) designated to receive the child sign the remaining copies of
AD22 Part Il
1) Verify receiver has two forms of identification (at least one with a photo
and identification information):
a) Picture I1D, which may include Drivers License, passport, military
ID, bank card with photo ID. Record type of ID verified -and
corresponding numbers from the two (2) identifications provided
by the foster parent in the appropriate place on the AD 22 form.
b) Social Security Number or Other |dentification
V. RN erGharge-Nurse-to witness receiver signatures, including date. Offer copy to
the person receiving the rewbormbaby.
1) If copy refused-write on the bottom “Refused Copy”
vi. Make 3 copies of the AD 22. one copy to person or people receiving the
rewbernbaby and send original and extra copy to Perinatal Data Coordinator.
Copy does not go to birth mother.
e. RN er-Gharge-Nurse-to obtain signatures for the following forms: Authorization for
Release of a Minor and Acknowledgement of Release of a Minor
i Authorization for Release of a Minor: birth mother, guardian or legally authorized
caregiver fills out the form and who they want the hospital to release the minor to
ii. Acknowledgement of Release of A Minor will be filled out by the person receiving
the minor.
f. Verify the identity of the rewbernbaby being released to foster care per newborn
identification protocol.
g. All discharge teaching and paperwork will be done with the person(s) that the baby is to
be relased to.
h. One newbornbaby ID bracelet is left on the rewbernbaby and one is taped to the
pewbernbaby identification and discharge instructions.
i The foster parent, witnessed by hospital personnel, must sign this form.

267



Women's and NewbormnGhildran's Services (WNS)Rrocedura-Manual
Release of a Minor Rresedure-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedurs

Page 3of 9
i Have foster parent sign AD 22 before newberababy is released. Make 3 copies
of the AD 22. Give one copy to foster parents, and send original and extra copy
to Perinatal Data Coordinator.
i. Assess concerning safety issues and coordinate with security and social service as
indicated.
B. ADOPTION PROCEDURE for NEWBORNBABY DISCHARGE in an ADOPTIVE STATUS:
1. See WESWNS Adoption Policy
C. BIRTH MOTHER IS A SURROGATE
1. See WESWNS Surrogacy Policy
D. WHEN CPS HAS CUSTODY OF BABY

1. Prior to discharge, when CPS has custody of baby, SW will have placed in baby's chart
either completed Court Hold Form or Letter from CPS documenting that CPS has custody
of baby.

2. SW will coordinate with CPS re: CPS plan for placement of baby. Pertinent information
such as assigned foster parent(s)/placement will be provided to RN by SW. However,
foster parent identifying information will not be documented in permanent records.

3. SW will make initial contact with foster parent(s). Follow up with foster parent(s) to
coordinate logistics of baby’s discharge will be facilitated by either RN or SW.

4, All normal discharge protocol will be completed with foster parent(s)/designated
placement person.

5. Should safety concerns emerge, Neonatal Intensive Care or Mother Baby team, SW and
Security will collaborate to address concerns and implement safe discharge plan.

B-E. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES:

1. When reasons emerge (i.e. MOB remains a patient in the hospital or is incarcerated) that
prevent the baby from being discharged to MOB:

2. Baby can be released to Father of Baby (FOB), as identified on Birth Certificate, if
circumstances prevent baby from being discharged to MOB.

3. RN or SW will discuss MOB’s wishes with her and will obtain signature on completed
Authorization for Release of a Minor form, reflecting MOB'’s wishes. Form is to be placed
on baby's chart.

4, Upon baby’s discharge, RN will verify that identity of person to whom baby will be
discharged matches the person named in Authorization for Release of Minor form,

a. A picture ID must be provided by the person picking up baby.

5. RN will complete Acknowledgement of Release of a Minor form and have it signed by the
person to whom baby will be discharged home with.

A6. RN will proceed with normal discharge protocol to ldentified Person named in the

Authorization for Release of Minor form.

268



Women's and NawbornGhildren's Services (WNS)Rracedura-Manual
Release of a Minor Rresedure-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedure

Page 4 of 9

E-F. DOCUMENTATION

1.

EG. REEERENCEFORM(S):

=

Document in the birth mother and rewborrbaby electronic medical records.:

That the rewberbaby was discharged to foster care, or

That the newbersbaby was discharged for the purpose of adoption planning, or
That the rewbernbaby of a surrogate was discharged to the intended legal parent(s)
That the rewbernbaby was discharged to the legal parent(s) as verified by the
declaration of maternity/paternity

apop

Wmeﬁsee' ial Sel:hises.

Authorization for Release of a Minor - Sample—Galifornia-Asseciation-of- Hospitals-and-Heaith
Sycteme (AR Foesn10-4;

Acknowledgement of Release of a Minor — Sample—California-Association-of- Hospitals

and-Health-Systeme [CAREHE) Farn-10-2-
Health Facility Minor Release Report AD 22 Form — Sample (available via external
link: http://www.cdss.ca.gov/cdssweb/entres/forms/English/AD22.PDF)

Newborn Identification & Discharge Instructions 7400-1008 — Sample

269



Women-s and NewbornGhildrer's Servicas (WNS)Rresedure-Manual
Release of a Minor Rrasedure-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedura
Page 5of 9

SAMPLE

I, (insert name) , the

0 parent
0 guardian
ClLegally authorized caregiver

of (child’s name) , authorize Tri-City Medical
Center to release my child to:

{name} {area cade and telephone number)

{address) {city, state, zip)

I retain all parental rights to his/her custody and control. This authorization authorizes only the release of my child from
the hospital to the person named above.

/ ] : AMPM
Name: Patient/Representative Signature. Patient/Representative Date Time

If signed by a persen other than the patient, indicate relationship to patient:

Examples: Spouse, Partner, Legat Guardian

if patient is unable to sign, state reason:

! ! " AMPM
Witness — TCHD Representative {print name) Slgnature Date Time

INTERPRETATION / INTERPRETER'S STATEMENT

Interpretation provided in preferred language: a Telephonic a vri
0 Face-to-face: O | have accurately and completely reviewed this document in patient/patient’s legal representative preferred
language with: L patient {d Patient's legal representative
I : AM/PM
Interpreter ID number or Name Interpreter Signature (if present) Date Time

O Patient refuses TCHD's interpretation services and selects as inferpreter:

Name and relatfanship to patient

Affix Patlent Label

@ Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way « Oceanside - CA - 52056

Il Authorization for Rel faMl
II&I””[XXE‘I””XJHM” uthorization for Release of a Minor

Example - Palient Copy  Example - Medical Records
(Rev, ohag BOD Approval:

270



Women's and NewbomGhildrer's Services (WNS)Rrocadura-hanual
Release of a Minor Rresedure-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedura
Page 6 of @

SAMPLE

Ifwe have on this date, (insert date) , received (name of child)

V/we understand that the signature below authorizes only the release of this child from the hospital. Thisis
not a consent or relinquishment of this child for adoption.

Signature:

{person raceiving child) Date / Time
Print name;

(person receiving child)

{organization)

{address)
Signature:

{withess) Date / Time
Print name:

(witness)

*** This form is not to be used in the case of adoption (use AD-22) and is not for Surrogate with a Judgment ™
COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:

IDENTIFICATION OF PERSON(S) RECEIVING CHILD

Name:

Address:

Phone Number:

Driver's License No: State:

Other:

~ AJix Palient Label

@) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way « Cceanside - CA» §2056

‘ ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF
WML SR o mon
e s White - Hospital  Yellow - Patient

271



Women's and NewbornGhildren's Services (WNS)Rracadura-Manual
Release of a Minor Rresadura-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedure

Page 7 of 9

SAMPLE

STATE OF CALIFORKIA - HEALTH ANT HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY CALFORMA DEPARTMENT DF SOCIAL SERVICES

HEALTH FACILITY MINOR RELEASE REPORT

Prepare original and 3 coples: onb copy sach for hospllal e, birth parent, and person recelving minor. SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE SIDE
Send odiginal to: Califamla Department &f Sociat Services {Within 48 hours as required by Health & Safety Code Seclion 1283}

744 P Siresl, M/S 18-87
Sacramenio, Callfornia 985814

7

IN CALIFORNIA, A BIRTH PARENT MAY PLACE A CHILD FOR ADOPTION BY AN:

A birth pareni may piace & chitd in foster care wilh an agency or with B person. WIihin sl months, Ihe blrth parant must either skgn a relnquishmant, consent, an Independent
Adaption Pincernant Agrasment, orreclalm the child. if the birth parent fais o take any of these actions, thé count coukd Rnd 1ha child has boon sbandoned and lasun an
onder iarminating ihe birth parent’s parental rights o the child and order » plan ol adaption for the chitd,

IMPDRTANT NOTICE
THIS HEALTH FACILITY RELEASE FORM IS NOT A RELINQUISHMENT FOR OR CONSENT TO ADOPTION,

A Adeption: The birth parant rfinguishas tha child 16 a Ecanyad privale or public sdopbion ancy for the agency to placa the child with a family thai has been
ngp:“vuc:d for sdoplion. H Iha birdh plmnl:nd agency agres, the mloqukm-rn name the i ldvﬁw palenlxpﬂdm the rdlmushamn:yh filad with tha
Caliomia Depariment of Soclal Sarvicos, the bidh parenl may canced the lul&m:ﬂum o they chiid. Afler the refinquisiment is lied with the Calilamin
Deapartmaent of Social , the birth parant witl no kol ar hawve ey right o tha cusiody of tha child, unless either {1} the agrens ia alow the birth parent lo
cance! tha relingiishment and arangs 1o retum the child the birth paren, or (2} the relingulshment ramsd the p Glh m, nnd the adopbon Is not

.

P

Indapandenl Adaplion: The birth parent aslects and places the child dectly with the prospective sd v prramls. If the tive 8 greni s an adult not
relaled fo the child, the bith carent must liesl be advised ufhiuorimﬁ!h!n rmmgmmﬁtmauMW pn’nm‘l then sign =n
Indepandorni Adaption Placzment Ag nL Tha [ndep Adoption Agroemant bacomas an bla consent (o nln-raﬂdlg. Dixing the
30-day , the birth ramntmaynvohﬂumemmm reclaim the child o may walva the right Lo revoke the sgreemant. Tho birth pareat Hust be nteniow
by » teprasantaiive of lhe Californla Dupartment of Soclal Services or 8 delegated counly adoption agancy before aigning o waiver af the right in revoks the
tndependent Adoptian Placamen| Agreement.

2

IBENTIFYING INFORMATION

Child's Name, Birthdate Gender || Male Female
PARENTS AUTHORLZATION {Fill out compiatsly befora parent signs. Altarations or delstions Invalidate form).
A, , the parent of
authorize Hospita! to release my child lo
rasiding at (complele address)
for the purpose of (] independent Adoption by {fufl names) residing
al (address) who hasfhave my permission lo care lor my child in
hismernhelr home, 1 Agency Adoption planning, [ Foster Care, 1 Ofther, Explain . This

authorization only releases my child from the hospilal, 1tis not a consant to or rellnquishment for adoption. | retaln ol parenial rights o the custody
and control of my chiid. If the child Is placed for Indepandent Adoption, | will be interviewed by a social worker from the Califomia Depariment of
Social Services or a delagated counly adoplion agency aftes the prespective adopliva patents fils the sdoption pelition with the Superior caurt,

B. MEDICAL AUTHORIZATION
| aulhorize and empower the persan(s) named in Seclion Il A sbove 1o makn any provisions for medical snd surgical cara for my child Identified on
this report, including enaesthesia, which may be deemed necessary or advisable by any ficensed physician, for 8 period not to exceed six months
from the dals of my child's release from this hospital,

T of parial, OF perian At []

TWeraas}
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY PERSON(S) RECELVING CHILD

On (dats) Uwe raceived (chiki's nama) for the purpose of [ independent Adoption,
{71 Agancy Adoption planning, (] Foster Care, [J Other, as explainad sbove. If the child 13 relsazed for indepandent Adoplion and an adoplion petition
I= ot fled within 30 days, the Callfomis Depariment of Social Services will begin an invesligation o detamine if a fosler care licensing law is being
viclated.

Uwa undersiand that this authorizes ooly the raleese of this child from the hospital. This is nol a consent or refinquishment of this ci/d for adoplion.

(Woraas) Ontn) (Signaiers of peraons leceag child)

FOrganuzation « N ASpACALIS)

{Adkimm]
Idantificalicn of persan(s) racsiving chitd (two 1D's required): Driver's Ecanse number, Slale,
Bacial Security number or
other idenlificalion,
V. REPORT OF HOSPITAL Fateptont rimbar :
(awa of Hersplal) {Agtreas)
Miane o Aterdrg Py can} (hiotner's Adrimicn Cnie) chenys Dats)
Dloters Haze} 008) {oifery Adreas|
{Fatrar's Hama) feos) (Paters Actrese)
of [ 4
AD 22 (1m3)

272



Women's and NewbornGhildrer-e Services (WNS)Rrosedurs-Manual
Release of a Minor Rresedura-to Other Than Birth Mother Procedure
Page 8of9

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE HEALTH FACILITY MINOR RELEASE REPORT

This form shall be completed for each child under 16 years of age who s discharged from a health facility to a person ather than the child's
parent, relative by blood or mariage, or parson having legal custody unless the child is transferred to another health facliity or comas within
Sections 300, 601 or 602 of the Welfare and inslitutions Code and is released to an agent of a public walfara, probation or law anforcement
agency.

Seclion ). Enter the child's name, birthdate and sex (as shown on the "Record of Live Birth™ (VS 10} If the child Is a newbom).

Section Il. The name and address of the person(s) or agency authorized by the parent or guardian to remove a child from the health facility
and, Il an independent adoption, the name and address of the person(s) with whom the child will be placed must be antered In the
appropriate space before the parent or guardian signs the authorization,

Section lil. The person(s) or agency raceiving tha child shall be the same as the person or agency designalad by the parent or guardian In
Saclion Il

Secllon V. Complate the antire section. If the father's name s unknown or withhald, this should be Indicated.

A capy of the Health Facliity Minor Release Report shall be offered to both parent or guardian and the person{s) removing the child from the
health facility as all persons are entilied to coples of any documents they may sign. IF the copy is rafused, this should be noled and retained
In the health facility file with the health facility copy.

CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING RELEASE QF MINOR FROM HEALTH FACILITY
Section 1283 of the Health and Safety Code stales:

"(a} No health facility shall surrender the physical custody of a miner under 16 years of age 1o any parson unless such surrendsr is
authorized in writing by the child's parent, the person having legal custody of the chiid, or the caregiver of the child who is a relative of the
child and who may authorize medical care and dantal care undar 6550 of tha Family Code.

*{b} A heatth facility shall report to the Calilornia Depariment of Health Services, on forms supplied by the departmant, the name and address
of any person and, In tha case of a person acting as an agent for an organization, the name and address of the organization, Inlo whose
physical cusiody a minor undar the age of 16 is surrenderad, other than @ parent, relative by blood or marriage, or person having legal
custody. This repost shell be transmitted to the depariment within 48 hours of the surrandering of custody. No repert o tha depariment Is
required If a minor under the age of 16 Is transferred to ancther heallh facility for further care or if this minor comes within Section 300, 501,
or 502 of the Welfare and Instilutions Code and is released to an agent of a public welfare, probation, or law enforcement agency.”

CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING PLACEMENT OF CHLDREN
Seclion 8608(b) of ihe Famlly Code states:
“Any person, other than a birth parent, or eny organization, essaciation, or corporation that, without holding a valid and unrevoked Hcense 1o
place children for adoption issued by the department {of Social Services), places any child for adoption is guilty of a misdemeznor.”
CALIFORNIA LAW REGARDING TERMINATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS
Section 7820 of the Family Code in part states:

"A proceeding may be brought under this part for the purpose of having any child under the age of 18 years declared fres from the custody
and control of either or both parents If the child comes within any of the following descriptions set out in this chapler.”

Section 7822 of the Family Cade In part states:

“(a) A praceading under this part may ba broughl where the child .. has been lefl by both parents or the sole parent in the care and custody
al another for a period of six months . . . without any provision for the child's support, or without communication from the parent or parenls,
with the intent on the part of the parent or parents to abandon the child.”

*(d) H the parent has pleced tha child for adopticn and has not refused 1o give the required consent ta adoption, evidence of the adoplive
placement shall not in itself preclude the court from finding an intent on the part of that parent to abandan the child. If the parant has placed
the chiid for adoption and has refused to giva the required consent to adoption but has not 1aken reasonable action to obtain custody of tha
child, evidence of the adoptive placement shall not in itself preclude the court from finding an intent on the part of that parent lo abanden the
child.®

273



Women's and NewbomChildrer's Services (WNS)Rreesdure-Marual
Release of a Minor Rrecedure-io Other Than Birth Mother Procedure
Page 9of 8

@IL‘ 174 | 3/8 ceto-c O SAMPLE O O O

CAREPLAN Problems resolved: Yes [ No [ If No, describe plan

DIET
Breast Feeding Frequent feeding - g2 - 3°
Formula Feeding Type Frequency

TAKE HOME MEDICATIONS Medications (dosage, frequency, indications) Date/Time
Last dose given

Medications Received 1.

Prescriptions Given 2,

None Ordered 3.

Instructions for medication(s) given to Parent Significant Other / Caregiver 1

Relationship, , understands instructions and performed return demonstration.
RN /LVN

BABY: REPORTABLE CONDITIONS

a. Fever 100.4°F or over by rectum f. Ages & Stages taught O

b. Listlessness or restlessness Brochure pivento parent(s) Eng Spn  Other

c. Excessive crying or high pitch shillcry  Pass Refer Waived Diag. Refer

d. Any unusual rash RN /LVN

e. Loose, watery bowel movements (mucous and foul odor)
f. Vomiting (“not just spitting up"} or refusal to eat several times in a row.
0. Jaundice (press gently on tip of nose or cheek, yellow color appears, of yellow coloration of the whites of eyeballs)

OTHER SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

FOLLOW-UP APPOINTMENTS
Dr DalefTime Call for appoiniment Telephone
Other, Date/Time Call for appointment Telephone

| RECEIVED AND UNDERSTAND THE NURSES INSTRUCTIONS.
RN/LVN

Parent / Significant Other / Caregiver
Date:

RN Validation Signature

NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION Affix infant’s identification band here

Check appropriate box below

[ | hereby acknowledge that | have compared the identificalion band with my own band rumbered
and | am taking my baby from the hospital

[ 1 hereby acknowledge that | have checked the identification and | am taking the appropriate baby from the hospilal

Parent Witness Date Time
Signature if other than parent _Relationship Identification Verification

@ Affix Patient Label
( ) Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Viste Way « Oceensida ~ CA - £2058

. NEWBORN IDENTIFICATION &
Illlmmulmm DISCHARGE INSTRUCTIONS

[ew. &7 White - Chart  Yellow - Patient

274



=)
(&’) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

WOMEN-S-AND-CHILDREN'S-WOMEN AND NEWBORN SERVICES (WNS)MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 06/03 SUBJECT: Surrogacy
REVISION DATE(S): 8/0812/09, 06/4007/10,~12/1306/13,
Qs
Women and Newborn Services Department Approval: 12/18
Department of OB/GYN Approval: 42/13n/a
Department of Pediatric Approval: +2H3n/a
Administration Approval: 0119
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/14 nl/a
Board of Directors Approval: 6/0342/00.-7/10.-06/14

A DEFINITIONS:

1.
2.

3.

Surrogate: A pregnant woman who has agreed to carry ar infantbaby(s) for another person(s).
Intended/Legal Parents: Person(s) identified in a Judgment of maternity and patemlty as the
legalintended/Legal Parents parent(s) with all parental rights. ;

Judgment of Maternity and Paternity (herein after Judgment): A court order signed by a superior

court judge with an official court seal that specifies the ilntended/legallLegal Parents parent(s)

of the an-infanrtbaby(s) born or to be born via a eSurrogate and states that the sSurrogate is not
the legalintended/Legal Parents parent. This document indicates the names that must be used
on the birth certificate(s).

a. Note: If there is not a Judgment, the sSurrogate will be given full custodial and legal
rights and the infantbaby s(s) will be kept under the sSurrogate’s last name. The
sSurrogate will aiso sign all consents for herself and the infantbaby(s) if the Judgment
has not been received by the hospital.

B. POLICY:

1.

Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Wemen-s-and-Childrer's-Women and Newborn!s Services
(WNS) inciuding Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) provides comprehensive, quality, family-
centered care within an interdisciplinary framework. Situations regarding the appropriate
discharge of minors (e.g., newborns) may arise at any time.
Wemenwd—clmléren-s—Semses’—WNS’ personnel discharging baby(s) irfants—within the
context of a eSurrogate birth—mether—and the iintended legal/Legal Parents parent(s) shall
adhere to the following (including but not limited to):

a. Tri-City Medical Center policies and procedures

b, Governmental regulations and laws

c. Court orders

In all cases, the Judgment shall be used as a guide to determine who has legal authority for the
newborn baby (babies).

TCMC Social Services shall act as the primary contact and referral coordinator for the
sSurrogate and associated parties.

Prior to admission when a sSurrogate is identified she shall be referred to the hospital perinatal
sSocial wWorker(SW).

C. PROCEDURE:

1.

The sescial-workerSW shall:

a. Request a copy of Judgment (faxed or mailed to the hospital) and instruct patient to
bring original certified copy of Judgment to hospital upon admission for delivery or prior
to discharge.

275



Women and Newborn Ghildrer's Services (WNS) Manaual

Surrogacy Policy
Page 2 of 7

b. Notify Obstetrical (OB) Pre-admitting clerk of the surrogacy and provide any paperwork
or information collected, including copy of the Judgment, when available.
c. When available, place copy of Judgment in the Perinatal Watch List Book and in

designated folder in Seelal-Werker{SW) office.

d. Upon admission provide original certified copy of Judgment to Birth Clerk (when

received).

e. Ensure that copy of Judgment is on baby’s chart.

The OB admission clerk shall:

a. Provide the Surrogate with the surrogacy packet, this packet may include but is not
limited to:

i. Pre-registration form

ii. Insurance information request (requiring photocopy of responsible party's
insurance card(s))

i The TCMC financial agreement for surrogate, ilntended/-ILegal pParent(s} and
Surrogacy Agency or Private Attorney (Refer to Financial Responsibility
Agreement for Hospital Care Provided to Baby Born of Surrogacy Agreement
and to a Surrogate Mother)

iv. Request for copy of Judgment decument-perinfani-(all pages, may be faxed or
sent as a xeroxed copy), with instructions to bring the certified legal Judgment(s)
to the hospital upon admission for delive

Re-Re sgate

:

Provide copies of received completed, or required documents to the admitting clerk for

creating the pre-admission record

Provide identifying information, (i.e., Judgment) regarding the pregnancy and surrogacy

arrangements to;

i. The birth clerk

i. The OB admitting clerk

ii. Labor and Delivery shall receive a copy of the Judgment to keep on a file in the
Perinatal Watch List Binder

iv. Social Worker (SW)

V. Copies shall also be attached to the sSurrogate and infantbaby(s) charts when
admitted and newborn delivered

e-d. Enter the pre-registration information into the system and shall scan all documents,
including a copy of the received Judgment into the computer system during normal
business hours. During other business hours the regular admissions office or during
non-business hours the Emergency Department Clerk will be able to assist and act as
the OB admitting clerk.

fe. Pre-verify all provided insurance information to ensure that it is an active account to
ensure surrogacy is a covered benefit. Should additional financial arrangements be
needed, admissions shall process them accordingiy.

The Patient Financial Information:

a. The TCMC financial agreement for sSurrogate, ilntended/dLegal pParent(s) and

Surrogacy Agency or Private Attorney will be given to the Patient Financia! Services by

the person that pre-admits or admits the patient

3

b. This information shall be forwarded to Patient Financial Services (PFS)/hospital financial
counselor to ensure that the ilntended/Legal pParent(s) have also signed the Conditions
of Admission (COA)

c. Insurance information for agreements that require the sSurrogate couple to assume

financial responsibility of hospital stay for mother (if applicable) and infantbaby(s),
including NICU costs if applicable. In all cases, the Judgment shall be used as a guide to
determine who has legal authority for the baby.

d, All-hospital-chargesto-motherand-bab it ba-c
arrangements-were-made-as-perthe-Judgment—T

hospita

he | financial counselor(s) shall

276



Women and Newborn Ghildrer's Services (WNS) Manual
Sumogacy Policy
Page 3of 7

be alerted about the planned summogacy and will contact the identified agency or private
attorney and the ilntended/HLegal pParent(s) to discuss contractual obligations including
base costs for ail care for the bith-metherSurrogate (if applicable) and the baby
l (babies) in the NICU neenatalintensive-sare-if required. They will also be advised that
the physician charges are not included in the hospital charges.

e. Admissions will pre-verify all insurance coverage to ensure surrogacy is a covered
benefit. Should additional financial arrangements be needed, admissions will process
them accordingly. They will forward this information to the hospital financial counselor (to
ensure that the ilntended/Legal parent(s) have also signed the COA).

f. Upon delivery, the original certified copy of the Judgment ef-maternity-and-pateraity-will
be given to the birth clerk for processing of the birth certificate. Copies shall also be
attached to the birh-metherSurrogate and infant the baby(s) charts and the pPerinatal
Social Worker case-managernotified.

4, The admitting Labor and Delivery RN/or Unit Secretary upon the sSurrogate's admission for
delivery shall:

a. Obtain the legal Judgment on file for the sSurrogate and intended/-lLegal pParent(s) in
the Perinatal Watch List book, and place copies of the documents on the sSurrogate and
infant the baby(s) charts

b. Notify the OB admission clerk/or designee upon the arrival of the sSurrogate for
admission to labor and delivery, and then upon birth of baby for admission into the
system
i. The OB admission clerk/or designee shall contact Patient Financial Services

(PFS) (extension: 3160), who shall contact the insurance company of the
sSurrogate’s admission and obtain authorization for hospital care for the
sSurrogate and the newborn infartbaby(s).

c. Enter a sSocial wWork referral in Cerner:

i This will initiate the process for a sSocial wWorker evaluation for all parties
involved in the sSurrogate pregnancy after admission of surrogate
| 5. Admitting/ID Banding: (FGMG-Patient Care Services (PCS) Procedure: Identification /Barding
of Newborns)
| a. Signed or certified Judgment present:
i. If there is a Judgment present at the time of birth, the baby shall be admitted by
an admissions staff member under the ilntended/HLegal pParent(s)’ last name.

All of the four plastic bands will be printed per PCS Procedure:

Identification/Bandirg of Newborns-presedure. This information shall include:

1) The last name, and first name of the legal parent identified on the legal
Judgment as the Iegal mother

32) Atthe time of birth, include the sex of the newborn, date of birth and time
of birth (24-hour clock) on all of the four bands

it. Separate and attach the set of four completed bands as follows: (Refer to PCS

| Procedure: “nfart-ldentification/Banding of Newborns®). The two smaller bands
will be applied to the newborn.

| 1) One large band will be placed on the ilntended/4l.egal mMother's wrist or

the Intended/ILegal father's wrist if there is no legal mother.

2) The fourth (large) band labeled as above, will be placed on the other

| Intended/lLegal pParent's wrist {if applicable) or can be placed on the

identified significant other's wrist per the discretion of the legal parent.

I b. Absence of signed or certified Judgment:
i. If there is no Judgment present, the baby will be admitted under the sSurrogate
name and all bands will be made in that name. (Refer to PCS Procedure; “nfant
| k Identification /Banrding-of Newborns=™

277



Women and Newborn Ghildrens Services (WNS) Manual
Sumogacy Policy
Page 4of 7

1) The Intended/Legal Parent(s) will be banded with 1 of the adult baby
bands containing the surrogate name.
ii. When the Intended/iLegal pParents arrive with the signed Judgment papers:

...... afalath fa

= = afa C1-10

1) Social Worke II vei the

Judgement.

2) Unit Secretary will have baby name changed by main admission
office utilizing a communication notice.
a) The name change will be corrected on the Medical Record

hard chart documents
b) The name change will be reflected in the Electronic Heatth
Record (EHR).

c) The main admissions office will update insurance and
emergency contact information as needed.

d) Newborn identification bands will be made to reflect the name
change. Refer to PCS Procedure: Newbern-ldentification of
Newbornsprecadure.

e) The Newborn Metabolic Screening form will be updated to
reflect the name change utilizing the comment box.
3) The ilntended/4Legal pParent(s) and infantbaby(s) will be banded with
one downtime-|D bands containing the surrogate name and the following
information:

4) Unit Secretary will have baby name changed utilizing the main
admission office by utilizing a communication notice.

a) The name change will be corrected on the Medical Record
hard chart documents

b) The name change will be reflected in the Electronic Health
Record (EHR).

c) The main admissions office will update insurance, patient
data and emergency contact information as needed.

d) Newborn identification bands will be made to reflect the name
change. Refer to PCS Procedure: Newbotn-ldentification of
Newbornsprecedure.

e) The Newborn Metabolic Screening form will be updated to

reflect the name change.

278



Women and Newborn Ghitdren's Services (WNS) Manual
Sumogacy Policy
Page5of7

=D.

| &H.

RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONSENT: (FCMG-Administrative Policy: Disclosure of Protected
Health Information (PHI) #8610-513)
1. Signed or certified Judgment present:

a. Release of information regarding the infantbaby(s) will be provided by the hospital staff
in person or via telephone to by-the Intended/iLegal pParents. (All consents for
carefprocedures will be signed by the Intended/-Legal gParents).

2. Absence of signed or Certified Judgment:

a. Release of information regarding the infantbaby(s) will be provided in person or via
telephone toby the sSurrogate whose ID bands match those of the infantbaby(s) only.
The Intended/lLegal -pParents will not receive any information regarding the
infantbaby(s) until a Judgment is present or written permission granted by the

&Surrogate is present in the infantbaby(s) chart. -uﬂl@;@-ﬂqe—Au&henzahen—fep#isﬂahen
andlerReloase-of Patientinformation-form—

The sSurrogate will sign all consents for

care/procedures,

VISITATION: (Reference WNS Policy:-8678-115 Visitation in NICU, TGMGC-AdministrativePCS Policy:
#8610-304: V Visiting Guidelines, WNS Palicy: 7400-180-Partners in Care for Women and Newborn
ServicesWNSWCS)

BIRTH CERTIFICATE:
1. If there is a Judgment present, the names of the Intended/ILegal pParents will be listed on the
original birth certificate.

a. A certified copy of the Judgment must be given to the birth clerk to attach to the birth
statistics. —For the multi-fetal pregnancy, an original certified copy of the Judgment must
be attached to each infantbaby's birth certificate for submission to the county.

b. The birth certificate is filled out by the Intended/ILegal -pParents- according to the
Judgment, although medical information in the birth certificate pertaining to the
pregnancy and labor and delivery shall pertain to the sSurrogate.

e—For other surrogacy details regarding the birth certificate, refer to the San Diego County
Vital Records and Statistics manual or call the vital records department.

DISCHARGE:

279



Women and Newborn Ghildrers Services (WNS) Manual
Surrogacy Policy
Page 6 of 7

K.

1. Orrgmal Netanz-ed(:ertrf‘ ed copy” Judgment present at TCMC

Dlscharge rnust be cleared by admlssmnslPFS f nanclal counselor (ext 3160) before
the infantbaby(s) is released from the hospital with the Intended/Legal Parents.

ab. Discharge process for the unit will be followed.
2. Absence of “Original NetarizedCertified copy” Judgment

a. sSurrogate assumes care of infant when cleared for discharge.{referto-signed-waiverof

b. Surrogete must follow standard discharge procedures including discharge teaching.
ac. Discharge must be cleared by admissions/PFS — financial counselor (ext.3160) before
the sSurrogate and the infant(s) can be released from the hosprtal-(-refer—te—srgﬁed

FETAL DEATH/DEMISE:
1. Judgment present
a. Intended/iLegal -pParents will follow standard procedures for release of remains.
2. Absence of Judgment
a. sSurrogate will follow standard procedures for release of remains.
RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Tri-Gity-Medical-Conter-Administrative Policy#8640-543: Disclosure of Protected Health
Information (PHI) 8610-513

2. Fri-City-Medical-Genter-WNS NICU Policy-#6070-115: Visitation in the NICU

2:3. WNS Pollcy lnfant Feedlngs

3 = Patient Care Services Policy:
VlSltlng Gmde[lnes

5. FriGity- Medical-Gonter\WNGSProcedure-#7400-100WNS Policy: Partners in Care for
Women-s-and-Ghildren's-Women and Newborn Services

6. Iﬂ-Gr!éy-Medreal-Genter-PCS Procedure "Identlf' catlon of NewbornslBandmg—ef—Newbem

REFERENCE(S):

1. 4 California Consent Manual 2018

280



Women and Newborn Ghildren’s Sarvices (WNS) Manual
Sumogacy Policy
Page 7cf 7

281



Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
(No meeting held in January, 2019)

282



Tri-City Medical Center

Finance, Operations and F

ning Committee Minutes
January 24, 2019

(Members Present
Non-Voting Members
Present:

Others:

Members Absent:

Dr. Marcus Contardo, Wayne Lingenfelter

Director Julie Nygaard, Director Leigh Anne Grass, Director Rocky Chavez, Dr. Gene Ma, Dr. Mark Yamanaka,
Dr. Jeffrey Ferber, Jack Cumming

Steve Dietlin, CEQ, Ray Rivas, CFO, Scott Livingstone, COO, Sharon Schuitz, Carlos Cruz, CCO, CNE, Susan
Bond, General Counsel

Jane Dunmeyer, Miava Suliivan, Jeremy Raimo, Mark Albright, Maria Carapia, Thomas Moore, Kristy Larkin, Eva
England, Lisa Stroud, Rebecca Bloom, Chris Miechowski, Candice Parras, Barbara Hainsworth

Topic

Discussions, Conclusions
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

Person(s)
Responsible

1. Call to order

Director Nygaard called the meeting to
order at 8:32 am.

Chair

2. Approval of Agenda

MOTION

it was moved by Dr. Ferber, Dr.
Yamanaka seconded, and it was
unanimously approved to accept the
agenda of January 24, 2019.
Members:

AYES: Nygaard, Grass, Chavez, Ma,
Yamanaka, Ferber, Cumming

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Contardo, Lingenfelter

3. Comments by members of the
public on any item of interest to
the public before committee’s
consideration of the item.

Director Nygaard read the paragraph
regarding comments from members of
the public.

Chair

4, Ratification of minutes of
December 4, 2018

Minutes were ratified.

MOTION

It was moved by Dr. Yamanaka, Mr.
Cumming seconded, and the minutes
of December 4, 2018 were
unanimously approved, with Director

£ge




Topic

Discussions, Conclusic
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

[ on(s)
Responsible

Grass abstaining

5. Old Business

None

Calendar:

items be pulied for discussion:

Director Grass:

7.b. Rady Children's Specialists
Agreement for NICU ROP Testing —
Rady Children's Specialists of San
Diego

It was moved by Director Grass,
Director Chavez seconded, and it
was unanimousiy approved to accept
the agenda of January 24, 2019.
Members:

AYES: Nygaard, Grass, Chavez, Ma,
Yamanaka, Ferber, Cumming

a. Revised 2019 Meeting Director Nygaard encouraged the Chair
Schedule members of the Committee to make
¢ Finance, Operations & note of the revised 2019 Finance,
Planning Committee Operations & Planning Committee
meeting dates on their respective
calendars.
6. New Business
a. Introduction of New Director Nygaard welcomed Director Chair
Committee Member Rocky Chavez, and introduced him to
o Director Rocky Chavez the members of the committee. B o
b. Community Member Due to a previous commitment, Mr. Chair
Recognition: Lingenfelter was unable to atiend
e Mr. Wayne Lingenfelter today's meeting. Director Nygaard,
however, conveyed the committee’s
gratitude for his numerous
contributions during his two terms. She
advised that a certificate of
appreciation would be mailed to him.
Also at this time, Director Nygaard
acknowiedged that Sharon Schultz,
Chief Nurse Executive will soon be
retiring. She conveyed the
Committee’s appreciation for her
participation and wished her much
o happiness in her retirement.
7. Consideration of Consent It was requested that the following MOTION Chair

§ Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 2

January 24, 2019




Action

. Discussions, Conclusi . son(s)
Topic ’ . Recommendations/ \
_ Recommendations Conclusions Responsible
7.f. Sub-Lease Agreement Proposal — | NOES: None

Kenneth Carr, M.D.

Dr. Yamanaka:

7.c. Carlsbad Wellness Center MOB
Lease Agreement Proposal — Ohana
Medical Services Organization, Inc.

Director Nygaard:

7.e. Cerner Community Works
Proposal — Cemer

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Contardo, Lingenfelter

a. Physician EKG /

Echocardiogram Pane!
Agreement Renewal for
Coverage

e Dr. Anitha Rajamanickam

Approved via Consent Calendar

. Rady Children's Specialists

Agreement for NICU ROP

Testing

+ Rady Children's
Specialists of San Diego

Director Grass questioned whether the
staff from Rady Children's Specialists
provides this testing on the TCMC
campus.

Sharon Schultz clarified that the
patients are seen for this testing post-
discharge at Rady Children's
Specialists.

MOTION

It was moved by Director Grass,
seconded by Mr. Cumming to
authorize the agreement with Rady
Children’s Specialists of San Diego
for Retinopathy of Prematurity
Testing for a term of 12 months,
beginning January 1, 2019, and
ending December 31, 2019, for a cost
of $3,200 per month, for a total cost
for the term of $38,400.

Members:

AYES: Nygaard, Grass, Chavez, Ma,
Yamanaka, Ferber, Cumming

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Contardo, Lingenfelter

. Carlsbad-Wellness Center

MOB Lease Agreement

Proposal

¢ Ohana Medical Services
Organization, Inc., (“Tenant)

Dr. Yamanaka asked the nature of the
services to be provided at the leased
location. Jeremy Raimo conveyed that
an urgent care facility would be
established at this site.

MOTION

It was moved by Director Grass, Mr.
Cumming seconded, to authorize the
agreement for the Lease Agreement
for Suite 101 in the Carlsbad

E’ Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 3

January 24, 2019




Action

. Discussions, Conclusi . son(s)
Topic . Recommendations/ .
Recommendations Conclusions Responsible
Director Grass queried the purpose of | Wellness Center MOB located at
the 5-month'’s rent abatement. Jeremy | 6260 El Camino Real, Carisbad, CA
reported that the rent conversion was 92009, with Ohana Medical Services
in lieu of tenant improvements. Organization, Inc., for a ten-year,
five-month term (125 months), at the
rate of $7,971 per month, increasing
base rent 3% yearly and with a total
credit from the landlord not to
exceed $239,609.
Members:
AYES: Nygaard, Grass, Chavez, Ma,
Yamanaka, Ferber, Cumming
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Contardo, Lingenfelter
d. Physician Agreement for ED Approved via Consent Calendar
On-Call Coverage —
Interventional Radioiogy (IR)
» Cyrus Shabrang, M.D.
e. Cerner Community Works Director Nygaard requested that more | MOTION
Proposal information be provided about this It was moved by Mr. Cumming,
proposal. Director Chavez seconded, to
Scott Livingstone and Mark Albright authorize the agreement with Cerner
provided a comprehensive overview of | for Community Works for a term of
the many enhanced elements that the | 120 months (10 years), beginning
Cerner Community Works proposal will | February 2019 and ending January
provide to the facility. In addition, they | 2029 for an average annual cost of
answered a wide range of questions $6,140,113, and a total cost for the
that were posed. term of $61,401,130.
Significant discussion ensued. Members:
AYES: Nygaard, Grass, Chavez, Ma,
Yamanaka, Ferber, Cumming
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Contardo, Lingenfelter
f. Sub-Lease Agreement Director Grass solicited the reason for | MOTION Sherry Miller

Proposal

this agreement reflecting only 4

It was moved by Director Chavez,

§ Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 4

January 24, 2019




Action

. Discussions, Conclusi . son(s)
Topic . Recommendations/ .
Recommendations Conclusions Responsible
e Kenneth Carr, M.D., months in duration. Director Grass seconded, to
(“Tenant”) Steve Dietlin conveyed that this write- | authorize the Sub-Lease Agreement

up is to be amended to reflect the for Suite 160 at 2067 W. Vista Way,

statement “not to exceed 4 months, Vista, CA 92083, with Kenneth Carr,

from February 1, 2019 through May 31, | M.D. for a month-to-month term

2019" will be revised to read “month-to- commencing February 1, 2019, at the

month lease, commencing February 1, | rate of $2,169.76 per month.

2019", Members:
AYES: Nygaard, Grass, Chavez, Ma,
Yamanaka, Ferber, Cumming
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Contardo, Lingenfelter
Barbara Hainsworth to amend the write-up.

g. Physician Agreement for Approved via Consent Calendar Lisa Stroud
Supportive / Palliative Care
Program Medical Director
e Dr. Nicholas Jauregui
8. Financials: Ray Rivas presented the financials Ray Rivas

ending December 31, 2018 (doliars in
thousands)

TCHD - Financial Summary

Fiscal Year to Date

Operating Revenue $ 176,615
Operating Expense $ 179,666
EBITDA $ 8,104
EROE $ 352
TCMC — Key Indicators

Fiscal Year to Date

Avg. Daily Census 152
Adjusted Patient Days 50,111
Surgery Cases 3,282
Deliveries 1,096
ED Visits 28,179
TCHD - Financial Summary

Current Month

g Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 5

January 24, 2019




Topic

Discussions, Conclus 3
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

| rson(s)
Responsible

Operating Revenue $ 29,704
Operating Expense $ 29,962
EBITDA $ 1,544
EROE $ 236

TCMC - Key Indicators
Current Month

Avg. Daily Census 1563
Adjusted Patient Days 8,069
Surgery Cases 519
Deliveries 166
ED Visits 4,629

TCMC - Net Patient A/R & Days in
Net A/R By Fiscal Year

Net Patient A/R Avg.

(in millions) $ 43.2
Days in Net A/R Avg. 51.3
Graphs:

e TCMC-Net Days in Patient
Accounts Receivable

o TCMC-Average Daily Census,
Total Hospital-Excluding
Newborns

» TCMC-Acute Average Length of
Stay

9. Work Plan:

a. Wellness Center

Scott Livingstone gave a brief verbal
presentation on the Wellness Center
which included the following
information:
¢ No new financial information
from the December report
e Dues increase as planned
effective January 1, 2019 for
new members:
o Individual Membership
now $105 / month

Scott Livingstone

§ Finance, Operations and Planning Commitiee Meetings 6

January 24, 2019




Topic

Discussions, Conclusi
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

son(s)
Responsible

o Senior Membership now
$90 / month

» Dues increase for current
members planned to begin May
1, 2019

e Forreview — at previous dues,
Wellness would need
approximately 8,000 members
per month to break even;
previous dues, realizes a loss of
about $20 -$25 / member per
month.

b. Construction Report

Chris Miechowski gave a brief verbal
presentation of the following
information:
e Parking lot expansion has been
completed & opened for use.
e Lights & video for OR #4 to be
completed soon.
» Pharmacy USP 800 upgrade
estimated to be finished in June
2019.
¢ Retail pharmacy is projected to
open in May 2019.

Chris Miechowski

c. ED Throughput

Candice Parras gave a single
PowerPoint slide presentation for ED
Throughput.

She emphasized both the enhanced
triage process and the “In Quicker”
online appointment scheduling option
continues to improve patient
satisfaction. The “left without being
seen” (LWBS) patient population was
1.97% for 2018, well below the 3%
goal. The "No Wall Time" for
paramedic providers continues to be
extremely successful, and remains the

Candice Parras

% Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 7

January 24, 2019




Action

. Discussions, Conclus™ . son(s)
Topic ! . Recommendations/ A
Recommendations Conclusions Responsible
best in San Diego County.
d. IT Physician Liaison Mark Albright gave a brief PowerPoint Mark Albright /

presentation created by Dr. Scott

Worman, emphasizing the following:
¢ Completed & Ongoing Projects
e Strategic Priorities

Dr. Scott Worman

e. PRIME Update

Scott Livingstone gave a brief verbal
presentation, updating the Committee
on the current status of PRIME.

He emphasized the metrics are being
met, and they are preparing for the
next reporting period, March 2019.
Brief discussion ensued.

Scott Livingstone

f. Dashboard No discussion Ray Rivas
10. Comments by committee

members
11. Date of next meeting Tuesday, February 21, 2019 Chair

12. Community Openings (0)

13. Adjournment

Meeting adjourned 9:38 p.m.

o Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 8
=

January 24, 2019




ADVANCED HEALTH cAR

@) Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: January 24, 2019
PHYSICIAN EKG/ECHOCARDIOGRAM PANEL AGREEMENT RENEWAL for COVERAGE

Medical
Type of Agreement Directors X | Panel Other:
New Renewal — New Renewal - Same
AL LI X Agreement Rates Rates
Physician’s Name: Dr. Anitha Rajamanickam
Area of Service: Cardiology
Term of Agreement: 36 months, Beginning, July 1, 2018 — Ending, June 30, 2021
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES (within 25%)
Adding physician to existing panel; no increase in expense
Weekly Cost | Annual Cost Total Term Cost
Notto Exceed | Not to Exceed Not to Exceed
$4,160 $216,320 $648,960

Position Responsibilities:

* Panel Physician shall interpret echocardiographic studies of unassigned patients for which the
attending physician does not specify an interpreting cardiologist.

* Electrocardiograms are to be interpreted twice daily on weekdays (Monday-Friday} and at least
once per day on weekends (Saturday, Sunday or holidays).

» The final report for all echocardiograms is to be dictated within 24 hours of the performance of the
study.

» For exercise of pharmacological stress test, if the scheduled panel physician cannot be available
within 15 minutes of the scheduled start time to personally supervise the test, it is that panel
physician’s responsibility to assure that another cardiologist will do so. The final report shall be
dictated on the day of the study.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yas No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Eva England, Cardiovascular Service Line Administrator / Scott
Livingstone, Chief Operating Officer
Motion:

nove that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors approve
the agreement to add Dr. Anitha Rajamanickam to the currently existing Cardiology Physician EKG and
Echocardiology Panel Agreement for a term of 36 months, beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2021.

291



ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

@) Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: January 24, 2019
Rady Children’s Specialists Agreement for NICU ROP Testing

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Vendor’'s Name: Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego
Area of Service: NICU - Retinopathy of Prematurity Testing
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, January 1, 2019 - Ending, December 31, 2019

Maximum Totals:

Monthly Cost | Annual Cost | Total Term Cost
ROP Services $3,200 $38,400 $38,400
Total: $38,400

Description of Services/Supplies:
¢ Ophthalmic Consultation Services for NICU - Retinopathy of Prematurity (ROP) Testing
* Requested increase of $123 per month, $1,476 for the term

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer; X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Cynthia Kranz, Director-N ursing, Women & Newborn
Services / Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Rady Children’s Specialists of San Diego for Retinopathy of Prematurity
Testing for a term of 12 months, beginning January 1, 2019, and ending December 31, 2019, for a cost of
$3,200 per month, for a total cost for the term of $38,400.

292



ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

@? Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: January 24, 2019
Carlsbad-Wellness Center MOB Lease Agreement Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other: Office Lease
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Tenant Name: Ohana Medical Services Organization, Inc. (“Tenant”)
Term: 10 Year, 5 month Lease (125 Months}, beginning at commencement date of

completion of tenant improvements;
3% Yearly Rent Escalator
Option for (1), five year extensions at FMV

Premises: 6260 El Camino Real, Suite 101, Carlsbad, CA 92009 (2,657 sq. ft.)

Rental Rate from Ohana Medical Services Organization, Inc.:

e : Revenue per
Rental Rate: Month
Rental Rate of $3.00 NNN per square foot, per month, (2657 sq. ft.) $7,971
Total Monthly Revenue: $7,971
City Healthcare District Base Rent Credit to Lessee:
L / Rent Credit
" [3
District {“Landlord) to Provide: Not to Exceed
Base Rent Credit of $75 per square foot per rentable area, (2657 sq. ft.) credited on a $199 275
Monthly basis over the first five year term (60 months) !
5 months’ rent abatement 540,334
Total Credits from Landlord: $239,609

Within Fair Market Value:  YES (FMV was determined by lease comparables)

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer Yes | N/A No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director, Business Development / Steve Dietlin,
Chief Executive Officer

Motion:
t move that the Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that the TCHD Board of Directors

“orize the Lease Agreement for Suite 101 in the Carlsbad Wellness Center MOB located at 6260 El Camino Real,
L.iishad, CA 82009, with Ohana Medical Services Organization, Inc., for a ten-year, five-month term (125 months),
at the rate of $7,971 per month, increasing base rent 3% yearly and with a total credit from the landlord not to
exceed $239,609.

293



ADVANCED HEALTH cAR

@) Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: January 24, 2019
Cerner Community Works Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other:
Renewal - Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Vendor's Name: Cerner
Area of Service: All Clinical & Financial Departments
Term of Agreement: 120 months, Beginning, February 1, 2019 - Ending, january 31, 2029

Maximum Totals:

Monthly Cost | Annual Cost | Total Term Cost
$511,676 $6,140,113 $61,401,130

Description of Services/Supplies:

* Cerner Community Works is a prescriptive/cloud based deployment of Cerner’s traditional
Millennium IT platform providing a fully integrated acute care and ambulatory electronic health
record (EHR) and revenue cycle management system, tailored to support community health care
organizations. This Community Works proposal includes the entire portfolio of available
applications/solutions to include the data warehouse, population health, and single sign-on.

¢ The Community Works platform includes Cerner’s Application Management Services (AMS) which
provides operational monitoring and support ensuring the system is always current with updates and
code upgrades.

* Community Works is a 12 - 15 month implementation. Execution of this proposal ensures the system
will go live at the expiration of the current Cerner Millennium contract in March 2020.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mark Albright, Vice President, IT / Scott Livingstone, Chief
Operating Officer

Motion: | move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
'thorize the agreement with Cerner for Community Works for a term of 120 months (10 years), beginning
<bruary 2019 and ending January 2029 for an average annual cost of $6,140,113, and a total cost for the
term of $61,401,130.

294



ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

@9 Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: January 24, 2019
Sub-Lease Agreement Proposal

: b-
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X E:::; Sl
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement ACH L IS IS G
5 & New Rates Rates
Tenant Name: Kenneth Carr, M.D. (“Tenant”)
Term: Month-to-Month Lease, commencing February 1, 2019
Premises: 2067 W. Vista Way, Suite 160, Vista, CA 92083 {1,558 sq. ft.)
Rental Rate:
Rental Rate from Kenneth Carr, M.D.: Revenue per Month
Rental Rate of $3.53/sq. ft. for 12 days per month @$180.81/day $2,169.76
Total Monthly Revenue: $2,169.76
Within Fair Market Value: YES (FMV was determined by Lease Comparables)
Document Submitted to Legal to Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: Yes | N/A| No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director, Business Development / Steve Dietlin,
Chief Executive Officer

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors authorize the
Sub-Lease Agreement for Suite 160 at 2067 W. Vista Way, Vista, CA 92083, with Kenneth Carr, M.D. for a month-
to-month lease, commencing February 1, 2019, at the rate of $2,169.76 per month.

295



ADVANCED HEALTH cAR

(@? Tri-City Medical Center

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: January 24, 2019
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for Supportive/Palliative Care Program Medical Director

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal - Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Physician’s Name: Dr. Nicholas Jauregui
Area of Service: Supportive / Palliative Care
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, February 1, 2019 - Ending, lanuary 31, 2020
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
. | v | Average . 12 month
e | T | bt | ey Al | e
R - | cost =27 | ot to Exceed
$200 16 200 $3,200 $40,000 $40,000

Position Responsibilities - Supportive / Palliative Care Medical Director Services:
* This service will effectively reduce readmissions, lower length of stay, and improve patient care

* Physician shall serve as the Supportive Care Medical Director and assume education responsibility for
Physicians and Nurses for these services

» Physician shall serve as the Leader for SC and PC education quarterly and participate in activities as
mutually agreed upon with the TCHD Director of Case Management.

* Provides clinical education oversight to nurses
* Mentor and provide guidance to physicians

* Interface with community partners including Tri-City Medical Center leadership, physicians &

employees
Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: TCHD Foundation X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Lisa Stroud, Director - Case Management /Scott Livingstane, Chief
Operating Officer

Motion: | move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Dr. Nicholas Jauregui, to provide medical oversight for the TCHD Supportive / Palliative Care Program for
a term of 12 months beginning February 1, 2019 and ending January 31, 2020. Not to exceed an average of 16
hours per month, and maximum of 200 hours annually, at an hourly rate of $200 for a term cost not to exceed
$40,000.

296



Professional Affairs Committee
(No meeting held in
January, 2019)

297



Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
(No meeting held in
January 2019)

298



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

December 13, 2018 — 2:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 7 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California at
2:30 p.m. on December 13, 2018.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director George W. Coulter
Director Leigh Anne Grass
Director Julie Nygaard
Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Absent was Director Tracy M. Younger
Also present were:

Colin Coffey, Board Counsel (via teleconference)
Steven Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Dr. Victor Souza, Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1. The Acting Board Chairperson, Leigh Anne Grass, called the meeting to order at 2:30
p.m. in Classroom 7 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above.

2. Approval of Agenda
It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the agenda. Director Schallock
seconded the motion. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director Younger
absent.

3. Public Comments — Announcement

Acting Chairperson Grass read the Public Comments section listed on the November
8, 2018 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.

There were no public comments.

4. Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session



6.

10.

1.

12.

Acting Chairperson Grass made an oral announcement of the items listed on the
December 13, 2018 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed
during Closed Session which included one matter of Potential Litigation, Hearings on
Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or Quality Assurance Committee and approval
of Closed Session Minutes.

Motion to go into Closed Session

it was moved by Director Reno and seconded by Director Nygaard to go into
Closed Session. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director Younger absent.

The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 2:35 p.m.

At 3:30 p.m. in Assembly Rooms 1, 2 and 3, Acting Chairperson Grass announced
that the Board was back in Open Session.

The following Board members were present:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director George W. Coulter
Director Leigh Anne Grass
Director Julie Nygaard
Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock
Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present were:

Colin Coffey, Board Counsel (via teleconference)
Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Scott Livingstone, Chief Operations Officer

Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer

Carlos Cruz, Chief Compliance Officer

Aaron Byzak, Chief Governmental Officer

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Dr. Victor Souza, Chief of Staff

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

Acting Chairperson Grass reported no action was taken in closed session.

Director Reno led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acting Chairperson Grass read the Public Comments section of the Agenda, noting
members of the public may speak immediately following Agenda Item Number 24.
Acting Chairperson Grass requested that speakers adhere to the three minute time
allotment.

Weicome and Introduction of New Board Members:

a) Rocky J. Chavez

b) George W. Coulter
c) Tracy M. Younger

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- December 13, 2018



13.

14.

16.

| TC egular ar of irectrs Meng -3- | - emer 13, 28

Acting Chairperson Grass introduced and welcomed newly elected Board Members
Rocky J. Chavez, George W. Coulter and Tracy M. Younger who was not in
attendance today.

Special Award Presentation:

a) Honoring James J. Dagostino, DPT, PT and Laura E. Mitchell, RN for their service
on the TCHD Board of Directors

Chairperson Grass reported former Directors James Dagostino and Laura Mitchell
were unable to attend today’s meeting however she wanted to publicly
acknowledge their service on the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of Directors
and honor them with a plaque. Former Director Dagostino served on the Board for
five years and served as Chair two of those years. Former Director Mitchell served
on the Board for four years.

Report from TCHD Foundation — Jennifer Paroly, Acting Chief Development Officer

Ms. Jennifer Paroly, Acting Chief Development Officer welcomed newly elected
District Board members Chavez, Coulter and Younger. She invited them to stop by
the Foundation and get acquainted.

Ms. Paroly reported over 680 guests attended the Diamond Ball and there were over
150 local sponsors. The event raised approximately $450,000. Ms. Paroly expressed
her appreciation to all who supported the Diamond Ball.

Ms. Paroly reported Director of Facilities Chris Miechowski was honored at the North
County Philanthropy luncheon. She stated Chris has been very helpful to the
Foundation in so many ways.

Mr. Paroly reported the annual Employee Giving Holiday Luncheon is scheduled for
tomorrow. She stated there are many employees who contribute every month to the
Foundation as well as contribute in their own with the Denim pass, raffle tickets and
the Diamond Ball. Ms. Paroly stated it is encouraging to feel their support and an
honor to thank them.

Looking ahead, the 2019 Diamond Ball has been scheduled for November 16". She
encouraged everyone to “save the date”. Discussion is still underway for the date of
the Annual Golf Tournament.

In closing, Ms. Paroly expressed her appreciation for everyone's support and
encouraged everyone to enjoy the holiday season and time of gratitude.

No action taken.
Report from Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Ray Rivas reported on the current YTD Financials as follows (Dollars in
Thousands):

> Net Operating Revenue — $118,267
»  Operating Expense — $120,455
> EBITDA - $4,942




16.

> EROE - ($225)

Other Key Indicators for the YTD driving those results included the following:

»

Average Daily Census — 153
Adjusted Patient Days — 34,382

»> Surgery Cases — 2,221

» Deliveries — 745

> ED visits — 19,050
Mr. Rivas also reported on the current month financials as follows (Dollars in
Thousands):

» Operating Revenue - $29,558

>
>
>

Operating Expense - $29,796
EBITDA - $1,561
EROE -$254

Mr. Rivas reported on current month Key Indicators as follows:

VVVYY

Average Daily Census — 159
Adjusted Patient Days - 8,277
Surgery Cases — 590
Deliveries - 187

ED Visits — 4,590

Mr. Rivas reported on the following indicators for FY18 Average:

®
e

Fe

Net Patient Accounts Receivable - $42.4
Days in Net Accounts Receivable - 49.8

Director Nygaard commented that we are headed in the right direction. Mr. Rivas stated
we have had a strong start in the new fiscal year.

No action was taken.

New Business

1) Consideration and possible action to elect Board of Director Officers for calendar
year 2019

Acting Chairperson Grass explained the election process.

Acting Chairperson Grass requested nominations for the office of Chairperson.
Nominations were made as follows:

Director Couiter: Pass
Director Chavez: Pass
Director Schallock: Pass
Director Reno: Director Grass
Director Nygaard: Pass

Director Grass: Pass




The vote on the motion to elect Director Grass to office of Chairperson
was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

Acting Chairperson Grass requested nominations for the office of Vice Chairperson.
Nominations were made as follows:

Director Coulter: Director Nygaard
Director Chavez: Director Schallock
Director Schallock: Pass

Director Schallock
Director Schallock
Pass

Director Reno:
Director Nygaard:
Director Grass:

Director Nygaard stated she would not be willing to accept the nomination if elected,

The vote on the motion to elect Director Schallock to office of Vice
Chairperson was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors:  None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

Acting Chairperson Grass requested nominations for the office of Secretary. Nominations
were made as follows:

Director Coulter:
Director Chavez:
Director Schallock:
Director Reno:
Director Nygaard:
Director Grass:

Director Younger
Pass
Director Nygaard
Director Younger
Pass
Pass

Acting Chairperson Grass stated Director Younger is not here to accept this nomination.
Director Nygaard stated she was willing to accept the nomination if elected.

Director Chavez called for point of order. He questioned if Director Younger could be
considered for the office of Secretary since she is not present. Board Counsel stated the risk
is that Director Younger would not want to accept the position however there is no law on
whether an absent Board member can be nominated for a position. Director Chavez
suggested as a new Board there should be an element of respect for all and suggested
Director Younger be considered. The majority of the Board agreed to give Director Younger
the opportunity to be considered for Secretary.

Director Nygaard commented on Director Younger's absence. Director Reno stated Director
Younger had travel plans for this week prior to the election. it was noted that the Board's

TCHD Regulr rd of ieors eeting -5-

ceer 13, 0




meeting schedule is approved by the Board in December of each year and therefore Director
Younger had the opportunity to view the meeting schedule on the website and make travel
plans accordingly prior to running for election.

Acting Chairperson Grass requested the Board members vote on their choice for office of
Secretary by indicating Director Younger or Director Nygaard.

Director Coulter:  Younger
Director Chavez: Nygaard
Director Schallock: Nygaard

Director Nygaard: Nygaard
Director Reno: Younger
Director Grass: Nygaard

Director Nygaard was elected Secretary.

Acting Chairperson Grass requested nominations for the office of Treasurer. Nominations
were made as foliows

Director Coulter:
Director Chavez:
Director Schallock:
Director Reno:
Director Nygaard:
Director Grass:

Director Reno
Pass
Pass
Director Reno
Pass
Director Reno

Director Reno stated she would be willing to accept the nomination if selected.

The vote on the motion to elect Director Reno to office of Treasurer was

as follows:
AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock

Directors: None

Directors: None

Directors:  Younger

Acting Chairperson Grass requested nominations for the office of Assistant Secretary.

Nominations were made as follows:

Director Coulter:
Director Chavez:
Director Schallock:
Director Reno:
Director Nygaard:
Director Grass:

Director Chavez
Pass
Pass
Director Chavez
Director Chavez
Pass

The vote on the motion to elect Director Chavez to office of Assistant
Secretary was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 6- December 13, 2018



ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

Acting Chairperson Grass requested nominations for the office of Assistant Treasurer.
Nominations were made as follows:

Director Coulter: Director Coulter
Director Chavez: Director Coulter
Director Schallock: Pass
Director Reno; Director Coulter
Director Nygaard: Pass
Director Grass: Pass

The vote on the motion to elect Director Coulter to office of Assistant
Treasurer was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

Acting Chairperson Grass noted Director Younger would hold the position of “at large”
by default.

To recap, Acting Chairperson Grass stated the slate of officers is as follows:

> Chairperson: Director Grass

» Vice Chairperson:  Director Schallock
> Secretary: Director Nygaard
» Treasurer: Director Reno

> Assistant Secretary: Director Chavez
> Assistant Treasurer: Director Coulter
» AtLarge Member:  Director Younger

Director Reno suggested Director Chavez be appointed as the CHA Representative due to
his background and experience. Director Grass stated the item is not on today's agenda for
consideration however it could be added to a future agenda.

2) Consideration to certify a recognized Employee Organization as the exclusive
bargaining representative

Ms. Anna Aguilar, Senior Human Resources Director stated SEIU requested to be
recognized as the exclusive majority representative for all regular, part time and per
diem employees in the following classifications employed at 4002 Vista Way:

Physical Therapists

Occupational Therapists
Occupational Therapists Assistants
Social Workers

Engineers

YVVVYY

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 7- December 13, 2018



On November 16, 2018 a card check was conducted by a neutral party who verified the
authorization cards and determined that SEIU met or exceeded the majority
designation. In accordance with Board Resolution 706 Ms. Aguilar requested a motion
to accrete these into the existing contract.

It was moved by Director Schallock that the Tri-City Healthcare District Board of
Directors certify the results of the card count, by the neutral party, to determine
the majority of employees within the technical classification voted to be
represented by SEIU-UHW to include the following classifications of employees
employed at 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056 and to accrete those
classifications into the existing SEIU-UHW contract.

Physical Therapists

Occupational Therapists
Occupational Therapists Assistants
Social Workers

Engineers

YVVVYVY

Director Coulter seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

3) Consideration to nominate Board Member to serve on the San Diego Local
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) as a Regular Special District Member or
Alternate Special District Member whose term will expire 2023.

Director Nygaard stated she currently sits on the LAFCO Redevelopment

Committee and does not believe it is necessary that the Board nominate a second
individual to serve on LAFCO.

There was no motion to nominate a Board member to serve on the San Diego
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) as a Regular Special District
Member or Alternate Special District Member.

4) Consideration of proposed 2019 Board Meeting Schedule

It was moved by Director Reno to approve the proposed 2019 Board
Meeting Schedule as presented. Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 8- December 13, 2018



17. Cld Business - None
18. Chief of Staff

a. Consideration of November 2018 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments
Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals as recommended
by the Medical Executive Committee on November 26, 2018,

It was moved by Director Nygaard that the Tri-City Healthcare District
Board of Directors approve the November 2018 Credentialing Actions
and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health
Professionals as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on
November 26, 2018. Director Reno seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

b. Rules & Regulations - AHP
It was moved by Director Schallock to approve the AHP Rules &
Regulations as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on

November 26, 2018. Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

C. Privilege Card
1) Cardiology
It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the Cardiology Privilege
Card as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on

November 26, 2018. Director Schallock seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: Younger

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 9- December 13, 2018



19. Consideration of Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the Consent Calendar.
Director Schallock seconded the motion.

Director Nygaard stated she would be abstaining from the vote on the minutes.
Director Reno stated she would be voting no on the minutes.

The vote on the motion to approve the Consent Calendar was as

follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Coulter, Grass, Mitchell,
Nygaard, Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

20. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Agenda
There were no items pulled from the Consent Calendar.

21. Reports (Discussion by exception only)
There were no comments or questions on the reports.

22. Comments by Members of the Public
There were no comments from members of the public.

23. Comments by Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Dietlin expressed his appreciation to former Directors Dagostino, Mitchell and
Kellett for their service on the Board and welcomed incoming Board members
Chavez, Younger and Coulter. Mr. Dietlin also congratuiated the Board members on
their new offices.

24, Board Communications

Reports from Board Members

Director Coulter stated he hopes the Board can all work together and make Tri-City
the best place to come for healthcare.

Director Chavez expressed his appreciation to the voters and supporters in the recent
election and stated he is honored to be here. He stated the tenor of this meeting
speaks well of the Board and reflects we are all here for one reason — for our
community and good healthcare.

Director Schallock welcomed Directors Chavez, Coulter and Younger. He echoed
Director Chavez's comments and hopes we can work together well and keep moving
the hospital forward. Director Schallock also wished everyone happy holidays.

TCHD Regular Board of Directos Me -10- Deeme _1 2018




Director Reno welcomed and congratulated new Board members Chavez, Coulter
and Younger. She wished a Merry Christmas to all employees.

Director Reno stated that she is deeply concerned. She stated she has repeatedly
asked the Executive Secretary to add her name to the list of notices that are sent to
Board members and is still receiving those notices with her name hand-written.
Director Reno alleged there is a double standard because her name is only hand-
written and Couiter and Younger's names are not even included, however Chavez's
name is included.

Director Nygaard welcomed Directors Chavez, Coulter and Younger. She stated she
is looking forward to an exciting year ahead and moving the hospital forward.
Director Nygaard wished everyone a happy holiday season.

Director Reno stated she had additional comments to make. She stated she expects
this problem to be resolved immediately and provided her written comments to the
Acting Chairperson Grass, the Executive Assistant and the CEO.

The Executive Assistant requested permission to address Director Reno. Ms.
Donnellan stated that she has explained to Director Reno a number of times that her
name cannot be included at the top of an e-mail communication because she does
not have an email and Director Reno has declined to have an e-mail account set up.
The Executive Assistant further explained that past practice was to carbon copy
Director Reno on all communications and at her request that method was stopped
and her name was added to the line where all Directors names appear and was
handwritten as that was the only option without an e-mail account.

With regard to Directors Coulter and Younger, Ms. Donnellan explained their names
are in fact included on the copy of the e-mail/fax you provided to Mr. Dietlin and Ms.
Donnellan. Director Younger's email is tracy@alchemehealth.com and Director
Coulter's e-mail is dreamergeo@aol.com.

Director Reno stated that is a poor excuse. She also commented that she doesn't
know who is running this Board and it seems to her it is the Administration and the
Executive Secretary.

29, Report from Chairperson

Chairperson Grass wished everyone happy holidays. She congratulated SEIU on the
recent card count and congratulated new Board members, Chavez, Coulter and
Younger. Chairperson Grass also congratulated the Administrative team as the
financials are great. In closing Chairperson Grass stated she appreciates the vote of
confidence that the Board has placed in her.

34.  There being no further business Chairperson Grass adjourned the meeting at 4:35
p.m.

Leigh Anne Grass, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Julie Nygaard, Secretary

%
TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 11- December 13, 2018



GROUP SUBSCRIPTION

s'a?r}uac%};sfifggz143-3zso R E N E W AL 1 N S TR U cC 1Tt 10 N S

Customer Service: 800-669-6562 Remit By: 1/16/19
Fax Number: 386-447-6460 01 have enclosed $ for ___ subscriptions.
PAYMENT IN U.S. FUNDS ONLY
O Check to renew/enter your own subscription.

REF: 34508409 0601 R95109GG 29315916 O Check enclosed
A HOOB36 1/3/ O Charge to: [ ] VISA [] MASTERCARD [ ] AMEX
TERI DONNELLAN
TCMC ADMINISTRATION Acct No.
4002 VISTA WAY Expiration Date:
OCEANSIDE, CA 92056-4506 Signature:

[ithetboesa Qo gy LD R g b o b Type of Business: .
' Efall Address: __ " & S

5032?70000345084090 R9510966a R
MRS [ Al .
J s [

PLEASE RENEW YOUR GROUP SUBSCRIBERS BELOW
Use reverse side to enter new group subscriptions s T

" N -
& I r. .
| Circle One | v o .o %4 o
&

\ 503270000033896445 R95109GGEH . Wi i PRt
K= | no | D < i

3405 SPANISH WAY, CARLSBAD, CA 92008 .

3389644 EXPIRES MAY 2019 1COPY 51 |ssues§7s,Qp X T

\w [ NO I §03270000074111940 RE5109GGE i

L LARRY SCHALLOCK [ . 1 1 * T LA ] P L y Yoes
PO BOX 428, SAN LUIS REY, CA 92068 e * *
7411194 EXPIRES MAY 2019 1COPY 51 ISSUES $76.00

L YES I N,Q/ | 5(,:03270000366527374 R95109GG8 _ B85 <%0 T o LT

. il .. )
503270000386774335 R95109GGS e " e [§ Yo Ty
L Yes [ ®F | e . i
3456 CAMDEN-GIR-GARLEEABCA-02008
3

0

[ YES I M‘I 5032700003946811.567 R95109GGE

164-POEKST, UCEANSIDE CA 2057
3IMOETSD EXPIRES MAT-2646-—1-00P —5S$SHEI-3TA-00

NO 503270000403108336 RE5109GG8
I !E | I LEIGH ANNE GRASS
2882 WOODRIDGE CIR, CARLSBAD, CA 92008
40310833 EXPIRES MAY 2019 1 COPY 51ISSUES $76.00

w NO 503270000901044116 RO5109GGE
L I 7 ROSEMARIE V RENO, TRICITY MEDICAL CENTER
’ 4916 BELLA COLLINA ST, OCEANSIDE, CA 92056
90104411  EXPIRES MAY 2019 1COPY 51ISSUES $76.00

Return form in enclosed PRINT MODERN HEALTHCARE R
reply envelope/or mail to: SUBSCRIBER SERVICES °
P.O. BOX 433290, Palm Coast, FL. 32143-3290 2




"GROUP. SUBSCRIPTION
RENEWAL INSTRUCTIONS

P.0O. BOX 433290
Palm Coast, FL 32143-3290

Modern Healthcare

EF: 34508409 0601 R95109GG 29315916

A HOOB36
TERI DONNELLAN
TCMC ADMINISTRATION
4002 VISTA WAY
OCEANSIDE, CA 92056-4506

ENTER NEW GROUP SUBSCRIPTIONS BELOW

(Please print)
Name @ o¢ kg“ ; o hg \[£2 Name
M‘Home [ ] Home
Address H g 25 CQHQ Ar{_\uuﬁrn { 1 Business Address [ 1 Business
city State___ Zip

av Qceansido  smdanP0sT

Emall Address _c-hmmﬁ@_-‘ccmc_c_em
{Emall required for oniine & and emall communications from us.)

Name (Sg)s qQ \_A./o CIDU L!"e}"
[Y Home
R Lm\_&uu;w

city \/g et

Name _\iacag_\‘_‘\q_ogqur—
N/Finrne
Address 15 3 lp chh El,gl é ﬂr [ ] Business

av Coclellad swelp3010

Email Address

(Email required for oniine access and emall communications from us. J

Name

[ ] Home
Address [ 1 Business
City State____Zip

Email Address

(Email required for oniine access and emall communications from us.)

Name

[ 1 Home
Address { ] Business
City State____ Zip

.mail Address

(Emaill required for online access and emall communications from us. y]

Return form in enclosed

reply envelope/or mail to:

sateCAze PG
<mail Address -
(Email required for oniine aagls and email communlcations from us.)

Email Address

(Email required for onfine access and email communications from us. )

Name

{ 1 Home
Address [ ] Business
City State____Zip

Email Address ‘

(Emall required for online access and email communications from us.)

Name

[ ] Heme
Address i [ ] Business
City __State____Zip

]
»

Emall Address

(Email required for online access and email communications from us,)

-

Name L]

f 1 Home
Address [ ] Business
City State Zip

Email Address

(Email required for online access and emall communications from k)

Name

[ ] Home
Address [ ] Business
City State Zip

Emall Address

(Emall required for online access and emall communications from us.)

PRINT MODERN HEALTHCARE
SUBSCRIBER SERVICES

PAGE 2 of 2

P.O. BOX 433290, Paim Coast, FL 32143-3290




L0€

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

18
16

1

o

o N B O

@’) Tri-City Medical Center

Stakeholder Experiences

FOR Y@U

Overall Rating of Hospital {0-10)

=¢=—Percentile Rank

o L Ll
Z- -
v 15.
A A ) A A A A A A %
N N S L . S LR G
Voluntary Employee Turnover Rate

!
}

FY 16FY 16FY 16FY 16FY 17FY 17FY 17FY 17FY 18FY 18FY 18FY 18FY 19FY 19FY 19FY 19
-1 -a2 -a3 -04 -Q1 -Q2 -03 -04 -Q1 -02 -Q3 -Q4 -Q1 -02 -03 -

==5cored 9-10

§—79

e

Involuntary Employee Turnover Rate

.I.._I__l__l I I...I-,_I_.I. I‘II-|-|-|--|'|I | e |

FY16 FY16 FY 16 FY 16 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17 FY 17 FY 18 FY 18 FY 18 FY 18 FY 19 FY 19 FY 19 FY 19
-a1 -a2 -a3 -4 -1 -Q2 -03 -04 -01 -2 -Q3 -Q4 -4l -Q2 -3 -

Stakeholder Experiences - Page 1 of 11



¢0¢

O = N W B WV

1.5%
1.0%
0.5%

0.0%

350
325
300
275
250
225 4
200 +

TCMC Rate

ssassanennasTRrRRLLRI

Mean

Hospital Wide Falls per 1000 Patient Days

- mm

CA Mean

— s mmme s s =

Better

Oct-16

Noy-

-_— e s omm e

Oct-16

Oct-16

Nov-

Tereen
—-—

Now-

15

16

Pec-16

Dec-16

Jan-17

.
™~
<
=
m
=

SRR AP LRI dbbbennn
e emme s on

Jan-17

Feb-17

Feb-17

Feb-17

Jun-17

Sep-17

Oct-17

Dec-17

Jan-18

In-House Hospital Acquired Pressure Ulcer Stage |1+ per 100 Discharges

Ll R R R T R Sy

Mar- i

Mar-

17

17

Apr-17

Apr-17

May-
17

May- ¢

17

17

Jun-

Jun-17

Jul-17

Sep-17

Sep-17

Oct-17

P am s mm s omm o

Apr-18

May-
18

)
s

2]
-

Jun-18

- WS s Em p o WD v S e e s Em 4 omm o b W

Jun-18

Jul-18

Jul-18

Sep-18

Better

e =

= o

" &
(]

Better

Aug-

®essssscasnaany
—— b e—

18

Sep-18

TCMC Target

Action Plan

Continue 1o increase fall awareness and
moniter hourly rounding compliance.
Septernber rate is at is between our mean and
target. Performance is better than state mean.
Mo action necessary at his time. Continue to
maonitor,

Action Plan

Performance below goal. No action ptan
necessary. Cantinue to monitor.

Action Plan

MD coverage reduced due to ED volume
decrease. Admits and discharges continue
taking lenger as each provider has more
patients. Adding doctor hours at peak times
|being assessed.




£0¢

100

& 88

20

10%
8%
6%
%
2%

24%
18%
12%

6%

evsesessuras

Oct-16

LYY I

Oct-16

Nov-

Nov-

16

16

Dec-16

Dec-16

o
)
o
[T
Q

Jan-17

Jan-17

TCMC Rate

Feb-17

Feb-17

Mar-

17

May-

17

Shadunenssansessenan:

Mean

Arrival to ED MD

4nnea

L L L LR T T PP P PPy

~ 3 ~ ~ . ~ ) '
T8 ¥ %5 En 5 % % §e
e = I & 5 = o c £ ="
= - v O =1 = e
@ ¢ g m—— b ey o 4 4 m—n s b s e 4 ¢ e s
reteestessscanasrsnrsstssbinnass
™~ ] ~ ] [ o :
5 - S 5 ] - 3 w m
f hy ] & ' = o & -
3 5 < g = = =
S = o m 1]
= v Q - w

Apr-17

Apr-17

May-
17

Opioid Discharge Prescription Rate

Jun-17
Jul-17
Aug-
17
Sep-17
Oct-17
Nov-
17
Dec-17
Jan-18

Feb-18

Mar-

18

CA Mean

Apr-18

Jun-18

==++—-++= TCMC Target

Better

w0 4
2 tm % % &m 9
5 =" ¢ 5 d
=3 S 3 o
< = v

Senavnecrasisusennsnnsn sey Pposs . -4
-] ] o« o J
7 o Fm o7 2 %a 3
58 = § 3 < 4
< = - wvi

Action Plan

Triage MD hours reduced causing longer
waiting times to be seen and in the main ED.
Earlier MD coverage was expecte dto be
added by 10/1. Too early to determine if
change will affect the times.

Action Plan

LWBS were previously increased due to longer
waits and increase in ED Psych volume. Station
F opened and more MD hrs added. September
data shows a decrease from July and August.
Continue to monitor.

Action Plan

Performance continues to be consistant with
the mean. No action necessary at this time,
Continue to manitor




4113

20% -

16%

12%
8%
a%

0.8
0.6
04
0.2

<

Oct-16

Nov-

rending Measures

TCMC Rate sevseesednenrsnngnrs Mean b ey oem s ma CA Mean — s e m TCMC Target
ioid Disch jon R Better
Opio scharge Prescription Rate - Emergency _._ Action Plan
erformace continues to be benerthan the :
mean, No action necessary at this time,
OO T T T LTS Ee e eNeNetherera et e eSS RS ODEOREeaaen s e e e en s RAAALe s d e aernens Cantinue to monitor.
mﬁ';".-‘.*',.;h:g-h:B§n22$n2335w25m22*m§
f & fl oL — Qo & i A iy o ® Yy =1
& 5 2T g § 3 5 og T g § g iU pERLOE TG
Early Management Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock Better Action Plan

Sepsis Predictive Platform Go-Live anticipated
early Oct 2018. All sepsis resources have been
allocated to this project. Implementation on
MedTele live 10/2018 to determine roll-out
plan, Data remains above the state and
national averages. Cantinue to monitar,




G0¢E

2.0
15
1.0
05

0.0

25
2.0
15
10
05
0.0

4.0
3.0
20
1.0

0.0

Cvie Q1

CYl6 Q1

Cri6q2

Cyie Q2

CYip Q3

cY16Q3

CYl6 Q4

Healthcare Associated Infections - CAUTI

el ® 8 74 > Tadadt bt SEMNNS ¥ ® % Gt 48 08 Solalalnt ¥ &

CY16 Q4

Healthcare Associated Infections - COLO

cvizal

Cy17 Q2

Y17 Q3

Cyi7 Q4

CA Mean

crigal

¢ o mmmm s

cyisQ2

cYizQl

cviz a2

CYi7 Q3

s &4 %9 e 4 ¢ o9 » aman e v plle

CY17Q4

cvisqQ1l

cvisqQ2

—r=r+= TCMC Target

Better

cyis a3

Better

2800 M 006 0yt bt

-—

CY18Q3

Cvle Qi

€yi6 Q2

€¥16Q3

Cri6Q4

cyizaa

cyiraQ2

€Y17Q3

Cvi7 Q4

Cvis

cvig a2

Cyi803

Action Plan

ontinue CLABSI bundle. Real time feedback
for new cases.

Action Pian

No CAUTI's indentified in CY18 Q3- contlnue .
real time feedback for new cases,

Action Plan

Create audit ool for drill down & follow p. .
Peer review of all COLO Cases.




90¢

15

1.0

05

0.0

15

1.0

05 -

00

100%
B0%
60%
40%
20%

0%

i

TCMC Rate I T YT T Mean - oy CA Mean — ki w TCMC Target
Healthcare Associated Infections - MRSA Better Action Plan
Cotlnue Contact precautions and
environmental cleaning.
CY16Q1 CY16 Q2 CYl6 Q3 CYi6 4 cvizal Cyl7 Q2 cYlr o3 CY17 04 cYig CYig a2 cvi8 Q3
Healthcare Associated Infections - CDI Better Action Plan

CrieQil cyieQ2 CcYl6Q3

— S s ¢ m— s mE— ¢ r we—

ntimicratrial stewardship, Contact
precauttons, Hand soap & waler, realtime
feedback & deep dive of positive HO cases.

Cy16 Q4 cvizal Y17 Q2 cviv Qs €Y17 Q4 crizai CcyigQz cYisQ3

) Better :
% Patients With Follow-Up Appts Made Before Discharge - Action Plan

-—on—--—c-—-u—lo—--—'o_--—--—nl_o-—-l—ol—-. CVIBthemetric:hangedw“hinloonly
include Alc>9. Updating the graph back to
original Alc>7 for data capture and break out

Sesssticnnneniscssont et TETFPPTTYITTIIT TETTISL

€v15Q3 Cyi502 CY15Q1 CYi504

TesERasRNerIILrITTT

amesrvesessnnnans ELIYIY

in @ separate graph A1c>9 for a focus area to
drive improvement for the new metric,

Cvl6d1  Cvi602 Cv1603 Cv16Q4 CY17Q1 C€Yi7Q2  C€Y17Q3  CY1704  CY18Q1  CY18Q2  CY18Q3




10¢€

Performance compared to prior year:

Spine Surgery Cases

s

QOutpatient DaVinci Robotic Surgery Cases

Growth - Page 7 of 11



80€

Performance compared to prior year; _ Same

Inpatient Behavioral Health - Average Daily Census (ADC)
Aug Sep
1% 9.7
FY18 15.7 14.5 16.2

Acute Rehab Unit - Average Daily Census {ADC)

8.3

Aug Sep

: 1.4 | 9.8 10.0
FY18 i 16.4 12.4

Hospital - Average Daily Census {ADC)
Jul Aug Sep
160.3 155.9 146.4

FY18 168.7 181.9 163.4

Deliveries

FY18 210 222

Inpatient Cardiac Interventions

Growth - Page 8 of 11



60€

Performance compared to prior year: _ Same

Outpatient Cardiac Interventions

FY19

FY18 8

TCMC Adjusted Factor (Total Revenue/IP Revenue) C/Mm
dul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

FY19 1.79 1.83 1.9 1.78 1.78 1.7 1.79

FY18 1.75 1.80 1.81 1.80 1.83 1.72 1.64 1.77 1.78 1.85 1.86 1.79 1.78

Growth - Page 9 of 11



0L€

FY19

51.0

TCMC Days in Accounts Receivable (A/R}

48.5

50.3

49,5

565

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR <§j7zzzz)[L:D

51.3

48-52

FY18

47.7

47.8

48.9

50.8

49.5

49.8

47.2

47.0

46.6

45.8

49.0

TCMC Days in Accounts Payable (A/P)

FY19

849

86.5

_ Oct

a2

51.4

87.8

88.9

75-100

FY18

82.1

79.1

78.8

83.4

813

829

B3.2

83.0

82.1

FY19

{5478)

(5121)

5119

TCHD EROE $ in Thousands (Excess Revenue over Expenses)

$342

$236

5352

c/m

_YTD Budget

FY18

{$394)

{$429)

{5224)

{$171)

(52,571)

{3383)

($1,242)

{5542)

{$337}

{5679)

($408)

{54,173)

TCHD EROE % of Total Operating Revenue

/M

Eamed it Is : YID Budget.
FY19 -1.64% -0.39% 0.41%
FY18 -1.33% -1.39% -0.76% -0.55% -9.47% -1.26% -3.94% -1.86% -1.09% -2.31% -1.31% 9.07% -2.33%

Page 10 of 11



LLE

Sep.

FY19 796 S1,168  $1417

Oct

$1,561

$1,618

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

Y OU

c/v

.YTD Budget

FY18 5898 5864 $1,001

$1,146

{51,288)

5908

581 5751

5963

5571

$500

$4,407

53,619

TCHD EBITDA % of Total Operating Revenue

Jut Aug £ Sep TR
FYig 2.73% 3.81% 4.90%

Oct

528%

_Nov.
5.65%

c/M
YTD Budget

FY18 3.03% 2.80% 3.69%

3.66%

-4.74%

2.99%

0.26% 2.57%

3.13%

2.90%

12.82%

2.02%

TCMC Paid FTE (Full-Time Equivalent} per Adjusted Occupied Bed

FY19 673 670 6.75

__odt
6.98

7.82

6.50

691

c/m
YTD Budget
6.65

FY18 6.51 5.92 6.90

6.26

6.50

6.43

5.95 5.99

5.86

6.29

6.43

6.43

6.41

TCHD Liquidity $ in Millions (Cash + Available Revolving Line of Credit)

FY19  $50.0 $49.5 $49.3

$48.1

$37.5

$29.5

FY18 558.5 $49.8 $42.3

$48.2

$58.6

554.5

554.7 553.1

549.4

542.7

$41.5

552.8

Page 11 of 11



$2 1ri-City Medical Center

Building Operating Leases
Month Ending December 31, 2018

ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

~Base “Total lRent
Rate per, per current LeaseTorm

i Lessor Sq. FL.|' Sq. Ft. month Beginning _ Ending ‘Services & Location
6121 Paseo Del Norte, LLC
6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 OSNC - Carlshad
Carisbad, CA 92011 Approx 6121 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 200
V{33024 0,552 $3.59 [{a} 45,637.80 07/01/17|  06/30/27|Carisbad, CA 92011
Amarican Health & Retirement
DBA: Vista Medical Plaza
140 Lomas Santa Fe Dr., Ste 103 PCP Clinic - Venus
Solona Beach, CA 82075 Approx 2067 W. Vista Way, Ste 160
V#B2004 1,558 £2.47 [(a) 5,020.28 01/27/17]  05/31/20|Vista, CA 92083
Camelot Investments, LLC
5800 Armada Dr., #200 PCP Clinic - Radiance
Carisbad, CA 92008 Approx 3998 Vista Way, Ste. C
V#15608 3,563 $1.91 |{a) 10,231.22 04/01/16] 01/31/20|Oceanside, CA 92056
Cardiff Investments LLC
2729 QOcean St OSNGC - Oceanside
Carisbad, CA 92008 3805 Waring Road
V83204 10,218 $2.58 |{a) 26,311.35 07/0117| 06/30/22)Oceanside, CA 92056
Creek View Medical Assoc
1926 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCF Clinlc - Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1826 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81981 6,200 $2.70 |{a) 20,540.00 02/01/15]  01/31/20|Vista, CA
CreekView Orthopaedic Bldg, LLC
1858 Via Cenire Drive OSNC - Vista
Vista, Ca 92081 Approx 1858 Via Centre Drive
V83025 4,995 $2.58 |(a) 15,640.35 07/01117|  06/30/22|Vista, Ca 92081
|Eflin Investments, LLC
Clancy Medica! Group
20136 Elfin Creek Trail PCP Clinic - Ciancy
Escondido, CA 92029 2375 Melrose Dr. Vista
|_V#82575 _ 3,140 $2.62 l(a) 9,867.81 12/01/15]  12/31/20]vista, CA 92081
Investors Property Momt. Group
c/o Levitt Family Trust OP Physical Therapy
2181 El Camino Real, Ste. 206 OP OT & OP Speech Therapy
Oceanside, Ca 92054 2124 E. El Camino Real, Ste.100
V#81028 §.214 $1.86 |(a) 10,736.58 08/01/47|  08/31/19|Oceanside, Ca 92054
Melrose Plaza Complex, LP
c/o Five K Management, Inc,
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 510 West Vista Way
Vit43849 7.247 $1.35 |(a) 10,101.01 07/01/16] 06/30/21|Vista, Ca 92083 _
OPS Enterprises, LLC Chemotherapyfinfusion Oncology
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Center
QOceanside, Ca 92056 3817 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#VB1250 4,760 $4.24 |(a) 26,713.00 10/01/12]  10/01/22{Oceanside, Ca 92056

Total $ 180,808.40

(a) Total Rent Includes Base Rent plus property taxes, assoclation fees, Insurance, CAM axpenses, etc.

312



ADVANCED_ HEALTH CARE

2 Tri-City Medical Center ()

Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending December 2018

Cost

Center Description Invaice # Amount Vendor # Attendees
6150 CNO ROUNDTABLE - PATIENT EXPERIENCE 1116182 529.96 81883 MEREBETH RICHINS
6185 ONS/ONCC CHEMOTHERAPY BIOTHERAPY CERTIFICATE 111718 103.00 BO795 MARIA FATIMA MERCADO
6185 ONS/ONCC CHEMOTHERAPY BIDTHERAPY CERTIFICATE 112118 275.00 772B6 LYNETTE HWANG
6185 ONS/ONCC CHEMOTHERAPY BIOTHERAPY CERTIFICATE 112818 279.00 B2274 ANNA SOUTH
7320 SUICIDAL RISK TRAINING 121718 135.00 80311 JASON FARMER
8350 3408 WINTER COALIMON 121318 BALL 825.00 BOO52 LAURA BALL
B350 3408 WINTER COAUTION 121918 HONG 825.00 80052 TORI HONG
8510 1099 WEBINARS - ALL ACCESS 112618 400.00 B2623 WINITA PHOGNSAMARAN
8610 DHLF BOARD RETREAT 112018 341.80 81508 STEVEN DIETUIN
8615 CAPM CERTIFICATION EXAM PREP 111218  1,890.00 78401 JESSICA SHRADER
8650 HR TRAINING CONFERENCE 121718 143.00 79802 NATALIE GREKO
8740 HOAG NUERQSCIENE NURSING CONFERENCE 111618 125.00 77841 WILLIE BUNSTON
8740 SCANN CONFERENCE CHANGING TIDES - NEONATAL 111618 140.00 77765 KIMBERLY GRITMAN
8740 SCANN CONFERENCE CHANGING TIDES - NEONATAL 121418 140.00 78614 MARINNEE CHOMPA
8740 SCANN CONFERENCE CHANGING TIDES - NEONATAL 120718 140.00 80743 USA GAGNE
B740 AHA ACLS RECERTIFICATION 120718 150.00 41537 LORNA M. MARTINEZ
B740 SCANN CONFERENCE CHANGING TIDES - NEONATAL 111618 165.00 82725 KENDRA AROQJI-SZYMANSKI
8740 PALS COURSE 111618 170.00 79113 JANINE YOUNG
8740 ACLS FULL COURSE 112618 175.00 28741 LORI FISHER
B740 ACLS CERTIFICATION 121418 155.00 B3227 GEMMA-ELIZABETH MARIE JOHNSON
8740 ECHO WEB CARDIAC CME'S 111618 200.00 79856 COLLEEN FOSTER
8740 IN PATIENT OB REVIEW 120718 200.00 B3375 LESLIE LUCERD
8740 RN TO BSN 120718  2,500.00 82610 CHARLINE TARR
8740 MSN - LEADERSHIP & MANAGEMENT 112618  4,245.00 83374 SANDI KOBIE
8756 CHA POST ACUTE CARE 112618 HUNTER 435.00 14364 JACQUELINE HUNTER
8756 CAHQ CPHO EXAM PREP 112618 660.00 83373 JULIE DANIELS

**This report shows reimbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
& Travel expense category n excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup Is available from the Finance department upon request.

313



	agenda.packet.January.1
	agenda.packet.January.2
	agenda.packet.January.3
	agenda.packet.January.4



